

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN



EXISTING CONDITIONS ANALYSIS ASSESSMENTS

SUBMITTED TO: CITY OF SAN DIEGO CITY PLANNING DIVISION, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Contact: Karen Bucey, Community Planner 619-533-6404, KBucey@SanDiego.gov

PREPARED BY: Wallace, Roberts & Todd, LLC. MW Steele Group, Inc. Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Keyser Marston Associates RBF Consulting



TABLE OF CONTENTS

- 1. INTRODUCTION
- 2 LAND USE POLICY ASSESSMENT
- 3. URBAN FORM
- 4. MOBILITY ASSESSMENT
- 5. MARKET ANALYSIS
- 6. ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ASSESSMENT

APPENDICES:

- A. TRANSIT SCHEDULES
- B. MARKET DATA
- C. MITIGATION MEASURES



1. INTRODUCTION

WRT

INTRODUCTION

Project Initiation

The Euclid & Market Land Use and Mobility Plan has been initiated through the *TransNet* Smart Growth Incentive Program (SGIP) which is administered through SANDAG (San Diego Association of Governments), the regional planning agency that encompasses the City of San Diego. The agency allocates funds received from *TransNet* transportation tax revenues for transportation-related infrastructure improvements and planning efforts that support smart growth development. The Euclid & Market Village Master Plan was awarded to the City of San Diego through the 2009-2010 fiscal year funding cycle with the intention that the development surrounding the Euclid Avenue Trolley stop would serve as a model for integrating land use and transportation and smart growth development.

SANDAG previously identified the Euclid & Market area as a potential "Community Center" in the regional Smart Growth Concept Map, updated in 2008. This place type is described as an area that contains housing within walking/ biking distance of transit station, low to mid-rise residential, office, and commercial buildings that draw from nearby communities and neighborhoods, and is served by high frequency transit. Market Street and Imperial Avenue were identified as potential "Mixed-Use Transit Corridors," which include areas of concentrated residential and mixed-use development along a linear transit corridor, with a variety of low-, mid-, and high-rise buildings and employment, commercial and retail uses. The guidelines associated with these place types in the SANDAG Smart Growth Guidelines thus apply to this area.

The Euclid & Market area is also home to the Euclid and Market Pilot Village, which has evolved to become the Village at Market Creek. The program, initiated in 2002, applied the City of Villages strategy of the San Diego General Plan to specific sites throughout the City, bringing together housing, retail, jobs, schools, and civic uses. The Village Center at Euclid and Market plan, begun in 2003, was envisioned as a "hilltop" village, taking advantage of the natural topography of the Encanto neighborhoods, and the accessibility of the trolley. Phase I of the Pilot Village, the Market Creek Retail Center, has been completed, as well as the Jacobs Center for Neighborhood Innovation (JCNI), and improvements to Chollas Creek immediately surrounding the area. Additionally, this area has benefited from additional planning, public outreach, capital improvement and private investment efforts in conjunction with various neighborhood groups and public and private partners.

The project will prepare a mobility and land use master plan for Market Street, Euclid Avenue, Imperial Avenue and Chollas Creek corridors to enhance connectivity to the Euclid and Market Pilot Village project area. The present Plan will focus specifically on the linkages between mobility and land uses, specifically on key corridors including Market Street, Euclid and Imperial Avenues, and Chollas Creek. Ultimately the recommendations of the Plan will result in improved access to transit, and contribute to regional mobility and climate change goals.

Project Objectives

The present plan will integrate and connect the Euclid and Market Pilot Village area to the surrounding community by creating mixed-use, multi-modal connections along Market Street, Euclid Avenue and Imperial Avenue, and enhancing the pedestrian and bicycle access along Chollas Creek. The planning process will engage the community, building upon past planning efforts, to produce a usable, implementable guide to improved circulation facilities and an expansion of the geographic area that has undergone investment through past planning efforts.

A summary of objectives are to:

- Improve bicycle and pedestrian access to the 47th Street Trolley Station, and the Euclid Avenue Trolley Station and bus transit center.
- Create conceptual plans for a pedestrian path along Chollas Creek linking the 47th Street and Euclid Avenue Trolley Stations to improve trolley access and foster environmental stewardship.
- Establish a multi-modal mobility network to transform the auto-oriented character of the area.
- Support the community's land use vision, as summarized in the Pilot Village program, and to make the Village at Market Creek more accessible to the surrounding community.
- Recommend appropriate land uses, densities and design within the planning area to better support transit, enhance the community, and meet regional smart growth objectives for the Community Center and Transit Corridor Place Types.

Finally, the present plan will directly inform the forthcoming Community Plan update for the Encanto Neighborhoods.

Plan Area Overview

The Euclid & Market Land Use and Mobility Plan Area (the "Plan Area") is located in the City of San Diego, in San Diego County, in the State of California, approximately 5 miles east of Downtown San Diego. (See Figure 1-1: Regional Location). The area is situated south of State Route 94, east of I-805, and north of National City, centered around the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street in San Diego's Encanto neighborhoods. The approximately 230 acre Plan Area (227 acres) includes areas alongside Market Street from the I-805 northbound on-ramp (adjacent to 45th Street) to the intersection of Imperial Avenue and Merlin Drive; areas along Euclid Avenue from approximately Guymon Street to Imperial Avenue; and Chollas Creek from the 47th Street Trolley Station to the Euclid Trolley Station.

The Plan Area is located within the Chollas View, Lincoln Park, Emerald Hills, and Valencia Park neighborhoods, which are part of the Encanto Neighborhoods Community Planning Area. The majority of surrounding land is within the City of San Diego, except for a 125-acre portion of unincorporated San Diego County located across I-805 to the West. This is the location of Greenwood Memorial Park and Mortuary. (See Figure 1-2: Community Plan Area).

From a regulatory standpoint, the Plan Area is under the guidance of the City of San Diego General Plan (2008), the Encanto Community Plan, and the Southeastern San Diego Planned District (Article 19 of the San Diego Municipal Code). It is also partially within the adopted Central Imperial Redevelopment Area. (Figure 2-7: Redevelopment Area)

The Euclid and Market area has been the focus of substantial community investments over the past decades, the majority of which are concentrated at the intersection of Market Street and Euclid Avenues. These include the Malcolm X Library, the Tubman-Chavez Multi-Cultural Center, the Elementary Institute of Science, and the Euclid Trolley Station and bus Transit Center, The Village Center at Market Creek is among these investments. These have been enhanced by the access to the high-frequency trolley service with Orange line stations at 47th Street and at Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

A significant amount of open space surrounds the Plan Area, including City-owned conservation areas included in the City's Multiple Species Conservation Program (MSCP) and Multi-Habitat Planning Area (MHPA). The Plan Area is also located adjacent to Chollas Creek—an important open space and ecological resource in the region. These lands currently offer several existing trails, passive recreation, bird watching and scientific research assets and the potential for more enhancements of this type. Additional open space is located in adjacent school locations in the form Joint-Use Sites. These features are illustrated in Figure 1-3: Natural Environment and Open Space.

Demographically, the Plan Area is home to an ethnically diverse community. Nine identified ethnic communities are known to reside within the surrounding neighborhoods, over half of which are of Hispanic origin. The communities are also younger in age, have larger households, and have a lower median income than the City and County of San Diego. The highest employment sector for individuals in the Plan Area is the retail trade industry. Chapter 5: Market Analysis contains a full analysis of the demographic features of the Plan Area, which are also summarized in Table 1-1.

Demographic Summary	Plan Area (1-Mile)	City		
Households:				
Number of Households	7,822	487,221		
Average Household Size	3.69	2.62		
Income:				
Median Household Income	\$35,078	\$58,173		
Families Below Poverty	24.9%	9.8%		
Families Below Poverty with Children	23.2%	7.7%		

Table 1-1: Summary of Key Demographic Factors, 2011

57.4%	29.5%			
Language Spoken at Home:				
42.3%	60.6%			
57.7%	39.4%			
Educational Attainment:				
38.0%	14.6%			
25.6%	16.9%			
21.5%	20.9%			
14.9%	47.6%			
	42.3% 57.7% 38.0% 25.6% 21.5%			

Source: Claritas, Inc., KMA.

Organization

This report documents the project team's initial observations and analysis of existing conditions for the Euclid & Market Land Use and Mobility Plan Project Area. Observations and analysis pertaining to environmental conditions, land use policy, urban form, mobility, and market conditions are included as individual report chapters. This report establishes a common understanding of the various conditions affecting the Plan Area and vicinity for use during subsequent stages of the Master Plan Process and the visioning of future development in the planning area.

This report is organized into the following Chapters:

- 1. Introduction
- 2. Land Use Policy Assessment
- 3. Urban Form Assessment
- 4. Mobility Assessment
- 5. Market Analysis
- 6. Environmental Analysis Assessment







FIGURE 1-1: REGIONAL LOCATION

City of San Diego Boundary

 \diamond

Freeways

-

SanGIS

J Miles 2

0.5 - 0 \oplus





September 2011



2. LAND USE POLICY ASSESSMENT

WRT

LAND USE POLICY ASSESSMENT

Land Use

Existing Land Use

The built landscape in the Plan Area is characterized by a mixture of lower density multifamily and single-family residences, retail, industrial uses, and vacant or underutilized land. Residential land uses comprise approximately 30% of the Plan Area. Commercial uses, which include industrial uses, make up 22% of the Plan Area. This includes areas that are under construction, and low-rise offices associated with industrial land uses. Public and institutional land uses make up the next greatest portion of land. This also includes the nearly 14 acres of public open space.

Commercial uses are located primarily along Market Street, Euclid Avenue, and Imperial Avenue. The majority of industrial uses are located south of Market Street and east of 49th Street on the north and south sides of the trolley right-of-way. Amid these uses is also a significant portion of the vacant and underutilized land within the Plan Area.

A significant amount of land within the Plan Area and in Southeastern San Diego in general is vacant or underutilized. In the Southeast San Diego Community Plan, completed in 1987, 11% of land is identified as vacant. Of the acreage within the Plan Area, approximately 14% is vacant and undeveloped. There are also several large surface parking lots that provide opportunity areas for new development. This includes underutilized parcels, such as the Church's Chicken site on the northwest corner of Euclid & Market. Large vacant parcels are located north of Market Street west of 49th Street, south of Market adjacent to the trolley tracks, north of the trolley tracks immediately east of Euclid, and between Stevens and Imperial Avenue. The location of vacant parcels and parking lots are illustrated on Figure 2-2: Vacant Parcels and Parking Lots.

Table 2-1: Existing Land and Figure 2-1: Existing Land Use demonstrate the location and proportion of land use within the Plan Area.

Table 2-1: Existing La	nd use in the Plan Area
------------------------	-------------------------

	Acres	Percentage of overall project area land
Residential		
Single-Family	17.32	7.6%
Multi-Family	25.65	11.3%
Mobile Home Park	28.28	12.4%
Sub-Total	71.26	31.3%
Commercial		
Arterial Commercial	5.54	2.4%
Commercial	3.32	1.5%
Community Commercial	8.37	3.7%
Office Low Rise	2.47	1.1%
Industrial	2.54	1.1%
Light Industry	18.85	8.3%
Industrial under Construction	8.22	3.6%
Other Retail Trade Strip Commercial	0.81	0.4%
Warehousing	0.01	0.0%
Sub-Total	50.14	22.0%
Public & Institutional		
Elementary School	19.56	8.6%
Government Office/ Civic Center	1.42	0.6%
Open Space or Preserve	13.77	6.0%
Other Health Care	3.44	1.5%
Other Public Services	3.44	1.5%
Religious Facility	0.45	0.2%
Institutional	2.88	1.3%
Library	0.26	0.1%
Sub-Total	45.23	19.9%
Infrastructure & Utilities		
Communications & Utilities	3.86	1.7%
Rail Terminal	7.00	3.1%
Other Transportation	2.09	0.9%
Sub-Total	12.95	5.7%
Vacant and Undeveloped Land	30.97	13.6%
Right-of-Way		
Right-of-Way (Railroad)	9.91	4.4%
Right-of-Way (Streets)	7.25	3.2%
Total Acreage	227.7	100%

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN





September 2011

Euclid + Market

+

SanGIS

___Feet 🗸 1,500

750

- 0

 \bigcirc

FIGURE 2-2: VACANT PARCELS & PARKING LOTS

Planned Land Use

Adopted Community Plan Land Use

The Adopted Land Use recommendations for the Plan Area were established with the most recent update of the Southeastern San Diego Community Plan, which was completed in 1987. The definitions of these land uses are described in the Land Use Element of the Community Plan (the "Adopted Community Plan") which categorizes land uses generally according to Residential, Commercial, Village/ Mixed Use, Industrial, and Open Space and Recreational uses with goals and recommended land uses for each. The Land Use Element defines land uses that are in keeping with the General Plan definitions for the City with refinements appropriate to the Community Plan Area's neighborhoods. Areas that warrant more stringent design guidelines are addressed through the mechanism of a Community Plan Implementation Overlay Zone (CPIOZ), which contains a greater level of design and development guidelines. The CPIOZ is described in greater detail below. Planned land uses in the Plan Area and vicinity are illustrated in Table 2-2: Adopted Community Plan Land Use, and in Figure 2-3: Adopted Community Land Use.

Generally these adopted land uses correspond to the existing land uses, in the concentration of industrial and commercial uses located along Market Street, Euclid Avenue and Imperial Avenue. Single-family residential areas are located on the western portions of the Plan Area except for a thin strip on the eastern edge of Euclid Avenue. The single-family mobile home park designation is located south of the trolley tracks to the southern boundary of the Plan Area. The multi-family designations are located south of the Village Center at Euclid & Market and south of the industrial uses in the eastern portion of the Plan Area north of Imperial Avenue. Residential uses apply to 38% of the Plan Area.

Commercial uses are concentrated along Market Street and at the intersection of Euclid and Market, the intersection of Market and 47th Streets, and the Euclid and Imperial. The Neighborhood Village use applies to the planned *Village at Market Creek*, which occupies 11.1% of the Plan Area. Industrial uses are located along Market Street both east and west of Euclid Avenue and amount to 21% of the Plan Area.

Institutional uses are located on the site of the Euclid & Market Transit Stop and the 47th Street Trolley Stop.

The following Adopted Land Uses are contained within the Plan Area.

• Single-Family Residential (5-10 du/acre)

This land use includes low density development that maintains the scale and spacing of development found within the community. It allows both single-family and multifamily

housing within a low to medium density range. These are "Protected Single-Family Neighborhoods" according to the Community Plan.

• Single-Family Residential (10-15 du/acre)

This land use includes low density development that coincides with the R-3000 zoning with a 30-foot height limit. This use maintains the scale and spacing of development found within the community and provides for both single-family and multifamily housing within a low to medium density range.

• Multi-family Residential (15-30 du/acre)

This land use provides for both single- and multi-family and multifamily housing within a medium density range. Areas with this land use allow for increased densities along major corridors that reflect existing development and take advantage of proximity to the trolley corridor.

• Single-Family Residential Mobile Home (10-15 du/acre)

A portion of The Plan Area contains a part of the Mobile Home Overlay Zone, which applies to the El Rey Trailer Park at 47th Street and Castana. The Overlay requires specific discontinuance procedures prior to the sites being used for another purpose. As adopted, it allows for single-family residential uses of 10-15 du/acre in the form of mobile homes.

• General Commercial

General Commercial is used to describe existing shopping centers or miscellaneous commercial uses within the Plan Area. Areas defined as such in the Adopted Community Land Use Plan include Market Creek Plaza shopping center, commercial development on the west side of Euclid north of Imperial, St. Stephen's Retirement Center and Community Bookstore, and the Green Cat Liquors building at the corner of Euclid & Imperial. These uses are meant to fulfill the commercial needs of the community. Allowable uses within these identified areas shall conform to the regulations held in the underlying zoning.

• Neighborhood Commercial

Neighborhood Commercial, outside of the CPIOZ, provides for local convenience shopping, civic uses, and services serving an approximate three mile radius, without

housing allowed (note housing allowed with Neighborhood Commercial only within CPIOZ). Areas identified as Neighborhood Commercial in the Adopted Community Plan Land Use include the four corners of Market & 47th Streets, and auto-body repair shops on the south side of Market Street west of Merlin. Allowable uses within these identified areas shall conform to the regulations held in the underlying zoning.

• Neighborhood Village

The Neighborhood Village land use areas corresponds to the *Village at Market Creek* Pilot Village area (as yet undeveloped) and has specified densities and land uses and planned square footage for each area. These are described as a Village/ Mixed Use Land Use. The General Plan also defines Neighborhood Village, as shown in Table 2.2.

- Southwest Village: 216 Multifamily Dwelling Units
- Market Creek Plaza: 220 Multifamily Dwelling Units, 20,000 sf Commercial/ Retail.
- Trolley Center: 52 Multifamily Dwelling Units
- Northwest Commercial: 44 Multifamily Dwelling Units, 65,400 sf retail.
- City of Villages: 165 Multifamily Dwelling Units, 5,000 sf Office, 21,500 sf Retail, 9,650 sf of Eating and Drinking Establishments
- Industrial

The light industrial land use shown within the Plan Area permits and are reserved for industrial and office park uses, which is implemented by underlying zoning. Industrial land use prohibits auto dismantling, junk yards, outdoor open storage, and recycling industries within the Southeastern San Diego community. Compliance is regulated through applicable zoning regulations.

• Institutional

Institutional land uses applies to all public facilities, including: schools, libraries, police/ fire, postal service, drainage and flood control, water and sewer facilities, solid waste, and gas/ electric. Within the Plan Area, institutional land uses include the transportation facilities at 47th & Euclid and Euclid & Market Streets. Outside of the Plan Area, the land use applies to the Malcolm X Library. Schools and education al facilities are identified as a distinct land use within the Institutional land use category, which are encouraged to match the density and form of the surrounding community. Transportation facilities do not include use and/or design recommendations.



Euclid + Market



Table 2-2: Adopted	Community	y Plan Land	Use
--------------------	-----------	-------------	-----

	Acres	Percentage of
		overall project
		area land
Residential		
Single Family Residential (5-10 du/ac)	4.23	1.9%
Single Family Residential (10-15 du/ac)	31.01	13.6%
Single Family Residential (10-15 du/ac) Mobile Home	26.68	11.7%
Multi-Family Residential (15-17 du/ac)	14.30	6.3%
Multi-Family Residential (15-30 du/ac)	10.52	4.6%
Sub-Total	86.73	38.1%
Commercial		
General Commercial	14.26	6.3%
Neighborhood Village	25.30	11.1%
Neighborhood Commercial	7.97	3.5%
Sub-Total	47.53	20.8%
Industrial		
Industrial	48.89	21.5%
Sub-Total	48.9	21.5%
Institutional		
Institutional	7.00	3.1%
Schools/Public Facilities	20.38	8.9%
Sub-Total	27.38	12.0%
Right-of-Way		
Right-of-Way (Railroad)	9.91	4.4%
Right-of-Way (Streets)	7.25	3.2%
Total Acreage	227.7	100%

Other land uses in Figure 2-3: Adopted Community Plan Land Use that are in the surrounding area but not contained in the Plan Area include:

- Single-Family Residential (0-2 du/acre)
- Single-Family Residential (0-5 du/acre)
- Multi-Family Residential (15-17 du/acre)
- Multi-Family Residential (30-44 du/acre)
- Neighborhood Commercial-Residential Permitted (0-44 du/acre) (within CPIOZ)
- Community Commercial
- Specialized Commercial
- Business Park/ Office Commercial
- Park

- Open Space
- Cemetery

These are generally described in the Community Plan, but are not explicitly defined. Additional information may be found by referencing the Southeastern San Diego Community Plan.

Community Planning Implementation Overlay Zone (CPIOZ)

In the 1987 Southeastern San Diego Community Plan, two areas within the Plan Area were identified as a Community Planning Implementation Overlay Zone (CPIOZ). These designations effectively implement the Village/Mixed-Use Designations. The Village/ Mixed-Use Designations are applied to two areas in the Plan Area: Village Center at Euclid & Market and Imperial Crest. The Village at Euclid and Market is expected to provide a combination of commercial and community facilities along with multi-family housing, while Imperial Crest will have a more residential focus with limited commercial development. In the Adopted Community Plan Land Use, the Neighborhood Village designation is associated with the established Village Center at Euclid & Market. The Imperial Crest area is designated as Multi-Family Residential (15-30 du/acre).

The objectives of the Village/ Mixed-Use designations include the promotion of mixed-use and high-quality residential developments that support transit use, reduce automobile dependence, establish a pedestrian-friendly orientation, and offer flexibility for redevelopment opportunities while maintaining community character.

Both of the designated areas located within the CPIOZ district are Type A, which means that they are subject to ministerial review. If developments are consistent with the community plan base zone regulations, supplemental regulations will be processed without added permits or discretionary review.

In 2009, the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Area was passed, allowing for the village type policies of the City of San Diego General Plan Update to be added to be applied to the Southeastern Community Plan. These two land uses—Neighborhood Village and Neighborhood Commercial (Residential Permitted)—would allow for village-type development and higher density residential use (up to 60 du/ acre). These would be allowed only in the designated CPIOZ areas.

General Plan Land Uses

The San Diego General Plan, updated in 2008, included land uses that could be applied to Community Plan. The intention of the General Plan Land Uses are to set forth a common nomenclature for use throughout the City, with Community Plans for each area providing refinements and modifications that directly address those communities needs and market. The table below contains the General Plan Land Uses that are applicable to the Southeastern San Diego/ Encanto Neighborhoods and are presented in the same format as in Table LU-4: General Plan and Community Plan Land Use Categories. These will be modified in the forthcoming Community Plan Update for Southeastern San Diego.

General Plan Land Use	Recommended Community Plan Designation	Use Considerations	Description	General Plan Intensity/ Density Building Intensity Range
Residential	Residential – Medium		Provides for both single and multifamily housing within a medium-density range.	15-29 du/ac
	Residential – Medium High		Provides for both single and multifamily housing within a medium-high-density range.	30-44 du/ac
	Residential –High		Provides for both single and multifamily housing within a high-density range.	35-44 du/ac
Commercial	Neighborhood Commercial	Residential Permitted	Provides local convenience shopping, civic uses, and services serving an approximate 3 mile radius. Housing may be allowed only within a mixed-use setting.	.25 to 4.0 FAR 15 to 44 du/ac
		Residential Prohibited	Provides local convenience shopping, civic uses, and services serving an approximate 3 mile radius.	.25 to 2.0 FAR
	Community Commercial	Residential Permitted	Provides for shopping areas with retail, service, civic, and office uses for the community at large within 3 to 6 miles. It can also be applied to Transit Corridors where multi-family residential uses could be added to enhance the viability of existing commercial uses.	.25 to 4.0 FAR 30 to 74 du/ac
		Residential Prohibited	Provides for shopping areas with retail, service, civic, and office uses for the community at large within three to six miles.	.25 to 2.0 FAR
Mult iple Use	Neighborhood Village	Residential Required	Provides housing in a mixed- use setting and convenience	.25+ FAR (the upper limit is to be determined by

Table 2-3: Optional General Plan Land Uses

		shopping, civic uses as an important component, and services serving an approximate 3 mile radius.	the adopted land use plan and/or associated implementing ordinances) 15 to 44 du/ac
Community Village	Residential Required	Provides housing in a mixed- use setting and serves the commercial needs of the community at large, including the industrial and business areas. Integration of commercial and residential use is emphasized; civic uses are an important component. Retail, professional/ administrative offices, commercial recreation facilities, service businesses, and similar types of uses are allowed.	.25+ FAR (the upper limit is to be determined by the adopted land use plan and/or associated implementing ordinances) 15 to 44 du/ac
Urban Village	Residential Required	Serves the region with many types of uses, including housing, in a high-intensity mixed-use setting. Integration of commercial and residential use is emphasized; large, civic uses and facilities are a significant component. Uses include housing, business/ professional office, commercial service, and retail.	.25+ FAR (the upper limit is to be determined by the adopted land use plan and/or associated implementing ordinances) 30+ du/acre (upper limit is to be determined by the adopted land use plan and associated implementing ordinances)

<u>Zoning</u>

Zoning in the Plan Area is a combination of the standard zoning of the San Diego Municipal Code and the Southeastern San Diego Planned Development Ordinance (PDO) Overlay District. The PDO was established to create zoning regulations pursuant to the recommendations and area-specific needs of the Community Plan.

The predominant regulatory zones within the Plan Area are the Commercial, Industrial, and Multiple-Family Zones of the SESDPDO. These regulatory categories are described below. Additional regulatory zones found within the Plan Area are Residential-Multiple Unit Zones RM-1-1, RM-2-5, RM-3-7, RM-3-9, and Community Commercial Zones CC-3-5. These may be







FIGURE 2-4: ZONING

Community Plan Boundary City of San Diego Boundary

LEGEND

Trolley Stop

Euclid & Market Village Master Plan Project Area Boundary ---- Chollas Creek

 $\diamond \diamond$

++++ Light Rail



The start of a brought of the start of the s

anGIS 2009 Rights Reserved ingis or g.L. coll_Notce.htm

C opyright:

found in Chapter 13 of the San Diego Municipal Code. Commercial Zone CC-3-5 is intended to be developed with a high-intensity, pedestrian orientation. (Figure 2-4: Zoning)

Southeastern San Diego Planned Development Ordinance Zones:

• <u>Single-Family Zones:</u> Single-family zones are designed to provide for areas of one-family residential development at varying densities. These include: SF-40,000, SF-20,000, SF-15,000, SF-10,000, SF-8,000, SF-6,000, SF-5,000.

Included in the Plan Area: SF-5,000.

• <u>Multiple-Family Residential Zone Regulations</u>: Multiple-family zones are primarily intended to provide for multiple-family residential development at varying densities, up to 45 du/acre. These include: MF-3000, MF-2500, MF-2000, MF-1750, MF-1500.

Included in the Plan Area: MF-3,000, MF-1500.

- <u>Commercial Zone Regulations</u>: Commercial elements in the Southeastern San Diego Planned District are contained in three distinct zones which further the intentions of the Community Plan. These include: CSF, CSR, and CT. Applied to each of these zones is a 1, 2, or 3 suffix corresponding to a "Use Category" to determine which activities are appropriate for each design zone.
 - CSF Zones (1,2,3): Commercial strip development with parking in the front or side of the building with an orientation towards automobile use. (0. 05 FAR)
 - CSR Zone (1,2,3): Commercial strip development with parking in the rear or side of building, where pedestrian-orientation is the design intention. (0.75 FAR)
 - CT Zone (1,2,3): Commercial center that generally contains its own internal circulation and parking system and functions as independent entity. (1.0 FAR)
 - Neighborhood-Commercial Category-1: Oriented to a local-serving population. Lots are a minimum of 5,000 sf.
 - Community-Commercial Category-2: May accommodate a wide variety of community shopping and business needs and services which are both retail and wholesale in nature. Lots are a minimum of 10,000 sf.
 - Recreational-Commercial Category-3: Intended to provide for establishments catering to the lodging, dining, and general entertainment uses of the community and for visitors to the community.

Included in the Plan Area: CSF-1, CSF-2, CT-2.

- <u>Industrial Zone Regulations</u>: Industrial Zone Regulations are intended to provide for a wide range of quality manufacturing, light industrial uses and certain "heavy" commercial uses. Standards and regulations are designed to permit development and uses of property in a manner that is consistent with efficient industrial operation.
 - Light Industrial Zone I-1: Light industrial uses such as "heavy" commercial uses (i.e. lumber yards). (10,000 minimum lot area; 1.5 FAR)
 - Light Industrial Zone I-2: Light industrial uses such as "heavy" commercial uses (i.e. lumber yards). (40,000 minimum lot area; 2.0 FAR)

Included in the Plan Area: I-1

Parcel Configuration

Parcels within the Plan Area are generally much larger than those in the surrounding area. For example, the residential areas in the periphery are characterized by smaller lots for single-family homes (less than one acre). Within the Plan Area, parcels are larger as a result of industrial land uses associated with the rail right-of-way. The largest parcels are between 4 acres and up to 23.3 acres. (174,240 to 1,014,948 square feet), which is illustrated in Figure 2-5: Parcel Size. The size and configuration of parcels has an impact on the redevelopment potential of the area and the outcome of future development. This is discussed further in Chapter 3: Urban Form.

Community Facilities

The Plan Area is served by community facilities located within and surrounding its boundaries. Of the services that serve the Plan Area, only one—the Tubman Chavez Multi-cultural Youth and Family Center—is located within the planning area at the southeast corner of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

Other community facilities are located outside of the boundaries of the Plan Area but serve the communities represented in the Master Plan. These include the following facilities:

Schools:

- Walter J. Porter Elementary School: located on T Street near 47th Street
- Horton Elementary School: located on Guymon Street west of Euclid Avenue.
- Chollas/ Mead Elementary School: located south of Market Street at 45th Street.
- Promise Charter School: located on 45th Street at Boylston Street (between F and G Streets)







FIGURE 2-5: PARCEL SIZE

-

SanGIS

___Feet 🔮 1,500

750

- 0

 \bigcirc

- Lincoln High School: located south of Imperial Avenue between 47th Street and Willie James Jones Ave.
- Johnson Elementary: located on Kelton Road north of Roswell Street.
- Valencia Park Elementary School: located on Skyline Drive between 58th Street and Valencia Parkway.
- Millennial Tech Middle School: located on Carolina Lane between Hilltop Drive and SR-94.
- Gompers Preparatory Academy (Charter Middle School/ Juinor High): located on 47th Street between Hilltop Drive and SR-94.
- Holly Drive Leadership Academy: located on Holly Drive between S Willie James Jones Avenue and Euclid Avenue.
- O'Farrell Community Center for Advanced Academy: located on Skyline Drive at 61st Street.
- Nubia Leadership Academy: located on Benson Avenue at 61st Street.
- St. Rita's School: located on Imperial Avenue between Euclid Avenue and San Jacinto Drive.

Fire:

• Fire Station #12: 4964 Imperial Avenue. Serving Lincoln Park/Valencia Park and surrounding areas This station has been at this location since 1948, although the current 11,333 square foot, two-story building was opened in 2005.

<u>Library:</u>

• Malcolm X Library and Performing Arts Center: 5148 Market Street at Euclid Avenue. The 26.042 square foot facility was built in 1996.

The plan area includes two key community-oriented facilities that are not in public ownership but play important community roles. These include the Elementary Institute of Science, at the northeast corner of Euclid Avenue and Market Street, and the Jacobs Center, located within the Village at Market Creek, south of the Euclid Trolley Station. The Jacobs Center is a 75,000 square foot multi-purpose and community centered building. The Village at Market Creek includes the Jacobs Center, a 500-seat amphitheatre, and a series of well-designed outdoor spaces.



CHAPTER 2: LAND USE POLICY ASSESSMENT

The Village at Market Creek has most of the components of a Community Center as described by the Regional Comprehensive Plan. The missing components--moderate density residential development and an improved multi-modal mobility network--are the focus of the current Master Plan process and the forthcoming Community Plan Update.

The above locations are illustrated on Figure 2-6: Existing Facilities & Amenities.

PLANNING BACKGROUND

General Plan

The City of San Diego General Plan, updated in 2008, contains the principles that guide all development within the neighborhoods of San Diego. The plan outlines a "City of Villages" strategy for the visioning of San Diego's diverse and unique neighborhoods.

The following General Plan goals and principles are informing the Master Plan process:

- An open space network formed by parks, canyons, river valleys, habitats, beaches, and oceans.
- Diverse residential communities formed by the open space network.
- Compact and walkable mixed-use villages.
- Employment centers for a strong economy.
- High-quality, affordable, and well-maintained public facilities.
- Historic districts and sites that respect our heritage.
- Balanced communities that offer opportunities for all San Diegans and share citywide responsibilities.
- A clean and sustainable environment.
- A high aesthetic standard.
- An integrated regional transportation network of walkways, bikeways, transit, roadways, and freeways.

Southeastern San Diego Community Plan

The Southeast San Diego Community Plan, completed in 1987, contains the specified goals and policies tailored to the needs of the Southeastern San Diego neighborhoods. The plan describes the characteristics of the community. In 1987, this area was described as 7,200 acres in the central portion of the City of San Diego, located east of Interstate 5, south of SR-94, situated between Centre City, Lemon Grove, National City, and the community of Skyline-Paradise Hills. Interstates I-805 and SR-15 also provide direct access into the communities. Southeastern San Diego contains 14 neighborhoods, each with their unique Neighborhood Element. This includes Lincoln Park, Chollas View, Emerald Hills, and Valencia Park, which are also known as several of the "Diamond Neighborhoods" of San Diego. The Plan Area is described as the "older," more
established portion of the Southeastern communities, with a higher degree of mixed land use than the areas east of SR-15. In general land use is described as haphazard and separated by barriers.

Goals of the Southeastern San Diego Community Plan

Overarching issues and goals of redevelopment that were identified in the 1987 plan are focused on job creation and an improved quality of physical development and public services and facilities. Specifically, the development of more robust commercial shopping centers, increased density of development, the redevelopment of vacant lands, and increased access to services and freeways were also included as goals. The concern of community design includes an improved appearance of development – both future and existing—and an overabundance of assisted housing projects, which were viewed as disproportionate to the rest of the City. An improvement and increase of the recreational and educational facilities were also identified. These goals reappear as aspects of each of the elements that make up the Community Plan, which include: Social and Economic Element, Residential Element, Commercial Element, Village Element, Industrial Element, Open Space and Recreational Element, Transportation Element, Public Facilities Element, and Urban Design Element.

Neighborhood Elements

In addition to the overarching goals of the community as a whole, individual goals per neighborhood were identified in the Community Plan. Generally the neighborhoods are described as follows, with their corresponding broad objectives followings.

- Chollas View:
 - Preserve the existing, well-maintained single-family development east of 49th Street.
 - Improve the landscaping along Euclid & Market
 - Achieve joint development with the MTDB and private businesses to develop the area adjoining the Euclid trolley station.
 - Increase the availability of commercial retail services which are sensitive to the needs of this community.
- Lincoln Park:
 - Retain the existing single-family development as islands of well-maintained housing, while encouraging redevelopment of dilapidated housing. Increase homeownership opportunities.

- Redevelop the vacant 157 Expressway land for residential use, while encouraging homeownership opportunities.
- Improve the appearance of major transportation corridors including the trolley through improved landscaping.
- Retain viable existing businesses along major streets including Imperial Avenue, Euclid Avenue, and Logan Avenue, encouraging rehabilitation.
- Expand community-serving commercial activities.
- Retain natural features (hills/canyons).
- Take measures to reduce crime rate.
- Valencia Park:
 - Preserve the existing, well-maintained single-family development.
 - Valencia Canyon is an attractive natural canyon and should be preserved for future generations.
 - Improve the appearance of Imperial Avenue and Euclid Avenue.
 - Take advantage of the strategic location of the vacant Potter Tract to provide needed goods and services or other community-serving uses such as an employment center.
 - Ensure that move-on houses are treated in an aesthetic manner or not permitted.
 - The vacant parcels south of Arroyo Avenue and west of 58th Street should be developed in such a way as to minimize disturbance of the land's natural topography and vegetation.
- Emerald Hills:
 - Improve the appearance of Euclid Avenue.
 - Develop the vacant parcel fronting on 60th Street in such a way that it will minimize disturbance of the land's natural topography and vegetation.
 - Develop the vacant parcel at Market Street and Euclid Avenue in a way that compliments the trolley station across the street and is compatible with adjacent residential uses.
 - Preserve the single-family areas.

The implementation measures recommended to carry out the goals of the Community Plan include public and private financing mechanisms, development regulations including tailored zoning and discretionary project review.

Central Imperial Redevelopment Plans

The Plan Area is located within the Central Imperial Redevelopment Project Area, which is included in the purview of the Southeastern San Diego Economic Development Corporation (SEDC). (See Figure 2-7: Redevelopment Project Area). Four redevelopment project areas are included in SEDC's sphere of influence: Central Imperial, Gateway Center West, Mount Hope and Southcrest, and the Dells Imperial Study Area. SEDC was established in 1981 and since that time has overseen multiple planning initiatives for the Plan Area, and continues to work towards goals of economic and physical redevelopment in partnership with the public and private entities.

Central Imperial Redevelopment Implementation Plan (1992)

The Central Imperial Redevelopment Project Area, adopted in 1992, encompasses approximately 580 acres. It extends east of Messina Drive across I-805 to 69th Street and includes portions of Chollas View, Emerald Hills, Lincoln Park, Mountain View, Valencia Park, Encanto, and South Encanto. At the time of establishment, the land uses were composed of a variety of land uses, including 32% residential; 5% industrial uses; 6% commercial; 10% public/semipublic land; 15% vacant; 26% public right-of-way; 2% open space; and 4% abandoned underutilized land.

When established, the goals of the Central Imperial Redevelopment Area Plan were multi-faceted and continue to be relevant. They are similar to the goals of the Southeastern San Diego Community Plan, as follows:

- Promote revitalization of the Central Imperial Community.
- Provide incentives for the development of new commercial facilities to better serve the community and to upgrade the physical appearances of commercial areas on 47th Street and Market Street and Imperial Avenue.
- Provide incentives for the development of under-utilized parcels of land in the Project Area.
- Maintain the existing residential character along the East Trolley Corridor

The Redevelopment Plan provided the enabling power to the area included in the Project Area as established in California Redevelopment Law, such as to engage in land assemblage, provide incentives such as Tax Increment Financing, and to initiate property improvements such as







FIGURE 2-7: REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA

Trolley Stop

Parks and Open Spaces

-

SanGIS

1,500

750

- 0

 \bigcirc

rehabilitation, demolition, and infrastructure improvements. The Plan also spurred subsequent plans and projects that were within the Project Boundaries, which are described below.

SEDC Commercial Corridor Urban Design Guide (ca. 1998)

This document is a guide for the development of all Commercial Corridors in Southeastern San Diego, specifically, the Town Center at Euclid & Market Street, Euclid Avenue Commercial Corridor, Euclid Avenue and Imperial Avenue Commercial Center, Market Street industrial Corridor, Encanto Village at Imperial Avenue, and Mount Hope Commercial Corridor. These areas were chosen as "seed" areas that would spur redevelopment.

These provided urban design guidance developed through a series of community workshops put on by SEDC and co-sponsored by local community and business groups.

Three main principles guide the formulation of the plan:

- <u>Rural History</u>: Enhance area elements that are reminiscent of the region's rural history, such as open natural land tracts, Chollas Creek, and the topography north of the project site.
- <u>Chollas Creek:</u> New development and redevelopment activities should participate in the restoration of the creek where possible and the natural element should be celebrated as a "community gateway."
- <u>Plazas as Town Center Identity Element:</u> The plaza concept should be incorporated into new site design to create public space that serves as a central link and sources of common cultural identity.

SEDC Imperial Avenue Corridor Master Plan (December 2005)

The SEDC Imperial Avenue Corridor Master Plan was conducted by SEDC in 2005 to analyze two redevelopment areas between 805 and Euclid and between 61st and 69th. The Master Plan area overlaps with the southern boundary and contains similar land uses to the Euclid & Market Village Master Plan Area. Additionally, it provides key recommendations that are similar to those goals envisioned by the preliminary goals of the current Plan Area.

These include:

- Pedestrian access;
- Transit-orientation;
- Vibrant neighborhoods;
- Unique site features;
- Visual gateways;

- Job /housing balance;
- New development should be mixed-use;
- Family –orientation;
- Creation of activity areas through cultural and civic anchors.

It is hoped that the recommendations that are made through the Euclid & Market Village Master Plan process will be shared between the two Plan Areas and link them as contiguous communities.

Multi-family Development Guidelines (November 2009)

Guidelines for the development of Multi-family housing projects were created by the Southeastern Development Corporation to update the Multi-Family Development Guidelines according to Smart Growth principles, and the City of San Diego General Plan's "City of Villages" Vision. Additionally, the guidelines added four new categories that were updated to contemporary project needs. These included: Sustainability, Mixed-Use, Condominium Conversions, and Management and Maintenance of for-sale Developments.

In total, the Sections addressed in the Guidelines include:

- 1. Sustainability
- 2. Site Planning
- 3. Mixed-Use Design
- 4. Building Design
- 5. Landscape Design
- 6. Community Facilities & Amenities
- 7. Miscellaneous Site Elements
- 8. Condominium Conversions
- 9. Safety and Security
- 10. Management and Maintenance

The SEDC Multi-Family Development Guidelines are meant to function in concert with the City of San Diego General Plan, City of San Diego Land Development Code, the Southeastern San Diego PDO, and policies of the Southeastern San Diego Community Plan, as well as Redevelopment Plans in the Southeastern Community. They are intended to be used by the SEDC to evaluate projects that request financial or other assistance from the Agency. They may also be used to evaluate any mixed-use project proposed in SE San Diego, including private multi-family development.

The SEDC Multi-Family Development Guidelines were drafted by MW Steele Group, Architecture and Planning, who are part of the Euclid & Market Village Master Plan project team.

Chollas Creek Plans

Chollas Creek is a natural drainage system that passes through San Diego's Greater Mid-City, Encanto, Southeastern San Diego, and Barrio Logan communities. The creek is an important natural feature of these communities and in the historical development of the City. The creek and its surrounding areas had been heavily altered through development and its restoration has been and remains to be a core goal of the redevelopment of these areas and has initiated several planning efforts since the 1970s.

Chollas Creek Enhancement Community Workshop (1998)

The enhancement of Chollas Creek was initiated by community workshops held in 1998, which bridged from the outreach efforts of the Southeastern San Diego Community Planning Effort. These workshops captured the community issues that would inform the content of the eventual Enhancement Plan. These included:

- The need to connect Chollas Creek and its historic role in the development of San Diego with the people of San Diego.
- Integration of open space preservation and urban development.
- Realistic creek improvement funding and maintenance costs.
- Flood safety and protection, clean out debris, water quality, safe trails, native landscaping features, create positive setting for development.

The eventual common vision for Chollas Creek united the community aspirations of the various communities with the urban design recommendations of SEDC to arrive upon recommendations pertaining to:

- The formation of identity for each of the branches of Chollas Creek.
- The blending of the natural and built environments.
- The development of creekside trail systems that integrate the appreciation of the Creek with goals of community health and character.
- The creation of a safe environment and opportunities for future economic development.
- The contribution of private development and financing sources into creek improvement projects.

Chollas Creek Enhancement Program (2002)

This program was undertaken by the City of San Diego to provide guidelines for the enhancement of various aspects of Chollas Creek based. The portions of Chollas Creek that are identified as sections of the plan include:

- Wetlands and upland restoration
- Channel reconstruction
- Landscaping
- Trail System
- Public Art Opportunities
- Education and Interpretive Program

The program also includes specific recommendations for the individual branches, or phases, of Chollas Creek and the strategy for wetlands restoration. A timeframe of twenty years was identified for the completion of plan implementation, which includes phasing and funding as well as maintenance and oversight strategies. Public art and habitat restoration opportunities are included in each separate phase. The implementation plans that affect the plan area are located in the South Branch section.

Groundwork San Diego, a local non-profit, continues to work towards the improvement of Chollas Creek and the implementation of the plans that have been created for the resource.

Other Relevant Plans

Project First Class

Project First Class was initiated by the Fourth Council district and approved by City Council in 1984. The project was initiated to specifically assist the community with growth and revitalization, establish a code enforcement program, and facilitate other public and private improvements for Southeastern San Diego and nearby communities. The primary goal was to achieve high quality urban design of the new development that would result from the completion of the trolley to the eastern neighborhoods. The Southeastern San Diego Community Plan was seen as an extension of the goals of this plan. The issues identified in Project First Class directly inform the specific and general urban design recommendations of the Community Plan.

Euclid PLACE³S Revitalization Program

The PLACE³S Plan produced an energy-efficient vision for the development of the neighborhoods surrounding the Euclid & Market intersection. The Plan was created through a

joint program of the City of San Diego, the Fourth Council District, SANDAG, the California Energy Comiission, and several neighborhood councils, including the Lincoln Park, Chollas View, Emerald Hills, and Valencia Park Neighborhood Councils. Accomplished from 1997 to 1998, the Plan was developed through a 12-month process focused on energy-efficient development and community involvement. The "Community Preferred Plan" would require less energy per capita than the established regulating framework that currently applied to the area.

Euclid-Market Action Team

The Euclid-Market Action Team was established in 1999 with the intention of realizing a community-led vision for the intersection of Euclid & Market. From its establishment to the production of the EMAT Masterplan in 2002, the group engaged in community outreach programs to create a shared vision for the Euclid-Market Neighborhoods. A large community outreach program, entitled "*Planning our Future Together*," held in 2001, brought together 200 community members, business owners, and others to identify trouble spots, landmarks, strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats. These exercises were completed by breakout groups that met over multiple occasions, including a charrette, and concluded with the development of a planning framework and preliminary plan that would inform future work. In 2002, the masterplan was released, entitled: "*Shaping the Future of the Euclid-Market Neighborhoods: A Community-Based Plan for Equitable Development*."

The work of EMAT led to the Encanto/Diamond Neighborhood Conceptual Planning efforts, which was done in partnership with the City of San Diego and led to the production of the Encanto Neighborhoods Urban Design Guidelines (2003) and the Encanto Neighborhoods Pedestrian and Bicycle Network Plan (2003).

Community Street Tree Master Plan, Southeastern San Diego

The provision of street trees was a central tenet and recommendation of Project First Class, and in turn, the Community Street Tree Master Plan was an extension of this Plan. It is noted that the planting of street trees defines neighborhoods and reinforces character, demonstrates pride taken in residential areas, and promotes positive ecological function.

The a list of several types of street trees fitting general conditions of each neighborhood with general planting conditions for each neighborhood and how-to instructions on how to plant and care for trees.

Urban Ecosystem Analysis: San Diego, California

In 2003, American Forests, a national non-profit, conducted an analysis of the amount of vegetated landcover and tree canopy in the City of San Diego, otherwise known as the "green data layer." The study was meant to both inform policy makers of the value of the "urban forest" with regard to managing water and air quality and improving the overall quality of life in the City, and demonstrate the changes and negative impacts that have been created by urbanization and the loss of tree cover. According to the study, ample tree canopy is able to offset a portion of the negative environmental impacts created by urbanization and the combined effects of the loss of tree canopy and vegetation and the addition of impervious surface. San Diego was found to have lost significant tree cover between 1985 and 2002, while the urban areas increased by 41%.

The study identifies the Encanto neighborhoods as having 15% tree cover, 1% shrub, 51% impervious surface, and 30% grass. Though this is greater than the overall average of San Diego communities, it is well below the 25% target tree canopy that the study identifies. The City saw a 27% decrease in tree canopy between 1985 and 2002 as a result of urbanization.

The study recommends that for the future, the City should set tree canopy goals for each of its 52 Community Planning areas. Generally the study set forth the following recommendations for the City, with flexibility for adjustment for variations in community form and character: 25% overall tree canopy; 30% tree canopy in suburban residential; 20% tree canopy in urban residential; 10\$ tree canopy in central business district. These recommendations are paired with guidance on choosing climate appropriate trees and designating land uses and planning designated areas for plantings. Together these interventions would result in the benefits to air, water, and quality of life associated with an increased tree cover.

Southeastern San Diego Public Facilities Financing Plan (FY 2003)

The Southeastern San Diego Public Facilities Financing Plan enumerated the financing strategies for facilities needed to upgrade in the next twenty years as estimated in 2003. The Financing Plan is related to the identified facilities of the Southeastern San Diego Community Plan, the comprehensive policy guide for the development of the community with attention to how facilities will be financed when future development occurs. In many cases, the Financing Plan identified most facilities as being inadequate for the levels of service identified per the population and needs of the Southeastern San Diego Community. Additionally, with increased population, new facilities would be necessary.

Those public facilities that are needed and warrant strategies include:

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

- Transportation infrastructure (including automobile, bicycle, public transportation, and pedestrian facilities)
- Parks and Recreation (including population-based Community and Neighborhood Parks)
- Libraries
- Fire/ Police

As an almost fully urbanized area, the funding sources used to finance new and improved facilities would be other than Development Impact Fees (DIF). These include many common public financing strategies, such as the issuance of bonds, and the establishment of special taxes and fee collection districts. Based on residential units, the following fee schedule was established for the development of public facilities.

As part of the Financing Plan, various community groups identified priority areas that needed additional attention with respect to public facilities. Those that are relevant to the current Plan Area are identified below.

Encanto Neighborhoods Community Planning Group:

- Improvements Around Horton & Gompers School
- Community Swimming Pool
- 47th Street-Market Street to Imperial Avenue
- Gompers Neighborhood Park Expansion
- ADA Requirements

Southeastern Economic Development Corporation:

- Market Street-Euclid Avenue to 32nd Street
- 47th Street-Market Street to Imperial Ave
- Chollas Creek South Branch Phase I Implementation

Southeastern San Diego Planning Committee:

- Architectural Barrier Removal
- Park Site Acquisition
- Mini-Park Design and Construction
- Swimming Pool Upgrades
- ADA Requirements

Encanto Neighborhoods Urban Design Guidelines (2003)

This plan, which was made in partnership with the City of San Diego, Estrada Land Planning, Inc., Nico Calativa, and the Jacobs Center, resulted in a guidebook for development in all Encanto neighborhoods. These included guidelines for mixed-use buildings, site planning and visual guidelines, grading and land form guidelines, architectural guidelines, landscape and streetscape guidelines, and lighting guidelines. The resulting design guidelines functioned as a tool to be used by the City for the purpose of reviewing development projects within the Encanto neighborhoods.

Encanto Neighborhoods Pedestrian and Bicycle Network Plan (2003)

This plan, which was made in partnership with the City of San Diego, Estrada Land Planning, Inc., Nico Calativa, and the Jacobs Center, resulted in a guidebook for development in all Encanto neighborhoods. These included locations for the proposed pedestrian/ bicycle network, a canyon trail system, intersection designs, and proposals for specific locations. The intersection of Euclid and Market was also identified as a problem area, and safety was identified as a hindrance to pedestrian and bicycle circulation.

Encanto Neighborhoods Bicycle and Pedestrian Network Plan (2010)

The Encanto neighborhoods were included as part of the overall City of San Diego Bicycle Master Plan (2010) which was completed in 2010. The Plan surveyed individuals in the City of San Diego about their bicycle and pedestrian needs. The Encanto Neighborhoods, in which the Plan Area is included, is located within Station 5 of the location-based planning framework. No responses from the Station 5 area were directly related to the Plan Area or roads/ intersections associated with the Plan Area. Less than 1% of respondents were from the Encanto neighborhoods.

There are bicycle facilities located in and around the Plan Area. Currently bike routes exist on Market, Imperial, Valencia, and Euclid. Portions of Imperial, Churchward, and Skyline Drive also feature bicycle facilities. The streets of Southeastern San Diego were noted as potential areas for future facilities as they provided excellent access to San Diego Bay, Balboa Park and Downtown for recreational and commuter bicyclists. These are proposed as future Class III facilities.

As elsewhere in the City, the Plan identifies multi-modal connections between bicycle, transit and pedestrian facilities as crucial to the implementation of the bicycle master plan. This includes the provision of adequate bicycle facilities near transit stops, especially the Trolley stop at Euclid & Market and 47th & Market.

The following are existing and proposed bicycle facilities in the Plan Area/ Station 5 area:

- Existing Class II Bike Lanes on Euclid between Market and Olivera (south of Plan Area)
- Existing Class III Bike Facilities on Market Street west of Euclid to 805
- Proposed Class I Bike Paths proposed along the Trolley ROW
- Proposed Class III Bike Facilities proposed on Roswell Street north of Market

Note: Generally bike facilities in this area connect to other facilities that connect to other portions of the city.

Historic Places Register (2010)

The only identified resource on the Historic Places Register that is located within the Plan Area is located on the southwest corner of the intersection of 47th and Market. This is the location of the Sundance Mini Market & Gas. (Note: Source needed.)

This site is not, however, identified in the Historical Landmarks Survey conducted by the San Diego Historical Resources Board, which was updated in 2010. This survey notes all those properties in San Diego which have been previously listed on the National Register of Historic Places (NR), are a National Historic Landmark (NHL), a California Historic Landmark (CHL) or have been identified or documented by the Historical American Building Survey (HABS).

Jacobs Center for Neighborhood Innovation Plans (JCNI)

The Jacobs Center for Neighborhood Innovation (JCNI) has been heavily involved in the Euclid and Market area since the late 1990s, helping to bring about the development of community assets such as the Village at Market Creek and the Jo and Vi Jacobs Center The JCNI works in partnership with the Jacobs Family Foundation the residents of the "Diamond Neighborhoods" to create partnerships and entrepreneurial potential. (The Diamond Neighborhoods refer to the neighborhoods associated with the area's business improvement district. They include: Chollas View, Emerald Hills, Lincoln Park, Mountain View, Mount Hope, North Encanto, Oak Park, South Encanto, Valencia Park, and Webster.) A key component of the work of the Jacobs Center is to represent the diverse ethnic communities represented in the surrounding communities. These include: African-American, Latino, Samoan, Somalian, Laotian, Sudanese, and Filipino.

Development and property management for the JCNI is overseen by Diamond Management, Inc. (DMI) in addition to development, DMI endeavors to build social and economic value in the Diamond Neighborhoods.

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

Market Creek Plaza

The Village at Market Creek was developed as a Smart Growth Pilot Village, centered around Market Creek Plaza, which initially broke ground in 1999. Market Creek Plaza is a mixed-use development consisting of retail, office, and community resources which will ultimately be complemented by 800 units of affordable residential development. The entirety of this project is known as the Village at Market Creek. In addition to the aforementioned land uses, the goal is to restore 3,000 linear feet of wetlands. Channeling contracts and employment opportunities to the community is a key component of the development of the Village.

Market Creek Plaza was developed with the assistance of a \$15 million New Market Tax Credit loan from the U.S. Department of the Treasury. These loans are available for helping to attract private sector investment to help finance community development projects, encourage economic growth, and create jobs. A Community-Development Initial Public Offering (CD-IPO) successfully transferred ownership of 20% of the Market Creek Plaza to community investors, which was key in the mission of empowering the community.

Diamond Neighborhood Conceptual Planning

Jacobs worked in partnership with the City of San Diego, Estrada Land Planning, and Nico Calativa over a period of years (approximately 2001 to 2003) to develop urban design and circulation recommendations for the Encanto Neighborhoods. These included six workshops that presented best practices, community desires, and presented back findings to the community. This work sprung from the work of EMAT and resulted in the Encanto Neighborhoods Urban Design Guidelines (2003) and the Encanto Neighborhoods Pedestrian and Bicycle Network Plan (2003).

Cultural Village Planning

Jacobs has led an ongoing program of workshops and studies, beginning in 2010, focused on the physical development of the Village at Market Creek and general community empowerment around the Diamond Neighborhoods. Topics are broken into six-month phases which include presentations, creation of recommendations and review by the consortium of community groups: VOCAL (Voices of the Community at All Levels). VOCAL includes representatives from eighteen community groups, including the nine represented ethicizes and cultures, and other groups from the Diamond neighborhoods dedicated to youth, education, or other community concerns. Recommendations of VOCAL will ultimately inform the furtherance of the goals of the Village at Market Creek.

To date topics have covered: LEED®ND and Smart Growth, Connectivity and Mobility, Parks and Recreation, Land Use and Urban Design, and Brownfields. Various consultants have been

involved in the formation of these topical presentations, which have been coordinated and presented by JCNI staff.

Mobility Workshops were conducted in 2011. These resulted in recommended areas for walking trails and bicycle facilities. Locations for Class III bicycle routes were identified along Market Street and Class II bicycle routes were identified along Euclid Avenue. Desired locations for new walking trails and bridges were oriented around Chollas Creek and linking together existing and proposed locations for parks and open spaces.

Workshops focused on <u>L</u> and Use and Urban Design were conducted in 2011. Community members gathered to identify desired land uses for key sites surrounding the Plan Area. Suggested land uses or principles for many of these sites include:

- Senior housing
- Active youth open space
- Open space for festivals, community gardens, play, etc.
- Mix of housing
- Mixed-use commercial and residential developments
- Job creation

Overarching community-identified principles of urban design that apply to all development include:

- Eyes on the Street
- Pedestrian and bicycle connectivity
- Creating Recreational Opportunities
- Infusing Art and Culture Throughout
- Development Reflective of Community Culture and Heritage
- Intensity of development
- Architectural character reflecting ethnic backgrounds and eco-friendly design



3. URBAN FORM

MW STEELE

URBAN FORM

The plan area has many of the urban form characteristics and qualities that make for a successful urban village. While it remains an auto-dominated area, several opportunities exist to make the area a more pedestrian, bicycle and transit-friendly neighborhood. This chapter describes the existing urban form of the plan area as it relates to the growth of a transit and pedestrian-oriented village. It is organized around urban form patterns of mobility and linkages, blocks and lots, building heights and frontages and land form and natural features.

The following are eight key summary findings of the existing urban form conditions of the plan area:

- The creek and slopes are significant land forms and natural features that contribute to a sense of place and a definition of neighborhood centers and edges
- Despite good transit access, the plan area remains a predominantly auto-oriented area with significant barriers to pedestrian and bicycle movement
- Connectivity at the communitywide scale is good, with easy access to 5, 805, 15 and 94 freeways and major arterials, such as Market, Euclid, Imperial and 47th
- Barriers to access and connectivity exist at the smaller scale, especially between developments and across sloping sites and Chollas Creek
- The plan area is defined by several irregular and self-contained development sites that do not relate well to each other or their context and do not contribute to the public realm
- Inconsistent land uses, along with vacant and under-utilized lots, result in gaps in development that diminish a definition of the public realm
- While small single-family residential lots surround it, the plan area is made-up primarily of large-scale, consolidated land holdings with industrial warehouses, "big-box" commercial, multi-family and institutional uses taking much of the area
- Most buildings do not face directly to the street with positive street frontage and active facades

Streets & Tracks

Despite good transit access, the plan area remains a predominantly auto-oriented area with significant barriers to pedestrian and bike movement. Major streets divide the area into quadrants, each with distinct characteristic development patterns. Streets follow an orthogonal grid pattern, with some exceptions where there are major changes in topography or along Chollas Creek. Dead-ends and breaks in the street grid further restrict movement and access. Much progress has been made in and around the Market Creek Plaza and Jacobs Center, with pedestrian paths that connect across sites, to Market & Euclid and to the trolley station. The trolley corridor along the Market & Euclid Station is quickly becoming the "heart" of the community with much activity focused toward that area.

<u>Quadrants</u>

As with most communities in San Diego, the plan area is bisected by major street arterials that together form a street grid super-structure of roughly 1square mile (see figure 3-1). The major streets that define this "super-grid" are Market, Euclid, Imperial and 47th. Together, they divide the area into distinct sub-areas. This is significant because the patterns of development evident in each sub-area vary from one area to the next. This is manifested by differences in land use, the direction of blocks and lots, the topography and the scale of development.



Figure 3-1- Quadrants

Street Patterns

The prevailing street pattern in the plan area is an orthogonal grid, although deviations from this occur where topography or natural barriers require bends and curves in the streets (see figure 3-2). Two notable examples are Market Street and Guymon Street, which curve around a large slope and along the Chollas Creek. This grid system typically provides greater connectivity, access and wayfinding than curvilinear or looping streets. However, the division of property in the plan area and subsequent patterns of development result in barriers to connectivity and access.



Figure 3-2 – Street Patterns



Dead End

Figure 3-3 - Dead End Streets

Barriers to Access

Significant barriers restrict access from residential areas to employment and commercial establishments and from the eastern to the western side of the plan area. The width of major streets, such as Market, Euclid, Imperial and 47th make pedestrian crossing dangerous and unpleasant and transforms those streets into automobile expressways, which divide, rather than unify, the community. In most instances, sidewalks are not separated by a landscape strip or buffer, making the presence of the automobile all the more noticeable (see figure 3-4). Several dead-end streets exist in the plan area, primarily at the Chollas Creek, along school sites, the 805 freeway and major commercial sites (see figure 3-3). Walls and fences block opportunities to connect multi-family residential with commercial, such as Market Creek Plaza. Several schools surround the plan area, yet viable pedestrian and bicycle connections from the schools to transit are lacking. Access to and across the creek is also restricted.



Figure 3-4 – Sidewalk Widths Map

Paths & Connections

While several barriers to access exist in the plan area, progress has been made toward providing more and better paths and connections within and around the Market Creek Plaza and Jacobs Center. A footbridge across the plaza to the Jacobs Center connects with designated pedestrian paths that take pedestrians across the parking lot and to Euclid Avenue. Another network of stairs and paths provide access from Market Creek Plaza to the Market & Euclid trolley station. A grade-separated underpass connects the Jacobs Center to Market Street under the trolley tracks. Major intersections have clearly marked and enhanced pedestrian crosswalks and curb ramps, such as Market & Euclid and Euclid and Naranja. Nevertheless, much work remains to be done, especially at the trolley crossing on Euclid or at Euclid and Imperial, which today are unsafe and unpleasant pedestrian environments.



Designated Foot Path across Market Creek Plaza Parking Lot



Pedestrian Bridge across Chollas Creek into the Trolley Station

Trolley Corridor

The trolley corridor bisects the plan area north and south, following a natural dip in the topography. It is most active as it crosses the Chollas Creek and stops at the Market & Euclid transit station. The synergy created with the transit station, Market Creek Plaza and the Jacobs Center makes this segment of the corridor a significant node in the community. While along most segments of the trolley corridor the tracks divide the community, in this location the trolley has the potential to act as a seam or central spine that unifies the community and brings the heart of activity around transit.

As a circulation corridor, it is redundant with Market Street and Imperial Avenue, which connect the Eastern and Western neighborhoods. They carry much of the automobile traffic in the community, while the trolley corridor is used exclusively for rail transport. Great potential exists to maximize use of the trolley corridor by including other transportation modes (such as bicycle or pedestrian movement) within the same right-of-way.



Trolley Corridor East of Euclid



Transit Station at 47th Street

Blocks and Lots

Large-Lot Development

While small single-family residential lots surround it, the plan area is made-up primarily of largescale, consolidated land holdings with industrial warehouses, "big-box" commercial, multi-family and institutional uses taking much of the area (see figure 3-5). This has resulted in large development complexes with an internally focused design. Streets and paths within the developments may connect internally, but there is typically only a single point of connection to the larger street system outside of the development.



Figure 3-5 – Large-Lot Development

Development Islands

The larger scale of blocks and lots lends to irregular and haphazard development with selfcontained buildings that do not relate to the street or to their context. While these developments provide several attractions in the community, from schools to community centers, libraries, churches, strip malls and commercial centers, the attracting land uses are disjointed and not well connected. This, in turn, contributes to an erosion of the public realm, as each development site is its own "island" with little or no integration with the larger community. In contrast, a finergrained pattern of development prevails just outside the plan area, with mostly single-family homes on small lots.

Buildings

The way a building addresses the street has a significant impact on the street environment. A good majority of buildings in the plan area do not contribute positively to the street environment. Several gaps in development exist in this area, which diminish the amount of activity on the street and reduce visual interest. Other characteristic design decisions, such as building height, setbacks, location of parking and uses, and the design of the building façades contribute to a poor street environment.

Gaps in Development

The plan area contains several vacant and under-utilized land parcels (see figure 3-6). This creates highly perceivable gaps in development that contribute to an erosion of the public realm. These parcels also tend to be located around major intersections in the community, such as Euclid & Market, Euclid & Imperial and Market and 47^{th} . Coupled with wide streets at these locations, the gaps in development accentuate a sense of expansive open space and a lack of definition, which diminishes a sense of enclosure, interest and place. These elements are important to the development of a successful pedestrian environment.





Vacant Lots at Market & 47th

Vacant Lots along Market



Figure 3-6 – Vacant or Underutilized Land

<u>Building Heights</u>

Building height also affects the character of streets and public spaces. Most buildings in the plan area are limited to one and two stories, with some exceptions for major institutional structures. This change in height enhances the importance of those uses and allows them to serve as landmarks in the community. Where building height is combined with proximity to a slope or the creek, such as in the Jacobs Center, St. Rita's or the Elementary Institute of Science, the effect is quite powerful. However, the predominantly low-rise character of the community coupled with wide streets contributes to the expansive and ill-defined nature of the area, as described above.

Parking Lots and Building Setbacks

Another contributing attribute of a successful street environment is the building's relationship to the street. Buildings in the plan area tend to be set back from the street with landscaped yards, retaining walls, and parking lots in the street front. While a landscaped yard is appropriate in a predominately residential area, commercial and mixed-use areas benefit from a more active street presence and a well-defined "street wall." A close interaction between the building and the street makes streets pleasant for walking and bicycling, since pedestrians and cyclists engage with their environment in a slower and more detailed way than motorists do.





While this building at Market Creek Plaza is close to the street, the entrances are located away from the street and a drive-thru blocks direct pedestrian access

These apartments face the street, but parking in the front yard degrades the walking environment

<u>Gateway Buildings</u>

The plan area contains several "gateway" buildings, although more could be provided at key intersections, such as Euclid & Market, Euclid & Imperial and Market and 47th. The Elementary Institute of Science and Malcolm X Library sit high above Euclid & Market and provide distinguished landmarks for the area. The Jacobs Center is also highly perceptible as one enters the area from the west. Opportunities exist for new development to occur at these key intersections, with buildings that mark the main corners and together establish a sense of entry and arrival to the plan area.



Elementary Institute of Science is perched above a major intersection



St. Rita's is a prominent landmark in the community at the major intersection of Euclid & Imperial

Land Form & Natural Features

The land form and natural features of the plan area contribute to many of the existing conditions already described. The plan area is defined by the hilly topography of Southeastern San Diego and the Chollas Creek (see figure 3-7). The creek weaves through the community, providing a natural link that has not been fully appreciated and used, but has tremendous potential as a habitat and recreational open space corridor. It can also serve as a major pedestrian and bicycle east-west connection. It is highly vegetated and well-integrated with Market Creek Plaza and Jacobs Center.

The topography of the plan area merges with the creek so that a gentle slope down into the center of the project area defines a sense of place and arrival to the "heart" of the community. The amphitheater adjacent to the Jacobs Center and Market Creek Plaza takes advantage of these natural features and is a central gathering space in the community. In this way, land form and natural features help define the center but also the edges of the plan area. Large and mature trees at Euclid and Naranja form the eastern edge of the plan area just when the street begins to slope up again, further accentuating the land form. Several hills in the project area provide spectacular vantage points from which one can appreciate the community holistically.



Mature trees establish physical edges that help define a sense of place



Chollas Creek and the hilly landscape contribute to a strong sense of place

In many instances, however, the sloping topography and the creek act as barriers to access and connectivity. Several developments and streets stop right before the creek, and deviations from the street grid occur around major slopes. This gives the area its character, but it also inhibits access. Moreover, the hilly topography often creates a condition where buildings are either perched high above or well below street level. This presents challenges to creating an active, pedestrian street environment because there is a perceived barrier between the building and the pedestrian at the street level.



Figure 3-7 – Topography Map

<u>Street Trees</u>

The plan area lacks a great number of street trees, as shown in the Street Tree Map below (figure 3-8). Rough calculations show an existing coverage of approximately 365 to 400 street trees, or approximately 115,000 to 130,000 square feet of canopy area. An estimate of potential future capacity based on Land Development Code regulations and landscape standards demonstrates a total capacity of approximately 1100 to 1200 street trees or 535,000 to 590,000 square feet of canopy area. The difference between these two figures represents a deficit of street trees in the range of 700 to 835 additional trees or approximately 405,000 to 475,000 additional square feet of canopy area. These figures and the map demonstrate that there is a significant shortage of street trees in the area.

An Urban Ecosystem Analysis for the City of San Diego performed by American Forests reports a 9% tree canopy for the Southeastern Community (*Urban Ecosystem Analysis, San Diego, CA, 2003* <u>http://ftp.americanforests.org/downloads/rea/AF_SanDiego.pdf</u>). This falls within the lower range of tree coverage among 52 community areas in the city. It is important to note, however, that there are several areas with substantial tree canopy that are outside the street right-of-way (such as along Chollas Creek or within parking lots and private developments). These areas represent a significant opportunity to preserve and increase tree coverage.



Figure 3-8 – Street Tree Map



4. MOBILITY ASSESSMENT

NELSON NYGAARD

INTRODUCTION TO MOBILITY ASSESSMENT

This chapter provides an assessment of accessibility and mobility within the Euclid & Market Village Master Plan Area, describes key opportunities and constraints, and provides initial recommendations for future transportation strategies to enhance access to, and mobility within, the Plan Area. The following sections describe travel conditions for the primary modes of transportation that provide access and circulation within the Plan Area:

- Existing Transportation Network
- Transit Service & Access
- Motor Vehicle Traffic & Parking
- Pedestrian Circulation & Access
- Bicycle Circulation & Access
- Summary of Opportunities & Constraints

Figure 4-1: Euclid Avenue looking north from Imperial Avenue.



Photo Source: WRT 2011

Overview of Key Assets & Constraints

The Euclid & Market Village Master Plan Area is presently characterized by an imbalanced transportation system. Although regional transit and freeway access to the Plan Area is excellent, and the Plan Area is conveniently located (just four miles from downtown San Diego), there are significant barriers to local access and circulation within the Plan Area.

Local Access & Circulation

Trip generators and attractors within the Plan Area include homes, shops, public facilities, and places of work. There are several major public institutions within one half-mile of the Plan Area that serve as pedestrian, bicycle, and transit trip generators. These include several schools, community centers, and two transit stations.

The Plan Area is well-served by frequent transit service, including light-rail and no fewer than eight bus lines. However:

- Access to transit stations and bus stops within the Plan Area is hampered by the disconnected local street pattern, lack of collector streets, and narrow sidewalks on arterial streets. As a result, most properties within the Plan Area do not benefit from the proximity to the City's significant investment in transit infrastructure.
 - Upon arrival to the Plan Area, most transit riders currently transfer to another transit line, in part because travel by other means (such as on foot or via bicycle) would require a journey along wide arterial streets with limited pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure, presenting obstacles to access for transit riders, pedestrians and bicyclists.
 - As a result, the potential value of the trolley stations (in terms of potentially attracting jobs and investment to the Plan Area), has not yet been fully utilized.

The Plan Area benefits from proximity to several high-capacity freeways, potentially creating opportunities for attracting land uses that could provide jobs in industries that would benefit from freeway access. However:

- Motor vehicle traffic is primarily funneled on to just two Major Arterial streets, Euclid and Imperial Avenues, both of which carry over 25,000 daily vehicles.
 - Market and 47th Street carry much lower traffic volumes:
 - Through most of the Plan Area: just 11,000 daily vehicles travel on Market Street (east of 47th Street) and 10,000 daily vehicles travel on 47th Street (south of Market Street)
 - At the perimeter of the Plan Area: 14,000 daily vehicles travel on Market Street (west of 47th Street) and 12,000 daily vehicles travel on 47th Street (north of Market Street).

Further increasing the burden of those two major arterial streets is the discontinuous pattern of local streets within the Plan Area. It is not possible to travel directly between local streets bordering Euclid Avenue or 47^{th} Street.

Development Patterns & Topography

Over the past half-century or more, topographical constraints, incremental land development and 20th Century street design and development standards have created a patchwork of streets and land uses within the Plan Area:

- Long blocks, wide arterial streets with narrow sidewalks, and natural hills and gullies contribute to an environment that is relatively inhospitable to bicyclists and pedestrians.
- The Orange Line (MTS Trolley route) right of way bisects the project area from west to east, and despite the availability of crossings at major streets, acts as a barrier to north-south connectivity within the neighborhood.
- Local topography (e.g., creeks, canyons, and mesas) further limits travel in the area. To the east, the Emerald Hills act as a significant physical barrier between that neighborhood and areas to the south and west. Likewise, the Emerald Hills, Encanto, and South Branches of Chollas Creek are real physical constraints that limit north-south and east-west access throughout the project area.

Transit-Adjacent vs Transit-Oriented Development

Despite the high level of frequent transit service provided to the Plan Area, the current development pattern is composed primarily of "transit-adjacent" (not "transit oriented") land use and urban design patterns. "Transit-adjacent" development is characterized by land use patterns within a half-mile radius (a ten-minute walk) of a transit station that do not use this proximity to transit to promote compact, focused development that fosters multimodal transportation. Table 4-1A adapts a chart composed by John L. Renne to differentiate between TADs and TODs, and Figure 4-1B illustrates an example of "transit-adjacent" (not "transit-oriented") development within the Plan Area.

Characteristics of Station Area Development Patterns	
TAD (Transit-Adjacent Development)	TOD (Transit-Oriented Development)
Suburban street pattern	Grid street pattern
Low densities	High densities
Dominance of surface parking	Mostly underground or structured parking
Limited or no pedestrian access	Pedestrian-focused design
Limited or no bicycle access/parking	Bicycle access/parking
Single-family homes	Multi-family homes
Industrial land uses	Office and retail land uses, especially along main streets
Segregated land uses	Vertically and horizontally mixed land uses
Gas stations, car dealerships, drive-thru stores and other auto-focused land uses	

Table 4-1A: TAD vs. TOD

Source: Adapted from Renne, 2009 (i)



Figure 4-1B: Transit-Adjacent Development at Euclid Avenue Station

New development around transit stations should create opportunities to improve adjacent street environments, particularly the pedestrian realm. However, as highlighted in Figure 6-1B at left, recent development projects adjacent to the Euclid Avenue Trolley station represent a missed opportunity to promote "transitoriented" development. The photograph in Figure 4-1B was taken of a relatively recent development site, located just 200 feet from the Euclid Avenue trolley station platforms Drive-thru windows are characteristic transit-adjacent of development, as they cater to automobiles despite close proximity to transit. Many cities prohibit drive-thru windows in pedestrian districts.

Photo Source: Nelson\Nygaard 2011
Travel Modes for Journey to Work (Plan Area Residents)

Figure 4-1C summarizes U.S. Census Bureau 2005-09 "journey to work" travel mode estimates for the four Census tracts that include the Plan Area.

- The vast majority of residents drive or carpool to work (over 90 percent combined for those two modes of travel).
- The overall rate of transit ridership varies from 2.8 to 11.7 percent (with an overall rate of 6 percent within these four Census tracts.



Figure 4-1C: Census Journey to Work Data by Census Tract



This page left intentionally blank.

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION NETWORK

This section describes the following physical components of the existing transportation network serving the Plan Area:

- Major Streets
- Collector Streets
- Local Streets
- Rail Lines
- Off-street Paths

Figure 4-2A provides a map showing the location of each facility within the Plan Area, as well as adjacent transportation infrastructure that borders the Plan Area.

Major Streets

The City of San Diego Street Design Manual includes the following definition of Major Streets (often referred to as "arterial" streets in other cities):

Major Street: A Street that primarily provides a network connecting vehicles and transit to other major streets and primary arterials, and to the freeway system and secondarily providing access to abutting commercial and industrial property. It carries moderate-to-heavy vehicular movement, low-to-high pedestrian and bicycle movements, and moderate-to-high transit movements. It has a raised center median, street trees, traffic safety street lighting, and sidewalks, and may include landscaping, pedestrian-scale lighting, underground utilities, on-street parking, and/or bike lanes.

The City's Street Design Manual requires that Major Streets be designed to accommodate a minimum of four travel lanes and a raised median at full build-out.

The following four streets are designated as Major Streets by the Community Plan (although some segments do not yet conform to Major Street standards). These streets provide access to the Plan Area (including direct access to adjacent land uses and local streets) for automobile, bicycle, bus, and pedestrian travel:

- Euclid Avenue carries over 20,000 vehicles per day and features four travel lanes with a raised median/center turn-lane and wide curb lane (allowing on-street parking on some segments). Narrow sidewalks are provided, directly bordering the curb lane in most locations. Signal-controlled pedestrian crossings are provided approximately every 600 feet (between Guymon and Naranja Street), but no signal-controlled pedestrian crossings are provided between Naranja Street and Imperial Avenue (a distance of approximately 1,375 feet, or just over one-fourth of a mile). No bicycle lanes are provided.
- Imperial Avenue carries over 30,000 vehicles per day and features four to five travel lanes through most of the Plan Area with a raised median/center turn-lane. Sidewalks are provided that directly border the curb lane in most locations. No bicycle lanes are provided.

- Market Street carries over 10,000 vehicles per day and features four travel lanes (west of 51st Street) and two lanes (east of 51st Street). Center-turn lanes are provided at signalized intersections, and on-street parking is allowed on most segments (except at signalized intersections). Sidewalks are provided on segments west of 51st Street, directly bordering the curb lane. An unpaved pedestrian path currently accommodates pedestrian circulation east of 51st Street. Signal-controlled pedestrian crossings are provided at four intersections within the Plan Area, with an average distance of 1,300 feet (one-fourth of a mile) between signalized crossings. No bicycle lanes are provided.
- 47th Street carries over 10,000 vehicles per day and features four travel lanes (north of Market Street) and two travel lanes (south of Market Street), plus a center-turn lane. Sidewalks are provided, directly bordering the curb lane. On-street parking is provided on segments north of Market Street and south of Imperial Avenue. No bicycle lanes are provided.

More detailed descriptions of each of the four designated Major streets are provided on the following pages.

Collector Streets

Typical street classification systems include arterial (major), collector and local streets. The City of San Diego Street Design Manual includes standards for two-lane and four-lane Collector streets, and provides the following definition that describes the function of Collector streets:

Collector Street: a street that primarily provides movement between local/collector streets of higher classification, and secondarily, provides access to abutting property. It carries low-to-moderate vehicular movement, low-to-heavy pedestrian movement, moderate-to-heavy bicycle movement, and low-to-moderate transit movement. It has on-street parking, street trees, traffic safety street lighting, and sidewalk. It may also include landscaping, pedestrian-scale lighting, and underground utilities.

There are no designated Collector Streets within the Plan Area. However, based on their current operation, Market Street (east of 47th Street) and 47th Street (south of Market Street) essentially function as "collectors" for Euclid and Imperial Avenues. Although both are designated as Major Streets by the Community Plan, just over 10,000 vehicles per day use these two segments (much less than the planned 4-lane arterial capacity that could accommodate 40,000 vehicles per day).

There are two Collector Streets (serving adjacent neighborhoods) that terminate at the border of the Plan Area:

- Roswell Avenue/51st Street serves adjacent neighborhoods to the north of the Plan Area (east of Euclid Avenue), terminating at Market Street.
- Valencia Parkway serves adjacent neighborhoods to the south of the Plan Area, terminating at Imperial Avenue.



Figure 4-2A: Local Transportation Network

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

SEPTEMBER 2011

4-9

SEPTEMBER 2011





Euclid Avenue

Euclid Avenue is classified as a four-lane Major Street and features two travel lanes in each direction with some on-street parking, and a center raised median island adjacent to the Market Creek Plaza and a center turn lane between Groveland Drive and Imperial Avenue.

Figure 4-2C illustrates the typical right-of-way dimensions on Euclid Avenue within the Plan Area, and Table 4-2D highlights the general allocation of right-of-way space between the primary travel modes (motor vehicles, bicyclists, and pedestrians). As shown, nearly 90 percent of the right-of-way space is allocated to motor vehicle use.







Figure 4-2D: Existing Right-of-way Allocation: Euclid Avenue



Figure 4-2E: Right-of-way Allocation on Euclid Avenue

Photo Source: WRT 2011

Nearly 90 percent of the public right-of-way space on the major streets serving the Plan Area is allocated to motor vehicle use, with minimal accommodations for pedestrian and bicycle circulation.

Imperial Avenue

Imperial Avenue is classified as a four-lane Major Street, and provides two vehicular travel lanes in each direction with a center raised median island between 47th and 49th Streets and near Valencia Parkway. Between 54th and 55th Streets within the Plan Area, Imperial Avenue features a center turn lane, dedicated bike lanes, and on-street parking.

Figure 4-2F: Existing Right-of-way Dimensions – Imperial Avenue at 54th Street



Figure 4-2G: Barriers to Mobility – Imperial Avenue



Photo Source: WRT 2011

Although the Plan Area is within one-quarter to one-half mile of two transit stations, actual walking distances are lengthened due to barriers to pedestrian mobility.

Market Street

5-7

12

Market Street is classified as a four-lane Major Street (but not yet fully developed to Major Street standards). On-street parking is allowed on most segments. East of Euclid Avenue, Market Street narrows to one lane in each direction with unimproved shoulders and no sidewalk. Along this stretch, pedestrians must either use an unpaved shoulder adjacent to the westbound lane or a relatively wide unpaved path adjacent to the eastbound lane (behind a sparsely planted buffer)

Based on its designation as a Major Street, future development of potential land use opportunity sites along Market Street will likely be required to include elements required for Major Streets, including two lanes in each direction on all segments (including the segment east of Euclid avenue) and provision of a raised median.



12





Figure 4-21: Right-of-way Allocation: Market Street (west of Euclid)

12

12

5-7



Figure 4-2J: Market Street (east of Euclid)

Figure 4-2K: Market Street looking east towards 54th Street



Source: WRT 2011

This segment of Market Street (east of Euclid Avenue) is one of the few public right-of-way segments within the Plan Area that includes street trees bordering the roadway, and a wide (unpaved) pedestrian pathway. Based on the current street designation and City street design standards, future plans call for widening this segment to match the segment to the east (visible at the top of the photograph).

47th Street

47th Street is classified as a Major Street (requiring at least four travel lanes and a raised median), although the segment south of Market Street is not yet developed to Major Street standards. Between Market Street and Imperial Avenue it is currently constructed as a two-lane roadway with a center two-way left turn lane. On-street parking is permitted along most stretches of roadway. As on Market Street, future development along the stretch of 47th Street within the study area will likely be required to expand the street to match its functional classification, with two lanes in each direction as well as a center turn lane/median.





Local Streets & Off-street Paths

Local streets within the study area primarily serve housing developments and lack adequate interconnections. The area's natural topography (creeks, canyons, and mesas) and the double tracked Orange Line Trolley route that runs from west to east through the site also make it very difficult if not impossible to travel through the study area using routes other than the major arterials. The result of all of these factors combined is a feedback loop that discourages pedestrian and bicycle use and encourages further development of transportation networks designed primarily for automobiles.

There are no formal (paved) public off-street bicycle or pedestrian paths within the Plan Area. However, informal paths have developed on key "desire paths" for pedestrian travel that are not accommodated by the local street network. As shown on Figure 6-2i, two such pedestrian paths can be seen:

- Informal pedestrian path from Guymon Street (west of Horton Elementary School) southwest across the large hill to Market Street.
- Informal pedestrian paths parallel to Chollas Creek from Willie James Jones Avenue to the Market Village amphitheatre.



Figure 4-2M: Informal Pedestrian Paths within the Plan Area

Source: Google Earth 2011

Informal pedestrian paths have developed, to overcome the lack of local street connections within the Plan Area. Formalizing these pedestrian routes and improving them to accessible standards would be a significant first step in encouraging pedestrian connectivity.

Rail Lines

The Plan Area is bisected by a former freight rail corridor that has been largely retrofitted for Orange Line Trolley (light-rail) service:

- The Orange Line connects Downtown San Diego to several communities to the northeast, including Lemon Grove, La Mesa, and El Cajon, and terminates at Gillespie Field, which is just south of Santee Town Center.
- Service began at the two Plan Area stations in 1986, when the East Line (now Orange Line) was opened to Euclid Avenue; in 1989, service was extended to the communities of La Mesa and El Cajon, and the final extension to Santee opened in 1995.ⁱ
- Just west of the Plan Area, the Trolley right-of-way crosses I-805 on an overpass; further along the line, just east of 47th Street station, the line also crosses 47th Street on an overpass. Immediately to the east of Euclid Avenue station, the Trolley crosses that arterial at grade.

The two Trolley stations serving the Plan Area (47th Street and Euclid Avenue stations) are relatively close together – about one-half mile. Both Trolley stations include the following:

- Side platforms are roughly 350 feet in length, and feature a full range of rider amenities, including benches, shelters, trashcans, telephones, and displays.
- 47th Street station has 129 parking spaces available free of charge, of which three are dedicated for disabled parking and five are short-term (20-minute) spaces.
- Euclid Avenue station has 115 free parking spaces, of which six are reserved for disabled persons and one is limited to 20 minutes. Euclid Avenue is also a sizable transit hub, since all eight bus lines that operate in the vicinity of the project area share it as a timed stop, and five share it as a terminal.

The 47th Street station is not easily accessible by pedestrian or bicycle traffic. Depending on upcoming decisions in the planning process for the I-805 BRT, the 47th Street station may be shifted to the west, closer to the I-805 overpass, to allow for a direct connection to the BRT. As part of this process, improved connections for bicycles and pedestrians will be evaluated.

Limited freight rail service continues to use the Trolley line right-of-way. Freight runs occur on average less than once a week and only during early morning hours.

TRANSIT SERVICE & ACCESS

This section describes existing and proposed transit service and facilities within the Plan Area, including fixed-route transit and paratransit (demand-responsive) service. The section also provides information on transit stop accessibility.

Local transit services are provided by the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) that provides fixed-route light rail ("Trolley"), local bus, and express bus service within the greater San Diego area. In addition, "MTS Access", a paratransit service, provides demand-responsive curb-to-curb service to the same areas and during the same days and hours of service that MTS' fixed route buses and trolleys operate.





Trolley Service

MTS operates high-frequency Orange Line Trolley service at two stations within the Plan Area: 47th Street (located to the west of 47th Street between Market Street and Imperial Avenue) and Euclid Avenue (located just to the southwest of the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street).

<u>Trolley Ridership</u>

Given its role as a major bus transfer point, the Euclid Avenue Station is among the busiest in the MTS system.

- Euclid Avenue Station accounts for 9 percent of the Orange Line's total daily ridership.ⁱⁱ
- For fiscal year (FY) 2010, boardings and alightings at Euclid Avenue in the inbound direction (towards downtown San Diego) accounted for the second and third highest total ons and offs, respectively, of all stations on the line.
- Headed outbound towards Gillespie Field, boardings and alightings at Euclid ranked fifth and second of all stations, respectively.
- Interestingly, more passengers heading both directions got on and off at Euclid Avenue <u>during</u> <u>midday hours</u> than during the traditional AM and PM peak commute periods.

By contrast, 47th Street serves only one-fifth as many trolley riders as Euclid Avenue, and accounted for only 1.9 percent of total daily ridership on the Orange Line. Lower ridership levels at the 47th Street Station may be attributed to:

- The 47th Street Station is a Trolley-only stop (with no bus service) with limited site access (there is no direct pedestrian path without interruption between the station platforms and sidewalks along 47th Street).
- The 47th Street Station is bordered by relatively low-density land uses, including undeveloped land bordering the adjacent creek as well as the Interstate 805 right-of-way.
- The lack of direct, local street access to adjacent neighborhoods further serves to limit the ridership potential of the 47th Street Station.

Bus Service

MTS operates eight bus lines in the area, all of which share the Euclid Avenue Trolley station as a hub. Throughout its entire system, MTS directly operates about half of its bus routes, and contracts the rest of its routes to Veolia, Inc. Within the Plan Area, MTS operates lines 4, 5, and 13, while Veolia operates lines 3, 916/917, 955, and 960.ⁱⁱⁱ

The Euclid Avenue Station is the terminal stop for five of the eight bus lines that operate within the Plan Area (Lines 3, 5, 916/917, and 960). The schedules of these five lines are "pulsed", with closely coordinated departure times, to facilitate transfers. Physically, the bus station consists of six sawtooth bus bays located to the north of the trolley platforms. Buses connect to the eastbound lanes of Market Street by two driveways to the north and to the southbound lanes of Euclid Avenue by a driveway to the west. According to the San Diego Association of Government (SANDAG)'s 2009 Onboard Survey, 44 percent of riders who boarded at Euclid Avenue station reported walking to the Trolley, with nearly 34 percent having transferred from a bus. Only three percent reported biking to the station, and five percent drove alone and parked.^{iv}

By contrast, the 47th Street Station is not served by any local or express bus routes; the nearest stops are nearly a third of a mile to the north and south. Because the station serves relatively few passengers on an average weekday, only seven passengers reported their mode of access in the 2009 Onboard Survey. Of these respondents, about 70 percent reported walking to the station, and 30 percent indicated that they transferred from a bus. Actual primary modes of access may be different than these results indicate, given the availability of free commuter parking and limited bus and pedestrian access to the station.

Figure 4-3A provides an overview of transit service operating in the vicinity of the Plan Area, including service frequency information and the span of service at Euclid Avenue station, where all bus routes share a stop.

Although there are a few bus stops within the Plan Area that offer improved pedestrian amenities and facilitate sidewalk access, these are primarily provided in areas where recent development has occurred. For example, in preparing the Valencia Business Park site for development, the Southeastern Economic Development Corporation installed the public art bus shelter and benches along Imperial Avenue at Valencia Parkway, seen at right in Figure 4-3B, above.^v The prospect of increased development within the Plan Area thus presents a significant opportunity to improve adjacent bus stops.

Station	Directi	ion	Total
Station	Inbound (To Downtown)	Outbound (To Gillespie)	TOLAI
	Daily Boardings (Orar	nge Line)	
47th Street Station	379	190	569
Euclid Avenue Station	1,525 1,051		2,576
	Daily Alightings (Orar	nge Line)	
47th Street Station	179	393	572
Euclid Avenue Station	1,136	1,596	2,732

Table 4-3A: Daily Trolley Boardings & Alightings (Orange Line, FY 2010)

Table 4-3B: MTS bus service on-time percentage, 2011

Route	On-time percentage
3	89%
4	87%
5	89%
13	86%
916	89%
917	96%
955	87%
960	70%

Figure 4-3B: Bus Stop Amenities



Photo Source: WRT 2011

Varied levels of amenities are provided at bus stops within the Plan Area. Some bus stops (such as the one on westbound Imperial Avenue at 54th Street, shown on the left) do not have adequate sidewalk space, and the bench creates a barrier to wheelchair access. Newer bus stops (such as the one on westbound Imperial Avenue at Valencia Parkway/Stevens Way, at right) have been incorporated into recent development projects and include benches and shelters, while maintaining the required "clear space" for wheelchair access.

Bus Service Trends and Performance

The majority of bus boardings and alightings on all bus lines within the Plan Area take place at the Euclid Avenue Trolley station.

- On an average weekday, ^{vii} nearly 4,000 people board and over 3,500 get off a bus at the station (while 2,500 people board an Orange Line trolley, and 2,700 get off an Orange Line trolley, as the same station).
- The next tier of boarding and alighting ("on" or "off" counts greater than 100 per weekday) occurs at stops along the Euclid Avenue corridor between Market Street and Imperial Avenue, adjacent to significant trip generators such as the Market Village shopping center and the Euclid Health Center.

With the exception of the weekday-only route 960, which connects the Euclid Avenue Trolley station and University Towne Center during AM and PM peak periods, all bus lines operating within the Plan Area operate on schedule more than 80 percent of the time. The 917 line, which operates in a counterclockwise direction between the Euclid Avenue Trolley station and Cottage Grove, is the most reliable of all area routes; it operates on time nearly 96 percent of the time.

Table 4-3C provides an overview of bus frequencies and fares within the Plan Area, and Appendix A contains the latest official schedules and maps of all bus and Trolley lines serving the Plan Area.

Bus Ridership & Passenger Amenities

Table 4-3D provides boarding and alighting data, and describes passenger amenities, at each bus stop within the Plan Area.

- There are 27 bus stops within the Plan Area (not including those bus stops provided at the Trolley station) that exhibit a wide variety of passenger amenities, including benches, shelters, trash cans, informational displays, and lighting.
- Over 65 percent of bus stops feature benches.
- Just 30 percent of bus stops have no amenities.

Paratransit service

Paratransit service is available through MTS Access, a service provided by MTS to supplement bus and Trolley services for customers who due to disabilities cannot ride the fixed-route transit services. MTS Access is offered for destinations no more than three quarters of a mile away from existing bus routes and Trolley stations. Service is operated within each of the MTS' four travel zones, and riders wanting to travel between zones must transfer to another vehicle to complete their journey. Paratransit service north of La Jolla is provided by the North County Transportation District (NCTD).

Potential paratransit riders must be certified by the MTS to be eligible for MTS Access travel. Reservations may be made no later than 5 p.m. the day before the trip, and customers can expect a onehour window of time for expected pick-up. A one-way trip costs \$4.50, equivalent to twice the one-way fixed-route bus fare.

Service name	Destinations served	Service span at Euclid Avenue station & frequency of bus service	Fares
Orange Line (Trolley)	Downtown, El Cajon, Lemon Grove	MON-FRI: 4:15am - 1:15am (15 minutes) SAT: 4:45 am - 1:45am (30 minutes) SUN: 4:45am - 11:45pm (30 minutes)	One-way: \$2.50 Day pass: \$5.00 Discount: \$1.25
MTS fixed-route bus	service		
<u>Line 3</u> Euclid Trolley- UCSD Med. Ctr./Hillcrest	Balboa Park, Educational Cultural Complex, Gaslamp Quarter, Ocean View Plaza	MON-FRI: 5:00am – 12:15am (15 minutes) SAT: 5:15am – 12:15am (30 minutes) SUN: 5:30am – 8:15pm (30 minutes)	One-way: \$2.25 Day pass: \$5.00 Discount: \$1.10
<u>Line 4</u> Lomita Village – 12 th & Imperial	Imperial Marketplace, Lincoln HS, Skyline Hills Library	MON-FRI: 5:00am – 11:30pm (30 minutes) SAT: 6:15am – 11:00pm (60 minutes) SUN: 5:45am – 8:30pm (60 minutes)	One-way: \$2.25 Day pass: \$5.00 Discount: \$1.10
<u>Line 5</u> Euclid Trolley – Downtown	Downtown Library, Downtown Post Office, Gateway Center	MON-FRI: 5:00 am – 11:15pm (15 minutes) SAT: 5:15am – 9:30pm (30 minutes) SUN: 5:45am – 8:45pm (30 min from 10am-6pm, 60 min other times)	One-way: \$2.25 Day pass: \$5.00 Discount: \$1.10
<u>Line 13</u> 24th St Trolley – Kaiser Hospital	City Heights Comm. Park, Fairmount Ave, Gompers HS, Mission Gorge Center, Paradise Valley Hospital	MON-FRI: 5:15am – 12:15am (15 minutes) SAT: 5:45am – 11:45pm (30 minutes) SUN: 6:30am – 7:45pm Every 30 min (10am-6pm), 1 hr (other times)	One-way: \$2.25 Day pass: \$5.00 Discount: \$1.10
<u>Line 916</u> Euclid Trolley – Cottage Grove (clockwise)	College Grove Shopping Center, Encanto Community Park, Lemon Grove Plaza, Metropolitan Center	MON-FRI: 6:30am – 9:45pm Every 30 min (peak), 1 hr (off-peak) SAT: 7:00am – 9:00pm Every hour	One-way: \$2.25 Day pass: \$5.00 Discount: \$1.10
<u>Line 917</u> Euclid Trolley – Cottage Grove (counterclockwise)		MON-FRI: 7:00am – 10:45pm (30 minutes peak, 60 minutes off-peak) SAT: 7:00am – 9:30pm (60 minutes)	
<u>Line 955</u> 8 th St Trolley – SDSU	54 th Street, Crawford HS, Lincoln HS, SDSU, South 43 rd Street	MON-FRI: 5:15am – 11:30pm (15 minutes) SAT: 5:45am – 11:30pm (30 minutes) SUN: 6:00am – 9:00pm Every 30 min (10am -5pm), 1 hr (other times)	One-way: \$2.25 Day pass: \$5.00 Discount: \$1.10
<u>Line 960</u> Euclid Trolley – UTC	The Boulevard Transit Plaza, City Heights Transit Plaza, Kearny Mesa	MON-FRI ONLY NB to UTC: 5:15am – 7:45am (15 minutes) SB to Euclid: 3:15pm – 6:45pm (30 minutes)	One-way: \$2.25 Day pass: \$5.00 Discount: \$1.10

Table 4-3C: Transit Frequency & Fares

⊢
z
Щ
2
S
ASSESSIN
S
¥
≻
F
=
В
0
2
÷÷
~
Ш
Ē
4
Î.
5

			Woolddou hoordinae and aliabtions bu stroot, ston, and bue route, within study area	- dina	ile page	things h	to tract	cton and	hine south	o	in chudu	-								
							y succi,		Bus Rout	es We	ekday Ri	Bus Routes Weekday Ridership by Stop	v Stop							
Street	Location	Side of Street	Amenities	3		4*		5		13		916		917		955	96	960	Total On	Total On Total Off
				on	off	on	off (0 UO	off On		off On	n Off	o	Off	o	off	on	off		
		Terminal	/a/ /u/ /t/ /s/ /a/	358	440		5	569 44	449		171	1 66	113	257			82	59	1,293	1,271
	Euclid Avenue Trolley Station	NB/EB route	(1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)			279	151		770		332				675	450			1,724	932
		SB/WB route	1-1			144	195		337		636				401	587			882	1,417
	Euclid Av / Guymon St	SB	(B) (L)										5	5	10	7			15	12
	Euclid Av / Guymon St	NB	(B) (L)								1	2			18	21			19	23
Euclid Ave	Euclid Av / Unity Place Drwy	SB	(B) (T) (L)	62	2	89	7		105		10				6	9			346	25
(North to	Euclid Av / Naranja St	NB	(B) (L)	4	46	3	77		6		93				27	42			43	258
South)	Euclid Av / Euclid Health Center	SB	(B) (S) (T) (D) (L)	19	7	38	26		36		37				31	46			124	116
	Euclid Av / Brooks Hoffman Plaza	SB	(B)	48	14				48		52								96	66
	Euclid Av / Manzanares Wy	NB	(B)	11	38				31		60								42	98
	Market St / 45th St	WB	(T)					65 4	41										65	41
	Market St / 45th St	EB	(B) (L)					36 7	74										36	74
	Market St / Cotton St	WB	(B) (T) (L)					30 4	40										30	40
Marbat Ct	Market St / Cotton St	EB	(L)					23 1	16										23	16
(Most to Eact)	Market St / 47th St	WB	(T)					31 1	14										31	14
(אבשרות במשרו	Market St / 47th St	EB	(B) (L)					21 3	30 27	-	45								48	75
	Market St / Uvas St	WB	(L)					3 4	4 3		3								6	7
	Market St / Uvas St	EB	(T)					2 4	4 3		4								5	8
	Market St / 4890 Market St	WB	(T)					1 1	1 1		2								2	3
47th St	47th / Guymon St	NB	(B) (T)						62		27								62	27
	Imperial Av / 50th St	WB	(B) (S) (T) (D) (L)			30	23								25	62			55	85
	Imperial Av / Euclid Ave	B	(T) (L)			30	18												30	18
	Imperial Av / 54th St	WB	(B) (L)			59	13												59	13
	Imperial Av / 54th St	B	(B) (L)			15	89	_											15	68
Imperial Ave	Imperial Ave Imperial Av / 55th St	B	(r)			0	0												0	0
(West to East)	(West to East) Imperial Av / Valencia Pkwy (W)	B	(r)			5	14	_											5	14
	Imperial Av / Valencia Pkwy	WB	(B) (S) (L)			16	9												16	9
	Imperial Av / Valencia Pkwy (E)	B	(B) (L)			4	12												4	12
	Imperial Av / Merlin Dr	WB	(B) (L)			15	5	_		_									15	5
	Imperial Av / Linnett St	EB	(B) (L)			5	15												5	15
Amenities key	Amenities key: (B) Bench, (S) Shelter, (T) Trash can, (D) Display - information	, (D) Display - info	rmation kiosk, (P) Phone, (L) Lighting	Phone, (L) Lightir	B														
Shaded and no	Shaded and non-shaded color bands indicate successive station location groupings	ssive station locat	ion groupings																	
* Route 4 trave	* Route 4 travels up and back Euclid Ave on both EB and WB journeys. Figures	and WB journeys	. Figures listed are totals of both runs	totals of	both rui	5														

Table 4-3D: Bus Stop Amenities & Daily Ridership

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

4-25

Access to Transit

Although access to transit within the Plan Area is primarily provided by bus, pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure to and around 47th Street and Euclid Avenue stations is extremely limited. Likewise, the availability of several bus routes and walkable bus stops throughout the Plan Area is complicated by the car-friendly design of arterials, as narrow sidewalks limit ADA bus accessibility if sidewalks are crowded and relatively few signalized crosswalks prevent ease of travel.

Bicycle Access to Transit

Providing convenient bicycle access to transit facilities (as well as secure bicycle storage facilities at transit stations and key stops) can substantially increase transit accessibility, expanding the transit ridership market from the extent of walking distance to/from a transit stop (approximately one-fourth to one-third of a mile) to a much larger radius accessible to bicyclists (two to five miles from the transit station or stop).

The Euclid Avenue Trolley station is relatively accessible by bicycle, as Class II and III bicycle infrastructure provide limited safe access from the south and west. The station features two mechanical bike locker spaces that may be reserved online on a first-come, first-serve basis using SANDAG's online 511 iCommute service. Cyclists must pay a \$25 bike locker key deposit fee to reserve a locker.^{viii} By contrast, there are no official bike routes to 47th Street station, and no bike lockers are provided at that station.

Motor Vehicle Access to Transit

Motor vehicle access to transit is provided to both transit stations, including passengers that are dropped-off ("kiss-and-ride") and those that park in one of the two Park & Ride lots. A total of 244 parking spaces are provided (129 spaces at the 47th Street station, and 115 spaces at the Euclid Avenue station). Parking occupancy counts conducted on May 24, 2011 found that less than 60 percent of the parking spaces at the Euclid Avenue were occupied, and just 50 percent of the spaces at the 47th Street station were occupied. Table 6-3E summarizes the parking occupancy counts conducted at the two park & ride stations.

Euclid Aven	ue Station						
	Parking	Pct					
Parking Supply	Demand	Occupied	Vacant Spaces				
115	67	58%	48				
115	65	57%	50				
47th Stree	t Station		• •				
	Parking	Pct					
Parking Supply	Demand	Occupied	Vacant Spaces				
129	64	50%	65				
129	60	47%	69				
ing occupancy counts o	onducted on	May 24, 2011	L.				
d and Wiltec, 2011.							
	Parking Supply 115 115 47th Stree Parking Supply 129 129 129 129 129	Parking SupplyDemand115671156547th Street StationParking SupplyDemand1296412960ing occupancy counts conducted on	ParkingPctParking SupplyDemandOccupied1156758%1156557%47th Street StationParking SupplyDemand1296450%1296047%ing occupancy counts conducted on May 24, 2011				

Pedestrian Access to Transit

Local residents or visitors looking to walk to and from bus stops have good access to transit, as bus stops are distributed well throughout the Plan Area. Still, access to these on-street stops is limited by narrow sidewalks and wide arterial streets that are difficult to cross safely. However, pedestrians looking to access Trolley transit stops face more limited options.

Figure 4-5A provides an analysis of the "walkshed" within one-quarter and one-half of a mile to the Trolley stations. The walkshed illustrates how far potential transit riders must walk to access Trolley stations along existing pathways (local and arterial streets), and offers a more accurate assessment of pedestrian mobility to transit stations within specific distances.

Though the Plan Area is well-served by transit, some gaps remain: because no buses serve the 47th Street Trolley station, for example, riders wishing to transfer must walk up to 1/3 of a mile to reach nearby bus routes. Limited bicycle storage at Trolley stops also discourages non-auto access to transit.



Figure 4-3C: Pedestrian Access to Transit Stations

Source: Nelson\Nygaard

Directly adjacent to the Trolley stations, pedestrians face inhospitable and potentially dangerous walking conditions. While the 47th Street station features an ADA-compliant ramp from the parking lot to the station platform, pedestrian access from 47th Street is not adequately provided. As seen in Figure 4-3C (above left), pedestrians are forced to walk up a relatively steep driveway to reach the 47th Street station. Even at the heavily utilized Euclid Avenue station, there are obstructions within the pedestrian zone, immediately adjacent to the station platforms along Euclid Avenue (above right).

Planned Transit Improvements

Trolley Station Renovations (planned for 2012)

Over the next year, SANDAG will complete renovations of Euclid Avenue and 47th Street stations to prepare them for low floor trolley service. These improvements are part of the Trolley Renewal Project, which includes raising Trolley platform levels to a height of eight inches, installing new shelters at some stations (including Euclid Avenue and 47th Street), and upgrading electrical and communications systems. Additionally, the trackway at Euclid Avenue will also be reconstructed.

The Orange Line improvements are scheduled to be completed by July 2012,^{ix} and the total budget for the project's set of systemwide upgrades is \$620 million.

Proposed Future Transit (2014-2050)

Proposed Trolley Grade Separation at Euclid Avenue (2030-2050)

In April 2011, SANDAG released its Draft 2050 Regional Transportation Plan. The plan included a number of transportation improvements that would help to mitigate traffic and improve mobility given increases in population and housing and employment density in the greater San Diego area.

One of the long-term projects outlined in the *RTP* is to improve Orange Line Trolley performance by building grade separations (that is, overpasses for either a road or the Trolley line which allow traffic to flow through the crossing even if a train is present) at five major intersections along the line. Euclid Avenue is one of the intersections specified in the Plan.

No detailed planning work has been completed thus far, and the proposal has yet to develop a detailed schedule, budget, or set of alternatives. The project could be implemented after 2030 and is estimated to cost between \$30 and \$50 million.^x

Proposed Bus Rapid Transit Projects (2014-2050)

SR-94 HOV/BRT lanes

Caltrans is in the preliminary stages of planning the SR-94 HOV/Bus Rapid Transit Lanes project, which was included in SANDAG's *Pathways for the Future 2030 Regional Transportation Plan* as a component of the "Revenue Constrained Network". The project will construct two High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV)/Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) lanes on SR-94 from Interstate 5 to Interstate 805, and will also include dedicated HOV/BRT connectors from SR-94 to I-5 and I-805. The final environmental review document is expected to be completed in 2014, with construction of the first phase slated to be complete in 2017. The project is estimated to cost \$600 million.^{xi}

South Bay BRT

The South Bay Bus Rapid Transit project is being managed by SANDAG as one of the TransNet Early Action Projects financed by a half-cent sales tax for transportation projects. The first phase includes designing and building a 21-mile long BRT line from the Otay Mesa Port of Entry and

downtown San Diego by way of Chula Vista, Interstate 805, and SR 94. The first phase will feature 12 stations, and will include transit-only lanes in Chula Vista, special transit-only shoulder lanes on the two freeways, and transit signal priority. The first phase is expected to be implemented by 2014.

The completion of HOV/BRT lanes on both SR-94 and I-805 (see below), as well as the dedicated HOV/BRT flyover ramps at the SR-94 and I-805 interchange, will facilitate the second phase of the South Bay BRT project, which will transform the BRT line into a more limited-access transit route by building additional in-line stations at Plaza Boulevard and H Street in National City and direct access ramps at Palomar Street in Chula Vista.^{xii}

I-805 HOV/BRT lanes and I-805 North BRT

Following recommendations in SANDAG's *Pathways for the Future 2030 Regional Transportation Plan*, Caltrans is currently in the planning stages of upgrading I-805 to function as a more transit-friendly corridor. This project, which will be completed in stages; the first stage will include two buffered HOV/BRT lanes on I-805 between Palomar Street in Chula Vista and SR-15, just north of SR-94. This stage is expected to be completed by 2014. The second stage will include HOV lanes from SR-15 to SR-52, and the third stage will build HOV lanes and two direct access ramps between SR-52 and I-5.^{xiii}

Full build-out will consist of a four-lane managed lane facility along the entire I-805 corridor, and will also include an in-line BRT route connecting Chula Vista, Mid-City, and Kearny Mesa, which are all major job centers. This BRT project has been moved up in the TransNet priority list, and its first phase is projected to open in 2020. This BRT line will include an in-line station at the 47th Street Orange Line Trolley station, which is described in more detail below. SANDAG's 2050 *Regional Transportation Plan* also includes the conversion of the I-805 BRT to light rail as a potential project to be implemented in the 2041-2050 range. ^{xiv}

I-805 BRT/Orange Line station^{xv}

The construction of a new BRT station at the 47th Street Trolley station may have profound impacts on the Plan Area; next year, SANDAG, Caltrans, and the City of San Diego will be coordinating on the planning process for the new station. One major focus of the planning process will be to widen the Market & Euclid Village Master Plan Area to include the "four corners" around the intersection of the two transit lines – the middle income neighborhood to the northwest, Chollas-Mead Elementary School to the northeast, affordable housing developments to the southeast, and the YMCA to the southwest. Topics of discussion will include whether to redevelop some surrounding parcels to encourage higher density development around the station and how to improve pedestrian and bicycle access to the area.

The proposed station would potentially serve four BRT routes:

- Otay Mesa Border to Sorrento Mesa via Otay Ranch/Chula Vista/National City/Mid-City/Kearny Mesa/University City (labeled as Route 680 in the draft 2050 *Regional Transportation Plan*)
- Otay Ranch to Downtown San Diego via Otay Ranch/Chula Vista/National City (Route 628)
- Otay Ranch Express to Sorrento Valley (Route 688 peak, limited stop service for Rte. 680)

 Otay Ranch to UTC/Torrey Pines Road (Route 689 – peak, limited stop service for Rte. 680)^{xvi}

Based on these preliminary service assumptions, SANDAG forecasts the following daily boardings at the I-805 BRT/Orange Line station in 2020:

- Orange Line: 911
- Route 628: 73
- Route 680: 355
- Route 688: 19
- Route 689: 38^{xvii}

The planning process will also focus on the physical design of the joint BRT-Trolley station, which would be more costly to construct than other proposed I-805 BRT stations. Caltrans has developed a preliminary design concept for an "in-line" BRT station that could include a relocated Trolley station on the overpass above I-805 (see Figure 4-3D for an example of a similar station). However, there are several constraints that limit the appeal of that option: first, the bridge is located on a curve, which would affect sightlines at the station, and second, a station located away from local destinations and the street may have additional security problems. Further, an in-line BRT station would require reconstruction of the I-805 overpasses to the north (at Market Street) and south (Imperial Avenue) in order to accommodate the wider right-of-way needed at in-line station locations. As a result of the complexity of an in-line BRT station at 47th Street, SANDAG has estimated a budget for this project at over \$100 million.

Figure 4-3D: Example of Proposed "in-line" BRT Station at H Street (Chula Vista)



Source: Caltrans/SANDAG (2011)

There are already several potential alternatives to the proposed in-line station. One is to construct side direct access ramps that would cross the Orange Line Trolley at grade; another alternative is to construct flyover ramps to connect the BRT line to the existing 47^{th} Street Trolley station. SANDAG expects that a full set of alternatives and a more concrete budget will be developed in 2012. The I-805 BRT line (with a station at 47^{th} Street) is proposed to be in service by 2020, subject to funding and necessary approvals.

Transit Summary: Opportunities & Constraints

Although the Plan Area is generally well-served by both rail and bus transit service, there are a few gaps in service. For example, because no buses serve the 47th Street Trolley station, for example, riders wishing to transfer must walk up to 1/3 of a mile to reach nearby bus routes.

The opportunity to plan major transit projects affecting the Plan Area presents a number of opportunities to improve overall circulation and access in the area.

Given existing system conditions, the greatest opportunity exists in the ability to capitalize on the large volume of passengers using the Euclid Avenue station as either a destination or a transfer point. The data suggest that the location will support higher density development.

Next, the scheduled upgrades to Orange Line Trolley stations in support of low floor vehicle operation provides an opportunity to rethink short term pedestrian and bicycle access and amenities at these stations. Better station access for these modes would complement improved platform access to transit vehicles, and other improvements could include additional bike lockers at Euclid Avenue station and the installation of new bike lockers at 47th Street.

As SANDAG recognizes, the upcoming planning process for a joint BRT-Orange Line Trolley station at 47th Street will uncover additional constraints and opportunities for the Euclid & Market Village Master Plan Area. A potential in-line BRT/Trolley stop severely constrains pedestrian and bicycle access to transit, and limits potential TOD redevelopment that could be tied to the project. Many more opportunities lie in locating the joint station on the hill between the current 47th Street station and the I-805 bridge: the site would have good access to any potential redevelopment on the east side of I-805 and still maintain connections to the street. The project also offers an opportunity to reconfigure area bus lines to serve the joint BRT-Trolley stations, which would benefit adjacent residential development as well as expand the pedestrian walkshed.

This page left intentionally blank.

MOTOR VEHICLE TRAFFIC & PARKING

This section summarizes the motor vehicle traffic and on-street parking data collected in May 2011, and provides an assessment of existing traffic levels of service (LOS).

Traffic Operations

Traffic operations were evaluated consistent with the City of San Diego *Traffic Impact Study Manual* (1998), which provides guidelines for evaluating level of service (LOS) for motor vehicles at study intersections and roadway segment locations. Based on those guidelines, the acceptable LOS for traffic operations at study intersections and roadway segment locations in San Diego is level of service D.

Study Intersections

Table 4-4A describes the ten study intersections selected for analysis. These ten study intersections were selected based on consultation between City staff and the Consultant Tea, based on identification of key intersections within the Plan Area (such as Euclid/Market and 47th/Market) and primary freeway access ramp ramps serving Market Street and Euclid Avenue. In addition, a review of prior traffic studies was conducted to ensure inclusion of locations with potentially constrained existing or future-year LOS.

Study Intersection	Location	Traffic Signal?
1	Euclid Avenue & SR-94 WB Ramps	NO*
2	Euclid Avenue & SR-94 EB Ramps	NO*
3	Euclid Avenue & Market Street	YES
4	Euclid Avenue & Imperial Avenue	YES
5	47th Street & Imperial Avenue	YES
6	54th Street & Imperial Avenue	YES
7	I-805 SB Ramps & Market Street	YES
8	I-805 NB Ramps & Market Street	YES
9	47th Street & Market Street	YES
10	47th Street & A Street	NO
*Signalizatior Year 2030.	and intersection redesign planned	l prior to

Table 4-4A: Study Intersections



EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

4-34

Existing Traffic Volumes

The following traffic data was collected on May 24, 2011:

- 24-hour motor vehicle traffic volumes at seven study segment locations
- AM and PM Peak Period traffic volumes at ten study intersections, including:
 - Motor Vehicle Turning Movements
 - o Breakdown of "truck" and "non-truck" traffic volumes
 - Bicycle volumes
 - o Pedestrian volumes

Table 4-4B summarizes the AM & PM Peak Hour motor vehicle traffic volumes at each study intersection. Daily traffic volumes are described on Table 4-4D.

Inter-		Αι	ıto		٦	ſruck	
section #	Intersection	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour	% Total AM Peak	% Total PM Peak
1	Euclid Avenue & SR- 94 WB Ramps	2337	2807	55	31	2.3%	1.1%
2	Euclid Avenue & SR- 94 EB Ramps	2197	2948	47	39	2.1%	1.3%
3	Euclid Avenue & Market Street	2302	2709	73	43	3.1%	1.6%
4	Euclid Avenue & Imperial Avenue	2860	3060	117	88	3.9%	2.8%
5	47th Street & Imperial Avenue 3028 3072 27 10 0.9%		0.3%				
6	54th Street & Imperial Avenue	1606	1582	6	2 0.4% 0.		0.1%
7	I-805 SB Ramps & Market Street	1475	1937	44	20	2.9%	1.0%
8	I-805 NB Ramps & Market Street	1747	1762	33	14	1.9%	0.8%
9	47th Street & Market Street	1939	2079	21	14	1.1%	0.7%
10	47th Street & A Street	918	1262	21	16	2.2%	1.3%

Table 4-4B: Existing AM & PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

Existing Conditions – Daily Traffic

Table 4-4C describes the level of service (LOS) criteria for study segment locations based on daily traffic volumes, street classifications and lane configurations (cross sections).

Table 4-4D summarizes the results of the 24-hour traffic volume counts conducted at seven study segment locations, and the corresponding level of service (LOS) based on City of San Diego Guidelines.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO STREET CLASSI	FICATIONS	LEVEL OF SERVICE (1)				
STREET CLASSIFICATION	LANES	A	В	С	D	E
Freeway	8 lanes	60,000	84,000	120,000	140,000	150,000
Freeway	6 lanes	45,000	63,000	90,000	110,000	120,000
Freeway	4 lanes	30,000	42,000	60,000	70,000	80,000
Expressway	6 lanes	30,000	42,000	60,000	70,000	80,000
Primary Arterial	6 lanes	25,000	35,000	50,000	55,000	60,000
Major Arterial	6 lanes	20,000	28,000	40,000	45,000	50,000
Major Arterial	4 lanes	15,000	21,000	30,000	35,000	40,000
Collector	4 lanes	10,000	14,000	20,000	25,000	30,000
Collector (no center lane) (continuous left-turn lane)	4 lanes 2 lanes	5,000	7,000	10,000	13,000	15,000
Collector (no fronting property)	2 lanes	4,000	5,500	7,500	9,000	10,000
Collector (commercial-industrial fronting)	2 lanes	2,500	3,500	5,000	6,500	8,000
Collector (multifamily)	2 lanes	2,500	3,500	5,000	6,500	8,000
Sub-Collector (single-family)	2 lanes	_	—	2,200	_	

 Table 4-4C: Level of Service Criteria for Daily Segment Operations (City of San Diego)

Notes:

(1) Level of service based on approximate recommended Average Daily Traffic (ADT) based on the City of San Diego Traffic Impact Study Manual.

(2) Cross sections (XX/XXX)= Curb-to-curb width / Right-of-way width for each street classification, based on City of San Diego Traffic Impact Study Manual.

Source: City of San Diego Traffic Impact Study Manual (1998)

		24-hour traffic volumes (May 24, 2011)			
Street	Segment Location		LOS E Capacity (1)	24-hour Traffic Volume (2)	City of San Diego LOS (3)
Euclid Avenue	Between SR-94 & Market Street	4-lane Major Arterial (center turn lane / median)	40,000	25,364	υ
Euclid Avenue	Between Market Street & Imperial Avenue	4-lane Major Arterial (center turn lane / median)	40,000	20,933	υ
Market Street	West of 47th Street	4-lane Major Arterial (center turn lane at signalized intersections only)	40,000	14,860	Α
Market Street	Between 47th & Euclid	 4-lane Collector (center turn lane at signalized intersections only) 	15,000 (see note 4)	10,022	υ
Market Street	East of Euclid Avenue	2-lane Collector (continuous 2-way center turn lane)	15,000 (see note 5)	11,136	υ
47th Street	North of Market Street	4-lane Major Arterial	40,000	12,263	Α
47th Street	South of Market Street	2-lane Collector (with center turn lane)	15,000 (see note 5)	10,145	С
Bold indicates failing o NOTES:	onditions based on City of San Diego Traffic Im	Bold indicates failing conditions based on City of San Diego Traffic Impact Study Manual. (LOS E or F is considered failing). NOTES:			
(1) LOS E Capacity base	(1) LOS E Capacity based on City of San Diego Traffic Impact Study Manual (1998)	nual (1998).			
(2) 24-hour traffic volu.	(2) 24-hour traffic volume counts conducted on May 24, 2011.				
(3) LOS based on City o	(3) LOS based on City of San Diego Traffic Impact Study Manual (1998)				

(4) Capacity of 4-lane collector (without center turn-lane) is typically over 30,000 daily vehicles. Value shown here is based on City of San Diego Traffic Impact Study Manual (1998). (5) Capacity of 2-lane collector (with center turn lane) is typically over 20,000 daily vehicles. Value shown here is based on City of San Diego Traffic Impact Study Manual (1998).

Source: Nelson\Nygaard 2011

Table 4-4D: Daily Segment Operations – Existing Traffic Volumes & Level of Service

As shown above on Table 4-4D, all of the study segments within the Plan Area have excess capacity.

Existing Conditions – Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

Tables 4-4E and 4-4F summarize the motor vehicle LOS criteria for Peak Hour conditions at signalized and unsignalized intersections, based on Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) methodology.

Level of Service (LOS)	Average Delay (sec/veh)	Description
А	<u>≤</u> 10.00	Very Low Delay: This level of service occurs when progression is extremely favorable and most vehicles arrive during a green phase. Most vehicles do not stop at all.
В	10.1-20.0	Minimal Delays: This level of service generally occurs with good progression, short cycle lengths, or both. More vehicles stop than at LOS A, causing higher levels of average delay.
С	20.1-35.0	Acceptable Delay: Delay increases due to only fair progression, longer cycle lengths, or both. Individual cycle failures (<i>to service all waiting vehicles</i>) may begin to appear at this level of service. The number of vehicles stopping is significant, though many still pass through the intersection without stopping.
D	35.1-55.0	Approaching Unstable/Tolerable Delays: The influence of congestion becomes more noticeable. Longer delays may result from some combination of unfavorable progression, long cycle lengths, or high v/c ratios. Many vehicles stop, and the proportion of vehicles not stopping declines. Individual cycle failures are noticeable.
E	55.1-80.0	Unstable Operation/Significant Delays: This is considered by many agencies the upper limit of acceptable delays. These high delay values generally indicate poor progression, long cycle lengths, and high v/c ratios. Individual cycle failures are frequent occurrences.
F	≥ 80.0	Excessive Delays: Describes operations with average delay in excess of 60 seconds per vehicle. This level, considered to be unacceptable to most drivers, often occurs with oversaturation (i.e., when arrival flow rates exceed the capacity of the intersection). It may also occur at high v/c ratios below 1.00 with many individual cycle failures. Poor progression and long cycle lengths may also be major contributing causes to such delay levels.
Source: Tr	ansportation	Research Board, Highway Capacity Manual, 2000. Washington DC

Table 4-4E: Level of Service (LOS) Definitions for Signalized Intersections

Level of Service	Average Control Delay (seconds/vehicle)			
Level of Service	Unsignalized Intersection	Signalized Intersection		
A	0 to 10	≤10		
В	>10 to 15	>10 to 20		
С	>15 to 25	>20 to 35		
D	>25 to 35	>35 to 55		
E	>35 to 50	>55 to 80		
F	>50	>80		

Table 4-4F: Level of Service (LOS) Criteria for Unsignalized & SignalizedIntersections

Source: Highway Capacity Manual 2000.

Table 4-4G summarizes the results of the LOS analysis for existing conditions at each study intersection during the AM and PM Peak Hour. Detailed LOS reports for each study intersection are provided in the Technical Appendices to this report.

	EXISTING COND	ITIONS (AM & PM	PEAK HOUR	RS)		
Study	Location	Intersection Control	AM Pea Level of Service (LOS)	ak Hour Average Vehicle Delay (seconds)	PM Pea Level of Service (LOS)	ak Hour Average Vehicle Delay (seconds
1	Euclid Avenue & SR-94 Westbound Ramps	Side-street stop (1)	D	25.1	E	46.8
2	Euclid Avenue & SR-94 Eastbound Ramps	Side-street yield (2)	с	21.0	F	>50
3	Euclid Avenue & Market Street	Signalized	с	31.2	D	39.7
4	Euclid Avenue & Imperial Avenue	Signalized	D	48.2	D	36.0
5	47th Street & Imperial Avenue	Signalized	D	47.2	D	48.9
6	54th Street & Imperial Avenue	Signalized	В	11.1	В	10.4
7	I-805 SB Ramps & Market Street	Signalized	В	18.9	D	38.6
8	I-805 NB Ramps & Market Street	Signalized	В	18.9	В	17.2
9	47th Street & Market Street	Signalized	D	48.0	D	44.6
10	47th Street & A Street	Side-street stop (3)	с	15.6	D	19.1
Notes: 1. LOS at Eucli 2. LOS at Eucli	s failing conditions (LOS E or F based on City of d & SR-94 Wesbound Ramps is based on westbo d & SR-94 Eastbound Ramps is based on eastbo h & A Street is based on westbound left-turn (st	ound left-turn (stop-con ound right-turn (yield-co	ntrolled) mover			

Table 4-4G:	Intersection	Level of Service
-------------	--------------	------------------

Source: Nelson\Nygaard 2011

Key findings of the Peak Hour Intersection LOS analysis are:

- Existing LOS is acceptable (LOS D or better) at all 10 study intersections during the AM Peak Hour.
 - 6 out of 10 study intersections operated at LOS C or better during the AM Peak Hour
 - The following 4 study intersections operated at LOS D during the AM Peak Hour (indicating acceptable operations, but just one LOS level above failing conditions which would occur at LOS E):
 - Euclid Avenue & SR-94 Westbound Off-ramp
 - Euclid Avenue & Imperial Avenue
 - 47th Street & Imperial Avenue
 - 47th Street & Market Street
- Existing LOS is acceptable (LOS D or better) at 8 out of 10 study intersections during the PM Peak Hour.
 - Just 2 out of 10 study intersections operate at LOS C or better during the PM Peak Hour
 - The following six study intersections operate at LOS D during the PM Peak Hour (indicating acceptable operations, but just one LOS level above failing conditions which would occur at LOS E):
 - Euclid Avenue & Market Street
 - Traffic operation at this location is affected by the southbound "downstream" capacity on Euclid Avenue (between Market Street and Naranja Street) which is reduced by the following factors:
 - Delay Factor #1: Traffic signal at Naranja Street (primary entrance to the Market Village Shopping Center) leads to upstream delays (southbound), triggered in large part by the significant volume of pedestrian crossings that occur across Euclid Avenue at this location. Provision of additional signalized pedestrian crossings on Euclid Avenue (south of Naranja Street) could help to reduce this impact on southbound traffic operations approaching Naranja Street.
- Delay Factor #2: Shopping center driveway between the light-rail tracks and Naranja Street contributes to delay(s) to southbound traffic approaching the light-rail crossing, due to (1) the very close proximity of the shopping center driveway to the at-grade light-rail crossing; (2) the steady volume of pedestrians during peak periods requires inbound motorists (marking a southbound right-turn from Euclid Avenue into the Market Creek shopping center) to yield prior to entering the shopping center. As a result, those vehicles block southbound through traffic for brief periods.
- Delay Factor #3: the southbound vehicle queue on Euclid Avenue (approaching Naranja Street) extends past the at-grade light-rail crossing (due to Delay Factors #1 and #2 identified above). The queue length is longer than normal, due to motorists' wise aversion to stopping directly on the light-rail tracks.
- Delay Factor #4: the relatively high frequency of bus service on Euclid Avenue results in increased vehicle delay approaching the at-grade rail crossing. This is due to the necessary "safety stop" that each bus makes within the northbound and southbound travel lane(s), prior to crossing the rail tracks.
- Delay Factor #5: lengthy pedestrian crossing distances at Market Street & Euclid Avenue intersection requires nearly 30 seconds for each pedestrian phase. Reducing the pedestrian crossing distances would potentially allow the overall signal cycle length (currently 100 seconds) to be reduced, allowing for more efficient traffic operations.
- Delay Factor #6: light-rail train (LRT) crossings south of Market Street. Although delays at the Euclid & Market intersection are typically blamed on the LRT crossing, Nelson\Nygaard observed that the passage of each LRT train had a relatively benign effect on traffic operations (with vehicle delays primarily attributable to Delay Factors #1 to #5 above).
- To account for the reduced vehicle capacity at this location (due to the delay factors described above), Nelson\Nygaard reduced the saturation flow rate for the affected movements (see Level of Service reports provided in the Technical Appendices).
- Euclid Avenue & Imperial Avenue

- 47th Street & Imperial Avenue
- Interstate 805 Southbound Ramps & Market Street
- 47th Street & Market Street
- 47th Street & A Street (note: LOS at this side-street stop-controlled intersection is based on average delay to the stop-controlled westbound left-turn movement, which is limited to less than 50 peak hour vehicles; most vehicles passing through this intersection experience little or no delay).
- In addition to the above study intersections, Nelson\Nygaard observed lengthy vehicle queues on the Interstate 805 Southbound Off-Ramp approaching the intersection Euclid Avenue. Based on the Central Imperial Redevelopment EIR (2009), this intersection operates at LOS C under Existing Conditions during both the AM & PM Peak Hour. Nonetheless, Nelson\Nygaard will confer with City staff to confirm the best approach for including this location in the upcoming analysis of potential future-year traffic impacts.
- Failing conditions (LOS E or F conditions) were identified at the following two study intersections during the PM Peak Hour:
 - Euclid Avenue & SR-4 Westbound Off-ramp
 - LOS at this intersection is based on the delay to the stop-sign controlled westbound left-turn movement.
 - Signalization of this intersection by Year 2030 was identified as a planned improvement by the *Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan Transportation Impact Study* (2009).
 - Euclid Avenue & SR-94 Eastbound Off-ramp
 - LOS at this intersection is based on the delay to the yield-controlled eastbound right-turn movement (vehicles exiting SR-94 and merging with southbound traffic on Euclid Avenue)
 - Signalization of this intersection by Year 2030 was identified as a planned improvement by the *Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan Transportation Impact Study* (2009).

Future Traffic Volumes – Year 2030 Forecast

Figure 4-4B provides a preliminary comparison of future (Year 2030) forecasted traffic volumes based on the "Cumulative Plus Project" volumes described in the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan Transportation Impact Study (2009). Capacity as shown is based on the current lane allocations.

Vehicular Network Opportunities and Constraints

Excess traffic capacity along Market Street offers a key opportunity for redesigning the street to better meet the needs of the surrounding community. Narrowing the street to one lane in each direction (with a center turn lane where necessary) east of 47th Street could allow for enhanced pedestrian and bicycle circulation, by enabling wider sidewalks and dedicated bike lanes. Such an improvement is called a "road diet."

- Consider modifying the street designation for Market Street to allow a 2-lane configuration with wider sidewalks, bicycle lanes and other enhancements, given the relatively low traffic volumes (just 10,000 to 11,000 vehicles per day east of 47th Street)
 - Develop "road diet" plan for Market Street, which could be initially implemented with a low-cost "restriping"
- Similarly, 4^{7th} Street could be redesignated, as traffic volumes (just 10,000 to 12,000 daily vehicles) do not warrant a 4-lane road configuration.
- Investigate opportunities to connect the local street network within the Plan Area

CHAPTER 4: MOBILITY ASSESSMENT



EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

SEPTEMBER 2011

4-44

On-Street Parking Supply & Demand

An inventory of existing, on-street parking facilities and parking occupancies on the Major Arterial & Collector Street segments within the Euclid & Market study area was conducted on May 24, 2011.

Based on a review of street dimensions on Euclid, Market and 47th street, just over 300 vehicles could be accommodated within the existing on-street parking supply.

Figure 4-4i provides a summary of the existing parking supply and occupancy for each of the street segments (and additional details concerning the on-street parking data is provided in the Technical Appendices).

Based on this analysis, on-street parking occupancy on Major Arterial and Collector street segments is relatively low (less than 30 percent occupancy) during all three count periods (morning, afternoon and evening). <u>The relatively low levels of on-street parking occupancy likely reflects the rather generous provision of off-street parking within the Plan Area and the fact that many parcels are not yet developed.</u>

STREET	M	MORNING (10 to 11 AM)			AFTERNOON (2 to 3 pm)		EVENING (8 to 9 pm)		
	Supply	Demand	Pct Occupied	Supply	Demand	Pct Occupied	Supply	Demand	Pct Occupied
Euclid Avenue	52	10	19%	52	7	13%	52	16	31%
Market Street	166	47	28%	166	50	30%	166	33	20%
47th Street	88	33	38%	88	29	33%	88	37	42%
TOTAL	306	90	29%	306	86	28%	306	86	28%
ource: Nelson\Nygaard and Wiltec. Parking occupancy counts conducted on May 24, 2011.									

Table 4-4i: On-Street Parking Occupancy

Parking opportunities and constraints

Since most on-street parking within the Plan Area is unused at all times of the day, there exists a significant opportunity to reduce the amount of on-street parking spaces along major transportation corridors. In conjunction with a "road diet", a reduction of on-street parking spaces would yield more space for wider sidewalks and improved bicycle infrastructure.

In areas where on-street parking will remain beneficial, such as outside of businesses and public institutions, there is an opportunity to introduce metered parking. The City of San Diego operates parking meters from 8am to 6pm, Monday through Saturday, at a standard rate of \$1.25 per hour. Outside of the downtown area, the City of San Diego has established several Community Parking Districts, where neighborhood Business Improvement Associations (BIAs) oversee the operation and management of parking meters. For example, the Mid-City Parking District, which is just north of the study area, is primarily managed by the El Cajon Boulevard Business Improvement Association. The City of San Diego recently decided to allow Community Parking Districts to set their own parking rates on a range of \$0.25 to \$2.50 per hour. If several local businesses were to

join to form a Euclid & Market Business Improvement Association, then the area could benefit from better on-street parking management, and parking meter revenues could be used to fund other area improvements.^{xviii}

Should there be a parking capacity problem in the area, another opportunity is to introduce Residential Parking Permits (RPP zones) in residential neighborhoods. Residential parking permits are used in areas of heavy parking demand (where people looking to park near popular destinations 'spill over' into nearby residential districts) to ensure that nearby residents are still able to park near their homes. Under the City of San Diego's residential parking permit program, a neighborhood interested in designating an RPP area must submit to the City a petition signed by at least 50 percent of the residents of the proposed zone. Once a zone is established, permits cost \$14 each; the price is reduced to \$7 per permit during the last six months of the permit year. In some cases, one permit may be purchased by a person who owns or leases commercial property and actively engages in business activity within a residential permit parking area. ^{xix}

PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION & ACCESS

This section provides an overview of existing conditions for pedestrians within the Euclid & Market Plan Area, including pedestrian circulation along major streets and natural features (such as the branches of Chollas Creek), within and between residential developments, and between trip generators and transit stops.

Existing Pedestrian Network

Narrow sidewalks and lengthy walking distances characterize the pedestrian circulation network serving the Plan Area, providing a stark contrast to the high quality of transit service that is provided.

Although it would be easy to assume that the incomplete nature of the pedestrian network is a result of the area's geographical constraints, particularly the steep hill grades and Chollas Creek, such geographic obstacles have been overcome elsewhere (for example: some of the world's most walkable cities have had their share of hills and waterways to overcome). Ultimately, a key factor is the era in which the Plan Area developed. Street design standards adopted during the middle of the 20th Century (a period of enthusiasm for automobile travel) typically mandated as many as four 11 to 12 foot travel lanes on arterial streets (even on relatively low-volume arterials such as Market Street, which carries less than 11,000 daily vehicles). By contrast, sidewalks were an afterthought with permissible widths as narrow as four to six feet in width on those same arterial streets, even in locations where arterial streets provide the primary access to pedestrian trip generators such as schools and transit centers.

As a result of the limited sidewalk space along the Plan Area's north-south and east-west arterials, convenient and desirable walking routes within the Plan Area are extremely hard to find. Market Street between 47th Street and Euclid Avenue is essentially a closed network: for one-half mile, one hilly parcel separates it from Guymon Street residential neighborhoods to the north, and another hill, the Trolley line, and Chollas Creek separate it from the El Rey Trailer Park and other residential developments to the south. Despite these constraints, pedestrian volumes are surprisingly high within the Plan Area.

Pedestrians looking to travel from local streets to shops, community centers, or transit stations are left to travel on the major arterials (Market Street, 47th Street, Euclid Avenue, or Imperial Avenue), which are primarily designed for motor vehicle travel and are inhospitable to pedestrians. Sidewalks within the Plan Area are, on average, only four to six feet wide (and sometimes narrower, where sidewalk obstructions such as light poles, utility boxes, and trolley gates further reduce the "clear space" for pedestrians).

Although there are a few pedestrian-only paths within the Plan Area, they do not provide useful connections. One trail is located beside the Encanto Branch of Chollas Creek between the Tubman-Chavez Community Center and the office park at 5275 Market Street. The trail, completed in 2008, is approximately 800 feet long, about seven feet wide, and was completed in conjunction with the restoration/rehabilitation project of the adjacent creek channel. It features interpretive signage and benches. Unfortunately, the trail is incomplete, and ends just before the office park parking lot. Furthermore, while the trailhead is directly across Euclid Avenue from the entrance to the Orange Line Trolley station, pedestrians must cross the street elsewhere, either at Market Street to the north or Naranja Street to the south. Another stretch of trail along the Encanto Branch of Chollas Creek was built by the Southeastern Economic Development Corporation (SEDC) as part of site preparation for the incomplete Valencia Business Park. The trail extends westward from Stevens Way alongside the creek nearly to 54th Street but does not

provide any formal connections to local destinations. The trail itself is attractive and relatively accessible, but currently serves as a recreational option rather than a functional means of interconnection within the study area.





Sidewalk Design and Use

Sidewalks along arterials within the study area are on the whole very narrow, and thus are not optimized for accessible pedestrian mobility. Further, the lack of a dedicated zone for street furniture (such as signal boxes, fire hydrants, or other mechanical equipment), street trees, and amenities such as benches at bus stops forces often forces these items into the pedestrian realm, creating significant barriers to access for all.

<u>ADA Standards</u>

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requires a minimum sidewalk passage of one meter (or three feet); if this minimum sidewalk width is used, then 1.5 meter by 1.5 meter (five feet by five feet) passing areas are required at 60 meter (200 foot) intervals, maximum.^{xx} The average sidewalk width within the Plan Area is roughly four feet; although this measurement exceeds the ADA's minimum requirement, required passing areas are not readily available. Further, as seen in Figure 4-5B below left, the sidewalks do not provide adequate space to accommodate the two-way flow of pedestrian traffic around popular destinations. In this instance, while the planted vegetation strip is desirable (as it provides a needed buffer for walkers from busy Euclid Avenue), it should be accompanied by a wider sidewalk given the high of pedestrian traffic within one-quarter mile of the light-rail station. Nonetheless, compared with the sidewalk conditions roughly

300 yards to the south (shown on Figure 4-5B), where pedestrians are closely bordered by automobiles passing within feet of the sidewalk, it is clear that the improved buffer treatment at Market Village creates one of the few comfortable sidewalk experiences in the study area.



Figure 4-5B: Narrow Sidewalks on Euclid Avenue

Photo Source: WRT 2011



Figure 4-5C: Sidewalk Zones (Example)

Source: USDOT/FHWA

Sidewalk Zones

In the 1998 *Portland Pedestrian Design Guide*, the city of Portland, Oregon, devised a standard sidewalk design system that divides the pedestrian corridor into four zones, illustrated above in Figure 4-5C. Each zone corresponds to the different uses of the sidewalk realm. The zones are described in the guidelines as follows, with recommended minimum widths for each zone along arterials or in pedestrian districts^{xxi}:

- *Curb Zone*: The curb helps to define the pedestrian environment within the streetscape, prevents water in the street gutters from entering the pedestrian space, and discourages vehicles from driving over the pedestrian area. **Recommended width: 6 inches.**
- *Furniture Zone*: The Furniture Zone buffers pedestrians from the adjacent roadway, and is also the area where elements such as street trees, signal poles, utility poles, street lights, parking meters, and street furniture are properly located. Wherever it is wide enough, the furniture zone should include street trees. **Recommended width: 4 feet.**
- *Pedestrian Zone*: This is the area intended for pedestrian travel, and should be entirely free of permanent and temporary objects. **Recommended width: 8 feet.**
- *Frontage Zone*: This zone is the area between the Pedestrian Zone and the property line. Where no Furniture Zones exist, elements that would normally be sited in that zone, such as transit shelters and benches, may occupy the Frontage Zone. **Recommended width: 2 feet 6 inches.**

Crosswalks

Under California law, pedestrians may cross the street at any intersection (regardless of whether or not the crosswalk is marked). Marked crosswalks within the Plan Area are few and far between, and occur with little exception only at signalized roadway intersections.

Ideally, pedestrians should not have to walk more than 300 feet to the nearest street crossing. However, the average distances between signalized crosswalks on the major streets within the Plan Area results in potentially lengthy travel distances for those pedestrians that do not wish to cross at unsignlized locations:

- Market Street: 1,325 feet between signalized pedestrian crossings
- Euclid Avenue: 855 feet between signalized pedestrian crossings
- 47th Street: 2,600 feet between signalized pedestrian crossings

The only mid-block crosswalk adjacent to the Plan Area was observed on Guymon Street at Horton Elementary School and is unsignalized.



Figure 4-5D: Pedestrian / Motor Vehicle Collision Locations (2006-11)

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

4-51

Existing Pedestrian Volumes

Pedestrian volumes during AM and PM peak periods were collected at the ten study intersections on Tuesday, May 24th, 2011. Figure 4-4A in the Traffic & Parking section for a map of the ten study intersections. A summary of the findings follows below.

Study Intersection	Location	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
1	Euclid Avenue & SR-94 WB Ramps	14	22
2	Euclid Avenue & SR-94 EB Ramps	16	25
3	Euclid Avenue & Market Street	130	95
4	Euclid Avenue & Imperial Avenue	127	83
5	47th Street & Imperial Avenue	81	50
6	54th Street & Imperial Avenue	20	20
7	I-805 SB Ramps & Market Street	135	39
8	I-805 NB Ramps & Market Street	84	28
9	47th Street & Market Street	123	122
10	47th Street & A Street	16	29

Table 4-5A: Pedestrian Volumes at Study Intersections (AM & PM Peak Hours)

At most of the study intersections, AM peak period pedestrian counts were higher than PM peak period figures. This may be explained by the fact that students counted as they traveled to school in the morning were not counted during the evening observations, as most schools let out in the mid-to-late afternoon.

Relatively few pedestrians were found to travel through locations such as the Euclid Avenue & SR-94 ramp intersections and the 47th Street & A Street intersection to the north of the Plan Area during AM and PM peak periods. Rather, higher volumes of pedestrians traveled through intersections located closer to a variety of commercial and institutional destinations within the Plan Area, including Euclid & Imperial Avenue, Euclid Avenue and Market Street, and 47th & Market Streets, counts exceeded 100 pedestrians per AM peak hour.

Proposed Pedestrian Improvements

The City of San Diego *Pedestrian Master Plan*, adopted in 2006, provided a framework for citywide implementation of pedestrian walkway improvements. Its stated goal was:

"To create a safe, accessible, connected and walkable pedestrian environment that enhances neighborhood quality and promotes walking as a practical and attractive means of transportation in a cost-effective manner."

Proposed Chollas Creek Pathway

Within the Plan Area, the City of San Diego's *Chollas Creek Master Plan* (2002) contains recommendations that, if implemented, would have significant implications for pedestrian route connectivity within the Plan Area.

Acknowledging that "Trails provide important continuity and accessibility throughout all reaches of Chollas Creek, effectively creating the much needed linear park-open space system that will ultimately link San Diego's central mesas to San Diego Bay," the report proposed that the Chollas Creek "trail system will encompass not only the creek-bed and edges, but adjacent streets and open spaces." Moreover, the proposal recommends that:

"Public access should be provided to the creek from every parcel of private development or every 200 feet. Public access points should include a path 10 feet wide with shade trees flanking the pathway, provide adequate signage, be well-lit, and contain any necessary amenities. This is intended to reduce the possibility of the trail being an isolated amenity in the community."

A trail is proposed to follow the main branch of Chollas Creek from 47th Street to the Euclid Avenue Trolley station, where it then turns and follows the Encanto branch to 60th Street; the existing interpretive trail forms a short part of this route. A connecting trail parallel to the Emerald Hills branch of the creek is depicted along Euclid Avenue north of Market Street, as is another connecting trail along 47th Street meeting the creek near the El Rey Trailer Park (where the creek runs underneath I-805). The proposal calls for a "Future Trail" to be built along the creek under I-805, though no timetable is specified for this project.^{xxii}

Design and construction of the proposed pedestrian improvements along Chollas Creek remain unfunded at this time.

Opportunities to Enhance Pedestrian Circulation within the Plan Area

Until trails are built alongside and across Chollas Creek, the unimproved creek bed presents an enormous constraint to improving pedestrian connectivity in the area.

Still, there are many opportunities to improve the pedestrian network without making significant capital investments. Widening sidewalks wherever possible would help walkers feel safer along arterial corridors, and identifying and publicizing safe walking routes within the area would help encourage pedestrian travel.

At potential development sites that are not slated for development in the short term, there exists an opportunity to designate temporary walking paths to encourage cross-area connectivity. This page left intentionally blank.

BICYCLE CIRCULATION & ACCESS

Existing Bicycle Facilities

Bicyclists, like pedestrians, are affected by the natural topography, variable land development patterns, and inhospitable street infrastructure within the Plan Area. Natural barriers occur at hill contours, such as along Euclid Avenue south from Market Street to Imperial Avenue, and west along Guymon Street between Euclid Avenue and Horton Elementary School. Bicyclists are also limited in their ability to travel between neighborhoods and trip generators because of the lack of continuous north-south and east-west bikeways in Southeastern San Diego.

Moreover, official bicycle infrastructure within the Plan Area is disconnected and incomplete, as some major streets have striped bike lanes, others bicycle route signs, and yet others no bicycle infrastructure at all. However, as part of their respective local and regional bicycle plans, both the City of San Diego and SANDAG are preparing to implement improved cycling connectivity within and outside of the Plan Area.





Bicycle infrastructure within the Plan Area is currently limited to the following:

- Class III bike routes ("signed" bicycle routes, that designate shared travel lanes between bicycles and motor vehicles, often without physical improvements to accompany the route designation) are designated on:
 - Market Street between I-805 and Euclid Avenue
 - Imperial Avenue between Euclid Avenue and San Jacinto Drive
 - Valencia Parkway between Imperial Avenue and just north of Skyline Drive
 - Euclid Avenue north of Market Street (effective late fall 2011)
- "Other suggested routes" (not official bike routes; designated by SANDAG & San Diego's 511 service in their San Diego Region bike map as alternate connecting routes) on:
 - San Jacinto Drive between Imperial Avenue and Churchward Street
 - 47th Street between Market Street and Logan Avenue
- Euclid Avenue between Market Street and SR-94 (and further north) is designated as a bicycle route.
- There are no Class I bicycle paths within the Plan Area.
 - Near the Plan Area, there is a relatively short (0.2 miles) Class I path paralleling I-805 on the west side of the freeway from Market Street southeast to Maxim Street

Existing Bicycle Volumes

Bicycle volumes during AM and PM peak periods were collected at the ten study intersections on Tuesday, May 24th, 2011. A summary of the findings follows the table below.

Study Intersection	Location	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
1	Euclid Avenue & SR-94 WB Ramps	2	5
2	Euclid Avenue & SR-94 EB Ramps	2	4
3	Euclid Avenue & Market Street	12	12
4	Euclid Avenue & Imperial Avenue	5	10
5	47th Street & Imperial Avenue	5	3
6	54th Street & Imperial Avenue	1	4
7	I-805 SB Ramps & Market Street	6	10
8	I-805 NB Ramps & Market Street	7	8
9	47th Street & Market Street	7	8

Table 4-6A: Bicycle Volumes at Study Intersections (AM & PM Peak Hours)

10	47th Street & A Street	3	17
----	------------------------	---	----

Bicycle volumes were higher during the PM peak rather than the AM peak period. While the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street exhibited consistent AM and PM peak period bicycle volumes, the highest share of peak period bicyclists was observed during the PM peak at the 47th & A Street intersection. This last figure is likely due to the fact that 47th Street represents a safer north-south cycling route crossing SR-94 than Euclid Avenue, given the sizable SR-94/Euclid Avenue interchange.

The observations indicate that bicycle usage in the Plan Area during peak hours is relatively low, even compared with pedestrian volumes. These findings confirm that the natural topography and lack of a cohesive cycling network are real impediments to bicycling in the Plan Area.

Planned & Proposed Bicycle Improvements

City of San Diego Bicycle Master Plan

The City of San Diego adopted its first *Bicycle Master Plan* in 2002, and updated the document in April 2011. The goals and policies of this update were derived from the 2008 San Diego General Plan and expanded to include additional implementation guidelines for improved citywide bicycle infrastructure. The goals of the 2011 Update strive to create:

- A city where bicycling is a viable travel choice, particularly for trips of less than five miles
- A safe and comprehensive local and regional bikeway Network
- Environmental quality, public health, recreation and mobility benefits through increased bicycling

The Master Plan proposes a more specific network of City bikeways that would affect more streets within the Plan Area than SANDAG's Regional Bike Plan. Changes to bicycle infrastructure within the Plan Area would include:

- Constructing Class I bicycle paths along both sides of I-805 and along the Orange Line Trolley route
- Upgrading Market Street from a Class III bike route by installing Class II bicycle lanes from I-805 to 47th Street
- Upgrading Imperial Avenue from Euclid Avenue to San Jacinto Drive from a bike route by adding striped bike lanes
- Designating Roswell Street as a Class III bike route
- Possibly adding bike lanes along Market Street from 47th Street to Euclid Avenue and along Euclid Avenue north of Market Street

As the City conducts more detailed area and community-specific studies (such as the Euclid & Market Village Master Plan), these recommendations will be refined to fit the needs of the local community.

"Riding to 2050" Regional Bike Plan

SANDAG's regional bike plan, which was adopted in 2010, established a number of bike corridors to be completed by 2050 that will enhance connectivity between communities across all of San Diego County. Two of these corridors are located within the Plan Area:

- Centre City La Mesa Corridor, an Enhanced Class II bike lane following Imperial Avenue from 47th Street to Merlin Drive
- Mission Valley Chula Vista Corridor, an Enhanced Class II bike lane along 47th Street

Bicycle opportunities and constraints

There are no bicycle lanes or Class I bicycle paths within the Plan Area.

The existing street network is designed for automobiles, and the bicycle infrastructure network is primarily limited to "bicycle route" signs placed along arterial streets that have specific accommodations to accommodate bicycle travel. Moreover, the lack of local street connections and the Plan Area's natural topography restricts both north-south and east-west connectivity where streets slope up hills and down to Chollas Creek.

For the most part, the lane requirement allocated for motor vehicle use, and the nature of the existing street network that includes a lack of cross-neighborhood connectivity, are significant constraints to encouraging increased safe bicycle use. However, the planned expansion of bicycle facilities will enhance the comfort and safety for cyclists traveling through and within the Plan Area.

A key opportunity exists to add bike lockers at the 47th Street Trolley station, especially as new regional bike routes are added along 47th Street and bike paths are extended along I-805 just to the west of the station. Another opportunity is to expand the number of bike lockers at the Euclid Avenue Trolley station, which already benefits from having bicycle infrastructure along nearby streets. There is also a significant opportunity to include bike parking and other bike-friendly facilities like lockers and showers as a part of TOD redevelopment projects.

SUMMARY OF MOBILITY OPPORTUNITIES & CONSTRAINTS

The Plan Area is well-served by frequent and reliable MTS transit (Trolley and bus) service, but the area's natural topography—hills, valleys, and creeks, as well as its street network of wide arterials and disconnected local streets, restricts pedestrian and bicycle mobility in all directions. The following is a summary of preliminary findings for three modes of non-automotive travel: transit, pedestrian (walking), and bicycle access.

To the extent that the Master Plan could include strategies aimed at attracting job-producing land uses to the Plan Area:

- The Plan Area's most marketable asset, for attracting development to support community goals, could be the direct access to two trolley stations that could be provided to potential development sites.
- Improving mobility and access within the Plan Area should be a key goal of the upcoming Master Plan update, in order to identify strategies and potential improvement options that will allow the community to fully benefit from proximity to the two transit stations.
 - For trips of up to one-half mile from the transit station(s), improvements to pedestrian paths to and from the trolley stations are recommended to facilitate "transit-oriented" (not just "transit-adjacent") development.
 - For trips between one-half mile and up to five miles, improvements to bicycle circulation and access would substantially improve access to the station from a broader area (beyond the one-quarter mile to one-half mile walking distance generally identified as a convenient walking distance for facilitating transit-oriented development).

Constraints to Access & Mobility

Several key barriers serve to restrict access to the Plan Area from adjacent neighborhoods, as well as mobility within the Plan Area.

- The area's natural topography—hills, valleys, and creeks—does not allow for many direct connections, and most travel occurs via the arterial streets and transit corridors serving the Plan Area.
- Local streets are disconnected, and do not allow for direct access from adjacent neighborhoods. As a result, most people must enter the Plan Area, and travel within the Plan Area, via just three arterial streets (Euclid, Market, 47th) and one rail corridor (the Orange Line).
- The transportation rights-of-way themselves serve as barriers to internal circulation, particularly the wide arterial street segments on Euclid, Market and Imperial, as well as the Trolley tracks.
- Despite a relatively steady volume of pedestrians within the Plan Area, sidewalks are extremely narrow, generally just 4 to 6 feet wide in most places, and most pedestrian travel must occur adjacent to arterial streets that are 60 to 80 feet across (curb-to-curb width). In many locations, obstructions (such as light poles and trolley gate arms) block

a portion of the sidewalk. Many sidewalk locations (such as at the Imperial Avenue and 54th Street bus stop, where travel on an already narrow sidewalk is further impeded by a bench for waiting bus riders, seen at left in Figure 4-3B) do not provide an adequate unobstructed width to accommodate two-way pedestrian circulation.

• There are no Class II bicycle lanes, or Class I bicycle paths, within the Plan Area.

The current pedestrian network does not adequately serve the community. Residents and visitors who choose to walk to and from destinations within the neighborhood are severely constrained by a lack of north-south connectivity and inhospitable arterial routes. Bicycle and pedestrian access to the Plan Area is not yet adequate to accommodate potential travel demand, especially given the proximity to schools and two major transit centers.

- The arterial streets that provide access to the Plan Area were primarily designed to accommodate motor vehicle travel, with minimal provisions for pedestrian and bicycle travel.
- Barriers to walking tend restrict mobility within the Plan Area, including access to the Euclid and 47th Street Stations.
- Walking within the Plan Area often requires circuitous routes on narrow sidewalks, and lengthy crossing distances at key crosswalk locations.
- Undeveloped parcels throughout the Plan Area (and especially north of Market Street) and Chollas Creek are major barriers to north-south connectivity. Wide streets with narrow sidewalks and few signalized crosswalks also discourage safe pedestrian travel.

Key Assets

Despite the mobility barriers described above, the Plan Area benefits from convenient transit and motor vehicle access:

- Frequent and reliable Trolley and bus service is provided to the Plan Area by the Orange Line trolley and eight different bus lines, with the majority of transit riders arriving to the Plan Area via bus. On a typical weekday, approximately 6,500 passengers board a bus or trolley at the Euclid Station (approximately 4,000 passengers board the many bus lines serving the station, and 2,500 passengers board the Trolley at this location), making the Euclid Avenue station among the busiest in the system. In addition, another 500 people per day board a Trolley at the 47th Street Station.
- Future access to the Plan Area will potentially be enhanced by proposed bus rapid transit (BRT) service on the 805 corridor, which could serve additional Plan Area transit riders at the 47th Street Station, as well as accommodating transfers between bus and rail.
- Traffic capacity is more than sufficient to accommodate traffic volumes on the three arterial streets serving the Plan Area (Euclid, Market and 47th). Although traffic volumes occasionally approach capacity on Euclid, there is substantial excess traffic capacity on Market Street (east of 47th).

Opportunities to Improve Mobility

Opportunities are evident for enhancing local mobility, to allow residents to fully take advantage of the transit lines that serve the area. Key opportunities include:

- Provision of a pathway along the Creek could eliminate some of the key barriers to pedestrian and bicycle travel within the Plan area, particularly by providing walking and bicycling connections to the local streets that terminate near the Creek (between 47th and Euclid Streets).
- Market Street (east of 47th Street) carries relatively low traffic volumes for a 4-lane street. This excess capacity could allow for future roadway modifications that could include bicycle lanes and wider sidewalks.
- The proposed I-805 Corridor Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) project could include modifications to the 47th Street Station, which would become more important as a regional transit transfer point. Future planning for the 47th Street Station could create opportunities for improving walking and bicycling paths between the Euclid and 47th Street stations, and provide additional bicycle parking at both stations.

Initial Recommendations

- Consider implementing "road diet" improvements (potentially reducing the amount of space allocated to motor vehicle travel) along some arterials, which could allow for widening sidewalks, providing dedicated bike lanes, and reducing motor vehicle traffic speeds near residences, schools and other sensitive uses
- Widen sidewalks wherever possible, and designate and publicize safe walking routes to encourage walking. Formalize existing "desire paths" on vacant parcels of land.
 - Incorporate sidewalk and transit stop improvements into new development projects in the Plan Area (potentially as a lower-cost alternative to expensive road widening projects)
 - Provide better pedestrian and bicycle access to the Trolley stations, and add additional bicycle parking and storage at both stops
 - Provide bicycle storage lockers for commuters at the 47th Street Trolley station, and expand number of bike lockers at Euclid Avenue station
- Improve regional access to the Plan Area through planning process for joint BRT/Trolley station at 47th Street.
 - In the future, bus routes may be relocated to the 47th Street station.
 - However, this should be balanced with a careful evaluation of the ramifications of reducing the current level of bus service at the Euclid Avenue station.
- Take advantage of the Plan Area's proximity to downtown San Diego, by identifying an appropriate bicycle route for short-term implementation
 - Ideally, a commuter bicycle corridor could be provided between downtown and the Plan Area. Based on a review of street conditions and local land uses along the key corridors, Market Street would be the recommended corridor. Installation of

uninterrupted bicycle lanes on Market Street between Euclid Avenue and downtown San Diego would be the most likely to generate regular commute trips to and from the Plan Area by bicycle.

- Within the Plan Area: provide internal street connections to allow travel to occur without requiring travel on Euclid or Imperial Avenue for trips to neighborhood destinations, including schools and the two trolley stations.
- Adopt development standards to encourage true "transit-oriented" (not just "transitadjacent) development near the two trolley stations serving the Plan Area.
- Investigate reduced parking requirements for transit-oriented development (TOD) projects, incorporating relevant data from TOD "best practices" in other US cities.

^{ix} <u>http://www.keepsandiegomoving.com/Libraries/Trolley-doc/Summary_Schedule_10-0625.sflb.ashx</u>

^x Dave Schumacher, SANDAG (5/18/11)

^{xi} State Route 94 HOV/Bus Rapid Transit Lanes Project Fact Sheet, Caltrans, December 2010. For more information, visit <u>http://www.keepsandiegomoving.com/SR-94-Corridor/SR94-Intro.aspx</u>

^{xii} South Bay Bus Rapid Transit Fact Sheet, SANDAG, July 2009. For more information, visit <u>http://www.keepsandiegomoving.com/SouthBay-BRT/south-bay-brt-intro.aspx</u>

^{xiii} Interstate 805 Corridor – Managed Lanes Projects Fact Sheet, Caltrans, July 2010. For more information, visit <u>http://www.keepsandiegomoving.com/I-805-Corridor/I-805-intro.aspx</u>

^{xvi} Dave Schumacher, SANDAG (6/7/11)

^{xviii} There is a precedent for this proposal. The Diamond Business Improvement District (now defunct), was formed in 1996 and included stretches of Market Street and Euclid Avenue within its service area.

^{xix} San Diego Municipal Code 86.2008 (b) (2)

xx Oregon Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, 1995, p.97

ⁱ http://www.sdmts.com/MTS/timeline.asp

ⁱⁱ Boardings and alightings for both directions. Data from SANDAG's Passenger Counting Program, provided by Mark Thomsen, MTS.

ⁱⁱⁱ Mark Thomsen, MTS, email 5/16/11

^{iv} Data from the 2009 Onboard Survey, provided by Brian Lane of SANDAG (6/8/11)

^v Valencia Business Park – Lots 2-7 Request for Proposals, SEDC, February 2010, p.2

^{vii} Data courtesy of Mark Thomsen, MTS. He provided parameters for the data: "The weekday data are all from FY 2011 (July 1, 2010-June 30, 2011). For the routes operated in house (the 4, 5 and 13), it represents an average for a booking, which are Sep-Jan, Jan-Jun or Jun-Sep. The data you have are averages to date for the Jan-Jun 2011. For the contracted routes (the 3, 13, 916/917, 950 and 960), that data represent one-day snap shots for each trip, although they may not all be collected on the same weekday, taken sometime during the fiscal year."

viii http://www.icommutesd.com/Bike/Lockers.aspx

^{xiv} Dave Schumacher, SANDAG (5/18/11)

^{xv} Most of the information below derived from a conversation with Dave Schumacher of SANDAG (5/18/11)

^{xvii} Tom King, SANDAG (6/8/11)

xxi Portland Pedestrian Design Guide, June 1998, pp. A-6-12

xxii Chollas Creek Enhancement Program, p. 41



5. MARKET ANALYSIS

KEYSER MARSTON

MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

This chapter discusses the market and economic conditions of the Plan Area as well as provides an assessment of the strengths, weaknesses and overall development potential within the Plan Area. The objective of the market assessment is to measure the development potential for standard land uses. The assessment specifically addresses the following:

- Key demographic and economic trends.
- Near- and long-term market demand for four major land use categories:
 - Residential (single-family and multi-family)
 - Office
 - Industrial
 - Retail/Restaurant
- Principal strengths and weaknesses affecting development potential in the Plan Area
- Key development opportunities and constraints

In preparing this analysis, Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. (KMA) undertook the following work tasks:

- Kick-off meeting with the WRT consultant team and City staff.
- Review of background information such as resource documents, maps and relevant plans.
- Tours of the area, environs, and competitive developments.
- Review of key demographic and economic trends in the trade area.
- Interviews with stakeholders.
- Evaluation of market factors such as inventory, vacancy, and value indicators for each land use.
- Review of competitive proposed developments planned or under construction.
- Estimated supportable demand by land use.
- Identification of the key assets and constraints affecting development potential in the Plan Area.
- Identification of the near- and long-term development opportunities.

Sections within the Market and Economic Analysis include:

- Key Findings
- Market and Economic Conditions
 - Demographic Overview
 - Residential Market Overview
 - Office Market Overview
 - Industrial Market Overview
 - Retail/Restaurant Market Overview

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

- Supportable Demand by Land Use
- Assessment of Market Potential
- Limiting Conditions

At the present time, new real estate development ventures are severely hampered by depressed market demand, market oversupply, impaired financing markets, and a gloomy outlook for the national economy. As these conditions are alleviated in the mid-term, KMA believes that the Plan Area represents an excellent opportunity for a new mixed-use development.

The ability to foster and attract economically desirable growth is influenced by the availability and accessibility of land for employment, i.e., commercial land. The Plan Area is primarily an urban residential neighborhood, with commercial uses concentrated along the main corridors, Euclid Avenue and Market Street. The majority of the remaining developable vacant land is controlled by the Jacobs Center for Neighborhood Innovation (JCNI).

The following summarizes KMA's key findings:

- The JCNI is the largest property owner in the Plan Area and has developed a conceptual development program titled The Village at Market Creek. This conceptual plan may serve as a catalyst for future development.
- The Plan Area (or 1-mile radius from the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street) contains a younger population, with a median age of 28, while the City and San Diego County (County) population is about 35 years of age.
- The Plan Area is a very diverse community. In the 1-mile trade area, 57 percent of population is of Hispanic decent. In terms of race, the population is largely comprised of Persons of Another Race (32 percent), African American (26 percent), and White (25 percent).
- Within a 1-mile radius of the Plan Area, the median income is approximately \$35,000 which is 40 percent lower than that of the City and County, ranging between \$58,000 and \$60,000. Approximately 20 percent of households within the 1-mile radius earn an annual income of less than \$15,000.
- Large household sizes and the young population in the Plan Area (or 1-mile radius) indicate that households are largely made up of families with children. The household size in 1-mile trade area is 3.7 persons per household, which is higher than the City and County (2.6 and 2.8, respectively).
- The following summarizes the demographics found in the 1-mile area as compared to the City:

	Plan Area	
Demographic Summary	(1-Mile)	City
Households:		
Number of Households	7,822	487,221
Average Household Size	3.69	2.62
Income:		
Median Household Income	\$35,078	\$58,173
Families Below Poverty	24.9%	9.8%
Families Below Poverty with Children	23.2%	7.7%
Population of Hispanic Ethnicity	57.4%	29.5%
Language Spoken at Home:		
English Only Spoken at Home	42.3%	60.6%
Other Spoken at Home	57.7%	39.4%
Educational Attainment:		
Less Than High School Graduate	38.0%	14.6%
High School Graduate (or GED)	25.6%	16.9%
Some College – No Degree	21.5%	20.9%
Completed Degree	14.9%	47.6%

Table 5-1: Summary of Key Demographic Factors, 2011

Source: Claritas, Inc.

- The largest employment sector in the 3-mile trade area is the retail trade industry with 24.3 percent, followed by professional and business services of 16.8 percent and educational services (16.2 percent).
- About 51 percent of the residential housing inventory is comprised of single-family homes, similar to that of the County.
- Median home prices have dropped dramatically in the Encanto neighborhood since 2005. For detached single-family homes, the median home price dropped 47% and for attached homes approximately 63%. In comparison, the Central San Diego neighborhood lost approximately 29% for single-family homes and 41% for attached homes.
- With the exception of the Joe and Vi Jacobs Center, the Plan Area has limited traditional format office space. The majority of office space in the Plan Area is one- to two-stories and single tenancy.
- Industrial development in the Plan Area is concentrated along Market Street and primarily located east of Euclid Avenue.
- Retail space in the Plan Area is generally located within three shopping centers and makes up about 75 percent of the Plan Area's total retail inventory.
- The following summarizes the amount of commercial and industrial square footage and asking lease rates in the Plan Area:

Land Use	Total Square Feet (SF)	Average Asking Lease Rate (1)
Office	156,000 SF	\$2.02/SF (FSG)
Industrial	245,000 SF	\$0.88/SF (NNN)
Retail/Restaurant	167,000 SF	\$1.52/SF (NNN)

Table 5-2: Commercial and Industrial Space in Plan Area, 2011

(1) Full-service gross (FSG) is defined as a type of rental rate in which the cost of taxes, insurance, and maintenance is included in the rent. Triple net (NNN) is defined as a type of rental rate in which the tenant assumes the cost for taxes, insurance, and maintenance in addition to the base rental rate.

Source: CoStar Group, Inc.

- Retail sales have decreased in nearly all retail categories within the Southeastern and Encanto Community Plan Areas (CPAs), City, and County. The retail sales import/export (leakage) model for the Southeastern San Diego and Encanto CPAs combined indicate a leakage of approximately \$130 million per year.
- The following presents a summary of KMA's space demand analysis for each land use:

Table 5-3: Estimate of Space Demand in Plan Area

Demand by Land Use	Low	High
Office	63,000 SF	105,000 SF
Retail/Restaurant	21,500 SF	44,000 SF
Residential	1,100 Units	2,200 Units

• Based on the demographics and market conditions found in CPAs and the Plan Area, KMA assessed the market support for each land use in the near-, mid-, and long-term. These rankings are summarized as follows:

Market Support by Land Use	Retail/ Restaurant	Office	Residential	Industrial
Near Term (0-5 years)	Moderate	Weak	Weak	Moderate
Mid-Term (5 to 10 years)	Moderate	Weak	Moderate	Moderate
Long-Term (10 to 15+ years)	Moderate	Moderate	Moderate	Moderate

Table 5-4: Estimate of Market Support in Plan Area

MARKET AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Demographic Overview

This section reviews various demographic factors, as provided by Claritas, Inc., for a 1-, 2-, and 3-mile radius from the center point of the Plan Area (Euclid Avenue and Market Street) and compares them to the City of San Diego and County of San Diego. According to Claritas, Inc., the 1-mile radius is growing more slowly than the 2-mile radius, City, and County. Generally, households within the three radii yield lower household and per capita incomes than the City or County, have larger household sizes, and are younger in age. Key demographic and economic trends impacting the area encompassing the Plan Area are discussed below.

Population and Households

Over the last decade, population in the 1-, 2-, and 3-mile radii experienced minor average annual growth, ranging between 0.28 percent and 0.43 percent. The City experienced slightly higher growth (0.85 percent) while the County outpaced the City at 1.09 percent. According to Claritas, Inc. the 1-mile radius contains a population of about 29,000. Over the next five years, the 1- and 3-mile areas are projected to increase at a similar pace, 4.81 percent and 4.88 percent, respectively. The 2-mile radius along with the City and County are expected to increase between 5 percent and 6 percent.

Population	1-Mile	2-Mile	3-Mile	City	County
2011 Estimate	29,053	108,332	279,288	1,320,817	3,103,053
2016 Forecast	30,450	114,282	292,912	1,389,384	3,283,639
Percent Increase	4.81%	5.49%	4.88%	5.19%	5.82%

Table 5-5: Population, 2011

Source: Claritas, Inc.

There are currently an estimated 7,800 households in the 1-mile radius. Over the next five years, the number of households in the 1-, 2-, and 3-mile radii are expected to have a lower increase in households (between 4.4 and 4.9 percent) compared to the City and County. The City and County are expected to increase by about 6 percent through 2016. The average size of households in the 1-, 2-, and 3-mile radii is significantly larger than those of the City or the County. The radii range between 3.6 and 3.7 persons per household while the City contains an average household size of 2.6 and the County at 2.8.

Households	1-Mile	2-Mile	3-Mile	City	County
2011 Estimate	7,822	29,103	76,762	487,221	1,089,831
2016 Forecast	8,166	30,548	80,289	516,711	1,158,934
Percent Increase	4.40%	4.97%	4.59%	6.05%	6.34%

Table 5-6: Households, 2011

Source: Claritas, Inc.

Age Distribution

The large sized households and young population are indicators that the area is generally made up of families with young children. The 1-, 2-, and 3-mile areas have a relatively young population when compared to the City and County. According to Claritas, Inc., the current median age for the three areas ranges between 28 and 30 years of age, while the City and County hover at about 35 years of age. The 1-mile radius has a significantly higher proportion of population under the age of 17 (approximately 34 percent), when compared to the City and County at 23 percent and 25 percent, respectively.

Race and Ethnicity

Southeastern San Diego in general is a racially and ethnically diverse community as evidenced by the demographics for the 1-, 2-, and 3-mile areas. According to Claritas, Inc., one-third of the population in the 1-mile radius is made up of Persons of Some Other Race Alone, followed by the African American population (26 percent), and White population (25 percent). The 1-mile area also contains an approximately 57 percent Hispanic population. The demographics for the 2-mile and 3-mile radius are similar to the 1-mile radius, but have a higher proportion of Asian residents (15 to 16 percent) and a lower percentage of African American residents (13 to 18 percent). The City and County have similar demographics, with the largest amount of White population (58 to 63 percent) and a Hispanic population of approximately 30 percent to 32 percent, respectively.

Income

Residents within the 1-mile radius of the Plan Area have a median household income of about \$35,000, which is approximately 40 percent lower than the median income for the City (\$58,000) and the County (\$60,000). Residents in the 2- and 3-mile areas have similar median household incomes of about \$40,000. Per capita income in the 1-mile area (\$12,500) is substantially lower than the City (\$29,800) and County (\$28,700).

Approximately 20 percent of households in the 1-mile radius earn annual incomes of \$15,000 or less. By comparison, the proportion of households in the City and County earning less than \$15,000 is lower than the 1-mile area and ranges between 9 and 11 percent, respectively.

Overall, 85 percent of households in the 1-mile radius earn below \$75,000 in annual income. The 2- and 3-mile areas have a slightly lower proportion of households earning less than \$75,000 or about 81 percent.

Household Income	1-Mile	2-Mile	3-Mile	City	County
Less Than \$15,000	19.8%	16.0%	15.9%	10.7%	9.3%
Less Than \$75,000	84.6%	81.2%	80.5%	62.4%	61.5%
Median Household Income	\$35,078	\$39,479	\$39,750	\$58,173	\$60,140

Table 5-7: Household Income, 2011

Source: Claritas, Inc.

Employment

KMA evaluated employment by industry (place of work), as provided by Claritas, Inc., for the 3mile radius as compared to the County. As of 2010, the 3-mile radius contains a total of 42,251 jobs. Based on the current population, the 3-mile area's jobs to resident ratio was 0.15, as compared to 0.39 in the County. The survey of employment by industry finds that the largest employment sector within the 3-mile radius is in the retail trade industry (24.3 percent), followed by professional and business services (16.8 percent), educational services (16.2 percent) and health and social services (14.3 percent).

According to the California Employment Development Department, 2010 closed with the County having 1.2 million jobs. The largest employment sectors in the County are government (18.5 percent), professional and business services (17 percent), leisure and hospitality (12.7 percent), and retail trade (10.7 percent). Since 2000, the County has added 26,000 jobs. The largest increase in jobs was in the leisure and hospitality sector, which may be attributable to several key developments including the expansion of the San Diego Convention Center, development of PETCO Park, and construction of more than 4,000 hotel rooms in downtown San Diego. The largest decreases in employment occurred in manufacturing (30,200 jobs), financing, insurance, and real estate (14,700 jobs), and construction (14,200 jobs).

Residential Market Overview

From 2006 forward, the national housing market has suffered substantial declines in pricing and sales activity. As a result, new ownership housing development slowed considerably. As the economy begins to slowly improve and mortgage interest rates remain at historically low levels, the for-sale housing market has begun to experience slight increases in home sales.

Likewise, demand in the national apartment and rental housing market is expected to strengthen, due in part to stricter single-family and condominium lending standards. In the long-term, there are strong fundamentals supporting attached housing development in in-fill locations. Scarcity of land, rising housing costs, and the increase in non-family households will continue to generate

demand for townhomes and condominiums. One trend that is expected to continue in the multifamily housing market is affordable housing due to the financial benefits (such as tax credits and other financing vehicles) that it offers developers. However, due to the state of the current economy and fiscal crisis locally and Statewide, sources of financial assistance are limited and/or highly competitive.

Similar to the national housing market, the Southern California housing market seemed to have hit bottom and the recovery is expected to be sluggish. According to the real estate brokerage firm of Grubb & Ellis, development will continue to be slow due to the scarcity of developable land, high construction costs, and underwriting difficulties. However, a modest increase in new home construction, mainly for single-family homes, is expected.

Local Market Conditions

During the housing boom preceding the current downturn, new housing production in San Diego County was concentrated in Downtown San Diego, eastern Chula Vista, and the State Route (S.R.) 56 communities in the City of San Diego. The San Diego housing market was hit particularly hard by the national housing downturn, with many development proposals and entitlements put on hold. However, the long-term outlook for San Diego's multi-family market remains positive due to numerous barriers to entry, including high land costs, a large rental population, and extremely limited new multi-family development sites. Low vacancy rates, stricter lending requirements for homebuyers, and changing demographics have increased demand for rental housing.

The majority of Southeastern San Diego's housing supply consists of older single-family homes. The majority of the Encanto neighborhood's remaining developable acres is reserved for single-family development. SANDAG's 2009 estimate of vacant acres for residential development for the Encanto neighborhoods is about 171 acres, distributed as 147 for single-family development and 24 acres for multi-family. This assessment includes parcels that are not developed, are not under construction, and currently do not have any plans for development.

The 1-mile area has about 8,100 residential units. Based on the residential inventory in the 1-mile radius, a little over half of the housing is single-family, similar to the County's inventory. The City's inventory is slightly lower than the rest of the County, presumably due to the large amount of multi-family units produced in downtown San Diego during the housing boom five years ago.

Housing Inventory	1-Mile	2-Mile	3-Mile	City	County
Single-Family	51.4%	58.3%	54.5%	46.3%	51.8%
Multi-Family	44.0%	38.2%	43.9%	52.5%	44.3%
Other (1)	4.6%	3.5%	1.6%	1.2%	3.9%
Totals	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%
Median Year Built	1965	1967	1966	1975	1977

Table 5-8: Housing Inventory, 2011

(1) Includes mobile homes.

Source: Claritas, Inc.

Based on the tenure of occupied housing units in the 1-mile area, it appears that the Plan Area contains a high concentration of renters, similar to the County. The City seems to be split about 50/50, half owner-occupied and half renter-occupied, while the County has a larger proportion of owner-occupied units.

Household Tenure	1-Mile	2-Mile	3-Mile	City	County
Owner-Occupied	44.3%	50.5%	44.2%	49.5%	56.1%
Renter-Occupied	55.7%	49.2%	55.8%	50.5%	43.9%
Totals	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%	100.0%

Table 5-9: Household Tenure, 2011

Source: Claritas, Inc.

According to DataQuick, the current median home price for a resold single-family detached home in the Central San Diego submarket (as of April 2011) is \$385,000. The Plan Area is located within the 92114 zip code with the balance of the Southeastern San Diego community occupying the 92102 and 92113 zip codes. The 92114 zip code contains a median home price of \$230,000. The 92114 zip code ranked third to last in terms of median home price among the other zip codes in the Central San Diego submarket. Single-family home sales in the 92114 zip code have decreased nearly 47 percent since 2005, while the Central San Diego submarket decreased by approximately 28 percent.

In terms of condominium resales, the current median home price in the Central San Diego submarket is \$250,000. The 92114 zip code contains a median home price of \$162,500. Condominium median home sales in the Encanto neighborhood have decreased 63 percent since 2005, while the Central San Diego submarket decreased by approximately 41 percent.

According to a survey conducted by MarketPointe Realty Advisors, the Southeastern San Diego community has an average monthly rent of \$1,080, approximately 24 percent lower than the County's average. Vacancy in Southeastern San Diego is at a 5.5 percent, slightly higher than the County (5.1 percent).

Area	Monthly Rent	SF	Rent Per SF	Vacancy	Number of Units
Southeastern San Diego (1)	\$1,080	857 SF	\$1.26	5.5%	1,467 Units
San Diego County	\$1,335	869 SF	\$1.54	5.1%	118,009 Units

Table 5-10: Comparison of Apartment Market Conditions, March 2011

(1) Includes the communities of Golden Hill, Lincoln Park, Mount Hope, Paradise Hills, Southcrest, and Southeastern San Diego, as defined by MarketPointe Realty Advisors, Inc.

Source: MarketPointe Realty Advisors, Inc.

A survey from CoStar Comps, Inc. reveals that apartment building sales from January 2009 to the present yield a median value of \$87,500 per residential unit. Cap rates generally range between 6.0 and 9.0 percent, with a median cap rate of 7.1 percent. A cap rate is defined as the percentage number used to determine the current value of a property based on estimated future operating income. The sales ranged between \$41,000 and \$310,000 per unit. The highest sale occurred in January 2010 for a development built in 2008 in the Barrio Logan neighborhood. Based on the survey, the majority of the apartment buildings are older in age (average 1956) and built prior to 1990.

While the Plan Area has experienced growth in commercial and industrial space over the last decade, very little new residential development has come to fruition. The Plan Area is encompassed within the Central Imperial Redevelopment Project Area. The Southeastern Economic Development Corporation (SEDC) was created in 1981 by the City of San Diego to manage all redevelopment and economic development activities within the southeastern San Diego community, and more specifically four projects areas. Through proposals from various developers and SEDC's projection of housing production, the Central Imperial Project Area has an anticipated 1,300 residential units proposed for development through 2020. The majority of the proposed residential developments are expected to be multi-family rental and contain affordable housing.

The JCNI has a conceptual development program titled The Village at Market Creek for a portion of the Plan Area along Market Street extending from 47th Street (western boundary) to nearly 54th Street (eastern boundary). Of the 1,300 residential units proposed, The Village at Market Creek is expecting to construct 1,000 of those residential units.

Office Market Overview

The national residential market downturn likely contributed to decreased office space demand from related users, e.g., mortgage, title, escrow companies, lenders, and investors. While the residential downturn was likely the initial cause of the decreased demand for office space, the recession that followed was a major contributing factor for increased vacancies in office space as many businesses downsized or shut their doors permanently. As businesses downsized or closed, the inventory of sublease space put additional downward pressure on rental rates for Class A and B office space. (Based on the Building Owners and Managers Association International's rating system, Class A and B office space facilities typically are considered good to premier and have rents that are above the average for the region.) Regardless of the rental rate decreases, many firms are avoiding major expenditures in regards to long-term space.

Local Market Conditions

According to Cushman and Wakefield, the San Diego County office market comprises approximately 72.6 million SF of space. The County office market is the weakest it has been in more than a decade, with an overall vacancy of 16.8 percent and negative absorption. The Downtown office market comprises about 15 percent of the County's total office space. Although it is the largest office submarket in the County, it is not dominant. In the recent past, the strongest office submarkets in the County have been in the I-5 and I-15 corridors in North County, where major high tech employment is located. In addition, the submarkets of Mission Valley, Sorrento Mesa, Kearny Mesa, University City, Del Mar Heights and Carlsbad each have significant concentrations of space each ranging from four million to nine million SF.

Construction of office development in the County is nominal – Rancho Bernardo is the only submarket in the County currently constructing office space (83,000 SF). The real estate brokerage firm of Cushman and Wakefield reported at the end of the 1st quarter 2011 that the County had an average asking rental rate of \$2.17 per SF full-service gross (FSG). (FSG is a rental agreement where the landlord assumes the payment of all real estate taxes, building insurance and maintenance.) High vacancy rates are being experienced throughout the County and are most likely attributable to businesses downsizing or closing.

A survey based on Loopnet.com, finds there to be approximately 86,000 SF of office space for lease in the Southeastern San Diego area. The average asking lease rate is \$1.50 per SF per month. Due to the limited number of office building sales in the Southeastern San Diego area, KMA's survey included the City of National City which has comparable office space to the Southeastern San Diego area. According to CoStar Group, Inc., office building sales in Southeastern San Diego and National City from January 2010 to the present ranged between \$76 and \$163 per SF of building area. There were no office building sales in Southeastern San Diego in 2009.

As identified by the CoStar Group, Inc., there is currently about 156,000 SF of office space in the Plan Area. Asking lease rates are at \$2.02 per SF per month (FSG). The office space is housed within eight office developments which are scattered throughout the Plan Area.

Area	SF	Rent Per SF	Vacancy
Plan Area	156,000 SF	\$2.02	2.7%
San Diego County	72,610,000 SF	\$2.17	16.8%

Source: Cushman and Wakefield; CoStar Group, Inc.

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

The four largest employment sectors in a 3-mile radius of the Plan Area are retail trade, professional and business services; educational services, and health and social services. These four categories comprise 71.6 percent of the area's employment. With the exception of retail trade, these industry categories can often inhabit flex space which allows flexibility to be utilized as office or industrial space, such as business service providers, education, heath care, etc.

SANDAG's 2009 estimate of vacant acres for employment development for the Encanto neighborhoods is 9 acres. Employment land is defined as land designated for light and heavy industrial, warehousing, public storage, wholesale trade, or office space. This assessment includes parcels that have zoning and entitlements in place but do not have any infrastructure improvements to the property.

The Southeastern San Diego Area has one main office/flex industrial business park, Gateway Center East Business Park. Gateway Center East Business Park was developed from a 66-acre area of excess cemetery land which was owned primarily by the City of San Diego. Gateway Center East Business Park contains about 507,000 SF, of which approximately 43,000 SF is medical office space. The only new office space constructed in the last five years is the JCNI three-story office building containing approximately 75,000 SF. The building, named Joe and Vi Jacobs Center, is 100 percent leased to non-profit tenants. With the exception of the Joe and Vi Jacobs Center, the Plan Area has limited traditional format office space.

The JCNI Village at Market Creek conceptual development program, as currently proposed, is projecting to develop approximately 153,000 SF of office development. JCNI has two entitled development sites that may yield up to 73,000 SF of office development. This office development is expected to be developed within the next five years.

Industrial Market Overview

Similar to the office market, the national residential market downturn likely contributed to decreased industrial space demand from related users, e.g., homebuilders, textile industry, home furnishings. The nation's economy is expected to make a healthy recovery after these difficult years. The industrial sector is anticipated to recover stronger than the other real estate sectors as employment and demand rises which will lead to manufacturing output and growth in the shipment of goods. Vacancy rates are projected to decrease as demand rises and there is little to no new construction of industrial space.

Local Market Conditions

According to Cushman and Wakefield, the San Diego County industrial market contains 55.2 million SF of research and development (R&D) space and 137.4 million of manufacturing/warehouse space for a total of 192.6 million SF. As of the 1st quarter of 2011, the County had an average asking rental rate of \$0.84 per SF triple net (NNN). The vacancy rate was measured at 11.5 percent. The largest submarkets for industrial space in the County are Miramar,
Kearny Mesa, and Otay Mesa. Approximately 29 percent of the total industrial space in the County is R&D space. The submarkets with the largest amount of R&D space are Sorrento Mesa, Carlsbad, and Kearny Mesa.

A survey of asking lease rates for industrial properties in Southeastern San Diego reveals that there is approximately 326,000 SF of industrial space available with an average asking lease rate of \$0.71 per SF. According to CoStar Group, Inc., industrial buildings in Southeastern San Diego and the adjacent City of National City between January 2009 and the present sold for a low of \$79 to a high of \$313 per SF of building. The median price per SF of building was \$118. According to CoStar Group, Inc., there is currently about 245,000 SF of industrial space in the Plan Area. Asking lease rates are at \$0.88 per SF per month (NNN).

Area	SF	Rent Per SF	Vacancy
Plan Area	245,000 SF	\$0.88	2.7%
San Diego County	192,671,000 SF	\$0.84	11.5%

Table 5-12: Comparison of Industrial Market Conditions, 1st Quarter 2011

Source: Cushman and Wakefield; CoStar Group, Inc.

Industrial space in the Plan Area is mainly concentrated along Market Street and east of Euclid Avenue. However, there are several industrial properties between 47th Street and Euclid Avenue that are intermixed with other land uses. As referenced in the office market section, SANDAG's 2009 estimate of vacant acres for employment development for the Encanto neighborhoods is a mere 9 acres. There have been very few industrial developments over the last decade in the Southeastern San Diego community. The Har-Bro industrial development located along Market Street at 54th Street and east of Euclid Avenue was completed in 2007. The Har-Bro industrial development contains approximately 30,000 SF.

SEDC currently owns the 14.8-acre Valencia Business Park site along Imperial Avenue and the San Diego Trolley line in the Central Imperial Redevelopment Project Area. Constructed in 2004, the Valencia Business Park site currently houses a U.S. Post Office. Development for the balance of the site has yet to be determined.

The JCNI Village at Market Creek conceptual development program, as currently proposed, is projecting to develop approximately 23,000 SF of industrial development. This industrial space is expected to be developed within the next five years.

Retail/Restaurant Market Overview

Commercial real estate markets are experiencing a high level of uncertainty, dysfunction and lack of confidence due to the national recession and credit crisis. Problems originally concentrated in the housing market have spread to other land use sectors, with new real estate development of all types grinding to a halt. The retail sector is particularly impacted, with consumer spending at its lowest level in years, and retail landlords struggling to find or retain tenants. Given the current and anticipated near-term economic climate, it is difficult to be optimistic about demand for new real estate development within a reasonable planning horizon. However, many regional economists project the beginning of a market turnaround in Southern California within the next two years.

Local Market Conditions

Overall, San Diego experienced the impact of the economic downturn first-hand as evidenced by the closings of The Sharper Image, Mervyn's, Linens 'n' Things, Circuit City, and various Starbucks locations. Even as corporate retailers have scaled back or shuttered a number of their stores, small "mom & pop" stores have been able to take advantage of the current market conditions. The current vacancy rates and lower rents have provided them with leasing opportunities in markets that were previously inaccessible. Similarly, even amidst the challenging economy, Wal-Mart, dollar stores and other discount retailers are doing quite well and have been able to capture market share from their upscale competitors.

The growth in baby boomer, senior, and immigrant populations is increasing the demand for mixed-use destinations with active pedestrian environments that offer specialty stores, eating and drinking and entertainment destinations. In order to capitalize on this demand, regional retail centers are being re-positioned as "lifestyle centers" emphasizing apparel, home goods, books and music stores in combination with restaurants and entertainment in an open-air, "main street" environment. Locally, many of the regional malls throughout the County are undergoing expansion, renovation and re-tenanting to remain competitive.

The San Diego County retail market contains a total of 68.7 million SF. CB Richard Ellis reported at the end of the 1st quarter 2011 that the County had an average asking rental rate of \$1.96 per SF triple net (NNN). The vacancy rate was measured at 7.1 percent. The Chula Vista/Bonita and East Chula Vista submarkets combined rank first in terms of largest retail submarket, which is no surprise considering the vast retail development that has occurred in eastern Chula Vista over the last decade.

A survey of asking lease rates for retail space in Southeastern San Diego reveals that there is approximately 49,000 SF of retail space available with an average asking lease rate of \$1.46 per SF.

According to CoStar Group, Inc., retail buildings in Southeastern San Diego and the adjacent City of National City between January 2009 and the present sold for a low of \$85 to a high of \$499 per SF building. The median price per SF of building was \$209.

Area	SF	Rent Per SF	Vacancy
Plan Area	167,000 SF	\$1.52	9.1%
San Diego County	68,674,000 SF	\$1.96	7.1%

Table 5-13: Comparison of Retail Market Conditions, 1st Quarter 2011

Source: CB Richard Ellis; CoStar Group, Inc.

Based on data from the CoStar Group, Inc., there is approximately 167,000 SF of retail/restaurant space in the Plan Area. Asking lease rates are at \$1.52 per SF per month (NNN). There are essentially three shopping centers in the Plan Area: Market Creek Plaza, Euclid Plaza, and an untitled center at 47th and Market Streets. Euclid Plaza is a 28,000-SF center built in 1990 including small fast food restaurants, personal retail services, and health care related businesses. Current asking lease rates at Euclid Plaza are at \$1.00 per SF NNN. The center at 47th and Market Streets is approximately 26,000 SF and was built in 1991. The center contains several food-related businesses, and business and personal service type tenants.

In 2001, the JCNI, constructed Market Creek Plaza, which contains approximately 75,000 SF and is anchored by a Food-4-Less grocery store. Prior to the construction of Market Creek Plaza, the area was in desperate need of a full-service supermarket and did not have a single sit-down restaurant. Market Creek Plaza delivered and built the grocery store, a sit-down restaurant, several fast food restaurants, and business and personal service type tenants. The center is currently 100 percent leased with recently leased space for the new Felix's BBQ With Soul restaurant beginning at \$1.25 per SF.

Market Creek Plaza was the first phase of the JCNI Village at Market Creek conceptual development program. JCNI is projecting to develop approximately 312,000 SF of commercial space. This large amount of commercial space will be built on multiple sites along Market Street and is anticipated to be developed over the next ten years.

Of the 312,000 SF of commercial space, the JCNI is expecting to begin construction in early 2012 on an approximately 15,000-SF Walgreens drug store. The Plan Area and Southeastern San Diego, east of Interstate 805, do not currently have a drug store.

Taxable Retail Sales

KMA evaluated the strength of sales exhibited by retail uses for the Southeastern San Diego and Encanto Community Plan Areas (CPAs combined) from 2005 to 2010 in comparison to the taxable retail sales for the City and County. Retail sales categories analyzed include:

Retail Category	Definition			
General Merchandise	Variety stores, department stores, and general merchandise			
Comparison Goods	Apparel stores, home furnishings and appliances, and specialty goods			
Convenience Goods	Food stores, grocery stores with or without alcohol, drug stores, and packaged liquor stores			
Eating and Drinking	Restaurants with or without liquor			
Home Improvement	Lumber/building materials, hardware stores, plumbing/electrical supplies, and farm construction equipment			
Automotive Outlets	New and used auto dealers, service stations, and auto supplies			
Other Retail Stores	Second-hand stores, garden supplies, watercraft dealers, airplane dealers, fuel and ice dealers			

Table 5-14: Definitions by Retail Category

Due to the limited amount of retail establishments in the CPAs and the State Board of Equalization's minimum threshold requirements for release of sales tax information, the following retail categories were combined: Comparison Goods, Convenience Goods, and Home Improvement. For purposes of KMA's analysis, these categories are referenced as Aggregated Confidential within the technical analysis.

Due to economic conditions, retail sales have decreased in nearly all retail categories within the CPAs, City, and County. In 2010, the population in the CPAs spent approximately 22.3 percent of their per capita income on retail goods and services. By comparison, population in the City and County spent about 46 to 47 percent of their per capita income on retail goods and services. Retail sales on a per person basis in the CPAs are significantly lower than those of the City and County. This is likely due to the lack of retail shops and services within the CPAs. The retail sales generated in the CPAs equate to 2.4 percent of the City's total retail sales.

Area	Sales Per Person (2010)	Sales as Percent of Per Capita Income
Southeastern San Diego and Encanto CPAs	\$3,286	22.3%
San Diego City	\$11,120	47.1%
San Diego County	\$10,576	46.1%

SUPPORTABLE DEMAND BY LAND USE

Retail/Restaurant Demand Analysis

Demand from Existing Residents (Retail Sales Leakage Analysis)

Based on the low amount of sales on a per person basis, it is evident that the CPAs are experiencing a leakage (or export) of retail sales. Leakage refers to purchases made by residents in the CPAs outside of CPAs' boundaries; the sales are "leaked" out to other communities. From this analysis, it appears that there is retail sales leakage of approximately \$130 million per year from the CPAs.

KMA prepared a retail sales import/export (leakage) model for the CPAs to determine how much in retail/restaurant space can be recaptured in the CPA and further recaptured in the Plan Area. Essentially, the methodology employed consists of estimating the total potential retail expenditures of the CPAs' population, and then deducting the actual retail sales achieved within the CPAs.

KMA calculated the amount of potential retail expenditures by analyzing spending ratios in the City and County relative to population and per capita income. KMA then deducted from that total potential retail sales figure the actual 2010 retail sales for each retail category as provided by MuniServices to the City of San Diego

Based upon KMA's estimated capture rates for the Plan Area, KMA finds that approximately 3,300 to 7,900 SF of retail/restaurant space can be recaptured within the Plan Area.

Demand from New Residents

Growth in retail space demand is dependent upon the increase of population in a given market area and the amount a person spends within the various retail sectors. The Plan Area possesses a competitive advantage in capturing demand growth due to the lack of existing national credit retailers, younger population, larger families, and accessibility to transit. The largest disadvantages for the Plan Area are the lower income households and the lack of daytime population.

KMA's retail space demand analysis for the Plan Area consists of the following steps:

• Claritas, Inc.'s projection of population growth within a 3-mile radius of the Plan Area (further projected by KMA to 2030) and the average per capita income for 2011 provide the basic inputs into the demand forecast. With an increase of 55,000 residents through 2030 and an average per capita income of approximately \$14,400, the increase in personal income within the 3-mile radius of the Plan Area is estimated to be \$797 million through 2030.

- To determine the low and high scenarios of estimated personal spending within the Plan Area, KMA applied the following:
 - KMA estimated per capita income to spending by retail category based upon the percent of retail sales for each category for the CPAs and City in 2010.
 - KMA estimated capture rates ranging between of 1.5 to 5.0 percent for each retail category for the Plan Area to determine estimated annual spending. Capture rates of 2.0 to 5.0 percent were used to estimate annual spending in restaurants. The capture rates were based on the Plan Area's percent share of the City's taxable retail sales for each retail category.
- The estimated growth in retail and restaurant spending is then converted to retail and restaurant space demand by applying industry standards of estimated sales productivity per SF for each category. For retail space, estimated sales productivity ranged from \$350 to \$400 per SF. For restaurant space, estimated sales productivity is assumed at \$400 per SF.

KMA estimates that the Plan Area is able to support additional retail development in the range of 13,300 to 22,100 SF from new residents through 2030. In addition, KMA estimates that the Plan Area can also support between 1,200 to 3,000 SF of restaurant space through 2030.

Demand from New Office Workers

KMA also analyzed projections of new office workers and their potential spending within the Plan Area to determine additional office-worker supported retail and restaurant space within the Plan Area through 2030.

KMA estimates that new office workers the Plan Area are able to support additional retail and restaurant development in the range of 3,700 to 11,000 SF to 2030, of which 2,800 SF to 8,400 SF is for retail and 900 SF to 2,600 SF is for restaurant space.

Summary of Retail/Restaurant Space Demand

The following presents a summary of the retail space demand analysis as described above:

Retail Space Demand	Low	High
Existing Residents	2,800 SF	6,500 SF
New Residents	13,300 SF	22,100 SF
New Office Workers	2,800 SF	8,400 SF
Total Retail Space Through 2030	18,900 SF	37,000 SF

Table 5-16: Estimate of Retail Space Demand Through 2030

CHAPTER 5: MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

The following presents a summary of the restaurant space demand analysis:

Restaurant Space Demand	Low	High
Existing Residents	500 SF	1,400 SF
New Residents	1,200 SF	3,000 SF
New Office Workers	900 SF	2,600 SF
Total Restaurant Space Through 2030	2,600 SF	7,000 SF

 Table 5-17: Estimate of Restaurant Space Demand Through 2030

Office Demand Analysis

KMA estimated office space demand within the Plan Area based on the estimated number of new employees and potential capture of future office space for the 3-mile radius. The steps taken are summarized as follows:

- KMA estimated the growth of new employees within the 3-mile radius based on average annual growth rates by industry in San Diego County between 2000 and 2010. A total of approximately 56,000 employees will work within the 3-mile radius by 2030, representing a growth of an estimated 14,000 new jobs. Much of the new employment is expected to occur in the educational, healthcare and social services, and retail trade industries.
- KMA then applied a percentage to each employment category that would likely occupy office space.
- Given these percentages, KMA then calculated the number of new office users that would demand office space from each employment category to 2030. The results show that approximately 8,400 new employees within the 3-mile radius will need office space.
- To estimate the amount of office square footage needed to accommodate the increase in new office users in the 3-mile radius, KMA estimates that each new office user will need 250 SF of office space. A total of approximately 2.1 million SF of space is needed within the 3-mile radius.
- KMA estimates that the Plan Area could potentially capture 3 to 5 percent of the 3-mile radius' new office space demand through 2030, as the Plan area becomes a more mixed-use environment due to new development, enhanced amenities, access, and services.

Based on the methodology described above, projected office space demand for the Plan Area is estimated to range between 63,000 SF (low) and 105,000 SF (high) of office space demand through 2030.

Residential Demand Analysis

Based on SANDAG's housing unit average annual growth rate for the City of San Diego, the City is projected to contain a total of approximately 629,500 housing units through 2030, an increase of about 160,000 new units from 2000, or 0.98 percent annually.

The Plan Area represents 1.5 percent of the City's total housing units. Based on the Plan Area's current capture of Citywide housing units, KMA estimates the Plan Area will continue to capture 1 percent (low) to 2 percent (high) of the City's 160,000 new housing units. On this basis, KMA anticipates that the Plan Area can support a total of approximately 1,100 to 2,200 units through 2030.

Industrial Demand Analysis

While KMA believes there is demand for light industrial development, it is difficult to project demand for industrial development in the Plan Area. The demand for industrial development is a function of several variables that are inherently different from the variables that affect market demand for residential or commercial uses. Commercial uses are driven primarily by demographics and the population's purchasing habits. Industrial markets, on the other hand, are linked to cost factors, such as land, capital, and access to supporting industry (i.e., goods and services sometimes considered "clustering" or sometimes parts of the supply-chain).

As industrial development sites are built-out in Southeastern San Diego and industrial businesses located in Downtown San Diego are forced into surrounding communities, the demand for industrial space will become greater. KMA believes any new industrial development should be focused along Market Street, east of Euclid Avenue, and adjacent to the existing industrial inventory as to not affect community cohesion.

ASSESSMENT OF MARKET POTENTIAL

This section summarizes the Plan Area's key strengths and weaknesses with respect to the market potential, supply, and demand for a range of land uses. The KMA assessment is based on review of demographic and economic trends and market support factors for retail/restaurant, office, residential, and industrial uses.

<u>Strengths</u>

• *Master Development Plan:* Jacobs Center for Neighborhood Innovation (JCNI) has acquired, assembled, entitled, and prepared a conceptual plan for key development sites. Implementation of the JCNI plan has already begun with developments such as Market Creek Plaza and the Joe and Vi Jacobs Center.

- *Redevelopment Project Area:* Located within the Central Imperial Redevelopment Project Area, SEDC may be able to assist in assembly of development sites and/or provide financial assistance.
- *Transportation:* Accessibility to various types of transportation including Interstate 805 and State Route 94 freeways, San Diego Trolley Orange line, and bus transfer station are benefits to office workers and appealing to residents.
- *Community Involvement:* Large support and involvement from the community reduce community opposition for potential new development. The existence of community gatherings and events present a welcoming environment for existing and future residents.
- *Demographics:* Higher proportion of young population and large family households can assist in attracting new retailers to the Plan Area.

<u>Weaknesses</u>

- *Development Costs:* Typically development in an urban context requires development of structured parking due to the use of small constrained sites, which significantly increases costs of construction. High cost of construction and site assembly is only supportable where buyers/renters are willing to pay a premium for urban living, which is unlikely given the current demographics (i.e., lower incomes) in the Plan Area.
- *Market Rents/Values:* Current market rents will make new development highly infeasible considering the cost of construction and acquisition of improved properties.
- *Competition from Established Nodes:* Plan Area is not recognized as an office or retail destination as there is significant competition in other areas south of Interstate 8.
- *Retail/Entertainment:* Retail and entertainment uses in the Plan Area are limited, which provides a weak base for future retail/entertainment and/or similar uses to locate in the Plan Area.
- *Demographics:* Low household incomes in the Plan Area are a disincentive for many new retailers and retail developers. Household income and spending potential for households within the 1-mile radius is weak relative to the City and County medians.

Development Opportunities and Constraints by Land Use

Due to the national credit crisis, all real estate markets are experiencing a high level of uncertainty, dysfunction, and lack of confidence. Problems originally concentrated in the housing market have spread to other land use sectors, with new real estate development of all types grinding to a halt. The retail sector is particularly impacted, with consumer spending at its lowest level in years, and retail landlords struggling to find or retain tenants. Given the current and anticipated near-term economic climate, it is difficult to be optimistic about demand for new real estate development within a reasonable planning horizon. However, many regional economists project the beginning of a market turnaround in Southern California within the next two years. In the mid- to long-term, KMA remains confident that housing demand will once again outpace

construction. Additionally, housing and mixed-use development in urban locations can be expected to appeal to a number of market segments.

Exhibit 5-1 presents KMA's findings related to opportunities and constraints by land use.

Exhibit 5-1: Overview of Development Opportunities and	unities and Constraints by Land Use		
RETAIL/RESTAURANT	OFFICE SPACE	RESIDENTIAL	INDUSTRIAL
A. POTENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES			
 Retailers such as Wal-Mart, Target, Fresh & Easy have expressed interest in the Plan Area Several sites have been identified and are in the planning stages at The Village at Market Creek along Market Street Type V construction (Type V) served by surface parking is the most cost-efficient type of construction Retailers that provide local-serving business/personal services and convenience goods Retail services to support residential development at the Euclid Avenue and Market Street and 47th Street transit stations 	 Development of local-serving employment uses to meet the needs of the current and projected population, and to provide jobs for local residents Several sites have been identified and are in the planning stages at The Village at Market Creek Potential tenant/user types could include: financial services real estate insurance medical/dental education 	 Sites have been assembled and entitled in The Village at Market Creek Entry- to mid-level ownership housing to serve working population Mixed-income or affordable senior rental developments Mixed-income or affordable senior rental developments Several financing mechanisms available to finance affordable housing (Low Income Housing Tax Credits, Redevelopment Agency assistance, etc.) Residential development at or in proximity to the Euclid Avenue and Market Street and the 47th Street transit stations 	 Light industrial site for 23,000 SF has been identified and is in planning stage at The Village at Market Creek Success from the recently constructed industrial building (Har-Bro) in the Plan Area demonstrates potential for new industrial Industrial development in the form of small-suite "flex" space would be more desirable in an urban mixed-use format
B. DEVELOPMENT CONSTRAINTS			
 Current market rents for retail development do not support cost of new construction Development of large format retailers will require substantial on-site and development mitigation costs Low household incomes within the Plan Area is a disincentive for some new retailers and retail developers due to the populations limited discretionary income 	 Countywide there is no new office construction south of Interstate 8; and Plan Area is not recognized as an office node to attract large amounts of office development do not support cost of new construction High vacancy factors throughout the County are discouraging Potentially high acquisition costs for improved properties 	 Due to the housing downturn many development proposals and entitlements have been put on hold Current home values for for-sale housing do not support cost of new construction Apartment building sales in Southeastern San Diego average a per-unit value of approximately \$88,000, well below replacement cost even for garden-style product Due to the state of the current economy and fiscal crisis locally and Statewide, sources of financial assistance are limited and/or highly competitive 	 Potentially high acquisition costs for improved properties Limited sites available for industrial development

5-23

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

SEPTEMBER 2011



6. ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ASSESSMENT

RBF

AIR QUALITY

The following summary is based upon the Air Quality analysis given in the March 2009 Final EIR for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan (Redevelopment Plan), which includes the area affected by the proposed Euclid and Market Land Use and Mobility Plan (Plan Area). The Final EIR analysis is based upon estimates of air quality emissions contained in EIR Volume II, Appendix C1 of the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan, and the Greenhouse Gas/Global Warming Risk Assessment prepared for the Project by Investigative Science and Engineering, Inc. (ISE, September 2008). When applicable, and where additional data was available, discussion of the Plan Area has been updated to better reflect existing conditions that may present potential land use conflicts.

The following table provides a brief summary of the findings described herein:

Sensitive Receptors (Air Quality)	Land uses considered to be sensitive receptors include schools, residential uses, day care centers, community centers, parks, and homes for the elderly.
Potential Constraints	Sites where hazardous conditions may pose constraints to future redevelopment are shown on Figure 6-1: <i>Sites of Potential Environmental Concern – Air Quality.</i>
	Two future CO hotspots (2030), intersections due to vehicular traffic delays associated with LOS E and F.
	Sites where known hazardous materials have been previously identified should be re-evaluated at the time redevelopment is proposed, as conditions may have changed since previous evaluation.

Existing Conditions

Climate and Meteorology

The Plan Area, like the rest of San Diego County, has a warm-summer Mediterranean climate characterized by warm, dry summers and mild, wet winters. The maximum and minimum average temperatures are 84 degrees Fahrenheit (°F) and 44°F, respectively. Precipitation in the area averages 13 inches annually, 90 percent of which falls between November and April. The prevailing wind direction is from the west-northwest with an annual mean speed of 8 to 10 miles

per hour.¹ Sunshine is usually plentiful in the Plan Area, but night and morning cloudiness is common during the spring and summer. Fog can occur occasionally during the winter.

The dominant meteorological feature affecting the region is the Pacific High Pressure Zone, which produces the prevailing westerly to northwesterly winds. These winds tend to blow pollutants away from the coast toward the inland areas. Consequently, air quality near the coast is generally better than that which occurs at the base of the coastal mountain range.

Fluctuations in the strength and pattern of winds from the Pacific High Pressure Zone interacting with the daily local cycle produce periodic temperature inversions that influence the dispersal or containment of air pollutants in the San Diego Air Basin (SDAB), in which the Plan Area is located. Beneath the inversion layer, pollutants become "trapped" as their ability to disperse diminishes. The mixing depth is the area under the inversion layer. Generally, the morning inversion layer is lower than the afternoon inversion layer. The magnitude of the change between the morning and afternoon mixing depths determines the ability of the atmosphere to disperse pollutants.

The prevailing westerly wind pattern is sometimes interrupted by regional "Santa Ana" conditions. A Santa Ana condition occurs when a strong high pressure develops over the Nevada-Utah area and overcomes the prevailing westerly coastal winds, sending strong, steady, hot, dry northeasterly winds over the mountains and out to sea.

Strong Santa Ana winds tend to blow pollutants out over the ocean and produce clear days; however, at the onset or during breakdown of these conditions or if the Santa Ana condition is weak, local air quality may degrade. In these cases, winds blow emissions from the SDAB out over the ocean, and low pressure over Baja California draws this pollutant-laden air mass southward. As the high pressure weakens, prevailing northwesterly winds reassert themselves and send these pollutants ashore in the SDAB. When this event occurs, the combination of transported and locally-produced contaminants produce the worst air quality measurements recorded in the Basin.

Sensitive Receptors

Some population groups or activities are more sensitive to substantial pollutant concentrations than others. Sensitive population groups typically include children, the elderly, and the acutely and chronically ill, especially those with cardio-respiratory diseases. Residential areas are also sensitive to air pollution because residents (including children and the elderly) tend to be at home

¹ NOAA 2006

for extended periods of time, resulting in sustained exposure to any pollutants present. Land uses considered to be sensitive receptors typically include schools, residential uses, day care centers, parks, and homes for the elderly. As such, the sighting of sensitive land uses should be considered with regard to potential land use conflicts and adverse effects on such populations.

Refer to Figure 6-1: *Sensitive Receptor Locations – Air Quality*, which identifies existing land use designations in the Plan Area in relation to potential sensitive receptors. Sensitive land uses either adjacent or within close proximity to the Project Area include a number of schools to the south, north, and west. Additionally, existing single- and multi-family residential uses are present both within and adjacent to the Plan Area. Two mobile home parks are located in the southwesterly and easterly portions of the Plan Area. The Tubman/Chavez Multi-Cultural Youth Family Center is also located within the Plan Area, and may represent a potentially sensitive receptor.

<u>Air Quality</u>

Federal

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is responsible for implementing the Federal Clean Air Act (CAA), which was first enacted in 1970 and subsequently amended numerous times. The Federal CAA established Federal air quality standards known as the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). These standards identify levels of air quality for "criteria" pollutants that are considered the maximum levels of ambient (background) air pollutants considered safe, with an adequate margin of safety, to protect the public health and welfare. The criteria pollutants are ozone (O_3), carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen dioxide (NO_2), sulfur dioxide (SO_2), particulate matter less than 10 and 2.5 micrometers in diameter (PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$, respectively), and lead.

State

Additionally, individual states can identify their own criteria pollutants, create more stringent standards, require more stringent compliance, or include different exposure periods, then establish corresponding air quality regulations at the State level. The California Air Resources Board (CARB) administers the air quality policy in California. The California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS) were established in 1969, pursuant to the Mulford-Carrell Act. These standards are generally more stringent and apply to a greater number of pollutants than the NAAQS. In addition to the criteria pollutants, the CAAQS have been established for visibility-reducing particulates, hydrogen sulfide, and sulfates.

Table 6-1: *Ambient Air Quality Standards and Air Pollution Control District Attainment Status*, gives the Federal and State threshold levels for each of the criteria pollutants. Additionally, attainment and non-attainment status is identified at both the Federal and State levels.

		California ¹		Federal ²	
Pollutant	Averaging Time	Standard ³	Attainment Status	Standards ⁴	Attainment Status
Ozone	1 Hour	0.09 ppm (180 μg/m³)	Nonattainment	NA⁵	NA⁵
	8 Hours	0.07 ppm (137 μg/m³)	Nonattainment	0.075 ppm (147 μg/m³)	Nonattainment
Deutiquiate	24 Hours	50 μg/m³	Nonattainment	150 μg/m³	Attainment
Particulate Matter (PM ₁₀)	Annual Arithmetic Mean	20 μg/m³	Nonattainment	NA ⁶	Attainment
Fine	24 Hours	No Separate	State Standard	35 μg/m³	Attainment
Particulate Matter (PM _{2.5})	Annual Arithmetic Mean	12 μg/m³	Nonattainment	15 μg/m³	Unclassified
Carbon	8 Hours	9.0 ppm (10 mg/m ³)	Attainment	9 ppm (10 mg/m ³)	Attainment
Monoxide	1 Hour	20 ppm (23 mg/m ³)	Attainment	35 ppm (40 mg/m ³)	Attainment
Nitrogen	Annual Arithmetic Mean	0.030 ppm (56 μg/m³)	NA	0.053 ppm (100 μg/m³)	Attainment
Dioxide ⁷	1 Hour	0.18 ppm (338 μg/m³)	Attainment	0.100 ppm	NA
Lood	30 days average	1.5 μg/m ³	Attainment	N/A	NA
Lead	Calendar Quarter	N/A	NA	1.5 μg/m³	Attainment

CHAPTER 6: ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ASSESSMENT

Table 6.1-1, continued

		Califo	California ¹ Federal ²		eral ²
Pollutant	Averaging Time	Standard ³	Attainment Status	Standards ⁴	Attainment Status
	Annual Arithmetic Mean	N/A	NA	0.030 ppm (80 μg/m³)	Attainment
Sulfur Dioxide	24 Hours	0.04 ppm (105 μg/m ³)	Attainment	0.14 ppm (365 μg/m³)	Attainment
	3 Hours	N/A	NA	N/A NA	
	1 Hour	0.25 ppm (655 μg/m ³)	Attainment	N/A	NA
Visibility- Reducing Particles	8 Hours (10 a.m. to 6 p.m., PST)	Extinction coefficient = 0.23 km@<70% RH	Unclassified	No Federal Standards	
Sulfates	24 Hour	25 μg/m³	Attainment		
Hydrogen Sulfide	1 Hour	0.03 ppm (42 μg/m ³)	Unclassified		
Vinyl Chloride	24 Hour	0.01 ppm (26 μg/m³)	Unclassified		

 μ g/m³ = micrograms per cubic meter; ppm = parts per million; km = kilometer(s); RH = relative humidity; PST = Pacific Standard Time. N/A = Not Applicable

Table 6.1-1, continued

- California standards for ozone, carbon monoxide (except Lake Tahoe), sulfur dioxide (1- and 24-hour), nitrogen dioxide, suspended particulate matter-PM₁₀ and visibility-reducing particles are values that are not to be exceeded. All others are not to be equaled or exceeded. California ambient air quality standards are listed in the Table of Standards in Section 70200 of Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations. In 1990, the California Air Resources Board (CARB) identified vinyl chloride as a toxic air contaminant, but determined that there was not sufficient available scientific evidence to support the identification of a threshold exposure level. This action allows the implementation of health-protective control measures at levels below the 0.010 parts per million ambient concentration specified in the 1978 standard.
- 2. National standards (other than ozone, particulate matter and those based on annual averages or annual arithmetic mean) are not to be exceeded more than once a year. EPA also may designate an area as *attainment/unclassifiable*, if: (1) it has monitored air quality data that show that the area has not violated the ozone standard over a three-year period; or (2) there is not enough information to determine the air quality in the area. For PM₁₀, the 24-hour standard is attained when the expected number of days per calendar year with a 24-hour average concentration above 150 µg/m³ is equal to or less than one. For PM_{2.5}, the 24-hour standard is attained when 98 percent of the daily concentrations, averaged over three years, are equal to or less than the standard.
- 3. Concentration is expressed first in units in which it was promulgated. Equivalent units given in parentheses are based upon a reference temperature of 25°C and a reference pressure of 760 mm of mercury. Most measurements of air quality are to be corrected to a reference temperature of 25°C and a reference pressure of 760 mm of mercury (1,013.2 millibar); ppm in this table refers to ppm by volume, or micromoles of pollutant per mole of gas.
- 4. National Primary Standards: The levels of air quality necessary, with an adequate margin of safety, to protect the public health.
- 5. The Federal 1-hour ozone standard was revoked on June 15, 2005 in all areas except the 14 8-hour ozone nonattainment Early Action Compact (EAC) areas.
- 6. The Environmental Protection Agency revoked the annual PM₁₀ standard in 2006 (effective December 16, 2006).
- 7. To attain this standard, the 3-year average of the 98th percentile of the daily maximum 1-hour average at each monitor within an area must not exceed 0.100 ppm (effective January 22, 2010).

Source: California Air Resources Board and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, February 16, 2010.

Local

The SDAB is administered by the San Diego Pollution Control District (SDAPCD). Air quality within the SDAB is largely influenced by the quality of other surrounding areas, in particular the South Coast Air Basin which includes Los Angeles, San Bernardino County, Orange County, and Riverside County. For Ozone (O_{3}), the SDAB has had a transitional-attainment status of Federal standards. With regard to Federal standards of carbon monoxide (CO), sulfur dioxide (SO₂), nitrogen dioxide (NO₂), total suspended particulate matter smaller than 10 microns in diameter (PM₁₀), and lead, the SDAB is either in attainment or unclassified. With exception of O_3 and PM₁₀, the SDAB is also in attainment of State air quality standards for all pollutants.

With regard to the Plan Area, air quality monitoring data obtained from the Downtown San Diego monitoring station (closest to the Project Area) indicates that for the years 2005 through 2008, no

air quality standards were exceeded, with the exception of the State O_3 and PM_{10} levels; refer to Table 6-2: *Local Air Quality Levels*, below.

Pollutant	California Standard	Federal Primary Standard	Year	Maximum ² Concentration	Days (Samples) State/Federal Std. Exceeded
			2005	0.074 ppm	0/0
1 h 0	0.09 ppm		2006	0.082	0/0
1-hour Ozone ¹	for 1 hour	NA ⁵	2007	0.087	0/0
			2008	0.087	0/0
			2005	0.063 ppm	0/0
8-hour Ozone ¹	0.07 ppm	0.075 ppm	2006	0.071	1/0
8-nour Ozone	for 8 hours	for 8 hours	2007	0.073	1/0
			2008	0.073	1/0
			2005	3.10 ppm	0/0
Carbon	9.0 ppm for 8 hour	9.0 ppm for 8 hour	2006	3.27	0/0
Monoxide ¹			2007	3.01	0/0
			2008	2.60	0/0
			2005	0.100 ppm	0/NA
Nitrogen	0.18 ppm	0.100 ppm	2006	0.094	0/NA
Dioxide ¹	for 1 hour	for 1 hour	2007	0.098	0/NA
			2008	0.091	0/NA
Fine			2005	44.1 μg/m	NA/NM
Particulate	No Separate	35:g/m ³	2006	63.3	NA/2.1
Matter	Standard	for 24 hours	2007	69.6	NA/8.9
(PM _{2.5}) ^{1, 4}			2008	42.0	NA/3.5
Dorticulate			2005	78.0 μg/m	5/0
Particulate Matter	50 :g/m ³	150 :g/m ³	2006	74.0	11/0
Matter (PM ₁₀) ^{1, 3, 4}	for 24 hours	for 24 hours	2007	111.00	4/0
(PIVI ₁₀)			2008	59.0	4/0

Table 6-2: Local Air Quality Levels

Source: Aerometric Data Analysis and Measurement System (ADAM), summaries from 2004 to 2008, http://www.arb.ca.gov/adam.

ppm = parts per million; PM_{10} = particulate matter 10 micrometers in diameter or less; NM = not measured; $\mu g/m^3$ = micrograms per cubic meter; $PM_{2.5}$ = particulate matter 2.5 micrometers in diameter or less; NA = not applicable.

Table 6.1-2, continued

Notes:

- 1. Data collected from the San Diego Monitoring Station- 1110A Beardsley St, San Diego CA 92112.
- 2. Maximum concentration is measured over the same period as the California Standards.
- 3. PM₁₀ exceedances are based on State thresholds established prior to amendments adopted on June 20, 2002.
- 4. PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} exceedances are derived from the number of samples exceeded, not days.
- 5. The Federal standard was revoked in June 2005.

Potential Impacts and Constraints with Regard to Air Quality

The following discussion provides an overview of potential impacts and constraints occurring with existing or anticipated future conditions within the Plan Area. The discussion is based upon the findings of the Final EIR for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan and has been updated to reflect current conditions, as appropriate, and as to the extent that data was available.

Short-Term - Construction

Future development within the Plan Area would generate emissions during the construction phase as the result of demolition of existing land uses, grading and building activities, and the use of construction-related vehicles and equipment. With all future development, and in particular with projects located adjacent to sensitive receptors, such activities would be required to be conducted consistent with all applicable Federal, State, and local standards and requirements and local standard development procedures (i.e. utilizing water or dust control agents, properly maintaining diesel-powered construction equipment, washing of trucks prior to leaving the site, etc.) intended to minimize air quality emissions to ensure that potential impacts are reduced to less than significant, or to the extent feasible. Although the scope and duration of construction activities would vary based on the size and type of any future project proposed, no specific constraints with regard to air quality were identified, as the potential effects on sensitive receptors would be reduced through adherence to standard and project-specific mitigation or design measures. Future construction activities within the Plan Area may generate emissions that would be experienced by adjacent or surrounding sensitive land uses; however, such impacts would be temporary and are not expected to be significant or to represent a constraint to future development within the Plan Area.

Potential Constraints: None identified.

Long-Term - Operation

Mobile Sources

Long-term emissions would be generated by mobile sources (motorized vehicle travel) and stationary sources (localized energy consumption), within the Plan Area. Although future development would result in additional area vehicle trips that would generate emissions, overall, continued implementation of Federal, State, and local mobile source air pollution control programs and use of clean-fueled vehicles is anticipated to result in decreases in pollution concentrations, as has occurred over the last several decades.

It is not anticipated that heavy industrial uses would be developed within the Plan Area that would potentially represent a constraint to locating sensitive land uses in the vicinity, due to emissions from operational activities. The land uses anticipated, such as light industrial, commercial, business park, institutional, or open space/parks, are not anticipated to generate significant emissions during operation that would substantially affect a large number of sensitive receptors within the Plan Area or beyond. Additionally, any emissions generated by larger-scale developments that would generate high volumes of traffic and related vehicle emissions would be required to conduct a project-specific air quality analysis to ensure that established Federal or State pollutant thresholds are not exceeded, or are reduced to the extent feasible. Additionally, all future development within the Plan Area would be required to conform to applicable Federal, State, and local regulations, as well as City of San Diego General Plan goals and policies and mitigation measures given in the Final Program EIR for the City General Plan to reduce air quality impacts, thereby minimizing potential constraints caused by emissions adversely affecting sensitive land uses.

Potential Constraints: None identified.

CO Hot Spots

Future development within the Plan Area would potentially generate traffic on area roadways and increase the exposure of sensitive receptors to carbon monoxide (CO) levels in excess of State and Federal standards, creating CO hot spots. These CO hot spots generally occur in areas where there is a poor level of service (LOS) on roadways where cars idle at heavily-utilized, congested intersections, particularly in morning hours when atmospheric conditions may restrict or otherwise affect air flows.

Presently, three intersections within the Project vicinity operate at LOS E or below and may result in the occurrence of CO hot spots. These intersections (unsignalized) include Euclid Avenue and SR 94 (Westbound Ramp) at LOS F; Euclid Avenue and SR 94 (Eastbound Ramp) at LOS E; and, 47th Street and "A" Street at LOS E. These intersections are listed in Table 6-3: *Poorly Operating Intersections*, below.

Additionally, seven intersections in the Project vicinity were identified as performing at LOS E or below and may result in the occurrence of CO hot spots, as evaluated in the Traffic Analysis prepared for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan by Rick Engineering in 2008. The LOS at each intersection was modeled for 2030 conditions, which would encompass anticipated buildout of the Plan Area. These intersections are listed in Table 3-6: *Poorly Operating Intersections*, below. Plan Area

Figure 6-1, *Sensitive Receptor Locations*, identifies the location of the CO hot spots. Three of these locations occur within the Plan area and may result in an increased potential for air quality impacts on sensitive receptors in the vicinity as future development within the Plan Area occurs. It is recommended that project-specific analyses be conducted for any future residential or other sensitive land use proposed in proximity to any of these (or other) highly congested, poorly operating intersections at the time development is proposed to determine potential effects and constraints; however, it is anticipated that mitigation measures would be implemented to reduce any impacts to less than significant, or to the extent feasible, as appropriate.

<u>*Potential Constraints*</u>: Existing (or future) CO hotspots may restrict the potential location of sensitive receptors (residential uses) within adjacent areas.

Intersections	Existing LOS (2008)	Projected LOS (Year 2030)
47 th Street/A Street	E	F
Euclid Avenue/SR 94 Interchange	E/F	F
Euclid Avenue/Market Street		F
47 th Street/Market Street		F
Imperial Avenue/47 th Street		E
Imperial Avenue/54 th Street		F
Imperial Avenue/I-805 Southbound Ramps		E

Table 6-3: Poorly Operating Intersections

Source: Rick Engineering Company, 2008.

Transit

Three bus routes operated by the Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) traverse the Plan Area: one running east/west along Market Street; one running north/south along Euclid Avenue; and, one extending east/west along Imperial Avenue. Bus travel along these routes occurs adjacent to several areas that presently support multi- and single-family land uses, which may represent potential constraints if adverse air quality conditions were to result from operation of the buses; refer to Figure 6-1, *Sensitive Receptor Locations – Air Quality*. Although such routes should be encouraged within residential areas to improve ridership and facilitate the mobility of area residents, design and/or mitigation measures may be required to reduce potential air quality impacts on planned adjacent sensitive; receptors. Such measures may entail relocating bus stops away from areas of high sensitivity; reducing the length of time buses are allowed to idle at each bus stop or staging area, or utilizing hybrid or similar vehicles with start/stop technologies to eliminate idling; and/or, actively supporting efforts to transition the entire bus fleet operated by the MTS to clean-fueled (i.e. natural gas) buses.

A trolley line (light rail) operated by the MTS runs east-west from west of I-805 through the Plan Area and to points father to the east; refer to Figure 6-1, *Sensitive Receptor Locations*. Trolley stops along this line in the Project vicinity are located just west of 47th Street and just west of Euclid Avenue and south of Market within the Plan Area; however, as the Trolley line is electric and would not generate emissions from the burning of fossil fuel sources, land use constraints with regard to air quality emissions that would affect sensitive receptors within the Plan Area are not anticipated.

It should be noted that with future development of the Euclid and Market Village Master Plan Area, an increase in density of land uses is anticipated, with a focus on increased mobility and transit-oriented development. As a result, increased trolley activity would occur within the Plan Area to encourage ridership and improve mobility of both residents and visitors. This may in turn result in an increase in traffic congestion at the grade crossing located at Euclid Avenue, as traffic would be required to stop at the intersection when the trolley is present and loading/unloading passengers. As such conditions may increase the potential effects of vehicular emissions in these areas, additional evaluation for air quality impacts may be appropriate in the future to determine conditions at that time.

<u>Potential Constraints</u>: Operation of buses along existing or planned bus routes may result in the exposure of sensitive receptors to increased emissions from buses, particularly in areas where buses would idle, or where bus travel occurs immediately adjacent to sensitive receptors (i.e. residential neighborhoods).

Greenhouse Gases

Greenhouse gases (GHGs) are defined as those gases that occur naturally and anthropogenic chemical compounds within the atmosphere that absorb and reflect infrared radiation emitted by the Earth's surface, ultimately causing a warming trend. The most abundant greenhouse gases are water vapor and carbon dioxide. Other greenhouse gases include methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and sulfur hexide. Many other trace gases have greater ability to absorb and re-radiate long wave radiation; however, these gases are not as plentiful. For this reason, and to gauge the potency of greenhouse gase, scientists have established a Global Warming Potential (GWP) for each greenhouse gas, based on its ability to absorb and re-radiate long wave radiation, and utilizing carbon dioxide as the reference gas with a GWP of one (1).

Vehicle trips associated with the Plan Area are (and would be) the greatest generator of GHGs. Based on traffic modeling performed for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan, the Project as analyzed was determined to generate 37,798 average daily trips (ADT), which would contribute 171,867.5 pounds of CO₂ emissions per day, or 1/100th of one percent of the overall daily vehicular-generated CO₂ level within the State. Additionally, Project-generated GHG emissions (CO₂) from operation of the anticipated land uses were calculated to be 42.422.7 pounds per day. The Project's contribution to GHG emissions to result in an increase in temperature within the State would be insignificant; however, because development activities would increase GHG emissions and would conflict with California Assembly Bill 32 (AB 32), which is intended to reduce GHG emissions by 25 percent by the year 2020, significant air quality impacts would occur. The generation of GHGs with future development of the Plan Area would be influenced by proximity to public transit and public services and well-designed, pedestrian-friendly neighborhoods to reduce vehicle miles traveled; however, no constraints with regard to GHG emissions were identified.

Additionally, the City's adopted General Plan has integrated goals and policies within the Conservation; Land Use and Community Planning; Mobility; Urban Design; and, Public Facilities, Services, and Safety Elements that are intended to achieve a reduction in potential cumulative impacts resulting from GHG emissions and climate change. Additionally, mitigation measures to achieve these goals and policies and reduce potential impacts are identified in the Final EIR for the City's General Plan and would be implemented, as applicable, by future development projects in the Plan Area to ensure consistency with the General Plan. Furthermore, all future development projects would be required to comply with other applicable Federal, State, and local regulations aimed at reducing GHGs to minimize cumulative effects to the extent feasible.

Potential Constraints: None identified.

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

Odors

Development of future uses within the Plan Area would have the potential to generate potential odors; however, no specific existing odor-generating uses that would result in land use constraints were identified. Certain future land uses, such as a dry cleaning establishment, may be considered on a project-specific basis by the City to determine whether the use has the potential to generate significant odors that would adversely affect surrounding sensitive receptors, thereby creating a potential conflict.

Potential Constraints: None identified.



NOISE

The following summary is based on the Noise analysis given in the March 2009 Final EIR for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan (Redevelopment Plan). The technical noise study, *Environmental Noise Study for the Proposed Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan in the City of San Diego*, prepared by Wieland Associates, Inc. (September 2006), which provided the data for the Final EIR evaluation of potential noise impacts, is included in Volume II, Appendix D, of the Final EIR. The majority of the 16 FEIR "Redevelopment Activity Areas" studied fall within the boundaries of the proposed Euclid and Market Village Master Plan Area (Plan Area). As such, they are evaluated herein to determine their potential to represent land use constraints to future redevelopment activities. When applicable, and where additional data was available, discussion of the Plan Area has been updated to better reflect existing conditions that may present potential land use conflicts.

The following table provides a brief summary of the findings described herein:

Sensitive Receptors (Noise)	 Land uses considered to be sensitive receptors include schools, residential uses, day care centers, community centers, parks, and homes for the elderly.
Potential Constraints	 Existing residential land uses along segments of Euclid Avenue, 47th Street, Imperial Avenue, 1-805, portions of Market Street, SR-94 (north and south sides), and Woodman Street experience traffic noise levels that exceed, and will continue to exceed in the future, the City's 65dB threshold.
	 Existing office land use types along 1-805, and SR-94 (north and south sides) are exposed to traffic noise levels that exceed, and will continue to exceed in the future, the City's 70dB standard.
	 Existing commercial and industrial land use types along 1-805 and SR-94 (north and south sides) are exposed to traffic noise levels that exceed, and will continue to exceed in the future, the City's 75dB standard.
	 Groundborne vibration from operation of the trolley system would exceed noise standards at 72VdB for residential uses and 75VdB for commercial uses (for more than 70 vibration events per day). These noise levels would be achieved at a distance of approximately 60 feet and 38 feet, respectively, measured from the nearest trolley tracks.
	 Interior noise levels are anticipated to potentially exceed the 45dB noise threshold at future residential uses within the Plan Area due to

manufactor to the tables line 1.005 CD 04. Manufact Street, Evalid Street
proximity to the trolley line, I-805, SR 94, Market Street, Euclid Street, Imperial Avenue, Woodman Street, and 47 th Street, and would require
appropriate distance or insulation/isolation to reduce noise levels to less than significant.
 Assuming that future commercial/retail development would include operation during the hours of 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m., when surrounding land uses would be more sensitive, significant noise levels are anticipated if mechanical equipment is located within approximately 225 feet of an R-1 residential zone, 125 feet of an R-2 residential zone, 70 feet of an R-3 or R-4 residential zone, 40 feet of a commercial zone, or 7 feet of an industrial zone.

Existing Conditions

The Plan Area is located in a highly-urbanized area within the City of San Diego. Notable sources of noise include vehicles traveling along area roadways, in particular I-805 to the west, and Market Street, Euclid Avenue, and Imperial Avenue within the Plan Area, and operation of existing uses such as commercial or industrial establishments. The San Diego Trolley also runs east-west through the central portion of the site, and generates temporary, periodic increases in area noise levels upon scheduled arrivals/departures. Additionally, ambient noise levels within the Plan Area are temporarily increased as the result of aircraft flying over the site and landing at the San Diego International Airport, located approximately five miles to the northwest of the site.

Sensitive Receptors

Some land uses are considered more sensitive to ambient noise levels than others because of the amount of noise exposure, in terms of both duration and insulation from noise, and the types of activities typically involved. Land uses considered to be sensitive typically include schools, residential uses, day care centers, and homes for the elderly. As such, the sighting of sensitive land uses should be considered with regard to potential land use conflicts and adverse effects on such populations.

Sensitive land uses either adjacent or within close proximity to the Plan Area include a number of schools to immediately adjacent and within close proximity to the south, north, and west; however, no schools are present within the Plan Area boundary. Additionally, existing single- and multi-family residential uses are present both within and adjacent to the Plan Area. Two mobile home parks are located in the southwesterly and easterly portions of the Plan Area. Other than the residential uses, no other noise sensitive land uses occur within the Plan Area.

<u>Noise</u>

The standard unit of measurement of the loudness of sound is the decibel (dB). Since the human ear is not equally sensitive to sound at all frequencies, a special frequency-dependent rating scale has been devised to relate noise to human sensitivity. The A-weighted decibel scale (dBA) performs this compensation by discriminating against frequencies in a manner approximating the sensitivity of the human ear. Community noise levels are measured in terms of the A-weighted decibel.

Decibels are based on the logarithmic scale. The logarithmic scale compresses the wide range in sound pressure levels to a more usable range of numbers in a manner similar to the Richter scale used to measure earthquakes. In general, a 1 dB change in the sound pressure levels of a given sound is detectable only under laboratory conditions. A 3 dB change in sound pressure level is considered a "just detectable" difference in most situations. A 5 dB change is readily noticeable and a 10 dB change is considered a doubling (or halving) of the subjective loudness. It should be noted that, generally speaking, a 3 dBA increase or decrease in the average traffic noise level is realized by a doubling or halving of the traffic volume, or by about a seven mile per hour increase or decrease in speed.

Many methods have been developed for evaluating community noise to account for the variation of noise levels over time, the influence of periodic individual loud events, and a community's response to changes in the community noise environment. The State Department of Aeronautics and the California Commission of Housing and Community Development have adopted the community noise equivalent level (CNEL) measure of noise exposure. This measure considers an A-weighted noise level averaged for the evening hours, 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. increased by 5dB, and the late evening and early morning hourly noise levels, 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m., increased by 10dB. Daytime noise levels are added to these weighted levels and then an average is calculated to obtain a CNEL value.

City of San Diego General Plan

The Noise Element of the City of San Diego General Plan Noise Element is intended "To protect people living and working in the City of San Diego from an excessive noise environment." The Noise Element addresses several key issue areas which include Noise and Land Use Compatibility; Motor Vehicle Traffic Noise; Trolley and Train Noise; Aircraft Noise; Commercial and Mixed-Use Activity Noise; Industrial Activity Noise; Construction, Refuse Vehicles, Parking Lot Sweepers, and Public Nuisance Noise; and, Typical Noise Attenuation Methods. Examples of suggested noise attenuation methods identified in the Noise Element are listed as Additional Measures at the end of this summary.

Additionally, the Mobility Element addresses the following issues that may affect the noise environment: Walkable Communities; Transit First; Transportation Demand Management (TDM); Bicycling; Passenger Rail; and Goods Movement/Freight.

City of San Diego Noise Ordinance

Table 6-4, below, provides the City of San Diego Noise Ordinance standards for varying land uses. Wherein the one-hour average sound level exceeds the applicable limit given in the Table 6-4, on or beyond the boundaries of the property on which the noise is produced would be considered significant.

Land Use Zone	Time of Day	One-Hour Average Sound Level (dB)
	7 AM to 7 PM	50
All R-1 residential	7 PM to 10 PM	45
	10 PM to 7 AM	40
	7 AM to 7 PM	55
All R-2 residential	7 PM to 10 PM	50
	10 PM to 7 AM	45
	7 AM to 7 PM	60
R-3, R-4, and all other residential	7 PM to 10 PM	55
	10 PM to 7 AM	50
	7 AM to 7 PM	65
All commercial	7 PM to 10 PM	60
	10 PM to 7 AM	60
Manufacturing all other industrial		
including agriculture and extractive industry	Anytime	75

Table 6-4: Sound Level Limits

Source: City of San Diego Municipal Code, Chapter 5 – Public Safety, Morals, and Welfare, Article 9.5 – Noise Abatement and Control, Division 4 – Limits (59.5.0404).

Existing Noise Levels

The greatest noise generator within the Plan Area is vehicular traffic noise. Other potential sources of noise include commercial and industrial uses, sand and gravel extraction activities, and operation of the San Diego Trolley. Measured ambient noise levels at 10 locations are shown in Table 6-5, below.

Monitoring Location #	Monitoring Location	Equivalent/Nearest Redevelopment Activity Site	Measured Noise Levels, Leq (dB(A))	
1	Adjacent to 1038 Euclid Avenue	Hilltop & Euclid Residential (#1)	60.3	
2	Adjacent to 1036 Euclid Avenue	Hilltop & Euclid Residential (#1)	71.4	
3	Adjacent to 4822 Market Street	Village Center at Euclid and Market (#3)	64.3	
4	On site – Lincoln Park Paseo Phase I Residential	Lincoln Park Paseo Phase I Residential (#4) and Imperial Avenue Master Plan (#7, west)	58.0	
5	Corner of Ocean View Boulevard and Willie James Jones Avenue	Lincoln Park Paseo – Phase II (#5)	52.1	
6	Adjacent to 325 54th Street	54th & Imperial Residential Valencia Villas (#6)	55.5	
7	Adjacent to 6219 Imperial Avenue	Imperial Avenue Master Plan (#7, east)	62.2	
8	Across from 5305 Naranja Avenue	Naranja & 53rd Street Residential (#8)	57.6	
9	Vacant property across from 420 45th Street	45th & Ocean View Residential (#9)	54.0	
10	Adjacent to 151 YMCA Way	Jackie Robinson YMCA Expansion (#10)	66.7	

Table 6-5: Ambient Noise Level Measurements

Key roadways in and around the Plan Area along which vehicle traffic generates high levels of noise include I-805, SR-94, Euclid Avenue, Imperial Avenue, 47th Street, and Market Street. Table 6-5 identifies existing traffic noise levels.

		Distance to CNEL Contour				
Arterial/Reach	Unmitigated CNEL @ 50 Feet	60 dB (ft.)	65 dB (ft.)	70 dB (ft.)	75 dB (ft.)	80 dB (ft.)
Euclid Avenue	1					
Federal to SR-94	70.0dB	300	130	50		
SR-94 to Market	68.0dB	215	90			
Market to Imperial	68.0dB	215	90			
Imperial to Logan	65.5dB	143	56			
South of Logan	64.5dB	76				
47th Street		1	1	1	1	1
Federal to SR-94	66.0dB	155	62			
SR-94 to Market	65.5dB	143	56			
Market to Imperial	66.0dB	82	57			
Imperial to Ocean View	66.0dB	82	57			
Imperial Avenue	1	1	1	1	1	1
West of I-805	69.0dB	255	110			
I-805 to Euclid	69.0dB	255	110			
Euclid to Valencia	67.5dB	200	83			
Valencia to Woodman	68.5dB	235	100			
Woodman to 69th	68.5dB	235	100			
East of 69th	67.5dB	200	83			
Interstate 805 (I-805)	1	1	1	1	1	1
SR-94 to Market	84.5dB	890	530	203	98	76
Market to Imperial	85.0dB	930	560	235	100	78

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILTY PLAN

_

Table 6-6, continued

		Distance to CNEL Contour				
Arterial/Reach	Unmitigated CNEL @ 50 Feet	60 dB (ft.)	65 dB (ft.)	70 dB (ft.)	75 dB (ft.)	80 dB (ft.)
South of Imperial	84.5dB	890	530	203	98	76
Market Street						
West of I-805	67.0dB	185	75			
l-805 to 47th	65.5dB	143	56			
47th to Euclid	64.0dB	110				
East of Euclid	67.0dB	185	75			
State Route 94 (SR-94) North Side		I	I	I	I	I
l-805 to 47th	83.0dB	770	440	140	90	69
47th to Euclid	83.0dB	770	440	140	90	69
Euclid to Kelton	83.0dB	770	440	140	90	69
State Route 94 (SR-94) South Side		1	1	1	1	1
l-805 to 47th	83.0dB	1,400	860	460		
47th to Euclid	83.0dB	1,400	860	460		
Euclid to Kelton	83.0dB	1,400	860	460		
Valencia Parkway		I	I	I	I	I
South of Imperial	63.0dB	69				
Woodman Street						
South of Imperial	65.0dB	78	50			
Source: Wieland Associates, Inc., 2006						

Additionally, the San Diego Trolley line runs through the Plan Area, generally east-west along Market Street and Imperial Avenue. The trolley generates noise within the Plan Area. Estimated CNEL generated by the trolley is 67dB at a distance of 50 feet from the tracks. Previous measurements have identified that movement of the trolley generates maximum noise levels of 70 to 85dB(A) at adjacent properties.

Operation of the trolley results in groundborne vibration, measured in terms of the velocity of the vibration oscillations. In general, groundborne vibration that exceeds 72VdB(for more than 70 vibration events per day) is typically considered as annoying to those occupying adjacent structures. Damage from vibration generally occurs when vibration levels exceed 10OVdB. Groundborne vibration associated with the trolley is estimated at 72VdB at a distance of 60 feet from the tracks.

Thresholds of Significance

According to the City of San Diego's Significance Determination Thresholds, impacts to noise would be considered significant if the project would:

- Generate temporary or periodic construction noise that exceeds 75dB during the 12-hour period from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. at or beyond the property lines of any property zoned residential;
- Generate temporary construction noise that would substantially interfere with normal business communication, or affect sensitive receptors, such as day care facilities or residential uses;
- Result or create a significant increase in the existing ambient noise levels:
- Expose people to noise levels which exceed the City's adopted noise ordinance or are incompatible as identified in Table 6-4;
- Project-related traffic at any off-site location causes the CNEL to exceed the standards identified in Table 6-7; and/or,
- Generate noise levels at the property line which exceed the City's Noise Ordinance Standards.

Structure or Proposed Use That Would Be Impacted by Traffic Noise	Interior Space	Exterior Usable Space ¹	General Indication of Potential Significance
Single-family detached	45dB	65dB	Structure or outdoor
Multi-family, schools, libraries, hospitals, day care, hotels, motels, parks, convalescent homes.	Development Services Department (DSD) ensures 45dB pursuant to Title 24	65dB	usable area ² is less than 50 feet from the corner of the closest (outside) lane on a street with existing or future ADTs greater than 7500

Table 6-7: Traffic Noise Significance Thresholds (dBA CNEL)
CHAPTER 6: ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ASSESSMENT

Structure or Proposed Use That Would Be Impacted by Traffic Noise	Interior Space	Exterior Usable Space ¹	General Indication of Potential Significance
Offices, Churches, Business, Professional Uses.	N/A	70dB	Structure or outdoor usable area ² is less than 50 feet from the corner of the closest (outside) lane on a street with existing or future ADTs greater than or equal to 20,000
Commercial, Retail, Industrial, Outdoor Spectator Sports Uses.	N/A	75dB	Structure or outdoor usable area ² is less than 50 feet from the corner of the closest (outside) lane on a street with existing or future ADTs greater than or equal to 40,000

Table 6-7, continued

Notes: 1=If a project is currently at or exceeds the significance thresholds for traffic noise described above and noise levels would result in less than a 3dB increase, then the impact is not considered significant. 2=Exterior usable areas do not include residential front yards or balconies, unless the areas such as balconies are part of the required usable open space calculation for multi-family units.

Source: City of San Diego Significance Determination Thresholds (January 2007).

Potential Impacts and Constraints with Regard to Noise

The following discussion provides an overview of potential impacts and constraints occurring with existing or anticipated future conditions within the Plan Area. The discussion is based upon the findings of the *Final EIR for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan* and has been updated to reflect current conditions, as appropriate, and as to the extent that data was available. The FEIR identified stationary noise sources associated with planned development of Redevelopment Sites 1 and 3 through 10. Sites 1, 3, 7, and 10 had one or more stationary sources that could result in significant impacts resulting from outdoor recreational activities, parking lot activities, delivery truck activities, and/or mechanical equipment.

Short-Term - Construction

Future redevelopment activities within the Plan Area would generate noise from construction activities, including demolition of existing land uses, grading, excavation, construction of new facilities, and the use of construction vehicles and equipment.

With all future development, and in particular with projects located adjacent to sensitive receptors, such activities would be required to be conducted consistent with all applicable Federal, State, and local standards and requirements and local standard development procedures intended to minimize noise levels to ensure that potential impacts are reduced to less than significant, or to the extent feasible. Construction for all future redevelopment would be required to comply with the City of San Diego Municipal Code Section 59.5.040 to ensure that established noise thresholds are not exceeded, or that significant noise impacts are reduced to the extent feasible. If future demolition, site clearing and grading, or construction activities occur at distances of less than 50 feet (demolition), 45 feet (clearing and grading), or 89 feet (construction activities), the City's noise standard of 75dB(A) would be exceeded at or beyond the property line of any property zoned residential.

Although the scope and duration of construction activities would vary based on the size and type of any future projects proposed, no specific constraints with regard to noise were identified, as the potential effects on sensitive receptors would be reduced through adherence to standard and/or project-specific mitigation or design measures. Future construction activities within the Plan Area may generate increased noise levels that would be experienced by adjacent or surrounding sensitive land uses; however, such impacts would be temporary and are not expected to be significant or to represent a constraint to future development within the Plan Area.

Potential Constraints: None identified.

Long-Term - Operation

The following noise sources would have the potential to generate significant noise levels within the Plan Area as the result of typical daily operational activities. Long-term noise would be generated by mobile sources (motorized vehicle travel) and stationary sources (operation), within the Plan Area.

Traffic Noise Levels

The Final EIR for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan indicated that existing residential land uses along segments of Euclid Avenue, 47th Street, Imperial Avenue, 1-805, portions of Market Street, SR-94 (north and south sides), and Woodman Street

experience traffic noise levels that exceeded, and will continue to exceed in the future, the City's established 65dB threshold. Similarly, existing office land use types along 1-805, and SR-94 (north and south sides) are exposed to traffic noise levels that exceed, and will continue to exceed, the City's 70dB standard. Existing commercial and industrial land use types along 1-805 and SR-94 (north and south sides) were also identified as being exposed to traffic noise levels that exceeded, and will continue to exceed, the City's 75dB standard. Refer also to Table 6-6: *Existing Traffic Noise Levels*, for potentially constrained areas with regard to noise.

Significant noise levels along these roadway segments may act as a potential constraint to future redevelopment activities within the Plan Area. As occupants in these areas would experience adverse effects of noise, current (and future) noise conditions should be considered in the planning of uses in these areas, as some uses may be more appropriate (i.e. office use versus residential). Additionally, as redevelopment would occur over future years, reassessment of the current conditions at the time when development is proposed would be required to determine if conditions have changed (i.e. worsened), or if changes in the physical landscape (i.e. large structures, walls, or landscaping that would buffer roadway noise) have occurred.

<u>Potential Constraints</u>: Noise level thresholds along segments of Euclid Avenue, 47th Street, Imperial Avenue, 1-805, portions of Market Street, SR-94 (north and south sides), and Woodman Street are currently exceeded. Future location of noise sensitive land uses along these segments would be constricted due to noise and such effects should be considered in future land use planning.

Stationary Noise Impacts

Outdoor Recreational

Future redevelopment that includes outdoor recreational uses would have the potential to increase noise levels and impacts sensitive receptors that may be adjacent to the use. Potential impacts would vary based on the type and scale of activity proposed, operating characteristics (number of users, daytime v. nighttime use, hardcourt v. playfield, etc.), and intervening topography or structures that may serve to buffer noise effects on offsite uses. Significant noise impacts would require mitigation to reduce potential noise levels to less than significant; however, such uses are not considered to represent a constraint with regard to future redevelopment of the Plan Area.

Potential Constraints: None identified.

Parking Lots

The estimated average noise level of a conversation (with raised voices) is 65dB(A) at a distance of three feet. This corresponds to an average level of approximately 41 dB(A) at a distance of 50 feet. Other typical activities would include people shouting, car doors slamming, cars idling, and cars starting or accelerating.

Parking lot activities associated with future redevelopment activities would be temporary and intermittent. The location of parking lots relative to adjacent properties would produce varying levels of noise, which may exceed City noise standards. Commercial/retail areas operating during the evening hours (7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.), when adjacent uses would be more sensitive to increases in noise, would potentially exceed the City's noise standard if a parking lot is located within approximately 175 feet of an R-1 residential zone, 95 feet of an R-2 residential zone, 55 feet of an R-3 or R-4 residential zone, 30 feet of a commercial zone, or 5 feet of an industrial zone.

Parking lot activities may potentially increase the ambient noise level by more than 3dB, which would be considered a significant impact; however, such activities would be temporary and would therefore not be considered a constraint to future land uses within the Plan Area. Implementation of Mitigation Measure N-1 would reduce potential impacts to less than significant.

Potential Constraints: None identified.

Truck Deliveries and Loading Docks

Truck deliveries and/or loading dock activities associated with future commercial, retail, and industrial areas would have the potential to increase noise levels and impact sensitive receptors within adjacent areas. Loading dock activities are estimated to generate an average noise level of 64dB(A).

Assuming that loading docks would only operate during daytime hours (7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.), such activities would exceed the City's thresholds if located within approximately 1,052 feet of an R-1 residential zone, 590 feet of an R-2 residential zone, 330 feet of an R-3 or R-4 residential zone, 190 feet of a commercial zone, or 60 feet of an industrial zone. It is anticipated that, although temporary and intermittent, loading dock activities would increase the ambient noise level by more than 3dB, and therefore, significant impacts on sensitive receptors would result.

Although effects on sensitive receptors would be reduced through mitigation and through such design measures as restricting operating hours, location of the loading dock relative to

surrounding uses and other methods, potential land use constraints with regard to future redevelopment activities are not anticipated. Implementation of Mitigation Measure N-1 would reduce impacts to less than significant.

Potential Constraints: None identified.

Mechanical Equipment

Mechanical equipment noise would be associated with commercial, retail, office, residential, and light industrial uses. Noise generated would vary based on the type of equipment used, length of use, and distance to surrounding sensitive receptors.

Utilizing available manufacturers' data, noise levels produced by typical Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) equipment (such as air conditioning or refrigeration units) are in the range of 41-58dB(A) at a distance of 50 feet. Depending on the type of equipment used and where it is located relative to nearby properties, noise levels produced by the mechanical equipment may exceed the City's standards. Assuming that future commercial/retail development would include operation during the hours of 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m., when surrounding land uses would be more sensitive, a significant impact would occur if mechanical equipment is located within approximately 225 feet of an R-1 residential zone, 125 feet of an R-2 residential zone, 70 feet of an R-3 or R-4 residential zone, 40 feet of a commercial zone, or 7 feet of an industrial zone.

Additionally, light industrial uses within the Plan Area would vary and may generate low noise levels (fabrication facilities) or high noise levels (auto repair). Therefore, it is assumed that light industrial uses would have the potential to generate high noise levels resulting in a significant impact. Implementation of Mitigation Measure N-1 would reduce such impacts to less than significant.

<u>Potential Constraints</u>: Operation of mechanical equipment would have the potential to impact sensitive noise receptors during nighttime hours if located within approximately 225 feet of an R-1 residential zone, 125 feet of an R-2 residential zone, 70 feet of an R-3 or R-4 residential zone, 40 feet of a commercial zone, or 7 feet of an industrial zone. Additionally, due to operational noise characteristics, light industrial uses should be distanced from sensitive receptors, such as residential uses.

Exterior Noise Levels

Existing and future offsite noise sources would have the potential to adverse affect the Plan Area. Such noise would be generated by vehicle traffic on surrounding roadways and by such stationary uses as parks or outdoor areas, schools, commercial/industrial uses, and transit-related uses (i.e. intermodal center at Market Street and Euclid, which operates during nighttime hours). Table 6-8 identifies anticipated noise levels within the Redevelopment Activity Areas identified in the *Final EIR for the Proposed Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan*, and indicates that noise thresholds would be exceeded at all but one of the areas, due to proximity to roadways and/or transit. As such, it is anticipated that similar noise levels would be experienced within the Plan Area, and therefore, may pose a land use constraint to siting sensitive receptors within proximity to these areas.

<u>Potential Constraints</u>: Exterior noise levels may be exceeded at sensitive land uses located along I-805; SR-94; Market Street; Euclid Avenue; the trolley line and/or intermodal center; Imperial Avenue, Woodman Street, and 47th Street. Table 6-8, below, identifies the specific distances required from these sources to reduce noise levels to below the established thresholds.

Redevelopment Activity	General Location	Exterior Noise Levels	Significant?
#3 – Village Center at Euclid and Market	Surrounding and adjacent to Market Creek Plaza on Euclid Avenue and Market Street	The exterior CNEL will exceed 65dB if proposed residences and parks are located within 56 feet – 83 feet of Market Street, 72 feet of 47th Street, 120 feet – 143 feet of Euclid Avenue, 95 feet of the intermodal center, or 80 feet of the trolley line. The exterior CNEL will exceed 70 dB if proposed office uses are located within 25 feet of the trolley line or 53 feet of the intermodal center. The exterior CNEL will exceed 75dB if proposed commercial/industrial uses are located within 10 feet of the trolley line or 30 feet of the intermodal center. The exterior Leq will exceed 45 – 50 dB(A) if proposed residences are located within 450 feet – 790 feet of the intermodal center. The exterior Leq will exceed 60dB(A) if a proposed commercial use is located	<u>CNEL</u> 65 dB – Yes 70 dB – Yes 75dB – Yes <u>Leq</u> 45-50 dB(A) – Yes 60 dB(A) – Yes 75 dB(A) – Yes

Table 6-8: Summary of Estimated Exterior Noise Levels

Redevelopment Activity	General Location	Exterior Noise Levels	Significant?
		within 140 feet of the intermodal center. The exterior Leq will exceed 75 dB(A) if a proposed industrial use is located within 25 feet of the intermodal center.	
#4 – Lincoln Park Paseo Phase I Residential	5003 Imperial Avenue	The exterior CNEL will exceed 65dB if proposed residences are located within 130 feet of Imperial Avenue	65dB – Yes 70dB – No 75dB – No
#5 – Lincoln Park Paseo Phase II Residential	East of Willie James Jones Avenue between Holly Drive and Ocean View Boulevard	The exterior CNEL will not exceed 65dB at any proposed residence.	65dB – No 70dB – No 75dB – No
#6 – 54th & Imperial Residential Valencia Villas	325 N. 54th Street	The exterior CNEL will exceed 65dB if proposed residences are located within 120 feet of Imperial Avenue or 80 feet of the trolley line.	65dB – Yes 70dB – No 75dB – No

Table 6.2-5, continued

Groundbourne Noise

Operation of the existing trolley system would result in groundbourne noise. Affected areas would generally be within the central portion of the Plan Area, between Market Street and Imperial Avenue. Noise modeling for these areas determined that groundbourne vibration levels are 72VdB at 60 feet from the trolley tracks and 75VdB at 38 feet from the trolley tracks. These sound levels are generally accepted as the threshold at which groundbourne vibration begins to cause human annoyance at residential uses and commercial, office, and industrial uses, respectively.

Although noise generated from present and future operation of the trolley would cause annoyance, the anticipated noise levels would not be not high enough to cause structural damage; however, such noise effects may represent a potential constraint to future land uses within the Plan Area. As such, commercial, office and industrial uses may be better suited for location closer to the trolley tracks and could serve as a buffer for residential uses. <u>Potential Constraints</u>: Noise resulting from groundbourne vibration from operation of the trolley system would exceed established thresholds at various uses within the Plan Area. To reduce significant noise levels, residential uses are restricted to greater than 60 feet from the trolley line, and commercial, office and industrial buildings are restricted to approximately 38 feet of the trolley line.

Interior Noise Levels

For standard residential construction, a reduction of at least 20dB is generally achieved with all of the windows and doors closed; however, even under such conditions, noise thresholds would likely be exceeded at a number of uses within the Plan Area. As shown in Table 6-9, below, the estimated interior noise levels at the majority of redevelopment activity sites identified in the *Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan* would exceed the established threshold of 45dB at residential uses. Implementation of Mitigation Measure N-1 would reduce these impacts to less than significant.

As it is anticipated that interior noise thresholds would be exceeded at various areas throughout the Plan Area, potential land use constraints may occur with future redevelopment activities. Although the location of sensitive land uses should be considered with regard to distancing such uses from areas where significant noise levels would occur, the required reduction in noise levels may also be achieved with new construction or through retrofits by installing sound-rated doors and windows and other features (such as sound walls or berms or landscaping). As such, potential land use constraints may otherwise be overcome.

<u>Potential Constraints</u>: Interior noise level thresholds would be exceeded at residential uses within the Plan Area and may therefore restrict the location of uses. As such, future location of noise sensitive land uses in these areas and the adverse effects of such noise should be considered in future land use planning.

Redevelopment Activity	General Location	Exterior Noise Levels	Threshold/ Significance?
#1 – Hilltop & Euclid Residential	North of Hilltop Drive and West of Euclid Avenue	The interior CNEL will exceed 45dB if proposed residences are located within 143 feet of Euclid Avenue or 950 feet of SR-94.	45dB – Yes

CHAPTER 6: ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS ASSESSMENT

Table 6-9, continued

Redevelopment Activity	General Location	Exterior Noise Levels	Threshold/ Significance?
#3 – Village Center at Euclid and Market	Surrounding and adjacent to Market Creek Plaza on Euclid Avenue and Market Street	The interior CNEL will exceed 45dB if proposed residences are located within 56 feet – 83 feet of Market Street, 72 feet of 47th Street, 120 feet – 143 feet of Euclid Avenue, 95 feet of the intermodal center, or 80 feet of the trolley line.	45dB – Yes
#4 – Lincoln Park Paseo Phase I Residential	5003 Imperial Avenue	The interior CNEL will exceed 45dB if proposed residences are located within 130 feet of Imperial Avenue.	45dB – Yes
#6 – 54th & Imperial Residential Valencia Villas	325 N. 54th Street	The interior CNEL will exceed 45dB if proposed residences are located within 120 feet of Imperial Avenue or 80 feet of the trolley line.	45dB – Yes
#7 – Imperial Avenue Corridor Master Plan	Both sides of Imperial Avenue from 47th Street to Euclid Avenue and 61st to 69th Street	The interior CNEL will exceed 45dB if proposed residences are located within 120 feet of Imperial Avenue or 80 feet of the trolley line.	45dB – Yes
#8 – Naranja & 53rd Street Residential	North of Naranja Avenue at 53rd Street	The interior CNEL will exceed 45dB if proposed residences are located within 80 feet of the trolley line.	45dB – Yes
#9 – 45th & Ocean View Residential	45th Street and Ocean View Boulevard	The interior CNEL may exceed 45dB at the proposed residences due to I-805.	45dB – Yes

HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

The following summary is based on the Final EIR for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan (Redevelopment Plan). Data and findings for the Final EIR were based on the results of the Hazardous Materials Technical Study - Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan, Sixteen Plan Areas, San Diego, California (Ninyo & Moore, June 2005), also available in Volume II, Appendix H1, of the Final EIR for the Redevelopment Plan. The majority of the 16 Final EIR "Redevelopment Activity Areas" studied fall within the boundaries of the proposed Euclid and Market Village Master Plan Area (Plan Area); refer to Figure 6-2, *Sites of Potential Environmental Concern*. As such, they are evaluated herein to determine their potential to represent land use constraints to future redevelopment activities. When applicable, and where additional data was available, discussion of the Plan Area has been updated to better reflect existing conditions that may present potential land use conflicts.

The following table provides a brief summary of the findings described herein:

Sensitive Receptors (Hazards and Hazardous Materials)	 Land uses considered to be sensitive receptors include schools, residential uses, day care centers, community centers, parks, and homes for the elderly. The sensitivity of a particular group may vary (or be increased), based on proximity to a known or unknown hazard or hazardous materials site [i.e. leaking underground storage tank (LUST)].
Potential Constraints	 Sites where hazardous conditions may pose constraints to future redevelopment are shown on Figure 6-2, Sites of Potential Environmental Concern. Potentially hazardous conditions anticipated or identified onsite occur within three future FEIR Redevelopment Activity Areas. Most known and identified sites included leaking underground storage
	 tanks (LUSTs). Sites where known hazardous materials have been previously identified should be re-evaluated at the time redevelopment is proposed, as conditions may have changed since previous evaluation.

Historic Conditions

Historically, the Plan Area has supported a mixture of uses. Such uses generally include vacant/undeveloped lands, light and heavy industrial (including equipment storage) uses, and single- and multi-family residential uses, as well as mobile home parks. Historic commercial uses

have included a plant nursery, associated outdoor storage, gas stations (with potential underground storage tanks), a YMCA, and various other small-scale commercial uses. A portion of the Plan Area also formerly supported limited agricultural uses (row crops), along with an associated ranch house.

Existing Conditions

The Plan Area supports a variety of land uses, including multi- and single-family residential uses dispersed throughout the area, but generally focused in the northwesterly and southeasterly portions of the Plan Area. Two mobile home parks are also present, located in the southwesterly and easterly portions of the site. Other land uses include a mixture of commercial/office space largely focused along Euclid Avenue and Market Street. Expansive parking areas are also present to the north and south of Market Street in the central portion of the Plan Area. Additionally, light industrial uses are concentrated along the Market Street corridor in the northeasterly and central portions of the site, with similar limited uses in the northwesterly portion. Several small areas of open space also occur within the central portion of the Plan Area, adjacent to the site boundaries. A number of institutional uses (schools) are located either adjacent to the Plan Area boundary or offsite in surrounding areas to the south, north, and west.

Sensitive Receptors

Some population groups or activities are more sensitive to substantial pollutant concentrations than others. Sensitive population groups typically include children, the elderly, and the acutely and chronically ill, especially those with cardio-respiratory diseases. Residential areas are also sensitive to hazardous materials or conditions because residents (including children and the elderly) tend to be at home for extended periods of time, resulting in sustained exposure to any pollutants present. Land uses considered to be sensitive receptors typically include schools, residential uses, day care centers, parks, and homes for the elderly. Additionally, the sensitivity of a particular group may vary based on proximity to an identified hazard or hazardous materials site [i.e. a known underground storage tank (UST) versus a known leaking underground storage tank (LUST) that may affect a much greater population if it results in groundwater contamination]. As such, the siting of sensitive land uses should be considered with regard to potential land use conflicts and adverse effects of hazards or hazardous conditions on such populations.

Sensitive land uses either adjacent or within close proximity to the Plan Area include a number of schools to the south, north, and west. Additionally, existing single- and multi-family residential uses are present both within and adjacent to the Plan Area. Two mobile home parks are located in the southwesterly and easterly portions of the Plan Area. The Tubman/Chavez Multi-Cultural Youth Family Center is also located within the Plan Area, and may represent a potentially sensitive receptor.

Potential Impacts and Constraints with Regard to Hazardous and Hazardous Materials

The following discussion provides an overview of potential impacts and constraints occurring with existing or anticipated future conditions within the Plan Area. The discussion is based upon the findings of the Final EIR for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan and has been updated to reflect current conditions, as appropriate, and as to the extent that data was available. Mitigation measures referenced are those identified in the Final EIR for the Redevelopment Plan, unless otherwise described.

Sites of Potential Environmental Concern within the Plan Area

Environmental conditions, as identified for the area affected by the Final EIR for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan, Plan Area were determined in 2005 through a site reconnaissance of the 16 "Redevelopment Activity Areas" and adjacent lands. Additionally, an environmental database search of Federal, State, and local databases was conducted to identify previously-recorded, potentially hazardous sites within 1,000 feet of the Plan Area boundaries, which includes the proposed Plan Area. The database search identified 41 sites of potential concern within the Plan Area and surrounding areas. Based on the individual redevelopment activity areas described in the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan, Table 6-10 below, *Summary of Hazardous Materials Cases within Redevelopment Activity Sites #1, #3 through #10*, lists those sites identified by the database search. Figure 6-2, *Sites of Potential Environmental Concern*, shows the location of the sites that represent a potential environmental concern with regard to the Plan Area, as not all listed sites were determined to pose a hazard. Additionally, Table 3 of Volume II, Appendix H1, of the Final EIR includes an in-depth description and database results for each site.

It should be noted that the case status for the sites of potential concern identified may have changed since 2009 when the Final EIR for the Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan was prepared. Cases that were previously identified as having an "open" case status may have been remediated and are now "closed" and in compliance with applicable Federal, State, or local requirements. Additionally, new hazardous sites may have been identified within the Plan Area since the time of the previous site reconnaissance and database search were performed and may pose new land use constraints to future redevelopment activities; however, as a subsequent evaluation of the Plan Area has not been conducted, such information is unavailable at this time.

Table 6-10: Summary of Hazardous Materials Cases within Redevelopment Activity Sites #1, #3 through #10

Redevelopment Activity	Potentially Hazardous Materials Present or Anticipated Onsite?	Type of Waste	Potentially Significant Impact?	Mitigation Measures Required?
#1 – Hilltop and Euclid Residential	No	N/A	No Significant Impact	No
#3 – Village Center at Euclid and Market	Yes	UST: Hazardous Waste	Potentially Significant Impact	Yes – HM1, HM2, HM3,HM4
#4 – Lincoln Park Paseo – Phase I	Yes	Hazardous Materials (potential onsite waste storage)	Potentially Significant Impact	Yes – HM1, HM2, HM4
#5 – Lincoln Park Paseo – Phase II	No	N/A	No Significant Impact	No ¹
#6 – 54 th and Imperial Residential Valencia Villas	No	N/A	No Significant Impact	No ¹
#7 – Imperial Avenue Corridor Master Plan	Yes	UST: Hazardous Materials and/or Wastes	Potentially Significant Impact	Yes – HM1, HM2, HM3, HM4
#8 - Naranja and 53 rd Street Residential	No	N/A	No Significant Impact	No
#9 - 45 th and Ocean View Residential	No	N/A	No Significant Impact	No
#10 - Jackie Robinson YMCA Expansion	No	N/A	No Significant Impact	No ¹

Table 6.3-1, continued

¹ These sites have a low likelihood that significant quantities of hazardous materials and/or wastes would be encountered during redevelopment activities; however, due to the potential presence of buildings constructed prior to the 1980's, lead-based paint (LBPs), asbestos-containing materials (ACMs), and/or poly-chlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) may be present, and implementation of Mitigation Measure HM-1 is therefore recommended.

Short-Term - Construction

Redevelopment activities within the proposed Plan Area would result in the demolition of existing structures, grading and excavation, and other land-disturbance and construction activities that would have the potential to uncover or encounter known or unknown hazards and hazardous materials sites. Depending on the construction activity, the type of identified (or unidentified) hazard, the status of a known case, and distance to affected land uses (both onsite and offsite), the degree to which such sites could pose a land use constraint to redevelopment would vary. For example, a site that formerly supported a LUST could have been remediated wherein removal of any contamination would have occurred and therefore, the site would no longer represent a potential constraint to redevelopment as multi-family housing (or other land use). As such, no impacts could occur, or impacts could be less than significant or significant and requiring the implementation of mitigation measures to reduce potentially hazardous effects on the general public or sensitive populations.

Due to the historic and existing land uses within the Plan Area (i.e. heavy industrial, gas stations, etc.), there is a moderate to high potential that soil and/or groundwater contamination has occurred within the Project boundaries, or via offsite locations that may have affected the Plan Area (i.e. through underlying groundwater flows). As excavation activities required for redevelopment projects within the Plan Area have the potential to encounter groundwater that is contaminated, there is a moderate to high potential that the affected properties would be constrained and their use restricted until such conditions were remediated. In order to reduce the potential for land use constraints to occur on sites where potentially hazardous conditions are known (or suspected), redevelopment of such sites would require remediation, thereby removing any contamination and avoiding the potential for harm to public health and safety, making the site suitable for development.

<u>Potential Constraints</u>: Refer to Table 6-10: *Summary of Hazardous Materials Cases within Redevelopment Activity Sites #1, #3 through #10*, and Figure 6-2, *Sites of Potential Environmental Concern* which identify sites within the Plan Area where hazardous conditions may represent potential land use constraints with regard to redevelopment; however, as the status of the identified hazardous sites may have changed since the original assessment, and potential constraints would vary based on the characteristics of the hazard and the distance to sensitive land uses, such sites should be evaluated on a project-specific basis.

Long-Term - Operation

Due to the nature and type of land uses anticipated within the Plan Area (i.e. no heavy industrial), it is not expected that long-term operational activities would require the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials, nor would hazardous materials be released into the environment. In addition, although a number of schools are present within the area surrounding the Plan Area, redevelopment activities would not result in any land uses that would emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school. Additionally, all new development would be required to comply with applicable Federal, State, and local regulations regarding the use, storage, and transport of hazardous materials. As such, no land use constraints were identified with regard to operation of land uses within the Project area and potential hazardous or hazardous conditions.

The San Diego International Airport (Lindbergh Field) lies approximately eight miles to the northwest of the Plan Area. The majority of the Plan Area lies outside of the Airport Influence Area (AIA) as identified in the Airport's Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); however, the AIA does affect several redevelopment activity areas. These areas include the western portion of Redevelopment Activity Site #7 and all of Redevelopment Activity Sites #9 and #10. Therefore, a potential land use constraint may occur with regard to the type, design, and operational characteristics of future land uses within these areas. Project sites within the AIA would be required to demonstrate consistency with the ALUCP, as applicable, to minimize potential safety hazards for people residing or working in Redevelopment Activity Sites #1, #3, #4, #5, #6, or #8 with regard to safety hazards relative to operation of the San Diego International Airport. It should be noted that the ALUCP is currently being updated and should be reviewed for applicability to future redevelopment activities within the Plan Area at the time when the ALUCP is approved or when redevelopment is proposed.

<u>Potential Constraints</u>: Properties in the Plan Area located within the AIA of the San Diego International Airport would be subject to land use, design, and operational restrictions given in the ALUCP, and may therefore be subject to potential constraints.



FIGURE 6-2: SITES OF POTENTIAL ENVIROMENTAL CONCERN

Feet





550







APPENDICES



A. TRANSIT SCHEDULES

APPENDIX A: TRANSIT SCHEDULES

This appendix contains the schedules and maps for all MTS (Metropolitan Transit System) bus and Trolley lines that serve the Plan Area. These lines include:

Trolley

• Orange Line (Trolley) – Downtown San Diego to El Cajon and Lemon Grove

Bus

- Line 3 Euclid Trolley to UCSD Medical Center and Hillcrest
- Line 4 Lomita Village to 12th & Imperial
- Line 5 Euclid Trolley to Downtown
- Line 13 24th Street Trolley to Kaiser Hospital
- Line 916 Euclid Trolley to Cottage Grove (clockwise)
- Line 917 Euclid Trolley to Cottage Grove (counterclockwise)
- Line 955 8th Street Trolley to SDSU
- Line 960 Euclid Trolley to UTC

FARES / Tarifas

ONE-WAY FARE / Tarifa de una direccío	n
Adult / Adulto	\$2.50
Senior (60+)/Disabled/Medicare Mayores de 60 años/Discapacitados/Medicare	\$1.25*
Children 5 & under Niños de 5 años o menos	FREE* GRATIS*
ONE-DAY PASSES / Pases diarios de un	día
Regional	
Not valid on MTS Premium Express or COASTER No es válido en MTS Premium Express o COASTER	\$5.00
RegionPlus	
Valid on MTS Premium Express and COASTER Es válido en MTS Premium Express y COASTER	\$14.00

One-way tickets are valid for two hours from the time of purchase. Trolley tickets are not valid for a bus transfer. If your travel involves MTS Trolleys and buses, you may want to purchase an MTS Day Pass. Los boletos de ida son válidos durante dos horas a partir del momento de la compra. Los boletos del Trolley no son válidos para transbordar a los autobuses. Si su viaje incluye los Trolleys y autobuses de MTS, compre un pase dianó de un día.

* I.D. required for discount fare or pass. * Se requiere identificación para tarifas o pases de descuento.

COMPASS CARD / Tarjeta Compass

The Compass Card offers new flexible pass choices. Among your choices are a monthly pass, good from the first day to the last day of the month; a 30-Day Pass, valid for 30 consecutive days from the day of purchase;

or a 14-Day Pass, You decide what works best for you! For more information, visit compass.511sd.com.

La Tarjeta Compass ofrece as opciones flexibles de pases. Entre sus opciones están un pase mensual, válido desde

un pase mensuai, valido desde el primer día hasta el último día del mes; un pase de 30 días, válido para 30 días consecutivos a partir de la fecha de compra; o un pase de 14 días. Usted decide cual funciona mejor para usted! Para más información, visite compass.511sd.com.

ACCESSIBLE SERVICE Accesibilidad de los ser cios

All Trolleys are equipped with wheelchair lifts or ramps. Seats closest to the doors are set aside as a courtesy for senior and disabled riders.

Todos los Trolleys cuentan con elevadores o rampas para sillas de ruedas. Los asientos más cercanos a las puertas están reservados por gentileza para pasajeros mayores o discapacitados.

ANIMALS / Animales

A trained service animal may accompany a rider with disabilities. Non-service animals must be in enclosed carriers and transported by passengers without assistance of drivers or operators.

Se permite que un animal de servicio entrenado Se permite que un animal de servicio entrenado acompañe a un pasajero discapacitado. Los pasajeros deben transportar los animales que no sean de servicio en una jaula cerrada, sin ayuda de los conductores ni de los obofros

BIKES Bicicletas 0%

Board Trolley and ride at the rear door of each car.
Stay with bike to keep it secure.
One bike is allowed per car during weekday rush hours,

- two bikes per car at all other time
- MTS is not responsible for loss or damage to bicycles. • Suba al Trolley y diríjase hacia la puerta trasera de
- la unidad. Por seguridad, manténgase junto a la bicicleta.
- En las horas pico durante la semana, sólo se admite una bicicleta por unidad. En otros horarios, se admiten dos bicicletas.
- MTS no es responsable por el extravío o daño de bicicletas.

DOWNTOWN DETAIL / Detaile del centre



MONTHLY AND 30-DAY PASSES Pases mensual y pases de 30 días	
Adult / Adulto	\$72.00
Youths (18 and under) Jóvenes (18 años o menos)	\$36.00
Senior (60+)/Disabled/Medicare Mayores de 60 años/Discapacitados/Medicare	\$18.00
Children 5 & under	FREE
Niños de 5 años o menos	GRATIS
OTHER PASSES / Otros pases	
2-Day / 2 días	\$9.00
3-Day / 3 días	\$12.00
4-Day / 4 días	\$15.00
14-Day (available only on Compass Card) 14 días (disponible sólo en Tarjeta Compass)	\$43.00

VONS Get your monthly pass at The Transit Store or at all 56 Vons stores in San Diego County Obtenga su pase mensual en The Transit Store o en 56 supermercados Vons del Condado de San Diego Visita www.sdmts.com para obtener más informaci

NOTIONS & DISCOUNTS omociones v descuentos

Family Weekends Fines de semana p semana para la familia

00

compass

රු

Two children (12 and under) ride free Saturdays and Sundays with a fare-paying adult (18 or older).

Dos menores (de hasta 12 años) viajan gratis los sábados y domingos con sólo abonar la tarifa de un adulto (de 18 años o mayor).

Holiday Friends Ride Free Los días festivos, los amigos viaian gratis

On the New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day holidays your friend may ride any MTS Bus or Trolley for free when you pay your regular fare using cash, token or pass.

En Año Nuevo, Memorial Dav, Día de la Independencia ELU Allo Nuevo, Judi el Trabajo, Día de la Independencia (E.E.U.U.), dia el Trabajo, Día de Acción de Gracías y en Navidad su amigo puede viajar gratis en cualquier autobis o Trolley de MTS si Ud. paga el boleto en efectivo, con ficha o pase.

Classroom Day Pass Program Programa pase diario para escolares y jóvenes

Special discounted Day Passes are available for school and youth group field trips for youths ages 6 to 18. Call (619) 233-9558 for information.

Se realizan descuentos especiales en boletos diarios para viajes escolares y jóvenes desde 6 a 18 años. Llame al (619) 233-9558 para más información.

SERVICE AREA / Area de servicio



DIRECTORY / Directorio Regional Transit Information Información de transporte público regional (619) 233-3004 (619) 234-5005 TTY/TDD (teletype for hearing impaired) (888) 722-4889 InfoExpress (24-hour info via Touch-Tone pho

Información las 24 horas (via teléfono de teclas)	(619) 685-4900
MTS Trolley, Inc.	(619) 595-4949
MTS Security	(619) 557-4500
Fare machine problems Problemas de la máquina de tarifas	(619) 595-4960
Lost & Found / The Transit Store Objetos extravidos / The Transit Store	(619) 234-1060 1st & Broadway Downtown San Diego M-F 9am-Spm

511

For MTS online trip planning www.sdmts.com Planificación de viaies por Interne

For more information on riding MTS services, pick up a Rider's Guide on a bus or at the Transit Store. or visit er más información sobre el uso de los servicios coga un Rider's Guide en un autobús o en Storo, o vicita a verev solmts com

M FARE INSPECTION POLICY le inspección aleatoria de boletos olítica de inspe

Random fare inspections will be made. Passengers without a valid ticket or pass will be removed from the train and/or fined. You must have a valid fare or be in the process of purchasing one while at the station Se efectuarán inspecciones aleatorias de boletos.

Los pasajeros que no posean un boleto o pase válido deberán abandonar el tren y/o serán multados. Mientras se encuentre en la estación, debe poseer un boleto válido o estar comprándolo.

Para su salud y la seguridad, está prohibido fumar dentro de 25 pies de todas las estaciones del Trolley, paradas de autobús de MTS, o de otro tipo de

BE AWARE / Mantenga alerta

Alternative formats are available upon request. Please call: (619) 557-4555 Formato alternativo disponible al preguntar. Favor de llamar: (619) 557-4555







New low-floor Trolleys, shelters, station platforms, track and switches will be part of a \$620 million project to modernize these vital Trolley lines. When complete, MTS will operate a fleet of 68 low-floor light rail vehicles that will provide nearly-level boarding and faster and more comfortable rides throughout the entire Trolley system. The renewal project will take about five years, during which there will be some delays due to construction. For up-to-date information, please visit www.sdmts.com/TrolleyRenewal.asp or call the Trolley Renewal Hotline at (619) 557-4533.

Después de casi 30 años de operación, se están transformando las lineas Blue y Orange. Nuevos Trolleys con piso bajo, nuevas plataformas y refugios para las estaciones, y nuevos carriles y cambios de vías serán parte de un proyecto de 620 millones de dólares para modernizar estas rutas esenciales del Trolley. Cuando haya sido completado, MTS operará una flotilla de 68 carros de tren ligero con piso bajo que proporcionarán abordaje casi al nivel y viajes más rápidos y cómodos a lo largo del sistema entero del Trolley. El proyecto de renovación durará aproximadamente cinco años, durante los cuales habrá algunos retrasos debido a la construcción. Para información actualizada, favor de visitar www.sdmts.com/TrolleyRenewal.asp o llamar a la línea de renovación del Trolley al 619-557-4533.

If you notice any suspicious or dangerous activity, let MTS Security know by calling (619) 557-4500.

Si nota cualquier actividad que sea sospechosa o peligrosa, notifique a MTS Security por telefono a (619) 557-4500.

instalación de tránsito. DANGER / Peliaro



NO SMOKING / No Fumar For your health and safety, smoking is prohibited within 25 feet of all MTS Trolley stations, bus stops or other 5

transit facilities

Never climb between Trolley vehicles or jump the couplers between the cars.











Blue Line ⁄ 2

City College 	12th & Imperial 	8th Street D B 4:16a B 4:37 B 4:46 B 5:01 B 5:08 S:16 B 5:23 S:31 B 5:38 S:46 B 5:53 6:53 6:16 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23 S:31 B 5:38 S:46 B 5:53 S:46 B 5:53 S:46 B 5:53 S:46 B 5:53 S:46 B 5:53 S:46 B 5:53 S:46 S:46 S:46 S:46 S:47 S:47 S:47 S:47 S:47 S:47 S:47 S:47	H Street 4:24a 4:39 4:45 4:54 5:09 5:16 5:24 5:31 5:39 5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	ris Avenue 0 4:32a 4:47 4:53 5:02 5:17 5:24 5:32 5:39 5:47 5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	San Ysidro 4:41a 4:56 5:02 5:11 5:26 5:33 5:41 5:48 5:56 6:03 6:11 6:18 6:26	San Ysidro 4:44a 4:59 5:14 5:29 AND TH 6:29 6:37 6:44 6:52 6:59 7:07 7:14	Iris Avenue 4:51a 5:06 5:21 5:36 HEN EVERY 6:36 6:44 6:51 6:59 7:06 7:14	H Street O 5:00a 5:15 5:30 5:45 7:45 6:45 6:53 7:00 7:08 7:15 7:23	8th Street 5:08a 5:23 5:53 5:53 TES UNTIL 6:53 7:01 7:08 7:16 7:23 7:31	12th & Imperial 5:16a 5:31 5:46 6:01 7:01 7:09 7:16 7:24 7:31 7:39	7:06 7:14 7:21 7:29 7:36	America Plaza 5:28a 5:43 5:58 6:13 MINUTOS 7:13 7:21 7:28 7:36 7:43	OI Tov 5:4 5:5 6:1 6:2 5 HAST 7:2 - 7:4 - 7:4
© 	© 5:08a 5:38 5:38 6:08 6:08 6:23 	B 4:16a B 4:31 B 4:31 B 4:46 B 5:01 B 5:08 5:16 B 5:23 5:31 B 5:38 5:46 B 5:53 6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	4:24a 4:39 4:45 4:54 5:09 5:16 5:24 5:31 5:39 5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	4:32a 4:47 4:53 5:02 5:17 5:24 5:32 5:39 5:47 5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	4:41a 4:56 5:02 5:11 5:26 5:33 5:41 5:48 5:56 6:03 6:11 6:18	0 4:44a 4:59 5:14 5:29 AND TH 6:29 6:37 6:44 6:52 6:59 7:07	4:51a 5:06 5:21 5:36 HEN EVERY 6:36 6:44 6:51 6:59 7:06 7:14	0 5:00a 5:15 5:30 5:45 7-8 MINU 6:45 6:53 7:00 7:08 7:15	0 5:08a 5:23 5:53 5:53 TES UNTIL 6:53 7:01 7:08 7:16 7:23	5:16a 5:31 5:46 6:01 7:01 7:09 7:16 7:24 7:31	5:21a 5:36 5:51 6:06 7:06 7:14 7:21 7:29 7:36	5:28a 5:43 5:58 6:13 MINUTOS 7:13 7:21 7:28 7:36	5:4 5:5 6:1 6:2 HAST 7:2 - 7:4
5:17 5:32 5:47 6:02 6:17 6:32 6:47 6:54 7-8 MINU		B 4:31 B 4:37 B 4:46 B 5:01 B 5:08 5:16 B 5:23 5:31 B 5:38 5:46 B 5:53 6:53 6:53 6:50 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	4:39 4:45 4:54 5:09 5:16 5:24 5:31 5:39 5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	4:47 4:53 5:02 5:17 5:24 5:32 5:39 5:47 5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	4:56 5:02 5:11 5:26 5:33 5:41 5:48 5:56 6:03 6:11 6:18	4:59 5:14 5:29 AND TH 6:29 6:37 6:44 6:52 6:59 7:07	5:06 5:21 5:36 HEN EVERY 6:36 6:44 6:51 6:59 7:06 7:14	5:15 5:30 5:45 7-8 MINU 6:45 6:53 7:00 7:08 7:15	5:23 5:38 5:53 TES UNTIL 6:53 7:01 7:08 7:16 7:23	5:31 5:46 6:01 7:01 7:09 7:16 7:24 7:31	5:36 5:51 6:06 7:06 7:14 7:21 7:29 7:36	5:43 5:58 6:13 MINUTOS 7:13 7:21 7:28 7:36	5:5 6:1 6:2 5 HAST 7:2 - 7:4
5:17 5:32 5:47 6:02 6:17 6:32 6:47 6:54 7-8 MINU		B 4:37 B 4:46 B 5:01 B 5:08 S:16 B 5:23 S:31 B 5:38 S:46 B 5:53 S:46 B 5:53 6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	4:45 4:54 5:09 5:16 5:24 5:31 5:39 5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	4:53 5:02 5:17 5:24 5:32 5:39 5:47 5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	5:02 5:11 5:26 5:33 5:41 5:48 5:56 6:03 6:11 6:18	5:14 5:29 AND TH 6:29 6:37 6:44 6:52 6:59 7:07	5:21 5:36 HEN EVERY 6:36 6:44 6:51 6:59 7:06 7:14	5:30 5:45 7-8 MINU 6:45 6:53 7:00 7:08 7:15	5:38 5:53 TES UNTIL 6:53 7:01 7:08 7:16 7:23	5:46 6:01 7:01 7:09 7:16 7:24 7:31	5:51 6:06 7 CADA 7-8 7:06 7:14 7:21 7:29 7:36	5:58 6:13 MINUTOS 7:13 7:21 7:28 7:36	6:1 6:2 HAST 7:2 7:4
5:17 5:32 5:47 6:02 6:17 6:32 6:47 6:54 7-8 MINU		B 4:46 B 5:01 B 5:08 5:16 B 5:23 5:31 B 5:38 5:46 B 5:53 6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	4:54 5:09 5:16 5:24 5:31 5:39 5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	5:02 5:17 5:24 5:32 5:39 5:47 5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	5:11 5:26 5:33 5:41 5:48 5:56 6:03 6:11 6:18	5:29 AND TH 6:29 6:37 6:44 6:52 6:59 7:07	5:36 IEN EVERY 6:36 6:44 6:51 6:59 7:06 7:14	5:45 7-8 MINU 6:45 6:53 7:00 7:08 7:15	5:53 TES UNTIL 6:53 7:01 7:08 7:16 7:23	6:01 7:01 7:09 7:16 7:24 7:31	6:06 CADA 7-8 7:06 7:14 7:21 7:29 7:36	6:13 MINUTOS 7:13 7:21 7:28 7:36	6:2 HAST 7:2 7:4
5:17 5:32 5:47 6:02 6:17 6:32 6:47 6:54 7-8 MINU		B 5:01 B 5:08 5:16 B 5:23 5:31 B 5:38 5:46 B 5:53 6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	5:09 5:16 5:24 5:31 5:39 5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	5:17 5:24 5:32 5:39 5:47 5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	5:26 5:33 5:41 5:48 5:56 6:03 6:11 6:18	AND TH 6:29 6:37 6:44 6:52 6:59 7:07	EN EVERY 6:36 6:44 6:51 6:59 7:06 7:14	7-8 MINU 6:45 6:53 7:00 7:08 7:15	TES UNTIL 6:53 7:01 7:08 7:16 7:23	7:01 7:09 7:16 7:24 7:31	7:06 7:14 7:21 7:29 7:36	7:13 7:21 7:28 7:36	HAS 7:1
5:17 5:32 5:47 6:02 6:17 6:32 6:47 6:54 7-8 MINU		B 5:08 5:16 B 5:23 5:31 B 5:38 5:46 B 5:53 6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	5:16 5:24 5:31 5:39 5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	5:24 5:32 5:39 5:47 5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	5:33 5:41 5:48 5:56 6:03 6:11 6:18	6:29 6:37 6:44 6:52 6:59 7:07	6:36 6:44 6:51 6:59 7:06 7:14	6:45 6:53 7:00 7:08 7:15	6:53 7:01 7:08 7:16 7:23	7:01 7:09 7:16 7:24 7:31	7:06 7:14 7:21 7:29 7:36	7:13 7:21 7:28 7:36	7:
5:17 5:32 5:47 6:02 6:17 6:32 6:47 6:54 7-8 MINU		5:16 B 5:23 5:31 B 5:38 5:46 B 5:53 6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	5:24 5:31 5:39 5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	5:32 5:39 5:47 5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	5:41 5:48 5:56 6:03 6:11 6:18	6:37 6:44 6:52 6:59 7:07	6:44 6:51 6:59 7:06 7:14	6:53 7:00 7:08 7:15	7:01 7:08 7:16 7:23	7:09 7:16 7:24 7:31	7:14 7:21 7:29 7:36	7:21 7:28 7:36	7:
5:17 5:32 5:47 6:02 6:17 6:32 6:47 6:54 7-8 MINU		B 5:23 5:31 B 5:38 5:46 B 5:53 6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	5:31 5:39 5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	5:39 5:47 5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	5:48 5:56 6:03 6:11 6:18	6:44 6:52 6:59 7:07	6:51 6:59 7:06 7:14	7:00 7:08 7:15	7:08 7:16 7:23	7:16 7:24 7:31	7:21 7:29 7:36	7:28 7:36	
		5:31 B 5:38 5:46 B 5:53 6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	5:39 5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	5:47 5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	5:56 6:03 6:11 6:18	6:52 6:59 7:07	6:59 7:06 7:14	7:08 7:15	7:16 7:23	7:24 7:31	7:29 7:36	7:36	
		B 5:38 5:46 B 5:53 6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	5:46 5:54 6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	5:54 6:02 6:09 6:17	6:03 6:11 6:18	6:59 7:07	7:06 7:14	7:15	7:23	7:31	7:36	7:43	7.
5:47 	5:53 	B 5:53 6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	6:01 6:09 6:16 6:24	6:09 6:17	6:18			7:23	7-31	7.20			
6:02 		6:01 B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	6:09 6:16 6:24	6:17		7.14					7:44	7:51	
6:02 		B 6:08 6:16 B 6:23	6:16 6:24		6.26		7:21	7:30	7:38	7:46	7:51	7:58	8:
6:17 	6:23 —	6:16 B 6:23	6:24		0.20	7:22	7:29	7:38	7:46	7:54	7:59	8:06	-
6:17 	6:23 —	B 6:23		6:24	6:33	7:29	7:36	7:45	7:53	8:01	8:06	8:13	8:
6:32 — 6:47 6:54 7–8 MINU				6:32	6:41	7:37	7:44	7:53	8:01	8:09	8:14	8:21	
6:32 — 6:47 6:54 7–8 MINU			6:31	6:39	6:48	7:44	7:51	8:00	8:08	8:16	8:21	8:28	8:
	6:38		6:39	6:47	6:56	7:52	7:59	8:08	8:16	8:24	8:29	8:36	
	6:38	B 6:38	6:46	6:54	7:03	7:59	8:06	8:15	8:23	8:31	8:36	8:43	8:
6:54 7-8 MINU		6:46	6:54	7:02	7:11	8:07	8:14	8:23 8:30	8:31 8:38	8:39	8:44	8:51 8:58	
6:54 7-8 MINU	6:53	B 6:53 7:01	7:01	7:09	7:18	8:14	8:21	8:30		8:46 8:54		8:58	9:
7-8 MINU						8:22	8:29	8:38	8:46		8:59		9
	7:00 TES UNTIL:	7:08	7:16 CADA 7-1	7:24 8 MINUTOS	7:33 5 HASTA:	8:29 8:44	8:36 8:51	9:00	9:08	9:01 9:16	9:06 9:21	9:13 9:28	9
7:47	7:53	8:01	8:09	8:17	8:26	8:59	9:06	9:00	9:08	9:10	9:21	9:43	9:
ERY 15 MI		/ Y LUEGO		MINUTOS /		0:39 ANE		ERY 15 MI				9:43 MINUTOS /	
:17	23 :23	31 / Y LUEGO	:39	MINUTOS / :47	A LA: :56	:14	2 THEN EV 21	:30	38 :38	46 Y LUEGO	CADA 15 I	:58	4 LA:
:32	:38	:46	:54	:02	:11	:29	:36	:45	:53	:01	:06	:13	
.47	-53	-01	-09	-17		-44	-51	-00	-08	-16	-21	-28	;
:02	:08	:16	:24	:32	:41	:59	:06	:15	:23	:31	:36	:43	;
	UNTIL: /	/ HASTA:							UNTIL:	/ HASTA:			
2:47p	2:53p	3:01p	3:09p	3:17p	3:26p	2:59p	3:06p	3:15p	3:23p	3:31p	3:36p	3:43p	3:
2:54	3:00	3:08	3:16	3:24	3:33	3:14	3:21	3:30	3:38	3:46	3:51	3:58	4:
3:02	3:08	3:16	3:24	3:32	3:41	3:29	3:36	3:45	3:53	4:01	4:06	4:13	4:
3:09	3:15	3:23	3:31	3:39	3:48	3:37	3:44	3:53	4:01	4:09	4:14	4:21	4:
3:17	3:23	3:31	3:39	3:47	3:56	3:44	3:51	4:00	4:08	4:16	4:21	4:28	40
											4:29		4:
													4:
													5:
													5:
													5:
													5:
													5:
													5:
													5:
													6:
4:54	5:00	5:08	5:16	5:24	5:33	5:22	5:29	5:38	5:46	5:54	5:59	6:06	
7-8 MINU	TES UNTIL:	/ Y LUEGO	CADA 7-	8 MINUTOS	S HASTA:	5:29	5:36	5:45	5:53	6:01	6:06	6:13	6:
5:47	5:53	6:01	6:09	6:17	6:26	5:37	5:44	5:53	6:01	6:09	6:14	6:21	
6:02	6:08	6:16	6:24	6:32	6:41	5:44	5:51	6:00	6:08	6:16	6:21	6:28	6:
6:17	6:23	6:31	6:39	6:47	6:56	5:52	5:59	6:08	6:16	6:24	6:29	6:36	-
6:32	6:38	6:46	6:54	7:02	7:11	5:59	6:06	6:15	6:23	6:31	6:36	6:43	6:
						6:14	6:21	6:30		6:46			7:
													7:
													7:
													7:
													8:
													8:
													8:
													9
11:02	11:08	11:16	11:24	11:32	11:41	8:29	8:36	8:45	8:53	9:01	9:06	9:13	9
11:32	11:38	11:46	11:54	12:02a	12:11a	8:44	8:51	9:00	9:08	9:16	9:21	9:28	9
12:02a	12:08a	12:16a	12:24a	12:32	12:41	8:59	9:06	9:15	9:23	9:31	9:36	9:43	9
) —	_	_	_	_	_	9:29	9:36	9:45	9:53	10:01	10:06	10:13	10:
						9:59	10:06	10:15	10:23	10:31	10:36	10:43	10:
						10:29	10:36	10:45	10:53	11:01	11:06	11:13	11:
						10:59	11:06	11:15	11:23	11:31	11:36	11:43	11:
						11:29	11:36	11:45	11:53	12-01a	12:06a	12·13a	
													** * * *
						11:59 12:29a	12:06a 12:36	12:15a 12:45	12:23a 12:53	12:31	12:36	12:43 1:13	
	2:47p 2:54 3:02 3:09 3:17 3:24 3:32 3:39 3:47 4:52 4:39 4:47 4:54 4:47 4:54 4:7 4:54 7:52 7:47 7:52 7:47 7:52 7:47 7:52 7:47 7:52 7:52 7:54 7:55 7:55 7:55 7:55 7:55 7:55 7:55	32 38 247p 253p 2541 3500 3102 3686 3117 3233 3244 3300 3123 3244 3337 3453 3342 3339 3454 4500 4009 4415 4474 433 424 430 4224 438 423 4435 4474 453 602 653 602 653 602 638 647 653 647 653 647 653 647 653 647 653 647 653 717 723 802 808 812 8:38 922 9:03 932 9:38 942 9:38 9:32 10:38 9:32 10:38	02 28 160 UNTL'/MASTA: 2479 2539 3047 2474 260 308 308 305 3067 323 311 324 330 338 346 3377 323 313 324 323 334 333 346 339 345 353 347 324 330 338 461 347 353 461 423 447 423 431 442 453 448 453 443 454 453 453 454 457 553 601 453 544 453 453 454 552 637 701 723 544 553 601 616 617 623 738 746 637 701 738 746 573 738 746 632	02 06 16 24 UNTL: MASTA: 2459 3059 3059 2447 2539 3059 3059 303 316 316 324 303 308 316 324 304 341 329 324 317 234 330 338 324 330 338 346 327 334 334 344 327 334 344 344 347 353 401 409 447 423 431 439 442 430 438 446 424 430 438 446 437 438 446 647 438 646 646 647 439 453 501 607 533 601 609 652 638 704 709 707 738 734 739	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	02 08 16 24 32 41 59 0.6 15 LWTLL, MASTA: 2559 3.069 3.169 3.214 3.21 3.23 3.14 3.21 3.23 3.14 3.21 3.23 3.34 3.24 4.24 4.02 4.11 4.24 4.30 3.24 3.24 4.20 4.21 4.21 4.24 4.20 4.24 4.20 4.24 4.20 4.24 4.20 4.24 4.20 4.24 4.20 4.24 <td>$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td> <td>$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td> <td>$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td> <td>$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td>	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $

Monday through Friday / Iunes a vie

				Sa	turda	y anc	Sunc	lay / s	ăbado j	y dom	ingo				
5			SOUTH	BOUNI			-	5			NORTH	BOUN	D		-
Old Town	America Plaza	City College		8th Street	H Street	lris Avenue	San Ysidro	San Ysidro	lris Avenue	H Street	8th Street	12th & Imperial	City College	America Plaza	Old Towr
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0
				B 4:31a	4:39a	4:47a	4:56a	4:59a	5:06a	5:15a	5:23a	5:31a	5:36a	5:43a	5:55
	-	-	— E	A 4:38	4:46	4:54	5:03	A 5:14	5:21	5:30	5:38	5:46	5:51	5:58	6:10
	_	_	— E		4:54	5:02	5:11	5:29	5:36	5:45	5:53	6:01	6:06	6:13	6:25
				B 5:01	5:09	5:17	5:26	A 5:44	5:51	6:00	6:08	6:16	6:21	6:28	6:40
4:45a	4:56a	5:02a	5:08a	5:16	5:24	5:32	5:41	5:59	6:06	6:15	6:23	6:31	6:36	6:43	6:55
A 5:00	5:11	5:17	5:23	5:31	5:39	5:47	5:56	A 6:14	6:21	6:30	6:38	6:46	6:51	6:58	7:10
5:15	5:26	5:32	5:38	5:46	5:54	6:02	6:11	6:29	6:36	6:45	6:53	7:01	7:06	7:13	7:25
A 5:30	5:41	5:47	5:53	6:01	6:09	6:17	6:26	A 6:44	6:51	7:00	7:08	7:16	7:21	7:28	7:40
5:45	5:56	6:02	6:08	6:16	6:24	6:32	6:41	6:59	7:06	7:15	7:23	7:31	7:36	7:43	7:55
A 6:00	6:11	6:17	6:23	6:31	6:39	6:47	6:56	A 7:14	7:21	7:30	7:38	7:46	7:51	7:58	8:10
6:15	6:26	6:32	6:38	6:46	6:54	7:02	7:11	7:29	7:36	7:45	7:53	8:01	8:06	8:13	8:25
A 6:30	6:41	6:47	6:53	7:01	7:09	7:17	7:26	A 7:44	7:51	8:00	8:08	8:16	8:21	8:28	8:40
6:45	6:56	7:02	7:08	7:16	7:24	7:32	7:41	7:59	8:06	8:15	8:23	8:31	8:36	8:43	8:55
A 7:00	7:11	7:17	7:23	7:31	7:39	7:47	7:56	A 8:14	8:21	8:30	8:38	8:46	8:51	E 8:58	9:10
7:15	7:26	7:32	7:38	7:46	7:54	8:02	8:11	8:29	8:36	8:45	8:53	9:01	9:06	9:13	9:2
7:30	7:41	7:47	7:53	8:01	8:09	8:17	8:26	A 8:44	8:51	9:00	9:08	9:16	9:21	E 9:28	9:40
7:45	7:56	8:02	8:08	8:16	8:24	8:32	8:41	8:59	9:06	9:15	9:23	9:31	9:36	9:43	9:55
A 8:00	8:11	8:17	8:23	C 8:31	8:39	8:47	8:56		D THEN EV					MINUTOS	
8:15	8:26	8:32	8:38	8:46	8:54	9:02	9:11	:14	:21	:30	:38	:46	:51	:58	:10
A 8:30	8:41	8:47	8:53	C 9:01	9:09	9:17	9:26	:29	:36	:45	:53	:01	:06	:13	:25
8:45	8:56	9:02	9:08	9:16	9:24	9:32	9:41	:44	:51	:00	:08	:16	:21	:28	:40
	0:30 D THEN EVE							:44	:06	:15	:23	:10	:21	:43	:44
-00	-11	-17	:23	·31	-39	·47	:56	:59	:06	:15		/ HASTA:	:30	:45	:50
:15	:26	:32	:23	:46	:54	:02	:00	7:14p	7:21p	7:30p	7:38p	7:46p	7:51p	7:58p	8:10
:30	:20	:32	:50	:40	:09	:02	:26	7:14p 7:29	7:21p 7:36	7:30p	7:38p 7:53	7:46p 8:01	7:51p 8:06	7:58p 8:13	8:10
:45	:56	:47	-08	:01	-24	:32	-41	7:44	7:50		8:08				8:4
:45	:56	:02			:24	:32	:41			8:00		8:16	8:21	8:28	
				/ HASTA:				7:59	8:06	8:15	8:23	8:31	8:36	8:43	8:55
7:45p	7:56p	8:02p	8:08p	8:16p	8:24p	8:32p	8:41p	8:14	8:21	8:30	8:38	8:46	8:51	8:58	9:10
8:15	8:26	8:32	8:38	8:46	8:54	9:02	9:11	8:29	8:36	8:45	8:53	9:01	9:06	9:13	9:2
8:45	8:56	9:02	9:08	9:16	9:24	9:32	9:41	8:44	8:51	9:00	9:08	9:16	9:21	9:28	9:40
9:15	9:26	9:32	9:38	9:46	9:54	10:02	10:11	8:59	9:06	9:15	9:23	9:31	9:36	9:43	9:5
9:45	9:56	10:02	10:08	10:16	10:24	10:32	10:41	9:29	9:36	9:45	9:53	10:01	10:06	10:13	10:2
10:15	10:26	10:32	10:38	10:46	10:54	11:02	11:11	9:59	10:06	10:15	10:23	10:31	10:36	10:43	10:5
10:45	10:56	11:02	11:08	11:16	11:24	11:32	11:41	10:29	10:36	10:45	10:53	11:01	11:06	11:13	11:25
11:15	11:26	11:32	11:38	11:46	11:54	12:02a	12:11a	10:59	11:06	11:15	11:23	11:31	11:36	11:43	11:5
11:45	11:56	12:02a	12:08a	12:16a	12:24a	12:32	12:41	11:29	11:36	11:45	11:53	12:01a	12:06a	12:13a	
12:00a	12:09a D	_	_	_	_	_	_	11:59	12:06a	12:15a	12:23a	12:31	12:36	12:43	-
								12:29a	12:36	12:45	12:53	1:01	1:06	1:13	-
								12:59	1:06	1:15	1:23	1:31	1:36	1:43	

icio se realiza solamente los stitudos. icio se nealiza solamente los stitudos. la logan Statian 6 minutes autier than time shown. la seración de Barrio Logan 6 minutes antes del tiempo mostrado. Vaje termina en Santa Fe Dapot. Fe Depot 7 minutes later than time shown. Doss no tserve America Santa Fe Depot 2 minutes después del tiempo mostrado. No ofrece e . / Viaje co *ime shov ∹al enza a la estación de B

Special Event Service r specific details. MTS Trolley offers increased service between Qualcomm Stadium and the Convention Center/PETCO Park mp Quarter Station) for all Padres baseball games, the Holiday Bowl, and specific downtown events. Increased Trolley service approximately 90 minutes before most games or major events. For Padres games, the last special event train will depart the luarter Station 45 minutes after the final out.

samp Cuarter statuti en infinitate area une mar out Servicio para eventos especiales ra obtener más información, llame al 511. Los trolleys de MTS brindan servicios especiales entre el estado Qualcomm y el Centro Convenciones en la zona del Parque PETOO (Estadón Gaslamp Quarter) durante todos los partidos de bislobido de los Padres, ra robrener de la cona del Parque PETOO (Estadón Gaslamp Quarter) durante todos los partidos de bislobido de los Padres, ra robrener de la consecto de la mayoría de los partidos o principales eventos. Para los juegos de los Padres, el último tren con rivicio especial partirá de la estación Gaslamp Quarter 45 minutos después de la finalización del partido.

Holiday Service / Servicio de los días festivos

Saturday schedule operates on: Presidents' Day, observed Christmas holiday (December 26), observed New Year's holiday (January 2). Sunday schedule operates on: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, Christmas schedule: Trolleys operate verys 30 minutes throughout the day on all lines. Call S11 for more information.

Servicio de los sibados: Presidents' Day, feriado observado de Navidad (26 de diciembre), feriado observado de Año Nuevo (2 de enero). Servicio de los domingos: Año Nuevo, Menorial Day, Dia de la Independencia (E.E.U.U), Labor Day, Dia de Acción Gracias. Servicio durante Navidad: Durante todo el dia, los Tellosy funcionana cada 30 minutos en todas las línes. Para obtener más información, Ilarne al 511.

Green Line 爷

				Monda	ay thi	rough I	Friday	/ lunes	a vierne	s			
		EA	STBOU		<u> </u>					STBOL			
Öld	Fashion	Qualcomm	SDSU	Grossmont	EI	Santee	Santee	El	Grossmont	SDSU	Qualcomm	Fashion	Old
Town	Valley	Stadium	5550	Center	Cajon	Town Ctr.	Town Ctr.	Cajon	Center	5550	Stadium	Valley	Tow
0	- O´	0	0	0	Ó	0	-0-	Ó	0	0	0	O´	0
4:15a	4:21a	4:29a	4:37a	4:46a	4:51a	5:03a	Ŭ	· ·	Ŭ	· ·	4:55a	5:03a	5:10
4:30	4.218	4.270	4:52	5:01	5:06	5:18		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	5:25	5:33	5:40
4:30	4:50	4:44	4:52	5:16	5:06	5:33	5:08a	5:17a	5:23a	5:32a	5:25	5:48	5:5
4:45 5:00	4:51	4:59	5:22	5:31	5:21	5:33	5:068	5:17a	5:238	5:32a 5:47	5:55	6:03	
													6:1
5:15	5:21	5:29	5:37	5:46	5:51	6:03	5:38	5:47	5:53	6:02	6:10	6:18	6:2
5:30	5:36	5:44	5:52	6:01	6:06	6:18	5:53	6:02	6:08	6:17	6:25	6:33	6:4
5:45	5:51	5:59	6:07	6:16	6:21	6:33	6:08	6:17	6:23	6:32	6:40	6:48	6:5
	THEN EVER			JEGO CADA 1			6:23	6:32	6:38	6:47	6:55	7:03	7:1
:00	:06	:14	:22	:31	:36	:48	6:38	6:47	6:53	7:02	7:10	7:18	7:2
:15	:21	:29	:37	:46	:51	:03				SAT: / YL		5 MINUTO	
:30	:36	:44	:52	:01	:06	:18	:08	:17	:23	:32	:40	:48	:5
:45	:51	:59	:07	:16	:21	:33	:23	:32	:38	:47	:55	:03	:10
		U	TIL: / HAS	TA:			:38	:47	:53	:02	:10	:18	:2
7:30p	7:36p	7:44p	7:52p	8:01p	8:06p	8:18p	:53	:02	-08	:17	-25	:33	:4
8:00	8:06	8:14	8:22	8:31	8:36	8:48			UP	NTIL: / HAS	STA-		
8:30	8:36	8:44	8:52	9:01	9:06	9:18	8:23p	8:32p	8:38p	8:47p	8:55p	9:03p	9:1
9:00	9:06	9:14	9:22	9:31	9:36	9:48	8:53	9:02	9:08	9:17	9:25	9:33	9:4
9:30	9:36	9:44	9:52	10:01	10:06	10:18	9:23	9:32	9:38	9:47	9:55	10:03	10:1
	10:06	10:14		10:01		10:18	9:53			10:17		10:03	10:1
10:00			10:22		10:36			10:02	10:08		10:25		
10:30	10:36	10:44	10:52	11:01	11:06	11:18	10:23	10:32	10:38	10:47	10:55	11:03	11:1
11:00	11:06	11:14	11:22				10:53	11:02	11:08	11:17	11:25	11:33	11:4
11:30	11:36	11:44	11:52							11:32	11:40	11:48	11:5
12:00a	12:06a	12:14a	12:22a	-	-	-	11:23	11:32	11:38	11:47	11:55	12:03a	12:1
							·····			12:02a	12:10a	12:18	12:2
					6	aturda	ar I a tha						
			CTROU		S	aturda	y / sába	do	14/5	CTRO			
<u>_</u>			STBOU			+	~			STBOL			
Old Town	Fashion Valley	Qualcomm Stadium	SDSU	Grossmont Center	El Cajon	Santee Town Ctr.	Santee Town Ctr.	El Cajon	Grossmont Center	STBOU SDSU	Qualcomm Stadium	Fashion Valley	Ok Tow
Old Town	Valley	Qualcomm Stadium	SDSU	Grossmont Center	El Cajon	Santee Town Ctr.	Santee	EI	Grossmont		Qualcomm Stadium	Valley	Tov
Old Town	Valley	Qualcomm Stadium	SDSU	Grossmont Center	El Cajon	Santee Town Ctr.	Santee Town Ctr.	El Cajon	Grossmont Center	SDSU	Qualcomm Stadium	Valley	Tov
Old Town	Valley	Qualcomm Stadium	SDSU	Grossmont Center	El Cajon	Santee Town Ctr.	Santee Town Ctr.	El Cajon	Grossmont Center	SDSU	Qualcomm Stadium	Valley	Tov © 5:1
Old Town 4:30a	Valley O 4:36a	Qualcomm Stadium 0 4:44a	SDSU O 4:52a	Grossmont Center 5:01a	El Cajon © 5:06a	Santee Town Ctr. O 5:18a	Santee Town Ctr.	El Cajon	Grossmont Center	SDSU	Qualcomm Stadium 0 4:55a	Valley O 5:03a	Tov 5:1 5:4
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44	SDSU 0 4:52a 5:22 5:52	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06	Santee Town Ctr. O 5:18a 5:48	Santee Town Ctr. — — 5:23a	El Cajon — — 5:32a	Grossmont Center — — 5:38a	SDSU — — 5:47a	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03	Tov 5:1 5:4 6:1
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND	Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE	SDSU 0 4:52a 5:22 5:52 S AT: / Y LU	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5 A LA:	Santee Town Ctr. — — 5:23a 5:53	El Cajon — — 5:32a 6:02	Grossmont Center — — 5:38a 6:08	SDSU 5:47a 6:17	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33	Tov 5:1 5:4 6:1 6:4
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND :00	Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14	SDSU 0 4:52a 5:22 5:52 S AT: / Y LU :22	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36	Santee Town Ctr. O 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5 A LA: :48	Santee Town Ctr. — — 5:23a 5:53 AND	El Cajon — — 5:32a 6:02 THEN EVEF	Grossmont Center — 5:38a 6:08 RY 30 MINUTE	SDSU O 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 UEGO CADA 3	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 0 MINUTO	Tow 5:11 5:4 6:11 6:4 5 A LA:
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND	Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 :44	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:52 5 AT: / Y LU :22 :52	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5 A LA:	Santee Town Ctr. — — 5:23a 5:53 AND :23	El Cajon — 5:32a 6:02 THEN EVEF :32	Grossmont Center — 5:38a 6:08 RY 30 MINUTE: :38	SDSU O 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 UEGO CADA 3 :55	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 6:33 0 MINUTO: :03	Tow 5:10 5:40 6:41 6:41 5 A LA: :10
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND :00 :30	Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :36	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 :44	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:52 S AT: / Y LL :22 :52 NTIL: / HAS	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 TA:	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5 A LA: :48 :18	Santee Town Ctr. — — 5:23a 5:53 AND	El Cajon — — 5:32a 6:02 THEN EVEF	Grossmont Center — 5:38a 6:08 RY 30 MINUTE: :38 :08	SDSU O 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 UEGO CADA 3 :55 :25	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 0 MINUTO	Tow 5:1/ 5:4/ 6:1/ 6:4/
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND :00 :30 10:30	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :36 10:36	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 :44 UN 10:44	SDSU 0 4:52a 5:22 5:52 S AT: / Y LL :22 :52 NTIL: / HAS 10:52	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 iTA: 11:01	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:06	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5 A LA: :48 :18 :18 11:18	Santee Town Ctr. — 5:23a 5:53 AND :23 :53	El Cajon — 5:32a 6:02 THEN EVEF :32 :02	Grossmont Center — 5:38a 6:08 RY 30 MINUTE: :38 :08	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 UEGO CADA 3 :55 :25 :25 STA:	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 6:33 0 MINUTO :03 :33	Tow 5:11 5:44 6:11 6:44 5 A LA: :11 :44
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 4ND :00 :30 10:30 10:45	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :36 10:36 10:36	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 :44 UP 10:44 10:59	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:52 S AT: / Y LL :22 :52 NTIL: / HAS 10:52 11:07	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 TA: 11:01 11:16	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:06 11:21	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5 A LA: :48 :18 :18 11:18 11:33	Santee Town Ctr. — 5:23a 5:53 AND :23 :53 11:23	El Cajon — — 5:32a 6:02 THEN EVEF :32 :02 :02	Grossmont Center 	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:25 6:25 6:25 0EGO CADA 3 :55 :25 57A: 11:55	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 0 MINUTO :03 :33 12:03p	Tow 5:11 5:44 6:11 6:44 5 A LA: :11 :44 12:11
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND :00 :30 10:30 10:45 AND	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :36 10:36 10:51 THEN EVER	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 :44 UP 10:44 10:59 Y 15 MINUTE	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:52 S AT: / Y LL :22 :52 NTIL: / HASS 10:52 11:07 S AT: / Y LL	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 ITA: 11:01 11:16 JEGO CADA 1	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:06 11:21 5 MINUTO	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5 A La: :48 :118 :11:18 11:18 11:13 5 A La:	Santee Town Ctr. - 5:23a 5:53 AND :23 :53 11:23 11:38	El Cajon — 5:32a 6:02 THEN EVER :32 :02 11:32 11:47	Grossmont Center 	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 UEGO CADA 3 :55 :25 5TA: 11:55 12:10p	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 6:03 10 MINUTO :03 :33 12:03p 12:18	Tow 5:11 5:44 6:11 6:44 5 A LA: :11 :44 12:12
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 .00 :30 10:45 AND 10:45 AND :00	Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :36 10:36 10:51 THEN EVER :06	Qualcomm Stadium 0 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 10:44 10:59 Y 15 MINUTE :14	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:52 S AT: / Y LL :22 :52 NTIL: / HAS 10:52 11:07 S AT: / Y LL :22	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 TA: 11:01 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 :31	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 11:06 11:21 5 MINUTO :36	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5:4.48 :18 5:4.42 :18 11:18 11:33 5:4.142 :48	Santee Town Ctr. - 5:23a 5:53 AND :23 :53 11:23 11:38 12:53p	El Cajon — 5:32a 6:02 THEN EVEF :32 :02 11:47 12:02p	Grossmont Center 5:38a 6:08 8Y 30 MINUTE: :38 :08 UP 11:38 11:53 12:08p	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:55 6:25 25 25 57A: 11:55 12:10p 12:25	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 6:33 10 MINUTO :03 :33 12:03p 12:18 12:33	Tow 5:11 5:44 6:44 5 A LA: :11 :44 12:1 12:2 12:4
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 .00 :30 10:45 AND :00 :15	Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :36 10:36 10:51 THEN EVER :06 :21	Qualcomm Stadium 0 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 10:44 10:59 Y 15 MINUTE :14 :29	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:52 5:5 5:2 5:2 5:2 5:2 5	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 11:01 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 :31 :46	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:06 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5:4 La: :48 :18 11:18 11:33 5 A La: :48 :03	Santee Town Ctr. — — 5:23a 5:53 AND :23 :53 11:23 11:23 11:23 11:23 11:23 AND	El Cajon — 5:32a 6:02 THEN EVES :32 :02 11:42 11:42 11:42 11:42 11:42 11:42 11:42	Grossmont Center — — 5:38a 6:08 87 30 MINUTE: :38 :08 UP 11:38 11:53 12:08p 87 15 MINUTE:	SDSU O 	Qualcomm Stadium 0 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 UEGO CADA 3 :55 :25 57A: 11:55 12:10p 12:25 UEGO CADA 1	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 0 MINUTO :03 :33 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO	Tow 5:11 5:44 6:11 6:44 5:4 LA: :11 :44 12:21 12:22 12:4 5:4 LA:
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND :30 10:30 10:30 10:45 AND :00 :15 :30	Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :10:51 THEN EVER :06 :21 :36	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 10:59 Y 15 MINUTE :14 .29 :44	SDSU 	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 :31 :46 :01	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51 :06	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5 A LA: :48 :18 11:18 11:13 5 A LA: :48 :03 :18	Santee Town Ctr. — — 5:53 AND 23 5:53 11:23 11:28 12:53 AND 08	El Cajon — — 5:322 6:02 THEN EVEF :32 02 11:32 11:47 12:02P THEN EVEF :17	Grossmont Center 5:38a 6:08 87 30 MINUTE: 38 11:33 12:08pt 87 15 MINUTE: 23	SDSU O 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 22 25 25	Valley 0 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 10 MINUTO: :03 :33 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO: :48	Tow 5:11 5:44 6:11 6:44 5:4 LA: :11 :44 12:12 12:24 5:4 LA: :5:4 5:4 LA: :5:4 5:4 LA: :5:4 5:4 LA: :10 :44 :44 :44 :44 :44 :44 :44 :4
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 .00 :30 10:45 AND :00 :15	Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :36 10:36 10:51 THEN EVER :06 :21	Qualcomm Stadium 0 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 10:44 10:59 Y 15 MINUTE :14 :29	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:52 5:5 5:2 5:2 5:2 5:2 5	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 11:01 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 :31 :46	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:06 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5:4 La: :48 :18 11:18 11:33 5 A La: :48 :03	Santee Town Ctr. - - 5:23a 5:53 AND 23 5:53 11:23 11:23 11:23 11:23 AND 08 223	El Cajon - 5:32a 6:02 THEN EVER :32 :02 11:32 11:47 12:02p THEN EVER :17 :32	Grossmont Center — — 5:38a 6:08 RY 30 MINUTE: :38 :08 UP 11:38 11:53 12:08 RY 15 MINUTE: :23 :38	SDSU O 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 25 57A: 11:55 12:10p 12:25 UEGO CADA 1 :40 :55	Valley O 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 100 MINUTO :03 :33 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO :48 :03	Tow 5:10 5:44 6:11 6:44 5:4 LA: :11 :44 12:12 12:4 5:4 LA: :5: :5: :5: :5: :5: :5: :5: :
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND :30 10:30 10:30 10:45 AND :00 :15 :30	Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :10:51 THEN EVER :06 :21 :36	Qualcomm Stadium 0 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 10:59 Y 15 MINUTE :14 :29 :44 :59	SDSU 	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 TA: 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 :31 :31 :46 :01 :16	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51 :06 :21	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 54 LA: :18 11:18 11:18 11:18 11:18 11:33 54 LA: :03 :18 :33	Santee Town Ctr. — — 5:53 AND 23 5:53 11:23 11:28 12:53 AND 08	El Cajon — — 5:322 6:02 THEN EVEF :32 02 11:32 11:47 12:02P THEN EVEF :17	Grossmont Center 5:38a 6:08 87 30 MINUTE: 38 11:33 12:08pt 87 15 MINUTE: 23	SDSU O 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 22 25 25	Valley 0 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 10 MINUTO: :03 :33 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO: :48	Tov 5:1 5:4 6:1 6:4 5:4 12:1 12:2 12:4 5:4 12:5 12:4 5:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:4 12:5 12:5 12:4 12:5 12
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND :30 10:30 10:30 10:45 AND :00 :15 :30	Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :10:51 THEN EVER :06 :21 :36	Qualcomm Stadium 0 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 10:59 Y 15 MINUTE :14 :29 :44 :59	SDSU 4:52a 5:52 5:52 5 AT: / YLL 22 :52 VTIL: / HAS 10:52 11:07 5 AT: / YLL :22 :37 :52 :07	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 TA: 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 :31 :31 :46 :01 :16	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51 :06	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5 A LA: :48 :18 11:18 11:13 5 A LA: :48 :03 :18	Santee Town Ctr. - - 5:23a 5:53 AND 23 5:53 11:23 11:23 11:23 11:23 AND 08 223	El Cajon - 5:32a 6:02 THEN EVER :32 :02 11:32 11:47 12:02p THEN EVER :17 :32	Grossmont Center — — 5:38a 6:08 RY 30 MINUTE: :38 :08 UP 11:38 11:53 12:08 RY 15 MINUTE: :23 :38	SDSU O 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 25 57A: 11:55 12:10p 12:25 UEGO CADA 1 :40 :55	Valley O 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 100 MINUTO :03 :33 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO :48 :03	Tov 5:1 5:4 6:1 6:4 5 A LA: :1 :4 12:1 12:2 12:4 5 A LA: :5
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND :00 :30 10:45 AND :00 :15 :30 :45	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 THEN EVER :06 :21 :36 :51	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:14 5:44 9 30 MINUTE :14 10:59 9 15 MINUTE :14 :29 :44 :59 :44 :59	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :01 11:01 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 :31 :46 :01 :16 TA:	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51 :06 :21	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 54 LA: :18 11:18 11:18 11:18 11:18 11:33 54 LA: :03 :18 :33	Santee Town Ctr. - - 5:23a 5:53 AND 23 5:53 11:23 11:38 12:39 AND .08 223 3:38	El Cajon — — 5:32 :02 THEN EVER :32 :02 11:32 11:47 12:02p THEN EVER :17 :32 :47	Grossmont Center — — 5:38a 6:08 W 30 MINUTE 38 08 00 U 11:53 12:08 11:53 12:08 11:53 12:08 23 38 53 38 53 38 53 30 8	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 225 225 12:10p 12:25 UEGO CADA 1 12:25 UEGO CADA 1 2:25 12:10p 12:25	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 10 MINUTO :03 :33 12:03p 12:18 12:35 5 MINUTO :48 :03 :18	Tov 5:1 5:4 6:1 6:4 5:4 12:2 12:4 5:4 12:2 12:4 5:4 12:2 12:4 5:4 12:2 12:4 5:4 12:2 12:4 12:2 12:4
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND :00 :30 10:45 AND :00 :15 :30 :45 6:30p	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:51 THEN EVER :06 :21 :36 :51 6:36p	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 :44 Y 30 MINUTE :14 :04 10:54 Y 15 MINUTE :14 :29 :44 :59 UT 6:44p	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 11:07 5:4T: / YLL :22 :52 11:07 5:4T: / YLL :22 :52 11:07 5:47 :52 :52 :52 :52 :52 :52 :52 :52	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 :31 :31 11:01 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 :16 :16 :17a: 7:01p	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51 :06 :21 7:06p	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 6:18 6:18 5:4 Lat. :48 :18 11:18 11:18 11:18 11:18 11:18 11:13 5:4 LAt. :48 :33 :18 :33	Santee Town Ctr. - - 5:23a 5:53 AND 23 5:53 11:23 11:38 12:39 AND .08 223 3:38	El Cajon — — 5:32 :02 THEN EVER :32 :02 11:32 11:47 12:02p THEN EVER :17 :32 :47	Grossmont Center — — 5:38a 6:08 W 30 MINUTE 38 08 00 U 11:53 12:08 11:53 12:08 11:53 12:08 23 38 53 38 53 38 53 30 8	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 4:55a 5:25 5:55 6:25 225 225 12:10p 12:25 UEGO CADA 1 12:25 UEGO CADA 1 2:25 12:10p 12:25	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 10 MINUTO :03 :33 12:03p 12:18 12:35 5 MINUTO :48 :03 :18	Tov 5:1 5:4 6:1 6:4 5 A LA: :1 12:2 12:4 5 A LA: :5 :1 :2 :4
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 00 :30 10:30 10:45 AND :00 :15 300 :45 6:30p 7:00 7:30	Valley Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 5:36 10:51 THEN EVEN :06 :21 :36 :51 6:36p 7:06 7:36	Qualcomm Stadium 4:44a 5:14 5:44 3:44 4 0 10:54 10:59 15 MINUTE :14 10:59 15 Stalinutte :29 :44 5:9 0 0 6:44p 7:14	SDSU 4.52a 5.22 5.52 5.52 5.52 5.52 5.52 11.07 5.47: / YLL .22 11.07 5.47: / YLL .22 .37 .52 .07 NTIL: / HAS 6.52p 7.52 7.52	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:01a 5:01 6:01 0:10 0:10 110 1	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:010	Santee Town Ct. 5:48 5:48 6:18 5:4 L4: :48 :18 11:18 5:4 L4: :03 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :34 :33 :35 :34 :35 :35 :35 :35 :35 :35 :35 :35 :35 :35	Santee Town Ctr. - 5:23a 5:53 AND 23 5:53 11:23 11:38 12:53p AND 08 23 38 553 7:23	El Cajon 5.32a 6.02 THEN EVEF .32 .02 11.32 11.47 12:02 THEN EVEF .17 .32 .47 .02 7.32	Grossmont Center 5:38a 6:08 77 30 MINUTE 73 30 MINUTE 71 55 MINUTE 23 12:08p 71 55 MINUTE 23 38 08 07 7:38	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 100 MINUTO :03 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO :48 :03 :18 :33 8:03	Tov 5:1 5:4 6:1 6:4 5 A LA: 12:1 12:2 12:4 5 A LA: :5 :1 :2 :4 8:1
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 00 :30 10:30 10:45 AND :00 :15 :30 :45 6:30p 7:00 7:30 8:00	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 10:36	Qualcomm Stadium O 4:44a 5:14 5:44 4:44 4:44 4:44 10:59 7:15 10:44 10:59 7:15 10:44 29 4:44 29 4:44 29 4:44 8:14 8:14 10:59	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 10:52 11:07 5:52 11:07 5:52 11:07 5:52 11:07 5:2 5:2 5:2 5:2 11:07 5:2 5:2 5:2 5:2 5:2 5:2 5:2 5:2	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 9////////////////////////////////////	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:06 11:12 136 :06 :21 7:06p 7:36 8:36	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 6:18 5:4 L4: :48 :18 11:18 11:33 5:4 L4: :48 :03 :18 :33 7:18p 7:48 8:48	Santae Tom Ctr. O - - - - - - - - - - - - -	El Cajon 	Grossmont Center 5:38a 6:08 4:38 00 MINUTE 3:38 00 MINUTE 2:38 12:08p 47 15 MINUTE 2:23 12:08p 47 15 MINUTE 2:23 08 00 47:38 8:08	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 0 MINUTO: :03 :33 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO: :48 :03 8:03 8:33	Tov 5:1 5:4 6:1 6:4 5 A LA: 12:1 12:2 12:4 5 A LA: :5 :1 :2 :4 8:1 8:4
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 00 :30 10:45 AND :00 :15 :30 :45 6:30p 7:00 7:30 8:30	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 10:51 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:51 5:1 6:36p 7:06 7:36 8:06 8:36 8:36	Qualcomm Stadium 	SDSU 4.52a 5.22 5.52 S AT: / YLL 22 32 10:52 11:07 S AT: / YLL 22 37 52 :07 STL: / HAS 6:52p 7:22 7:52 8:52	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 9:EGO CADA 3 11:01 11:16 11:16 11:16 11:16 11:16 17:17 17:17 16:17 17	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51 :06 :21 7:06p 7:36 8:06 8:36 9:06	Santee Sontee 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5:48 6:18 5:48 11:18 11:18 11:33 5:4 L4: :48 :03 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :33 :18 :35 :18 :18 :18 :18 :18 :18 :18 :18 :18 :18	Santae Town Ctr. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	El Cajon 	Grossmont Center 5:38a 6:08 8' 30 MINUTE 38' 30 MINUTE 38' 30 11:53 12:08p 8' 15 MINUTE 23 38 53 308 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 	Valley 0 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 0 MINUTO: 033 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO: :48 :03 :18 :33 8:03 8:03 9:03	Tov 5:1 5:4 6:1 6:4 5:4 12:1 12:2 12:4 5:4 12:2 12:4 5:5 :1 :2 :4 8:1 12:2 12:4 8:4 8:4 9:1
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 00 :30 10:30 10:30 10:45 AND :00 :15 :30 :45 6:30p 7:30 8:30 9:00	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 10:06 10:06 10:05 10:05 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:55	Qualcomm Stadium O 4:44a 5:14 5:44 9:14 10:44 10:54 114 2:29 3:44 2:59 0 0 6:44p 7:14 7:14 8:14 8:14 8:14 8:14 9:14	SDSU 4:52a 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 10:52 11:07 5:52 11:07 5:52 3:7 5:52 3:55 3:5	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 :31 11:16 JEGO CADA 1 :16 001 :16 001 :16 7:01p 7:31 8:01 8:31 9:01 9:01 9:01	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 :06 11:06 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51 :06 :21 7:06p 7:36 8:06 8:36 9:36	Santee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 6:18 5:4 La: :48 :11:33 5:4 La: :48 :11:33 5:4 La: :48 :33 7:18p 7:48 8:48 9:48 9:48	Santee Town Ctr. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	El Cajon 	Grossmont Center 	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:03 6:03 6:03 6:03 6:03 12:03p 12:18 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO: :48 :03 8:33 8:03 8:33 9:03 9:33	Tox 5.11 5.44 6.1 6.4 6.1 6.4 6.4 6.1 12:2 12:4 12:2 12:4 8:1 8:4 8:1 8:4 9:1 9:4
Old Town 4:30a 5:30 5:30 5:30 10:30 10:45 4ND :00 :15 :30 :45 6:30p 7:30 8:30 9:30	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 10:36 10:36 10:51 THEN EVER :06 :21 :36 :51 6:36p 7:06 7:36 8:06 8:36 9:06 9:36	Qualcomm Stadium 	SDSU 4:52a 5:22 5:22 5:23 5:22 5:25 5:25 5:27 5:25 10:52 10:52 10:52 11:07 52 5:27 52 5:27 52 5:27 11:07 52 5:27 52 5:27 52 5:27	Grossmont Center 5:01 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 1 3:1 11:05 11:16	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 11:06 11:06 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51 :06 :21 7:06p 7:36 8:06 8:36 9:06 9:36 10:06	Santee Sonte Cr. D 5:18a 5:48 6:48 6:48 11:18 11	Santae Town Ctr. 5-23a 5-53 AND 5-53 11:23	El Cajon 	Grossmont Center 	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 6:03 12:03p 12:18 12:38 12:33 5 MINUTO: :48 :03 :18 :33 8:03 8:33 9:03 9:03 10:03	Tox 5:11 5:44 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 5:30 AND :00 :30 10:30 10:45 AND :00 :15 :30 :45 6:30p 7:00 7:30 8:30 9:30 10:00	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 5:36 10:36 10:36 10:51 THEN EVER :06 :26 :21 :36 :51 6:369 :51 6:369 :51 6:369 :36 8:06 8:36 8:36 9:36 9:36 9:36 9:36 9:36 10:0-51 10:56 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:56 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:51 10:55 10:55 10:55 10:55 10:55 10:56	Qualcomm Stadium 	SDSU 4:52a 5:52 5:52 5:55 5 AT: / YLL 22 5:52 11:07 5 AT: / YLL 22 37 5:52 37 5:52 37 52 32 52 37 52 32 52 52 52 52 52 52 52 52 52 5	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 31 0:16 7:42 11:16 31 11:16 31 34 46 30 11:16 7:01p 7:31 8:31 9:31 9:31 10:01 10:31	El Cajon S:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 11:20 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :21 7:06p 7:36 8:06 8:36 8:06 8:36 9:06 9:36 10:36	Sartee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 5:48 6:18 11:38 11:1	Santee Town Ctr. 5-23a 5-53 AND 223 5-53 11:28 11:38 12:530 A38 -33 -38 -33 -722 7:53 8-23 8-23 9-23 9-53	El Cajon 	Grossmont Center 	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 	Valley 5:03a 5:03 6:03 6:33 6:33 6:33 12:18 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO :48 :33 8:03 8:03 8:03 9:03 9:33 10:33	Tox 5:11 5:44 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 3:00 10:30 10:30 10:30 10:30 10:30 10:45 4:30p 7:00 7:00 7:00 7:30 8:30 9:30 9:30 9:30	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 10:51	Qualcomm Stadium Out 4:44a 5:14 5:44 9:30 MINUTE 9:30 MINUTE 10:45 10:59 9:15 MINUTE 114 2:29 3:44 3:59 U 6:44p 7:14 7:14 8:44 8:44 9:14 10:41 10:41	SDSU 0 4:52a 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 5:52 10:52 11:07 5:27 11:07 5:27 11:07 5:27 10:52 10:52 10:7 7:52 10:7 7:52 10:7 7:52 10:7 7:52 10:7 7:52 10:7 7:52 10:7 7:52 10:7 7:52 10:7 10:52 10:7 10:52	Grossmont Center 5:01 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 1 3:1 11:05 11:16	El Cajon 5:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 11:06 11:06 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :51 :06 :21 7:06p 7:36 8:06 8:36 9:06 9:36 10:06	Santee Sonte Cr. D 5:18a 5:48 6:48 6:48 11:18 11	Santae Town Ctr. 5-23a 5-53 AND 23 5-53 11:23 12:33 11:33 11:33 11:33 12:33 12:33 11:33 11:33 11:33 11:33 11:33 12:33 11	El Cajon 	Grossmont Center - - 5:38a 6:08 74 30 MINUTE 38 11:53 12:08p 74 15 MINUTE 23 12:08p 74 15 MINUTE 23 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 	Valley 5:03a 5:33 6:33 6:33 6:33 12:03p 12:18 12:33 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO :48 :03 :18 :33 8:03 8:33 9:33 10:03 10:03 11:03	Ton Construction Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton T
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 3:30 10:30 10:30 10:45 4:30 10:45 4:30 10:45 4:30 7:30 8:30 9:30 9:30 9:30 10:30	Valley Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 5:1 6:36p 7:06 8:36 9:06 9:36 10:06 10:06 10:06 10:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:07 1	Qualcomm Stadium 	SDSU 	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 31 0:16 7:42 11:16 31 11:16 31 34 46 30 11:16 7:01p 7:31 8:31 9:31 9:31 10:01 10:31	El Cajon S:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 11:20 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :21 7:06p 7:36 8:06 8:36 8:06 8:36 9:06 9:36 10:36	Sartee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 5:48 6:18 11:38 11:1	Santee Town Ctr. 5-23a 5-53 AND 223 5-53 11:28 11:38 12:530 A38 -33 -38 -33 -722 7:53 8-23 8-23 9-23 9-53	El Cajon 	Grossmont Center 	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 4.55a 5.25 5.25 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 3.55 2.55 3.55	Valley 5:03a 5:03a 6:03 6:03 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5:MINUTO: :03 :18 :33 8:03 8:03 9:03 9:03 10:33 11:03	Tow State 5:1 5:4 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4 6:4 12:2 12:4 12:2 12:4 12:2 12:4 8:1 8:4 8:1 8:4 9:1 10:4 10:1 11:4 10:4 11:1 11:4 12:2 12:4 11:4 1
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 4:30a 5:00 00 10:3	Valley 0 4:36a 5:06 5:36 10:51	Qualcomm Stadium Out 4:44a 5:14 5:14 5:44 9:30 MINUTE 10:45 10:59 9:15 MINUTE 1:14 2:29 4:44 5:59 9:45 9:44 7:14 7:14 8:44 9:14 10:44 10:14 10:41 10:44	SDSU 4:52a 5:52	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 31 0:16 7:42 11:16 31 11:16 31 34 46 30 11:16 7:01p 7:31 8:31 9:31 9:31 10:01 10:31	El Cajon S:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 11:20 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :21 7:06p 7:36 8:06 8:36 8:06 8:36 9:06 9:36 10:36	Sartee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 5:48 6:18 11:38 11:1	Santee Town Ctr. 5-23a 5-53 AND 2-3 5-53 11:28 1	El Cajon 	Grossmont Center 	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 	Valley 5:03a 5:03a 5:33 6:03 6:33 0 MINUTO: :03 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5 MINUTO: :48 :03 8:33 9:03 8:33 9:03 10:03 10:03 10:03 11:03 11:48	Toy Construction Toy Toy Solution Solutio
Old Town 4:30a 5:00 4:30a 5:00 4:30a 7:30 4:10 4:10 4:10 4:10 4:30a 10:45 4:30a 4:10 4:5 4:30a 4:5 4:30a 4:5 4:30a 4:5 4:30a 4:5 4:5 4:5 4:5 4:5 4:5 4:5 4:5	Valley Valley 4:36a 5:06 5:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 10:36 5:1 6:36p 7:06 8:36 9:06 9:36 10:06 10:06 10:06 10:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:06 11:07 1	Qualcomm Stadium 	SDSU 	Grossmont Center 5:01a 5:31 6:01 JEGO CADA 3 31 0:16 7:42 11:16 31 11:16 31 34 46 30 11:16 7:01p 7:31 8:31 9:31 9:31 10:01 10:31	El Cajon S:06a 5:36 6:06 0 MINUTO :36 11:20 11:21 5 MINUTO :36 :21 7:06p 7:36 8:06 8:36 8:06 8:36 9:06 9:36 10:36	Sartee Town Ctr. 5:18a 5:48 5:48 6:18 11:38 11:1	Santae Town Ctr. 5-23a 5-53 AND 23 5-53 11:23 12:33 11:33 11:33 11:33 12:33 12:33 11:33 11:33 11:33 11:33 11:33 12:33 11	El Cajon 	Grossmont Center - - 5:38a 6:08 74 30 MINUTE 38 11:53 12:08p 74 15 MINUTE 23 12:08p 74 15 MINUTE 23 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53 53	SDSU 	Qualcomm Stadium 4.55a 5.25 5.25 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 3.55 2.55 3.55	Valley 5:03a 5:03a 6:03 6:03 12:03p 12:18 12:33 5:MINUTO: :03 :18 :33 8:03 8:03 9:03 9:03 10:33 11:03	Ton Construction Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton T

12:00a	12:06a	1Z:14a	12:zza	_	_	_	11:23	11:32	11:30	11:47	11:55	12:038	12:108
							-	-	-	12:02a	12:10a	12:18	12:25
							-	_	-	12:32	12:40	12:48	12:55
					S	unday	/ doming	90					
5		EA	STBOU	IND		_			WE	STBOL	JND		_
Old	Fashion	Qualcomm	SDSU	Grossmont	EI	Santee	Santee	EI	Grossmont	SDSU	Qualcomm	Fashion	Old
Town	Valley	Stadium		Center	Cajon	Town Ctr.	Town Ctr.	Cajon	Center		Stadium	Valley	Town
0	0	0	0	0	Ó	0		Ó	0	0	0	0	0
4:30a	4:36a	4:44a	4:52a	5:01a	5:06a	5:18a	5:23a	5:32a	5:38a	5:47a	5:55a	6:03a	6:10a
AND 1	THEN EVER	Y 30 MINUTES	AT: / Y LU	UEGO CADA 3		SALA:	5:53	5:02	5:08	6:17	6:25	6:33	6:40
:00	:06	:14	:22	:31	:36	:48	AND	THEN EVER	Y 30 MINUTES	AT: / Y LU	JEGO CADA 3	0 MINUTOS	A LA:
:30	:36	:44	:52	:01	:06	:18	:23	:32	:38	:47	:55	:03	:10
		UN	TIL: / HAS	STA:			:53	:02	:08	:17	:25	:33	:40
10:00p	10:06p	10:14p	10:22p	10:31p	10:36p	10:48p	10:23p	10:32p	10:38p	10:47p	10:55p	11:03p	11:10p
10:30	10:36	10:44	10:52		_		-	_	_	11:02	11:10	11:18	11:25
1:00	11:06	11:14	11:22	_	_		10:53	11:02	11:08	11:17	11:25	11:33	11:40
1:30	11:36	11:44	11:52		_		_	_		11:32	11:40	11:48	11:55
12:00a	12:06a	12:14a	12:22a	_	_	_	-	_	_	12:02a	12:10a	12:18a	12:25a
							-	_	_	12:32	12:40	12:48	12:55

Orange Line 🌻

Monday through EASTBOUND WESTBOUND
 WESTBOUND
 WestBOUND

 Greatm.
 Spring
 Auteuto
 International Spring

 Center
 Spring
 Spring
 Auteuto
 International Spring

 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 O
 Gillespie Field 4:47a 5:02 5:17 5:32 5:47 Gillespie El Field Cajon 4:58a 5:04a 5:13 5:19 5:28 5:34 5:43 5:49 5:58 6:04 4:52a 5:07 5:22 5:37 5:52 4: :02 :17 :32 :47 AND THEN EVERY 15 N :07 :13 :19 :22 :28 :34 :37 :43 :49 :52 :58 :04 15 M :55 :10 :25 :40 :02 :17 :32 :47 MINUTES AT :25 :40 :55 :10 UNTIL AT: / Y LUEG :38 :53 :08 :23 TIL: / HASTA: 8:53p 9 9:23 9 9:53 10 10:53 11 11:23 11 11:53 12 12:53 1 1:23 1 :50 :05 :20 :35 :10 :25 :40 :55 8:02p 8:17 8:47 9:17 9:47 10:17 10:47 11:17 11:47 8:22p 8:52 9:22 9:52 10:22 10:52 11:22 11:52 UN 8:40p 9:10 9:40 10:10 10:40 11:10 11:40 12:10a 12:40 1:10 8:28p 8:58 9:28 9:58 10:28 10:58 11:28 11:58 12:28a 12:58 8:34p 9:04 9:34 10:04 10:34 11:04 11:34 12:04a 12:34 1:04 9:05p 9:35 10:05 10:35 11:05 11:35 12:05a 12:35 1:05 1:35 9:25p 9:55 10:25 10:55 11:25 11:25 12:25a 12:55 1:25 1:25 1:55 9:10p 9:40 10:10 10:40 11:10 11:40 12:10a 12:40 1:10 1:40 9:17p 9:47 10:17 10:47 11:17 11:47 12:17a 12:47 1:17 1:47 -
 EASTBOUND
 Eigenia

 Impedial America City
 12h 8. Sculd Scring Grossent. El Gillegie Imperial America Street Corr. Field

 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●
 ●

 WESTBOUND

 Gillessib ellio Grosent: Spring Euclid 12b Å City America Imperiation

 Gillessib ellio Grosent: Spring Euclid 12b Å City America Imperiation

 Gillessib ellio Grosent: Spring Euclid 12b Å City America Imperiation

 Gillessib ellio Grosent: Spring Euclid 12b Å City America Imperiation

 Gillessib ellio Grosent: Spring Euclid 12b Å City America Imperiation

 Gillessib ellio Grosent: Spring Euclid 12b Å City America Imperiation

 Gillessib ellio Grosent: Spring Euclid 12b Å City America Imperiation

 Gillessib ellio Grosent: Spring Euclid 12b Å

 Spring Euclid 12b Å</

4:45a	4:52a	4:58a	5:04a	5:16	5:29	5:35	5:40	5:47	5:52	5:58	6:04	6:10	6:23	6:35	6:40	6:47	6:55
AN	D THEN E	VERY 30	MINUTES	AT: / Y LU	UEGO CA	DA 30 MI	NUTOS A	LA:	AN	D THEN I	EVERY 30	MINUTES	AT: / Y L	UEGO CA	DA 30 MI	NUTOS A	LA:
:15	:22	:28	:34	:46	:59	:05	:10	:17	:22	:28	:34	:40	:53	:05	:10	:17	:25
:45	:52	:58	:04	:16	:29	:35	:40	:47	:52	:58	:04	:10	:23	:35	:40	:47	:55
			UN	TIL: / HAS	STA:							UN	TIL: / HA	STA:			
10:15	10:22	10:28	10:34	10:46	10:59	11:05	11:10	11:17	11:22	11:28	11:34	11:40	11:53	12:05p	12:10p	12:17p	12:25p
10:30	10:37	10:43	10:49	10:01	10:14	11:20	11:25	11:32	11:37	11:43	11:49	11:55	12:08p	12:20	12:25	12:32	12:40
AN	D THEN E	VERY 15	MINUTES	AT: / Y LU	UEGO CA	DA 15 MI	NUTOS A	LA:	AN	D THEN I	EVERY 15	MINUTES	AT: / Y L	UEGO CA	DA 15 MI	NUTOS A	LA:
:00	:07	:13	:19	:31	:44	:50	:55	:02	:07	:13	:19	:25	:38	:50	:55	:02	:10
:15	:22	:28	:34	:46	:59	:05	:10	:17	:22	:28	:34	:40	:53	:05	:10	:17	:25
:30	:37	:43	:49	:01	:14	:20	:25	:32	:37	:43	:49	:55	:08	:20	:25	:32	:40
:45	:52	:58	:04	:16	:29	:35	:40	:47	:52	:58	:04	:10	:23	:35	:40	:47	:55
			UN	TIL: / HAS	STA:							UN	TIL: / HA	STA:			
6:15p	6:22p	6:28p	6:34p	6:46p	6:59p	7:05p	7:10p	7:17p	7:22p	7:28p	7:34p	7:40p	7:53	8:05	8:10	8:17	8:25
6:45	6:52	6:58	7:04	7:16	7:29	7:35	7:40	7:47	7:52	7:58	8:04	8:10	8:23	8:35	8:40	8:47	8:55
7:15	7:22	7:28	7:34	7:46	7:59	8:05	8:10	8:17	8:22	8:28	8:34	8:40	8:53	9:05	9:10	9:17	9:25
7:45	7:52	7:58	8:04	8:16	8:29	8:35	8:40	8:47	8:52	8:58	9:04	9:10	9:23	9:35	9:40	9:47	9:55
8:15	8:22	8:28	8:34	8:46	8:59	9:05	9:10	9:17	9:22	9:28	9:34	9:40	9:53	10:05	10:10	10:17	10:25
8:45	8:52	8:58	9:04	9:16	9:29	9:35	9:40	9:47	9:52	9:58	10:04	10:10	10:23	10:35	10:40	10:47	10:55
9:15	9:22	9:28	9:34	9:46	9:59	10:05	10:10	10:17	10:22	10:28	10:34	10:40	10:53	11:05	11:10	11:17	11:25
9:45	9:52	9:58	10:04	10:16	10:29	10:35	10:40	10:47	10:52	10:58	11:04	11:10	11:23	11:35	11:40	11:47	11:55
10:15	10:22	10:28	10:34	10:46	10:59	11:05	11:10	11:17	11:22	11:28	11:34	11:40	11:53	12:05a	12:10a	12:17a	12:25a
10:45	10:52	10:58	11:04	11:16	11:29	11:35	11:40	11:47	11:52	11:58	12:04a	12:10a	12:23a	12:35	12:40	12:47	12:55
11:15	11:22	11:28	11:34	11:46	11:59	12:05a	12:10a	-	-	12:28a	12:34	12:40	12:53	1:05	1:10	1:17	1:25
11:45	11:52	11:58	12:04a	12:16a	12:29a	12:35	12:40	-	-	12:58	1:04	1:10	1:23	1:35	1:40	1:47	1:55
12:15a	12:22a	12:28a	12:34	12:46	12:59	1:05	1:10	-	-	1:28	1:34	1:40	1:53	2:05	2:10	2:17	2:25
							Su	nday	/ domi	inao							
			EAS	твои	IND -							WE	STBOI	JND -			-
Imperial	America	City	12th &	Euclid		Grossmt.	El	Gillespie	Gillespie	EI	Grossmt.	Spring	Euclid	12th &	City	America	Imperial
Terminal	Plaza	College	Imperial	Avenue	Street	Center	Cajon	Field	Field	Cajon	Center	Street	Avenue	Imperial	College	Plaza	Terminal
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	-0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
_	_	-	_	G 4:46a	4:59a	5:05a	5:10a	5:17a	5:22a	5:28a	5:34a	5:40a	5:53a	6:05a	6:10a	6:17a	6:25a
4:45a	4:52a	4:58a	5:04a	5:16	5:29	5:35	5:40	5:47			EVERY 30					NUTOS A	
						DA 30 MI			:22	:28	:34	:40	:53	:05	:10	:17	:25
:15	:22	:28	:34	:46	:59	:05	:10	:17	:52	:58	:04	:10	:23	:35	:40	:47	:55
:45	:52	:58	-04	:16	:29	:35	-40	-47			.04	.10	.23	.33	.40		

nza en la estación de 25th & Com

rial 9 minutor anter del tie

		EA:	SIBOU	ND							VVE	SIBOU	- סאו			_	
America	City	12th &	Euclid	Spring	Grossmt.	El	Gillespie	Gillespie	El	Grossmt.	Spring	Euclid	12th &	City	America	Imperial	
Plaza	College	Imperial	Avenue	Street	Center	Cajon	Field	Field	Cajon	Center	Street	Avenue	Imperial	College	Plaza	Terminal	
0	O	0	0	0	0	Ó	0	-0-	Ó	0	0	0	0	O [*]	0	0	,
_	_	_	G 4:46a	4:59a	5:05a	5:10a	5:17a	5:22a	5:28a	5:34a	5:40a	5:53a	6:05a	6:10a	6:17a	6:25a	
4:52a	4:58a	5:04a	5:16	5:29	5:35	5:40	5:47	AN	D THEN I	EVERY 30	MINUTES	AT: / Y L	UEGO CA	DA 30 MI	NUTOS A	LA:	
THEN E	VERY 30	MINUTES	AT: / Y LL	JEGO CA	DA 30 MIN	UTOS A	LA:	:22	:28	:34	:40	:53	:05	:10	:17	:25	
:22	:28	:34	:46	:59	:05	:10	:17	:52	:58	:04	:10	:23	:35	:40	:47	:55	
:52	:58	:04	:16	:29	:35	:40	:47				UN	TIL: / HAS	STA:				
		UN	TIL: / HAS	TA:				11:22p	11:28p	11:34p	11:40p	11:53p	12:05a	12:10a	12:17a	12:25a	
10.22-	10.29-	10.24	40.41-	40.50-	44.05-	44.40-	44.47.										

10:15p 10:22p 10:28p 10:34p 10:46p 10:59p 11:05p 11:10p 11:17p G = Trip begins at 25th & Commercial Station 9 minutes earlier than time shown. / Viaje con

4:45a AND 1 :15 :45

CASH FARES / Tarifas en efectivo

Exact fare, please / Favor de pagar la cantidad exacta	
Day Pass (Regional) / Pase diario (Regional)	\$5.00
One-Way Fare / Tarifa de una direccíon	\$2.25
Senior (60+)/Disabled/Medicare Mayores de 60 años/Discapacitados/Medicare	\$1.10*
Children 5 & under / Niños de 5 años o menos	FREE / GRATIS*
MONTHLY PASSES / Pases mensual	
MONTHLY PASSES / Pases mensual Adult / Adulto	\$72.00
	\$72.00 \$18.00*

DAY PASS (REGIONAL) / Pase diario (Regional) Valid for unlimited travel for one person on Trolley, most MTS buses, NCTD Breeze and SPRINTER. Valid for a discount on COASTER fares; not valid on Premium Express, Rural, or special service buses, or ADA partaransit.

Of AUN paratransu. Válidos para viajes ilimitados de una sola persona para: el Trolley, la mayoría de los autobuses de MTS, y los servicios del NCTD de BREEZE y SPRINTER. Válidos para acceder a descuentos en el COASTER, pero no para las rutas Premium Express ni runales, los servicios especiales ni los servicios para discapacitados de ADA.

* I.D. required for discount fare or pass. * Se requiere identificación para tarifas o pases de descuento.

DIRECTORY / Directorio	
Regional Transit Information Información de transporte público regional	511 ^{or/ó} (619) 233-3004
TTY/TDD (teletype for hearing impaired) Teletipo para sordos	(619) 234-5005 or/ó (888) 722-4889
InfoExpress (24-hour info via Touch-Tone phone) Información las 24 horas (via teléfono de teclas)	(619) 685-4900
Customer Service / Suggestions Servicio al cliente / Sugerencias	(619) 656-2300
SafeWatch	(619) 557-4500
Lost & Found Objetos extraviados	(619) 427-6438 or/ó (800) 409-3310
The Transit Store 1st & Broadway	(619) 234-1060 , Downtown San Diego M–F 9am–5pm
For MTS online trip planning Planificación de viajes por Internet	ww.sd mts .com

For more information on riding MTS services, pick up a Rider's Guide on a bus or at the Transit Store, or visit www.sdmts.com. Para obtener más información sobre el uso de los servicios de MTS, recoga un 'Rider's Guide' en un autobús o en 'The Transit Store,' o visita a www.sdmts.com.

Thank you for riding MTS! ¡Gracias por viajar con MTS!





The schedules and other information shown in this timetable are subject to change. MTS does not assume responsibility for errors in timetables nor for any inconvenience caused by delayed buses. Los horarios e información que se indican en este itinerario están sujetos a cambios. MTS no asume responsabilidad por errores en los itinerarios, ni por ningún perjuicio que se origine por los autobuses demorados.

Alternative formats available upon request. Please call: (619) 557-4555 / Formato alternativo disponible al preguntar. Favor de llamar: (619) 557-4555

_incoln Pa	ark 🖚 Dov	wntown 🔿	Hillcrest				Hillcrest =	 Downto 	wn 🖶 Lin	coln Park			
A	B	(C)	D	Ē	F	G	G	F	E	D	C	B	A
Euclid Ave. Trolley Station DEPART	47th St. & Logan Ave.	25th & Commercial Trolley Station	Park & Market Trolley Station	5th Ave. & Broadway	5th Ave. & University Ave.	UCSD Medical Center ARRIVE	UCSD Medical Center DEPART	4th Ave. & University Ave.	4th Ave. & Broadway	Park & Market Trolley Station	25th & Commercial Trolley Station	Logan Ave. & 47th St.	Euclid Ave. Trolley Station ARRIVE
5:35a	5:41a	5:54a	6:01a	6:07a	6:19a	6:23a	5:57a	6:01a	6:13a	6:19a	6:26a	6:38a	6:45a
6:55	7:01	7:14	7:21	7:27	7:39	7:43	7:20	7:24	7:37	7:43	7:50	8:03	8:11
7:55	8:01	8:15	8:23	8:29	8:42	8:47	8:20	8:24	8:37	8:43	8:50	9:03	9:11
8:55	9:02	9:16	9:26	9:32	9:46	9:51	9:17	9:22	9:37	9:44	9:52	10:06	10:14
9:55	10:02	10:16	10:26	10:32	10:46	10:51	10:17	10:22	10:37	10:44	10:52	11:06	11:14
10:55	11:02	11:16	11:26	11:33	11:48	11:53	11:15	11:21	11:37	11:44	11:52	12:08p	12:16p
11:55	12:02p	12:16p	12:26p	12:33p	12:48p	12:53p	12:15p	12:21p	12:37p	12:44p	12:52p	1:08	1:16
12:55p	1:02	1:16	1:26	1:33	1:48	1:53	1:15	1:21	1:37	1:44	1:52	2:08	2:16
1:55	2:03	2:18	2:28	2:36	2:51	2:56	2:16	2:22	2:38	2:45	2:54	3:10	3:19
2:55	3:03	3:18	3:28	3:36	3:51	3:56	3:16	3:22	3:38	3:45	3:54	4:10	4:19
3:55	4:03	4:18	4:28	4:36	4:51	4:56	4:16	4:22	4:38	4:45	4:54	5:10	5:19
4:55	5:03	5:17	5:26	5:33	5:47	5:52	5:16	5:22	5:37	5:44	5:52	6:07	6:15
5:55	6:02	6:15	6:24	6:31	6:44	6:49	6:19	6:24	6:38	6:44	6:53	7:07	7:14
6:55	7:02	7:15	7:24	7:31	7:44	7:49	7:23	7:27	7:39	7:45	7:53	8:06	8:13

*A Saturday or Sunday schedule will be operated on most holidays and observed holidays, including New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. For holiday service details, visit www.sdmts.com or call S11. *Se operaria con horario de sibado o domingo durante la mayoria de los dias festivos y teriados observados. Los dias festivos incluyen Año Nuevo, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Dia de la Independencia (E.E.U.U.), Labor Day, Dia de Acción de Gracias y Navidad. Prar detailes sobre el servicio en dias festivos, visite www.sdmts.com o Ilame al S11.

incoln D	ark 🛋 Da		Hillcrost				Hillcrost -		wn 🛋 Lin	coln Park			
0		wntown ➡	-					-	<u>wn ➡ Line</u>	-			<u> </u>
(A) Euclid Ave.	(B) 47th St.	C 25th &	D Park &	E 5th Ave.	F 5th Ave. &		G UCSD	F 4th Ave. &	E 4th Ave.	D Park &	C 25th &	B Logan Ave.	A Euclid Av
olley Station DEPART	& Logan Ave.	Commercial Trolley Station	Market Trolley Station	& Broadway	University Ave.	Medical Center ARRIVE	Medical Center DEPART	University Ave.	& Broadway	Market Trolley Station	Commercial Trolley Station	47th St.	Trolley Sta
4:55a	5:01a	5:14a	5:21a	5:27a	5:38a	5:43a	4:56a	5:00a	5:11a	5:16a	5:22a	5:35a	5:42
5:25	5:31	5:44	5:51	5:57	6:08	6:13	5:26	5:30	5:41	5:46	5:52	6:05	6:12
5:44	5:50	6:03	6:10	6:16	6:27	6:32	5:50	5:54	6:05	6:10	6:16	6:29	6:36
5:58	6:05	6:20	6:28	6:34	6:46	6:51	6:20	6:24	6:36	6:42	6:48	7:02	7:10
6:13	6:20	6:35	6:43	6:49	7:01	7:06	6:33	6:38	6:51	6:58	7:04	7:18	7:27
6:28	6:35	6:50	6:58	7:04	7:16	7:21	6:48	6:53	7:06	7:13	7:19	7:33	7:42
6:42	6:49	7:05	7:14	7:20	7:33	7:38	7:03	7:08	7:21	7:28	7:34	7:48	7:57
6:57 7:13	7:04 7:20	7:21 7:37	7:30 7:46	7:36 7:52	7:49 8:05	7:55	7:18 7:33	7:23 7:38	7:36 7:51	7:43 7:58	7:49 8:04	8:03 8:18	8:12 8:27
7:28	7:35	7:52	8:01	8:07	8:03	8:11 8:27	7:48	7:53	8:06	8:13	8:19	8:33	8:42
7:43	7:51	8:07	8:17	8:23	8:37	8:43	8:03	8:08	8:21	8:28	8:34	8:48	8:57
7:58	8:06	8:22	8:32	8:38	8:53	8:59	8:18	8:23	8:36	8:43	8:49	9:03	9:12
8:13	8:21	8:37	8:47	8:53	9:08	9:14	8:31	8:37	8:51	8:58	9:05	9:19	9:28
8:28	8:36	8:52	9:02	9:08	9:23	9:29	8:45	8:51	9:06	9:13	9:20	9:35	9:44
8:43	8:51	9:07	9:17	9:23	9:39	9:45	9:00	9:06	9:21	9:28	9:35	9:50	9:59
8:58	9:06	9:22	9:32	9:38	9:54	10:01	9:15	9:21	9:36	9:43	9:50	10:05	10:14
9:13	9:21	9:37	9:47	9:53	10:09	10:16	9:30	9:36	9:51	9:58	10:05	10:20	10:29
9:28	9:36	9:52	10:02	10:08	10:24	10:31	9:45	9:51	10:06	10:13	10:20	10:35	10:44
9:43	9:51	10:07	10:17	10:23	10:39	10:46	10:00	10:06	10:21	10:28	10:35	10:50	10:59
9:58 10:13	10:06	10:22 10:37	10:32 10:47	10:38	10:54 11:09	11:01	10:15 10:30	10:21 10:36	10:36	10:43	10:50	11:05 11:20	11:14 11:29
10:13	10:21 10:36	10:37	10:47	10:53 11:08	11:09	11:16 11:31	10:30	10:56	10:51 11:06	10:58 11:13	11:05 11:20	11:20	11:25
10:23	10:50	11:07	11:17	11:24	11:40	11:47	10:45	11:06	11:21	11:28	11:35	11:50	11:59
10:58	11:06	11:22	11:32	11:40	11:56	12:03p	11:13	11:20	11:36	11:43	11:51	12:06p	12:15
11:13	11:21	11:37	11:47	11:55	12:11p	12:18	11:28	11:35	11:51	11:58	12:06p	12:21	12:30
11:28	11:36	11:52	12:02p	12:10p	12:26	12:33	11:43	11:50	12:06p	12:13p	12:21	12:36	12:45
11:43	11:51	12:07p	12:17	12:25	12:41	12:48	11:58	12:05p	12:21	12:28	12:36	12:51	1:00
11:58	12:06p	12:22	12:32	12:40	12:56	1:03	12:13p	12:20	12:36	12:43	12:51	1:06	1:15
12:13p	12:21	12:37	12:47	12:55	1:11	1:18	12:28	12:35	12:51	12:58	1:06	1:21	1:30
12:28	12:36	12:52	1:02	1:10	1:26	1:33	12:43	12:50	1:06	1:13	1:21	1:36	1:45
12:43 12:57	12:51	1:07	1:17	1:25	1:41 1:55	1:48	12:58	1:05	1:21	1:28	1:36	1:51	2:00
12:57	1:05 1:19	1:21 1:35	1:31 1:45	1:39 1:53	2:09	2:02 2:16	1:13 1:28	1:20 1:35	1:36 1:51	1:43 1:58	1:51 2:07	2:06 2:24	2:15 2:34
1:25	1:33	1:49	1:59	2:07	2:23	2:30	1:43	1:50	2:06	2:13	2:22	2:39	2:49
1:40	1:48	2:04	2:14	2:22	2:38	2:45	1:58	2:05	2:21	2:28	2:37	2:54	3:04
1:55	2:03	2:19	2:29	2:37	2:53	3:00	2:13	2:20	2:36	2:43	2:52	3:09	3:19
2:09	2:18	2:35	2:45	2:53	3:08	3:14	2:28	2:35	2:51	2:58	3:07	3:24	3:34
2:24	2:33	2:50	3:00	3:08	3:23	3:29	2:43	2:50	3:06	3:13	3:22	3:39	3:49
2:39	2:48	3:05	3:15	3:23	3:38	3:44	2:58	3:05	3:21	3:28	3:37	3:54	4:04
2:54	3:03	3:20	3:30	3:38	3:53	3:59	3:13	3:20	3:36	3:43	3:52	4:09	4:19
3:09	3:18	3:35	3:45	3:53	4:08	4:14	3:28	3:35	3:51	3:58	4:07	4:24	4:34
3:24 3:39	3:33 3:48	3:50 4:05	4:00 4:15	4:08 4:23	4:23 4:38	4:29	3:43 3:58	3:50 4:05	4:06	4:13 4:28	4:22 4:37	4:39 4:54	4:49 5:04
3:54	3:46 4:03	4:05	4:15	4:23	4:58	4:44 4:59	4:13	4:05	4:21 4:36	4:28	4:57	4:54 5:09	5:04
4:09	4:18	4:35	4:45	4:53	5:08	5:14	4:28	4:35	4:51	4:58	5:07	5:24	5:34
4:24	4:33	4:50	5:00	5:08	5:23	5:29	4:43	4:50	5:06	5:13	5:22	5:39	5:49
4:39	4:48	5:05	5:15	5:23	5:38	5:44	4:58	5:05	5:21	5:28	5:37	5:54	6:04
4:54	5:03	5:20	5:30	5:38	5:53	5:59	5:13	5:20	5:36	5:43	5:51	6:08	6:17
5:10	5:19	5:36	5:45	5:52	6:05	6:11	5:28	5:34	5:49	5:56	6:04	6:21	6:30
5:25	5:33	5:49	5:58	6:05	6:18	6:24	5:42	5:48	6:03	6:10	6:18	6:34	6:42
5:41	5:49	6:03	6:12	6:19	6:31	6:37	5:57	6:03	6:18	6:25	6:33	6:49	6:57
5:55	6:03	6:17	6:26	6:33	6:45	6:51	6:13	6:19	6:33	6:40	6:48	7:04	7:12
6:10 6:25	6:18 6:33	6:32 6:47	6:41 6:56	6:48 7:03	7:00 7:15	7:06 7:21	6:29 6:45	6:35 6:50	6:48 7:03	6:55 7:10	7:02 7:17	7:18 7:32	7:25
6:25 6:48	6:33	6:47 7:10	0:50 7:19	7:03	7:15	7:21	6:45 7:15	6:50 7:20	7:03	7:10	7:17	7:32 8:01	7:35
0:46 7:18	0:50 7:25	7:38	7:19	7:20	8:05	8:10	7:15	7:20	8:03	7:40 8:09	8:16	8:01	8:00
7:18	7:25	8:08	7:40 8:16	7:53 8:23	8:05	8:40	8:20	8:25	8:03	8:09	8:49	9:03	9:10
8:18	8:25	8:38	8:46	8:53	9:05	9:10	8:51	8:56	9:08	9:14	9:20	9:34	9:4
8:48	8:55	9:08	9:16	9:23	9:35	9:40	9:21	9:26	9:38	9:44	9:50	10:04	10:1
9:24	9:30	9:42	9:49	9:56	10:07	10:12	9:53	9:57	10:08	10:14	10:20	10:33	10:40
9:54	10:00	10:12	10:19	10:26	10:37	10:42	10:23	10:27	10:38	10:44	10:50	11:03	11:10
10:24	10:30	10:42	10:49	10:56	11:07	11:12	11:23	11:27	11:38	11:44	11:50	12:03a	12:10
11:24	11:30	11:42	11:49	11:56	12:07a	12:12a							

<u>incoln Pa</u>	ark 🖚 Dov	wntown 🔿	Hillcrest				Hillcrest =	Downto	own 🔿 Line	coln Park			
A Euclid Ave. Trolley Station DEPART	B 47th St. & Logan Ave.	25th & Commercial Trolley Station	D Park & Market Trolley Station	E 5th Ave. & Broadway	F 5th Ave. & University Ave.	G UCSD Medical Center ARRIVE	G UCSD Medical Center DEPART	(F) 4th Ave. & University Ave.	E 4th Ave. & Broadway	D Park & Market Trolley Station	25th & Commercial Trolley Station	B Logan Ave. & 47th St.	A Euclid Ave. Trolley Station ARRIVE
5:19a	5:25a	5:38a	5:45a	5:51a	6:03a	6:07a	6:05a	6:09a	6:21a	6:27a	6:34a	6:46a	6:53a
5:49	5:55	6:08	6:15	6:21	6:33	6:37	6:35	6:39	6:51	6:57	7:04	7:16	7:23
6:19	6:25	6:38	6:45	6:51	7:03	7:07	7:05	7:09	7:21	7:27	7:34	7:46	7:53
6:49	6:55	7:08	7:15	7:21	7:33	7:37	7:34	7:38	7:51	7:57	8:04	8:17	8:25
7:17	7:23	7:37	7:45	7:51	8:04	8:09	8:04	8:08	8:21	8:27	8:34	8:47	8:55
7:47	7:53	8:07	8:15	8:21	8:34	8:39	8:34	8:38	8:51	8:57	9:04	9:17	9:25
8:17	8:23	8:37	8:45	8:51	9:04	9:09	9:01	9:06	9:21	9:28	9:36	9:50	9:58
8:46	8:53	9:07	9:17	9:23	9:37	9:42	9:31	9:36	9:51	9:58	10:06	10:20	10:28
9:16	9:23	9:37	9:47	9:53	10:07	10:12	10:01	10:06	10:21	10:28	10:36	10:50	10:58
9:46	9:53	10:07	10:17	10:23	10:37	10:42	10:31	10:36	10:51	10:58	11:06	11:20	11:28
10:16	10:23	10:37	10:47	10:53	11:07	11:12	11:01	11:06	11:21	11:28	11:36	11:50	11:58
10:46	10:53	11:07	11:17	11:24	11:39	11:44	11:29	11:35	11:51	11:58	12:06p	12:22p	12:30p
11:16	11:23	11:37	11:47	11:54	12:09p	12:14p	11:59	12:05p	12:21p	12:28p	12:36	12:52	1:00
11:46	11:53	12:07p	12:17p	12:24p	12:39	12:44	12:29p	12:35	12:51	12:58	1:06	1:22	1:30
12:16p	12:23p	12:37	12:47	12:54	1:09	1:14	12:59	1:05	1:21	1:28	1:36	1:52	2:00
12:46	12:53	1:07	1:17	1:24	1:39	1:44	1:29	1:35	1:51	1:58	2:06	2:22	2:30
1:14	1:22	1:37	1:47	1:55	2:10	2:15	1:59	2:05	2:21	2:28	2:36	2:52	3:00
1:44	1:52	2:07	2:17	2:25	2:40	2:45	2:29	2:35	2:51	2:58	3:07	3:23	3:32
2:14	2:22	2:37	2:47	2:55	3:10	3:15	2:59	3:05	3:21	3:28	3:37	3:53	4:02
2:44	2:52	3:07	3:17	3:25	3:40	3:45	3:29	3:35	3:51	3:58	4:07	4:23	4:32
3:14	3:22	3:37	3:47	3:55	4:10	4:15	3:59	4:05	4:21	4:28	4:37	4:53	5:02
3:44	3:52	4:07	4:17	4:25	4:40	4:45	4:29	4:35	4:51	4:58	5:07	5:23	5:32
4:16	4:24	4:38	4:47	4:54	5:08	5:13	5:00	5:06	5:21	5:28	5:36	5:51	5:59
4:46	4:54	5:08	5:17	5:24	5:38	5:43	5:30	5:36	5:51	5:58	6:06	6:21	6:29
5:16	5:24	5:38	5:47	5:54	6:08	6:13	6:02	6:07	6:21	6:27	6:36	6:50	6:57
5:48	5:55	6:08	6:17	6:24	6:37	6:42	6:32	6:37	6:51	6:57	7:06	7:20	7:27
6:18	6:25	6:38	6:47	6:54	7:07	7:12	7:02	7:07	7:21	7:27	7:36	7:50	7:57
6:48	6:55	7:08	7:17	7:24	7:37	7:42	7:35	7:39	7:51	7:57	8:05	8:18	8:25
7:24	7:31	7:43	7:51	7:58	8:10	8:14	8:05	8:09	8:21	8:27	8:35	8:48	8:55
8:24	8:31	8:43	8:51	8:58	9:10	9:14	8:35	8:39	8:51	8:57	9:05	9:18	9:25
9:24	9:30	9:42	9:49	9:56	10:08	10:12	9:24	9:28	9:40	9:46	9:54	10:07	10:14
10:24	10:30	10:42	10:49	10:56	11:08	11:12	10:23	10:27	10:38	10:44	10:51	11:04	11:10
							11:23	11:27	11:38	11:44	11:51	12:04a	12:10a

*A Saturday or Sunday schedule will be operated on most holidays and observed holidays, including New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. For holiday service details, visit www.sdmts.com or call 511. *Se operaria con horario de sabado o domingo durante la mayoria de los dais festivos y feriados observados. Los dias festivos incluyen Año Nuevo, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Dia de la Independencia (E.E.U.U.), Labor Day, Dia de Acción de Gracias y Navidad. Para detailes borber el servicio en dias festivos, visite www.sdmts.com or lame al 511.

CASH FARES / Tarifas en efectivo

Exact fare, please / Favor de pagar la cantidad exacta	
Day Pass (Regional) / Pase diario (Regional)	\$5.00
One-Way Fare / Tarifa de una direccíon	\$2.25
Senior (60+)/Disabled/Medicare Mayores de 60 años/Discapacitados/Medicare	\$1.10*
Children 5 & under / Niños de 5 años o menores	FREE / GRATIS*
MONTHLY PASSES / Pases mensual	
Adult / Adulto	\$72.00
Senior (60+)/Disabled/Medicare Mayores de 60 años/Discapacitados/Medicare	\$18.00*
Youths (18 and under) Jóvenes (18 años o menores)	\$36.00*

DAY PASS (REGIONAL) / Pase diario (Regional) Valid for unlimited travel for one person on Trolley, most MTS buses, NCTD Breeze and SPRINTER. Valid for a discount on COASTER fares; not valid on Premium Express, Rural, or special service buses, or ADA paratransit.

Of AUN paratransu. Válidos para viajes ilimitados de una sola persona para: el Trolley, la mayoría de los autobuses de MTS, y los servicios del NCTD de BREEZE y SPRINTER. Válidos para acceder a descuentos en el COASTER, pero no para las rutas Premium Express ni runales, los servicios especiales ni los servicios para discapacitadas de ADA.

* I.D. required for discount fare or pass. * Se requiere identificación para tarifas o pases de descuento

DIRECTORY / Directorio	
Regional Transit Information Información de transporte público regional	511 ^{or/ó} (619) 233-3004
TTY/TDD (teletype for hearing impaired Teletipo para sordos	(619) 234-5005 or/ó (888) 722-4889
InfoExpress (24-hour info via Touch-Tone phone) Información las 24 horas (via teléfono de tecla	(619) 685-4900
Customer Service / Suggestions Servicio al cliente / Sugerencias	(619) 557-4555
SafeWatch	(619) 557-4500
The Transit Store / Lost & Found The Transit Store / Objetos extraviados	(619) 234-1060
Articles found on the bus are turned in at The Transit Store Artículos encontrados en los autobuses son entregados a The Transit Store	1st & Broadway Downtown San Diego M–F 9am–5pm
For MTS online trip planning Planificación de viajes por Internet	www.sd mts .com

For more information on riding MTS services, pick up a Rider's Guide on a bus or at the Transit Store, or visit www.sdmts.com Para obtener más información sobre el uso de los servicios de MTS, recoga un 'Rider's Guide' en un autobús o en 'The Transit Store,' o visita a www.sdmts.com.

Thank you for riding MTS! ¡Gracias por viajar con MTS!





Route 4						Sunday* /	domingo*						
Lomita Vi	llage 🔿 D	owntown					Downtow	/n ➡ Lomi	ita Village				
A Paradise Valley & Meadowbrook DEPART	B Cardiff St. & Jamacha Rd.	C Imperial Ave. & 62nd St.	D Euclid Trolley Station	E Imperial Ave. & 47th St.	F Imperial Ave. & 32nd St.	G 12th & Imperial Transit Center ARRIVE	G 12th & Imperial Transit Center DEPART	(F) Imperial Ave & 32nd St.	E Imperial Ave. & 47th St.	D Euclid Trolley Station	C Imperial Ave. & 62nd St.	B Cardiff St. & Jamacha Rd.	A Paradise Valley & Meadowbrook ARRIVE
5:17a D	5:25a	5:32a	5:39a	5:43a	5:50a	5:57a	7:02a	7:10a	7:17a	7:24a	7:32a	7:39a	7:47a
7:01 D	7:09	7:16	7:24	7:28	7:35	7:43	8:02	8:10	8:17	8:24	8:32	8:39	8:47
8:00	8:09	8:16	8:24	8:28	8:35	8:43	9:02	9:10	9:17	9:24	9:32	9:39	9:47
8:58	9:08	9:15	9:24	9:29	9:37	9:45	10:02	10:10	10:17	10:24	10:32	10:39	10:47
9:58	10:08	10:15	10:24	10:29	10:37	10:45	10:59	11:08	11:16	11:24	11:32	11:40	11:48
10:58	11:08	11:15	11:24	11:29	11:37	11:45	11:59	12:08p	12:16p	12:24p	12:32p	12:40p	12:48p
11:58	12:08p	12:15p	12:24p	12:29p	12:37p	12:45p	12:59p	1:08	1:16	1:24	1:32	1:40	1:48
12:56p	1:06	1:14	1:24	1:29	1:37	1:45	1:29	1:38	1:46	1:54	2:02	2:10	2:18
1:56	2:06	2:14	2:24	2:29	2:37	2:45	1:59	2:08	2:16	2:24	2:32	2:40	2:48
2:26	2:36	2:44	2:54	2:59	3:07	3:15	2:29	2:38	2:46	2:54	3:02	3:10	3:18
2:56	3:06	3:14	3:24	3:29	3:37	3:45	2:59	3:08	3:16	3:24	3:32	3:40	3:48
3:26	3:36	3:44	3:54	3:59	4:07	4:15	3:29	3:38	3:46	3:54	4:02	4:10	4:18
3:56	4:06	4:14	4:24	4:29	4:37	4:45	3:59	4:08	4:16	4:24	4:32	4:40	4:48
4:26	4:36	4:44	4:54	4:59	5:07	5:15	4:29	4:38	4:46	4:54	5:02	5:10	5:18
4:56	5:06	5:14	5:24	5:29	5:37	5:45	4:59	5:08	5:16	5:24	5:32	5:40	5:48
5:59	6:08	6:15	6:24	6:28	6:35	6:43	5:29	5:38	5:46	5:54	6:02	6:10	6:18
							5:59	6:08	6:16	6:24	6:32	6:40	6:48
							6:29	6:38	6:46	6:54	7:02	7:10	7:18
							7:02	7:10	7:17	7:24	7:32	7:39	7:46
							8:02	8:10	8:17	8:24	8:32	8:39	8:46

D = Trip begins on Deep Dell Road at Paradise Valley Road at time shown. / Este viaje comienza en Deep Dell Rd. y Paradise Valley Rd. a la hora indica. *A Saturday or Sunday schedule will be operated on most holidays and observed holidays, including New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. For holiday service details, visit www.sdmts.com or call 511. *Se operaria con horario de sibado o domingo durante la majoria de los dias festivos y los dias de asueto a guardar. Los dias festivos, vibre el servicio en dias festivos, vibre el servicio en dias festivos, vibre www.sdmts.com or call 511. Prara detalles Sobre el servicio en dias festivos, vibre vibre on lame al \$11.

The schedules and other information shown in this timetable are subject to change. MTS does not assume responsibility for errors in timetables nor for any inconvenience caused by delayed buses. Los horarios y información que se indican en este itinerario están sujetos a cambios. MTS no asume responsabilidad por errores en los itinerarios, ni por ningún perjuicio que se origine por los autobuses demorados



Monthly transit passes are now available at all 56 Vons grocery stores locations in San Diego County.

Visit www.sdmts.com for a complete list of locations.

Alternative formats are available upon request. Please call: / Formato alternativo disponible al preguntar. Favor de llamar: (619) 231-1466

Lomita Vi	illage 🔿 D	owntown					Downtow	n 🔿 Lomi	ta Village				
A Paradise Valley & Meadowbrook DEPART	- B)	C Imperial Ave. & 62nd St.	D Euclid Trolley Station	E Imperial Ave. & 47th St.	(F) Imperial Ave. & 32nd St.	G 12th & Imperial Transit Center ARRIVE	G 12th & Imperial Transit Center DEPART	F Imperial Ave & 32nd St.	E Imperial Ave. & 47th St.	D Euclid Trolley Station	C Imperial Ave. & 62nd St.	B Cardiff St. & Jamacha Rd.	A Paradise Valley & Meadowbroo ARRIVE
4:42a D	4:49a	4:57a	5:05a	5:08a	5:15a	5:22a	5:40a	5:46a	5:53a	6:00a	6:06a	6:13a	6:20a
5:12 D	5:19	5:27	5:35	5:38	5:45	5:52	6:10	6:17	6:25	6:33	6:39	6:47	6:55
5:42 D	5:49	5:57	6:05	6:08	6:15	6:22	6:40	6:47	6:56	7:05	7:12	7:20	7:28
6:09 D	6:17	6:26	6:35	6:39	6:47	6:54	7:10	7:17	7:26	7:35	7:42	7:50	7:58
6:35	6:45	6:55	7:05	7:10	7:19	7:27	7:40	7:47	7:56	8:05	8:12	8:20	8:28
7:04	7:14	7:25	7:36	7:41	7:50	7:58	8:10	8:17	8:26	8:35	8:42	8:50	8:58
7:36	7:46	7:56	8:07	8:11	8:20	8:28	8:40	8:47	8:56	9:05	9:12	9:20	9:28
8:06	8:16	8:26	8:37	8:41	8:50	8:58	9:10	9:17	9:26	9:35	9:42	9:50	9:58
8:38	8:47	8:57	9:07	9:11	9:20	9:28	9:40	9:48	9:57	10:06	10:14	10:22	10:30
9:08	9:17	9:27	9:37	9:41	9:50	9:58	10:10	10:18	10:27	10:36	10:44	10:52	11:00
9:38	9:47	9:57	10:07	10:11	10:20	10:28	10:40	10:48	10:57	11:06	11:14	11:22	11:30
10:08	10:17	10:27	10:37	10:41	10:50	10:58	11:10	11:18	11:27	11:36	11:44	11:52	12:00p
10:38	10:47	10:57	11:07	11:11	11:20	11:28	11:40	11:49	11:59	12:08p	12:18p	12:27p	12:36
11:08	11:17	11:27	11:37	11:41	11:50	11:58	12:10p	12:19p	12:29p	12:38	12:48	12:57	1:06
11:38	11:47	11:57	12:07p	12:11p	12:20p	12:28p	12:40	12:49	12:59	1:08	1:18	1:27	1:36
12:08p	12:17p	12:27p	12:37	12:41	12:50	12:58	1:10	1:19	1:29	1:38	1:48	1:57	2:06
12:38	12:47	12:57	1:07	1:11	1:20	1:28	1:40	1:49	1:59	2:08	2:18	2:27	2:36
1:08	1:17	1:27	1:37	1:41	1:50	1:58	2:10	2:19	2:29	2:38	2:48	2:57	3:06
1:34	1:44	1:54	2:05	2:10	2:19	2:28	2:40	2:50	3:00	3:10	3:20	3:30	3:39
2:04	2:14	2:24	2:35	2:40	2:49	2:58	3:10	3:20	3:30	3:40	3:50	4:00	4:09
2:34	2:44	2:54	3:05	3:10	3:19	3:28	3:40	3:50	4:00	4:10	4:20	4:30	4:39
3:04	3:14	3:24	3:35	3:40	3:49	3:58	4:10	4:20	4:30	4:40	4:50	5:00	5:09
3:34	3:44	3:54	4:05	4:10	4:19	4:28	4:40	4:50	5:00	5:10	5:20	5:30	5:39
4:04	4:14	4:24	4:35	4:40	4:49	4:58	5:10	5:19	5:29	5:39	5:49	5:58	6:06
4:34	4:44	4:54	5:05	5:10	5:19	5:28	5:40	5:49	5:58	6:07	6:16	6:25	6:33
5:04	5:14	5:24	5:35	5:40	5:49	5:58	6:10	6:19	6:28	6:37	6:46	6:55	7:03
5:38	5:47	5:57	6:07	6:12	6:20	6:28	6:40	6:48	6:56	7:05	7:13	7:22	7:30
6:12	6:20	6:29	6:38	6:42	6:50	6:58	7:10	7:18	7:26	7:35	7:43	7:52	8:00
6:42	6:50	6:59	7:08	7:12	7:20	7:28	7:40	7:48	7:56	8:05	8:13	8:22	8:30
7:12	7:20	7:29	7:38	7:42	7:50	7:58	8:10	8:17	8:24	8:32	8:39	8:47	8:55
7:42	7:50	7:59	8:08	8:12	8:20	8:28	8:40	8:47	8:54	9:02	9:09	9:17	9:25
8:15	8:22	8:30	8:39	8:43	8:51	8:58	9:10	9:17	9:24	9:32	9:39	9:47	9:55
9:15	9:22	9:30	9:39	9:43	9:51	9:58	10:10	10:16	10:23	10:31	10:37	10:44	10:51
10:17	10:24	10:32	10:41	10:44	10:51	10:57	11:10	11:16	11:23	11:31	11:37	11:44	11:51

Lomita Vi	llage 🔿 D	owntown					Downtow	⁄n ➡ Lomi	ita Village				
A Paradise Valley & Meadowbrook DEPART	B Cardiff St. & Jamacha Rd.	C Imperial Ave. & 62nd St.	D Euclid Trolley Station	E Imperial Ave. & 47th St.	F Imperial Ave. & 32nd St.	G 12th & Imperial Transit Center ARRIVE	G 12th & Imperial Transit Center DEPART	F Imperial Ave & 32nd St.	E Imperial Ave. & 47th St.	D Euclid Trolley Station	C Imperial Ave. & 62nd St.	B Cardiff St. & Jamacha Rd.	A Paradise Valley & Meadowbrook ARRIVE
5:48a D	5:56a	6:03a	6:10a	6:14a	6:21a	6:28a	6:40a	6:47a	6:54a	7:01a	7:08a	7:15a	7:22a
6:47 D	6:55	7:02	7:10	7:14	7:21	7:29	7:40	7:48	7:55	8:02	8:10	8:17	8:25
7:17 D	7:25	7:32	7:40	7:44	7:51	7:59	8:10	8:18	8:25	8:32	8:40	8:47	8:55
7:46	7:55	8:02	8:10	8:14	8:21	8:29	8:40	8:48	8:55	9:02	9:10	9:17	9:25
8:14	8:24	8:31	8:40	8:45	8:53	9:01	9:10	9:18	9:25	9:32	9:40	9:47	9:55
8:44	8:54	9:01	9:10	9:15	9:23	9:31	9:40	9:48	9:55	10:02	10:10	10:17	10:25
9:14	9:24	9:31	9:40	9:45	9:53	10:01	10:10	10:18	10:25	10:32	10:40	10:47	10:55
9:44	9:54	10:01	10:10	10:15	10:23	10:31	10:40	10:49	10:57	11:04	11:12	11:19	11:27
10:14	10:24	10:31	10:40	10:45	10:53	11:01	11:10	11:19	11:27	11:35	11:43	11:51	11:59
10:44	10:54	11:01	11:10	11:15	11:23	11:31	11:40	11:49	11:57	12:05p	12:13p	12:21p	12:29p
11:14	11:24	11:31	11:40	11:45	11:53	12:01p	12:10p	12:19p	12:27p	12:35	12:43	12:51	12:59
11:44	11:54	12:01p	12:10p	12:15p	12:23p	12:31	12:40	12:49	12:57	1:05	1:13	1:21	1:29
12:12p	12:22p	12:30	12:40	12:45	12:53	1:01	1:10	1:19	1:27	1:35	1:43	1:51	1:59
12:42	12:52	1:00	1:10	1:15	1:23	1:31	1:40	1:49	1:57	2:05	2:13	2:21	2:29
1:12	1:22	1:30	1:40	1:45	1:53	2:01	2:10	2:19	2:27	2:35	2:43	2:51	2:59
1:42	1:52	2:00	2:10	2:15	2:23	2:31	2:40	2:49	2:57	3:05	3:13	3:21	3:29
2:12	2:22	2:30	2:40	2:45	2:53	3:01	3:10	3:19	3:27	3:35	3:43	3:51	3:59
2:42	2:52	3:00	3:10	3:15	3:23	3:31	3:40	3:49	3:57	4:05	4:13	4:21	4:29
3:12	3:22	3:30	3:40	3:45	3:53	4:01	4:10	4:19	4:27	4:35	4:43	4:51	4:59
3:42	3:52	4:00	4:10	4:15	4:23	4:31	4:40	4:49	4:57	5:05	5:13	5:21	5:29
4:12	4:22	4:30	4:40	4:45	4:53	5:01	5:10	5:19	5:27	5:35	5:43	5:51	5:59
4:42	4:52	5:00	5:10	5:15	5:23	5:31	5:40	5:49	5:57	6:05	6:13	6:21	6:29
5:12	5:22	5:30	5:40	5:45	5:53	6:01	6:10	6:19	6:27	6:35	6:43	6:51	6:59
5:45	5:54	6:01	6:10	6:14	6:21	6:29	6:40	6:49	6:57	7:05	7:13	7:21	7:29
6:15	6:24	6:31	6:40	6:44	6:51	6:59	7:10	7:18	7:25	7:32	7:40	7:47	7:54
6:45	6:54	7:01	7:10	7:14	7:21	7:29	7:40	7:48	7:55	8:02	8:10	8:17	8:24
7:45	7:54	8:01	8:10	8:14	8:21	8:29	8:10	8:18	8:25	8:32	8:40	8:47	8:54
8:48	8:57	9:03	9:10	9:14	9:20	9:27	8:40	8:48	8:55	9:02	9:10	9:17	9:24
9:48	9:57	10:03	10:10	10:14	10:20	10:27	9:40	9:48	9:54	10:00	10:07	10:13	10:19
							10:40	10:48	10:54	11:00	11:07	11:13	11:19

D = Trip begins on Deep Dell Road at Paradise Valley Road at time shown. / Este viaje comienza en Deep Dell Rd. y Paradise Valley Rd. a la hora indica. *A Statuday or Sunday schedule will be operated on most holidays and observed holidays, including New Year's Day, Menorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. For holiday service details, visit www.sdmts.com or call 511. *Se operaria con horario de stabatio of domigo durante la mayoria de las dia festigovas y los dias de assured a suardar. Los dias festigovas o aguardar. Los dias festigovas durativos incluyen Aho Newo, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Dia de la Independencia (E.E.U.U.), Labor Day, Dia de Acción de Gracias y Navidad

The Transit Store

Your full-service store for



• Tickets and Passes • Souvenirs • Maps and Timetables

• Compass Cards • Brochures • Transit IDs and more!

102 Broadway (at First Avenue) Downtown San Diego Monday - Friday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.



CASH FARES / Tarifas en efectivo	
Exact fare, please / Favor de pagar la cantidad exacta	
Day Pass (Regional) / Pase diario (Regional)	\$5.00
One-Way Fare / Tarifa de una direccíon	\$2.25
Senior (60+)/Disabled/Medicare Mayores de 60 años/Discapacitados/Medicare	\$1.10*
Children 5 & under / Niños de 5 años o menores	FREE / GRATIS*
MONTHLY PASSES / Pases mensual	
Adult / Adulto	\$72.00
Senior (60+)/Disabled/Medicare Mayores de 60 años/Discapacitados/Medicare	\$18.00*
Youths (18 and under) Jóvenes (18 años o menores)	\$36.00*

DAY PASS (REGIONAL) / Pase diario (Regional)

Valid for unlimited travel for one person on Trolley, most MTS buses, NCTD Breeze and SPRINTER. Valid for a discount on COASTER fares; not valid on Premium Express, Rural, or special service buses, or ADA paratransit.

COASTER, pero no para las rutas Premium Express ni rurales, los servicios especiales ni los servicios para discapacitadas de ADA. Válidos para viajes ilimitados de una sola persona para: el Trolley, la mayoría de los autobuses de MTS, y los servicios del NCTD de BREEZE y SPRINTER. Válidos para acceder a descuentos en el

* I.D. required for discount fare or pass. * Se requiere identificación para tarifas o pases de descuento.

DIRECTORY / Directorio	
Regional Transit Information Información de transporte público regional	511 ^{or/ó} (619) 233-3004
TTY/TDD (teletype for hearing impaired) Teletipo para sordos	(619) 234-5005 ^{or/6} (888) 722-4889
InfoExpress (24-hour info via Touch-Tone phone) Información las 24 horas (via teléfono de teclas)	(619) 685-4900
Customer Service / Suggestions Servicio al cliente / Sugerencias	(619) 557-4555
SafeWatch	(619) 557-4500
The Transit Store / Lost & Found The Transit Store / Objetos extraviados	(619) 234-1060
Articles found on the bus are turmed in at The Transit Store Artículos encontrados en los autobuses son entregados a The Transit Store	1st & Broadway Downtown San Diego M-F 9am-5pm

www.sdmts.com Planificación de viajes por Internet For MTS online trip planning

For more information on riding MTS services, pick up a Rider's Guide on a bus or at the Transit Store, or visit www.sdmts.com. MTS, recoga un 'Rider's Guide' en un autobús o en 'The Transit Para obtener más información sobre el uso de los servicios de Store,' o visita a www.sd**mts**.com. Gracias por viajar con MTS! Thank you for riding MTS!



<u>Euclid Trolley – Downtown</u>

via Market St.

DESTINATIONS

 Downtown Post Office Downtown Library

MTS

- Gateway Center
- Market Creek Plaza



Euclid

City College

Park & Market **Ь** ою



Alternative formats are available upon request. Please call: / Formato alternativo disponible al preguntar. Favor de llamar: (619) 231-1466



Effective FEBRUARY 28, 2010

	Downtown E O O O O O O D O O Broadway Mart Park Broadway Mart Trolley 5:03a 5:03a 5:0 5:03a 5:03a 5:0 5:03a 5:0 6:1 0:10 0:25 6:2 0:25 6:25 6:2 0:26 0:25 0:2 0:27 7:10 7:1 7:40 7:4 7:3 7:40 7:4 7:4 7:55 7:5 7:5 7:55 8:2 8:4 8:40 8:4 8:4	Market St. B (uclid Trolley S (a) (et al. (a) (b) (a) (c) (a) (c) <	Station Fuelled Sta. ARRIVE 5:522	Euclid Trol Euclid Trolley Sta. DEPART DEPART DEPART 5:28 5:58 5:58 6:40 6:40 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:55 8:28 8:25 8:28 8:25 8:28 8:25 8:28 8:25 8:26 8:26 8:26 8:26 8:26 8:26 8:26 8:26 8:26 8:25 8:25 8:20 8:25 8:20 8:25 8	ley Station (B) Market St. 30th St. 5:08a 5:38 6:08 6:23 6:23 6:52		10th Ave. &	Downtow Downtow 10th Ave. & Broadwav	D Fuclid Park & Market	I Trolley Si B Market St.	Euclid Euclid	Euclid Tr	olley Statio B ^{Market St.}	n 🖡 Down	town D
) (B) (A) (A) (A) (A) (A) (A) (A) (A) (A) (A	Euclid Trelley Sta. ARRIVE 5:52 5:52 6:44 5:45 6:44 5:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15	Euclid Trolley Sta. DEPART 4.58a 4.58a 5.28 5.58 5.58 5.58 6.13 6.28 6.31 6.55 6.55 6.55 6.55 6.55 6.55 6.55 7.10 7.10 7.10 7.10 8.55 8.10 7.55 8.10 7.55 8.10 7.55 8.10 7.55 8.10 7.55 8.10 7.10 8.25 8.10 7.10 7.10 7.10 8.55 8.10 7.10 7.55 8.10 7.10 7.10 8.55 8.10 7.10 8.55 8.10 7.10 8.55 8.55 8.55 8.55 8.55 8.55 8.55 8.5	(B) Market St. 30th St. 5:38 5:38 6:23 6:23 6:38 6:38 6:52	Park & Park & Market 5:14a	10th Ave. &	10th Ave. & Broadwav	Park & Market	Market St.	Euclid Euclid	لم اداد ان	Market St.	Dark &	
		& Market St. Stat Market St. Stat 5 a 5:12a 5 a 5:12a 5 b 5:12a 5 b 5:12a 5 b 5:12a 6 b 5:12a 7 c 5:34 4 7:50 9 7:55 4 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 8:35 4 7:50 9 8:35 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50 8 50	Trolled Sta. ARRIV Sta. 5:22a 5:22a 5:22a 5:22a 5:44 6:24 6:24 6:24 5:23	Trolled Sta. DEPART 4:58a 5:28 5:28 5:58 6:13 6:13 6:13 6:13 6:55 6:40 6:55 7:10 7:25 7:10 7:25 8:10 8:15 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:55 7:11 7:25 8:10 7:25 8:10 7:25 8:10 7:25 8:10 7:25 8:10 7:25 8:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 7:25 8:10 7:25 8:10 7:25 8:10 7:25 8:10 7:25 8:10	Market St. 30th St. 5:08a 5:38 6:08 6:23 6:33 6:33	Park & Market Trolley Sta. 5:14a	10th Ave. &	10th Ave. & Broadwav	Park & Market	Market St.	Euclid		Market St.	Park &	
ways mass mass <t< td=""><td></td><td>Sta. 30th St. 5a 5:12a 5 5:12a 6 5:12a 8 6:12 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 8:05 9 8:35 9 9:05 9 8:35 33 :20 8 :35 8 :50 8 :50 8 :05 8 :05 8 :05 8 :05 8 :05 8 :05 8 :05 9 :05</td><td>ARRIVE 5:22a 5:52 6:24 6:24 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:45 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:45 8</td><td>DEPART 4:58a 5:28 5:58 6:13 6:28 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:11 11 11 11</td><td>30th St. 5:08a 6:08 6:23 6:38 6:52</td><td>Irolley Sta. 5:14a</td><td>Broadway</td><td>10000</td><td></td><td>ð -</td><td>Trolley Sta.</td><td>Trolley Sta.</td><td>ð.</td><td>Market</td><td>10th Ave. & Broadway</td></t<>		Sta. 30th St. 5a 5:12a 5 5:12a 6 5:12a 8 6:12 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 7:50 9 8:05 9 8:35 9 9:05 9 8:35 33 :20 8 :35 8 :50 8 :50 8 :05 8 :05 8 :05 8 :05 8 :05 8 :05 8 :05 9 :05	ARRIVE 5:22a 5:52 6:24 6:24 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:45 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:45 8	DEPART 4:58a 5:28 5:58 6:13 6:28 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:11 11 11 11	30th St. 5:08a 6:08 6:23 6:38 6:52	Irolley Sta. 5:14a	Broadway	10000		ð -	Trolley Sta.	Trolley Sta.	ð.	Market	10th Ave. & Broadway
580 580 580 560 670 570 770 <td></td> <td> 5.124 5.142 6.34 6.542 6.542 6.542 6.542 6.550 7.05 7.205 7.205 7.205 7.205 7.205 8.350 9.505 8.350 8.350 8.350 8.350 8.350 9.505 8.350 9.505 8.350 9.505 8.350 9.505 <li< td=""><td>5:52 5:52 6:22 6:24 6:24 7:00 7:15 7:45 7:45 7:45 8:30 8:15 8:45 8:30 8:45 8:30 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:30 9:10 9:10 9:10 9:12 7:47 5:32 1:47 5:32 1:45 5:32 1:45 5:32 1:45 5:44 1:45 5:44 1:45 5:46 1:45 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5</td><td>5:58 5:58 5:58 6:13 6:13 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:55 7:55 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:55 3:11 11 11</td><td>5:38 6:23 6:52 6:52 7.52</td><td><u>0.14</u></td><td>ARRIVE 5.182</td><td>DEPART 5.405</td><td>Trolley Sta.</td><td>30th St. 5.405</td><td>ARRIVE 5.502</td><td>DEPART 5.130</td><td>30th St. 5-23-</td><td>F-20-2</td><td>ARRIVE 5.23</td></li<></td>		 5.124 5.142 6.34 6.542 6.542 6.542 6.542 6.550 7.05 7.205 7.205 7.205 7.205 7.205 8.350 9.505 8.350 8.350 8.350 8.350 8.350 9.505 8.350 9.505 8.350 9.505 8.350 9.505 <li< td=""><td>5:52 5:52 6:22 6:24 6:24 7:00 7:15 7:45 7:45 7:45 8:30 8:15 8:45 8:30 8:45 8:30 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:30 9:10 9:10 9:10 9:12 7:47 5:32 1:47 5:32 1:45 5:32 1:45 5:32 1:45 5:44 1:45 5:44 1:45 5:46 1:45 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5</td><td>5:58 5:58 5:58 6:13 6:13 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:55 7:55 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:55 3:11 11 11</td><td>5:38 6:23 6:52 6:52 7.52</td><td><u>0.14</u></td><td>ARRIVE 5.182</td><td>DEPART 5.405</td><td>Trolley Sta.</td><td>30th St. 5.405</td><td>ARRIVE 5.502</td><td>DEPART 5.130</td><td>30th St. 5-23-</td><td>F-20-2</td><td>ARRIVE 5.23</td></li<>	5:52 5:52 6:22 6:24 6:24 7:00 7:15 7:45 7:45 7:45 8:30 8:15 8:45 8:30 8:45 8:30 8:45 8:45 8:45 8:30 9:10 9:10 9:10 9:12 7:47 5:32 1:47 5:32 1:45 5:32 1:45 5:32 1:45 5:44 1:45 5:44 1:45 5:46 1:45 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5:46 5	5:58 5:58 5:58 6:13 6:13 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:55 7:55 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:55 3:11 11 11	5:38 6:23 6:52 6:52 7.52	<u>0.14</u>	ARRIVE 5.182	DEPART 5.405	Trolley Sta.	30th St. 5.405	ARRIVE 5.502	DEPART 5.130	30th St. 5-23-	F-20-2	ARRIVE 5.23
550 650 610 <td></td> <td> 6:12 6:34 6:34 6:50 7:05 7:05 7:20 7:20 7:20 7:20 8:25 8:35 9:05 8:35 9:05 9:05<td>6:22 6:44 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:45 8:30 9:15 9:15 9:15 9:15 7:1 47 :32</td><td>5:58 6:13 6:13 6:28 6:40 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:25 7:25 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:55 3:11 11 11</td><td>6:23 6:23 6:52 6:52</td><td>5:44</td><td>5:48</td><td>6:10</td><td>0.43a 6:13</td><td>6:19</td><td>0.27a 6:29</td><td>5:43</td><td>5:53</td><td>5:59</td><td>6:03</td></td>		 6:12 6:34 6:34 6:50 7:05 7:05 7:20 7:20 7:20 7:20 8:25 8:35 9:05 8:35 9:05 9:05<td>6:22 6:44 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:45 8:30 9:15 9:15 9:15 9:15 7:1 47 :32</td><td>5:58 6:13 6:13 6:28 6:40 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:25 7:25 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:55 3:11 11 11</td><td>6:23 6:23 6:52 6:52</td><td>5:44</td><td>5:48</td><td>6:10</td><td>0.43a 6:13</td><td>6:19</td><td>0.27a 6:29</td><td>5:43</td><td>5:53</td><td>5:59</td><td>6:03</td>	6:22 6:44 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:30 8:45 8:30 9:15 9:15 9:15 9:15 7:1 47 :32	5:58 6:13 6:13 6:28 6:40 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:25 7:25 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:25 8:10 8:55 3:11 11 11	6:23 6:23 6:52 6:52	5:44	5:48	6:10	0.43a 6:13	6:19	0.27a 6:29	5:43	5:53	5:59	6:03
613 623 623 633 710 713 710 713 710 713 712 722 723 <td></td> <td> 5 6:34 7:50 7:05 7:20 7:20 7:20 7:20 7:20 7:50 8:35 9:05 9:05<</td> <td>6:44 7:00 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 9:15 9:15 9:15 7:17 147 147</td> <td>6:13 6:28 6:28 6:40 6:40 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:10 8:25 8:40 8:55 8:40 8:55 11</td> <td>6:23 6:38 6:52</td> <td>6:14</td> <td>6:18</td> <td>6:40</td> <td>6:43</td> <td>6:49</td> <td>7:00</td> <td>6:13</td> <td>6:23</td> <td>6:29</td> <td>6:33</td>		 5 6:34 7:50 7:05 7:20 7:20 7:20 7:20 7:20 7:50 8:35 9:05 9:05<	6:44 7:00 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 9:15 9:15 9:15 7:17 147 147	6:13 6:28 6:28 6:40 6:40 6:55 7:10 7:10 7:10 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:10 8:25 8:40 8:55 8:40 8:55 11	6:23 6:38 6:52	6:14	6:18	6:40	6:43	6:49	7:00	6:13	6:23	6:29	6:33
628 634 740 743 743 743 722 <td></td> <td>4 6:50 7:05 7:05 7:05 7:20 7:20 7:20 7:50 8:35</td> <td>7:00 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:30 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 9:00 9:15 9:15 9:15 147 :32 :47</td> <td>6:28 6:40 6:40 6:40 7:10 7:10 7:25 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:10 8:40 8:55 8:55 8:55 3:40 8:55 11</td> <td>6:38 6:52 7.07</td> <td>6:29</td> <td>6:33</td> <td>7:10</td> <td>7:13</td> <td>7:19</td> <td>7:30</td> <td>6:42</td> <td>6:52</td> <td>6:59</td> <td>7:04</td>		4 6:50 7:05 7:05 7:05 7:20 7:20 7:20 7:50 8:35	7:00 7:15 7:15 7:15 7:30 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 9:00 9:15 9:15 9:15 147 :32 :47	6:28 6:40 6:40 6:40 7:10 7:10 7:25 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:10 8:40 8:55 8:55 8:55 3:40 8:55 11	6:38 6:52 7.07	6:29	6:33	7:10	7:13	7:19	7:30	6:42	6:52	6:59	7:04
640 622 632 732 744 752 759 759 750 752 759 750 752 759 750 752 753 <td></td> <td> 7.05 7.05 7.20 7.20 7.23 7.20 7.50 7.50 7.50 8.35 9.05 8.35 9.05 8.35 9.05 8.35 9.05 9.05<td>7:15 7:30 7:30 7:45 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 9:15 9:15 147 :47 :12</td><td>6:40 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:25 7:25 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:10 8:40 8:40 8:55 8:55 8:55 11</td><td>6:52</td><td>6:44</td><td>6:48</td><td>7:40</td><td>7:43</td><td>7:49</td><td>8:00</td><td>7:12</td><td>7:22</td><td>7:29</td><td>7:34</td></td>		 7.05 7.05 7.20 7.20 7.23 7.20 7.50 7.50 7.50 8.35 9.05 8.35 9.05 8.35 9.05 8.35 9.05 9.05<td>7:15 7:30 7:30 7:45 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 9:15 9:15 147 :47 :12</td><td>6:40 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:25 7:25 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:10 8:40 8:40 8:55 8:55 8:55 11</td><td>6:52</td><td>6:44</td><td>6:48</td><td>7:40</td><td>7:43</td><td>7:49</td><td>8:00</td><td>7:12</td><td>7:22</td><td>7:29</td><td>7:34</td>	7:15 7:30 7:30 7:45 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 8:15 9:15 9:15 147 :47 :12	6:40 6:55 6:55 7:10 7:25 7:25 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:10 8:40 8:40 8:55 8:55 8:55 11	6:52	6:44	6:48	7:40	7:43	7:49	8:00	7:12	7:22	7:29	7:34
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		4 7:20 7:35 7:35 7:35 7:35 7:50 8:35 8:35 8:35 8:35 8:35 8:35 8:35 8:35	7:30 7:45 8:10 8:15 8:15 8:30 8:33 8:45 9:15 9:15 :32 :47 :47	6:55 6:55 7:10 7:25 7:25 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:10 8:40 8:55 8:55 8:55 11 :11		6:59	7:04	8:10	8:13	8:19	8:30	7:42	7:52	7:59	8:04
7/10 7/20 7/30 <th< td=""><td></td><td>7 7.35 4 7.50 9 8:05 9 8:35 4 8:50 9 9:05 8 8:50 8 35 8 35 8 35 8 35 8 35 8 35 8 35 8 35</td><td>7:45 8:00 8:15 8:15 8:45 8:45 9:45 9:15 9:15 :47 :02</td><td>7:10 7:25 7:40 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:40 8:40 8:55 8:55 8:55 11</td><td>/0//</td><td>7:14</td><td>7:19</td><td>8:40</td><td>8:43</td><td>8:49</td><td>00:6</td><td>8:12</td><td>8:22</td><td>8:29</td><td>8:34</td></th<>		7 7.35 4 7.50 9 8:05 9 8:35 4 8:50 9 9:05 8 8:50 8 35 8 35 8 35 8 35 8 35 8 35 8 35 8 35	7:45 8:00 8:15 8:15 8:45 8:45 9:45 9:15 9:15 :47 :02	7:10 7:25 7:40 7:55 8:10 8:10 8:40 8:40 8:55 8:55 8:55 11	/0//	7:14	7:19	8:40	8:43	8:49	00:6	8:12	8:22	8:29	8:34
7/20 7/31 7/40 6/40 6/13 10/10 10/11 10/20 9/12 9/22		4 /:50 7 8:05 4 8:35 9 8:35 9 8:35 9 8:50 9 9:50 9 9:50 9 9:50 9 9:50 9 9:50 8 5:0 8 3:3 3 5:50 8 5:0 8 5:0 8 5:0 8 5:0 8 5:0	8:00 8:15 8:15 8:30 9:45 9:15 9:15 1:47 :02 :02	7:25 7:40 7:55 8:10 8:25 8:40 8:55 8:55 AND EVERY 15 N :11	7:22	7:29	7:34	9:10 0.10	9:13 0.13	9:19 0:10	9:30	8:42	8:52	8:59	9:04
7.50 7.57 7.59 7.50 7.57 7.59 7.50 7.57 7.59 7.50 7.57 7.50 7.57 7.52 7.52 7.52 7.52 7.52 7.52 7.52 7.53 7.50 7.51 7.52 7.53 7.50 7.51 7.50 7.51 7.52 7.53 <th< td=""><td></td><td> 9 8:05 4 8:20 9 8:35 9 8:50 9 9:05 4 9:50 3 3:20 3 3:50 3 3:50 8 3:50 8 05 100 </td><td>8:15 8:30 8:30 9:45 9:15 9:15 9:15 :47 :02</td><td>7:40 7:55 8:10 8:25 8:25 8:40 8:55 AND EVERY 15 A</td><td>7:37</td><td>7:44</td><td>7:49</td><td>9:40</td><td>9:43</td><td>9:49</td><td>10:00</td><td>9:12</td><td>9:22</td><td>9:29</td><td>9:34</td></th<>		 9 8:05 4 8:20 9 8:35 9 8:50 9 9:05 4 9:50 3 3:20 3 3:50 3 3:50 8 3:50 8 05 100 	8:15 8:30 8:30 9:45 9:15 9:15 9:15 :47 :02	7:40 7:55 8:10 8:25 8:25 8:40 8:55 AND EVERY 15 A	7:37	7:44	7:49	9:40	9:43	9:49	10:00	9:12	9:22	9:29	9:34
200 8.10		4 8:20 9 8:35 4 8:35 3 9:50 3 1:7 гиссо сара 1: 3 1:20 8 1:35 3 1:50 8 1:50 8 1:50 8 1:50	8:30 8:45 9:00 9:15 9:15 32 :32 :47 :02	7:55 8:10 8:25 8:40 8:55 8:55 AND EVERY 15 A	7:52	7:59	8:04	10:10	10:13	10:19	10:30	9:42	9:52	9:59	10:04
870 822 843 800 101 13 20 011 11 22 29 855 900 911 911 20 911 11 22 29 855 900 911 911 910 911 922 929 855 900 914 920 910 911 922 929 10 11 22 910 910 913 920 914 922 959 11 22 239 230 910 713 720 713 723 723 723 723 723 759 959 950 951 950 951 953 959 959 950 951 953 959 959 950 951 953 959 953 959 959 951 953 959 959 951 953 959 951 953 959 953 953 953		7 0:359 4 8:50 7 7:7 LUEGO CADA 1: 3 2:20 8 :35 3 5:05 8 :05 8 :05	9:45 9:00 9:15 9:15 1:32 1:47 1:02	8:10 8:25 8:40 8:55 AND EVERY 15 N :11	8:07	8:14	8:19	10:40	2	10:50	11:01	10:12	10:22	10:29	10:34
8.00 8.20 9.00 10 43 50 31 10 11 <		4 0.05 Ап:/ ү циесо сара 1: 3 ::35 8 :35 3 :35 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	9:15 9:15 5 MINUTOS A LA: :32 :47 :02	8:25 8:40 8:55 AND EVERY 15 N :11	27.8	8:29	8:34	AND EVERY 30 F	۲	UEGO CADA 30	MINUTOS A LA:	10:41	10:22		11:04
0.000 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 0.001 0.011 <th< td=""><td></td><td>7 Aff: / Y LUEGO CADA 1: 3 :20 8 :20 3 :50 8 :05 Marrill / HASTA:</td><td>5 MINUTOS A LA: :32 :47 :02</td><td>0:40 8:55 AND EVERY 15 N :11</td><td>8:3/</td><td>8:44 0.FO</td><td>8:49</td><td>0.5</td><td>ν. Σι</td><td>20</td><td></td><td>AND EVERY 30</td><td>0 MINUTES AT: / Y L</td><td></td><td>MINUTOS A LA:</td></th<>		7 Aff: / Y LUEGO CADA 1: 3 :20 8 :20 3 :50 8 :05 Marrill / HASTA:	5 MINUTOS A LA: :32 :47 :02	0:40 8:55 AND EVERY 15 N :11	8:3/	8:44 0.FO	8:49	0.5	ν. Σι	20		AND EVERY 30	0 MINUTES AT: / Y L		MINUTOS A LA:
Outcome Address Address <t< td=""><td>AND EVEPV 15 MINITES</td><td>3 : :20 8 :35 3 :50 8 :05 1 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·</td><td>:32 :47 :02</td><td>AND EVERY 15 N :11</td><td>20:0</td><td>0.14</td><td>9.04 0.10</td><td></td><td>Ė</td><td>00:</td><td><u>.</u></td><td>- 5</td><td>ž 7</td><td>50 50</td><td>5 5</td></t<>	AND EVEPV 15 MINITES	3 : :20 8 :35 3 :50 8 :05 1 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	:32 :47 :02	AND EVERY 15 N :11	20:0	0.14	9.04 0.10		Ė	00:	<u>.</u>	- 5	ž 7	50 50	5 5
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		лт н <u>л</u> ст	55 7 47 7 5 7 5 7 5 7 5 7 5 7 5 7 5 7 5 7 5 7	:11	INITES AT. / VII	ų	T. L7	4.40	1		E.04.5	ŧ		7C.	+ <u>)</u> .
80 90<		Ш - / НА ST2		-		2		4:40p	4:43p	4:50p	01.0:c			ПАЗІА: F. 30	- 7 Y
9 0 10 0			ZU:	2	N C	67.5		01.2	5.13 5.5	0220	5:30	d11:0	0:22p	9:29p	5:34p
mututation mututa				07:	:3/	4 4 7	.47	5:40	0:43	000	00:9	0:41	20:0	6007	0:04
P 2.49 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.33 2.34 2.33 2.34 2.33 2.34 2.33 2.34 2.33 2.34 2.33 2.33 2.33 2.33 2.34 2.33 2.34 2.33 2				14.	70.	40.	5 T	01:0	0.12	0:20	02:0	0:13	0:23	0:29	
C209 C201 C201 <thc201< th=""> C201 C201 <th< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>-76-6</td><td>o<u>c</u>:</td><td></td><td>: 14</td><td>: 17</td><td>0.40</td><td>0:40</td><td></td><td>00:/</td><td>0 4 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7</td><td>0:02</td><td>600 F</td><td>20:7</td></th<></thc201<>			-76-6	o <u>c</u> :		: 14	: 17	0.40	0:40		00:/	0 4 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	0:02	600 F	20:7
2.47 2.57 3.64 2.54 2.55 3.64 2.54 2.55 3.64 3.74 3.75 3.64 3.74 3.75 3.74 3.75 3.75 3.74 3.75 3.75 3.74 3.75 3.75 3.74 3.74 3.74 3.74 3.74 3.75 3.74 3.75 3.74 3.75 3.75 3.74 3.75 3.74 3.75 3.74 3.74 3.75 3.74 3.75 <th< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>2:30P 2.51</td><td>-70.0</td><td></td><td>TASIA:</td><td>2.40-</td><td>01:7</td><td>21:15 2.42</td><td>7.50</td><td>/:30</td><td>51:7 2.42</td><td>/:23 7.53</td><td>7.50</td><td>/:33 0.02</td></th<>			2:30P 2.51	-70.0		TASIA:	2.40-	01:7	21:15 2.42	7.50	/:30	51:7 2.42	/:23 7.53	7.50	/:33 0.02
259 307 321 256 307 311 312 323 850 900 841 850 900 841 853 <td></td> <td></td> <td>3:06</td> <td>2:41 2:41</td> <td>2:52</td> <td>2:59</td> <td>3:04</td> <td>8:10</td> <td>8:13 8:13</td> <td>8:20</td> <td>8:30</td> <td>8:13</td> <td>8:23</td> <td>8:29</td> <td>8:33</td>			3:06	2:41 2:41	2:52	2:59	3:04	8:10	8:13 8:13	8:20	8:30	8:13	8:23	8:29	8:33
314 322 334 9-10 9-13 9-19 9-29 9-14 9-24 9-30 359 400 341 322 339 340 344 940 359 400 341 420 441			3:21	2:56	3:07	3:14	3:19	8:40	8:43	8:50	00:6	8:43	8:53	8:59	9:03
329 337 344 349 344 <td>• • • •</td> <td>· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·</td> <td>3:36</td> <td>3:11</td> <td>3:22</td> <td>3:29</td> <td>3:34</td> <td>9:10</td> <td>9:13</td> <td>9:19</td> <td>9:29</td> <td>9:14</td> <td>9:24</td> <td>9:30</td> <td>9:34</td>	• • • •	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	3:36	3:11	3:22	3:29	3:34	9:10	9:13	9:19	9:29	9:14	9:24	9:30	9:34
3:44 3:52 4:06 3:34 3:32 5:39 4:04 3:34 3:35 3:35 3:35 3:36 3:34 3:35 3:36 3:37 3:36 3:37 3:36 3:37 3:36 3:37 3:36 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>3:51</td><td>3:26</td><td>3:37</td><td>3:44</td><td>3:49</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>			3:51	3:26	3:37	3:44	3:49								
3350 420 414 419 COULE 3 State and			4:06	3:41	3:52	3:59	4:04								
4.14 4.22 4.33 4.34 4.32 4.33 4.34 <t< td=""><td>• • • • • •</td><td>• • • • • •</td><td>4:21</td><td>3:56</td><td>4:07</td><td>4:14</td><td>4:19</td><td>Koute.</td><td>0</td><td></td><td>Sur</td><td>nday* / dom</td><td>ingo*</td><td></td><td></td></t<>	• • • • • •	• • • • • •	4:21	3:56	4:07	4:14	4:19	Koute.	0		Sur	nday* / dom	ingo*		
4.27 4.27 4.27 4.27 4.24 4.25 5.04 4.24 4.25 5.04 4.25 4.24 4.25 4.24 4.25 4.24 4.25 4.24 4.25 4.24 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 5.01 5.14 5.19 00h Avec R Market R Market St. Doth St. Market St. Market St. Doth St. Doth St. Market St.			4:36	4:11	4:22	4:29	4:34	Downtow	n 🖶 Euclia	I Trollev S	tation	Euclid Tre	olley Statio	n 🖶 Down	town
450 527 531 513 513 514 515 513 514 515 514 517 514 517 514 517 514 513 514 513 514 513 514 513 514 516 <td></td> <td></td> <td>4:51</td> <td>4:20</td> <td>4:37</td> <td>4:44</td> <td>4:49</td> <td></td> <td>C</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			4:51	4:20	4:37	4:44	4:49		C						
5:1 5:2 5:3 5:4 5:6 5:3 5:3 5:3 5:4 5:6 7:7 7:7 <td></td> <td></td> <td>0:00</td> <td>4:41 4.E2</td> <td>4:52</td> <td>4:04</td> <td>0:04 40.7</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>Markot Ct</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>Markot Ct</td> <td>Dark 8</td> <td></td>			0:00	4:41 4.E2	4:52	4:04	0:04 40.7			Markot Ct			Markot Ct	Dark 8	
222 523 537 544 549 540 544 546 546 546 566 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 5000 500 <			2:21	4:00 7.11	5:07	5.20	5:34	Broadway	Market	IVIAI REL JL. &	Trolley Sta.	Trolley Sta.	IVIAINEL JL.	Market	Broadway
5.44 5.52 6.06 5.41 5.52 5.59 6.04 7.45 7.48 7.34 7.20 7.00			5.51	5:26	5:37	5:44	5.49	DEPART	Trolley Sta.	30th St.		DEPART	30th St.	Trolley Sta.	
5:59 6:07 6:21 5:58 6:08 6:14 6:18 8:48 8:48 8:54 0:00 7.11 7.11 7.11 7.11 7.11 7.11 7.11 7.11 7.11 7.12 7.13 7.23 7.29 7.33 10.02 10.101 10.12 9.100 9.10 9.20 9.10 9.20 9.10 9.20 9.10 9.20 9.10 9.20 9.10 9.20 9.10 9.20 9.20 9.20 9.20 9.20 9.20 9.20 9.20			6:06	5:41	5:52	5:59	6:04	0:45a	0:48a 7.40	0:54a 7. F.4	7:05a	0:00 010	6:00a	0:00a	o:10a
6:14 6:22 6:33 6:23 6:23 6:23 6:23 6:25 10:01 10:12 9:10 9:20 6:43 6:26 6:48 6:38 6:44 6:48 10:51 10:12 10:12 9:10 9:20 6:43 6:53 6:53 6:53 6:53 6:53 10:51 10:12 11:12 10:12 9:10 9:20 7:13 7:20 7:31 7:23 7:29 7:33 10:51 10:12 10:42 10:55 10:35 7:13 7:50 8:01 7:43 7:53 7:33 10:54 11:12 10:55 10:35 7:13 7:50 8:01 7:43 7:53 8:33 11:01 11:12 10:55 10:05 10:55 10:05 8:13 8:19 8:29 8:33 8:29 9:33 10:01 11:12 10:55 10:05 5:05 5:05 8:13 8:19 9:29 9:53 5:010:55			6:21	5:58	6:08	6:14	6:18	24.7	0.18 8.18	9-54	0.00 20.00	01.0	02.1	12:1	20:7 8:32
6:29 6:36 6:48 6:38 6:44 6:48 10:22 10:25 10:31 10:42 9:55 10:05 7:13 7:20 7:31 7:13 7:23 7:23 7:33 10:51 11:01 11:12 10:25 10:35 10:35 7:13 7:20 7:31 7:23 7:23 7:23 7:23 7:23 7:33 10:54 11:01 11:12 10:25 10:35 7:13 7:50 8:01 7:23 7:53 8:03 2:1 2:4 31 11:12 10:25 10:35 7:43 7:53 7:53 7:53 7:53 7:54 31 12:2 3:55 8:13 8:19 8:29 8:33 8:59 9:03 2:1 12:4 10:55 10:05 9:13 9:19 9:10 9:23 9:10 9:3 9:1 10:1 11:2 10:16 9:13 9:19 9:23 9:55 5:01 5:12 <td></td> <td></td> <td>6:36</td> <td>6:13</td> <td>6:23</td> <td>6:29</td> <td>6:33</td> <td>9-52</td> <td>0-55 0-55</td> <td>10-01</td> <td>10-12</td> <td>9.10</td> <td>0.20</td> <td>9-27</td> <td>9.32</td>			6:36	6:13	6:23	6:29	6:33	9-52	0-55 0-55	10-01	10-12	9.10	0.20	9-27	9.32
6:43 6:50 7:01 6:43 6:53 6:59 7:03 10:51 10:54 11:01 11:12 10:25 10:35 7:13 7:20 7:31 7:13 7:24 3:1 :42 AND EVERY 30 MINUTES AT: / Y LUEGO CADA 30 MINUTES AT: / Y LUEGO VARA 30 10:55 10:35 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 3:6 <td></td> <td></td> <td>6:48</td> <td>6:28</td> <td>6:38</td> <td>6:44</td> <td>6:48</td> <td>10:22</td> <td>10:25</td> <td>10:31</td> <td>10:42</td> <td>9:55</td> <td>10:05</td> <td>10:12</td> <td>10:17</td>			6:48	6:28	6:38	6:44	6:48	10:22	10:25	10:31	10:42	9:55	10:05	10:12	10:17
7:13 7:20 7:31 7:13 7:23 7:29 7:33 AND EVERY 30 MINUTES AT: Y LUEGO CADA 30 MINUTES AT: Y LUEGO VARIA 10:55 11:05 7:43 7:53 7:59 8:03 2:11 2:11 10:55 11:06 8:13 8:19 8:19 8:29 8:33 2:1 2:4 31 4:5 30 0 36			7:01	6:43	6:53	6:59	7:03	10:51	10:54	11:01	11:12	10:25	10:35	10:42	10:47
7:43 7:50 8:01 7:43 7:53 7:59 8:03 :21 :24 :31 :42 AND EVERY 30 MINUTES AT/Y 8:13 8:19 8:29 8:33 :51 :54 :01 :12 :55 :36 8:13 8:19 8:29 8:33 :51 :54 :01 :12 :55 :36 9:13 9:19 9:29 9:23 9:29 9:33 4:51p 4:54p 5:01p 5:12p until. 9:13 9:19 9:29 9:33 5:22 5:25 5:32 5:36 until. 9:13 10:19 10:29 10:33 5:22 5:25 5:32 5:36 until. 10:13 10:19 11:29 11:12 11:12 11:23 11:23 11:33 5:22 5:35 6:06 0 01 10:13 10:19 11:29 11:23 11:29 11:23 11:23 11:23 5:22 5:32 5:42 5:55 5:66 10:13 10:14 10:23 10:29 11:33	•	• • • • • •	7:31	7:13	7:23	7:29	7:33	AND EVERY 30 N	11NUTES AT: / Y L	UEGO CADA 30	MINUTOS A LA:	10:55	11:06	11:13	11:18
8:13 8:19 8:29 8:33 51 54 .01 .12 .25 .36 .43 8:43 8:49 8:59 8:33 8:59 9:03 until/ hASTA: .01 .12 .25 .36 .43 9:13 9:19 9:29 9:14 9:23 9:29 9:03 4:51p 4:54p 5:01p 5:12p .06 5:13 9:13 9:19 9:29 9:23 9:29 9:03 4:51p 4:54p 5:01p 5:12p .06 5:13p 9:13 10:19 10:29 10:03 5:22 5:25 5:32 5:36 5:43 10:13 10:19 11:29 11:10 11:23 11:29 11:103 6:22 6:25 6:32 6:42 5:56 5:66 5:13 10:13 11:19 11:19 11:12 11:12 11:12 11:12 11:12 11:23 11:23 7:22 7:32 7:42 6:55 6:06 6:13 10:13 11:19 11:12 11:12 11:12 11:12			8:01	7:43	7:53	7:59	8:03	:21	:24	:31	:42		۲ /	UEGO CADA 30	VINUTOS A LA:
8:43 8:49 8:59 9:03 UNTIL / HASTA: 55 10 55 10 13 9:13 9:19 9:29 9:23 9:29 9:33 4:51p 5:01p 5:12p 0.6 5:13 9:13 9:19 9:29 9:23 9:29 9:23 9:25 5:25 5:32 5:42 4:55p 5:06p 5:13p 9:13 10:19 10:29 10:23 10:23 10:23 10:23 5:55 6:02 6:12 5:25 5:36 5:33 10:13 10:19 11:29 11:10 11:23 11:23 11:23 11:23 5:25 5:35 6:06 6:13 10:13 10:19 11:19 11:12 11:12 11:12 11:12 11:12 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:56 5:13 10:13 11:19 11:12 11:12 11:12 11:12 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 5:55 <td></td> <td></td> <td>8:29</td> <td>8:14</td> <td>8:23</td> <td>8:29</td> <td>8:33</td> <td>:51</td> <td>:54</td> <td>:01</td> <td>:12</td> <td>:25</td> <td>:36</td> <td>:43</td> <td>:48</td>			8:29	8:14	8:23	8:29	8:33	:51	:54	:01	:12	:25	:36	:43	:48
Y:13 Y:14 Y:23 Y:23 Y:23 Y:23 Y:15 UNTIL/ HASTA: 9:43 9:59 9:59 9:53 9:55 10:03 5:22 5:32 5:42 4:55 5:13p 10:13 10:19 10:29 10:23 10:23 10:23 10:33 5:55 6:02 6:12 5:25 5:36 5:43 10:13 10:19 11:14 11:23 11:03 6:22 6:25 6:32 6:42 5:55 6:06 6:13 10:13 11:19 11:129 11:129 11:129 11:129 11:129 11:129 7:22 7:25 7:32 7:32 6:55 7:05 7:11 11:13 11:19 11:29 11:29 11:29 11:29 11:29 7:12 8:22 8:32 8:42 7:55 8:13			8:59	8:44	8:53	8:59	9:03		UNTIL: /	HASTA:		:55		:13	:18
10:13 10:19 10:29 10:14 10:23 10:23 10:25 5:32 5:42 4:55 5:06p 5:13p 10:13 10:19 10:29 10:29 10:23 10:29 10:25 5:36 5:43 10:13 10:19 10:29 10:23 10:29 10:33 5:52 5:36 5:43 10:13 10:19 11:14 11:23 11:03 6:22 6:25 6:32 6:42 5:55 6:06 6:13 11:13 11:19 11:29 11:23 11:29 11:33 7:22 7:25 7:32 7:42 6:55 7:05 7:11 11:13 11:19 11:29 11:29 11:29 11:29 11:29 8:22 8:25 8:32 8:42 7:55 8:11			7.27 0.60	0.44	7.43 0.53	7.27 0.50	10.02	4:51p	4:54p	5:01p	5:12p		Ę.	HASTA:	
10:13 10:14 10:14 10:53 10:53 10:53 10:55 5:36 5:43 5:42 5:55 6:06 6:13 11:13 11:19 11:14 11:23 11:29 11:33 7:22 7:32 7:42 6:55 7:05 7:11 11:13 11:19 11:29 11:29 11:29 11:29 11:29 7:22 7:32 7:42 6:55 7:05 7:11 11:13 11:19 11:29 11:29 11:29 11:29 11:29 8:22 8:32 8:42 7:55 8:11 8:22 8:32 8:32 8:42 7:55 8:11		~	00:01	10.11	10.22	00:01	10:03	5:22	5:25	5:32	5:42	4:55p	5:06p	5:13p	5:18p
11:13 11:19 11:29 11:14 11:23 11:29 11:33 0:22 0:25 0:32 0:42 5:55 0:06 0:13 8:22 7:25 7:32 7:42 0:55 7:05 7:11 8:22 8:25 8:32 8:42 7:55 8:05 8:11			10.50	10.44	10.53	10.50	11-03	5:52	5:55	6:02	6:12	5:25	5:36	5:43	5:48
8:22 8:25 8:32 8:42 7:55 8:05 8:11 8:11			11.20	11.14	11.23	11.29	11.33	6:22	6:25	6:32	6:42	5:55	6:06 - <u></u>	6:13	6:18 - 1-
8:25 8:32 8:42 7:55 8:05 8:11							2	7:22	7:25	7:32	7:42	6:55	7:05	7:11	7:15
								8:22	8:25	8:32	8:42	7:55	8:05	8:11	8:15
							-								

*5e operate on horizon de mission de los dias de saueto a guardar. Los dias festivos incluyen Año Nuevo, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Dia de la Independencia (E.E.U.U.), Labor Day, Dia de Acción de Gracias y Navidad. Para detalles sobre el sevicio en días festivos, visite www.sdmts.com o llame al 511.

CASH FARES / Tarifas en efectivo

\$5.00
\$2.25
\$1.10*
FREE / GRATIS*
\$72.00
\$72.00 \$18.00*

DAY PASS (REGIONAL) / Pase diario (Regional) Valid for unlimited travel for one person on Trolley, most MTS buses, NCTD Breeze and SPRINTER. Valid for a discount on COASTER fares; not valid on Premium Express, Rural, or special service buses, or ADA paratransit.

of ADM paratriansu. Válidos para viajes ilimitados de una sola persona para: el Trolley, la mayoría de los autobuses de MTS, y los servicios del NCTD de BREEZE y SPRINTER. Válidos para acceder a descuentos en el COASTER, pero no para las rutas Premium Express ni rurales, los servicios especiales ni los servicios para discapacitadas de ADA.

* I.D. required for discount fare or pass. * Se requiere identificación para tarifas o pases de descuento

DIRECTORY / Directorio	
Regional Transit Information Información de transporte público regional	511 ^{or/ó} (619) 233-3004
TTY/TDD (teletype for hearing impaired) Teletipo para sordos	(619) 234-5005 or/ó (888) 722-4889
InfoExpress (24-hour info via Touch-Tone phone) Información las 24 horas (via teléfono de teclas)	(619) 685-4900
Customer Service / Suggestions Servicio al cliente / Sugerencias	(619) 557-4555
SafeWatch	(619) 557-4500
The Transit Store / Lost & Found The Transit Store / Objetos extraviados	(619) 234-1060
Articles found on the bus are turned in at The Transit Store Articulos encontrados en los autobuses son entregados a The Transit Store	1st & Broadway Downtown San Diego M–F 9am–5pm
For MTS online trip planning Planificación de viajes por Internet	www.sd mts .com

For more information on riding MTS services, pick up a Rider's Guide on a bus or at the Transit Store, or visit www.sdmts.com Para obtener más información sobre el uso de los servicios de MTS, recoga un 'Rider's Guide' en un autobús o en 'The Transit Store,' o visita a www.sdmts.com.

Thank you for riding MTS! ¡Gracias por viajar con MTS!









The schedules and other information shown in this timetable are subject to change. MTS does not assume responsibility for errors in timetables nor for any inconvenience caused by delayed buses. Los horarios y información que se indican en este itinerario están sujetos a cambios. MTS no asume responsabilidad por errores en los itinerarios, ni por ningún perjuicio que se origine por los autobuses demorados.

						wiendady	unoughti	iday / lunes a	aviernes						
Vational	City ⇒ Ci	ty Height	:s ➡ Gran	tville				Grantvill	e ➡ City	Heights =	 National 	City			
A 24th St. Trolley Sta. DEPART	B 18th St. & National City Blvd.	C Euclid Ave. & Plaza Blvd.	D Euclid Ave. Trolley Station	E Fairmount Ave. & Home Ave.	F Fairmount Ave. & University	G Grantville Trolley Station	H Kaiser Hospital ARRIVE	H Kaiser Hospital DEPART	G Grantville Trolley Station	F Fairmount Ave. & University	E Fairmount Ave. & Home Ave.	D Euclid Ave. Trolley Station	Euclid Ave. & Plaza Blvd.	B 18th St. & National City Blvd.	A 24th St. Trolley Sta ARRIVE
4:55a	4:59a	5:07a	A 5:23a	5:30a	5:37a	5:45a	5:52a		4:59a	5:07a	5:14a	5:22a	5:32a	5:40a	5:43a
5:25	5:29	5:37	A 5:53	6:00	6:07	6:15	6:22		5:29	5:37	5:44	5:52	6:02	6:10	6:13
		_	6:08	6:15	6:23	6:32	6:40	5:50a	5:58	6:07	6:14	6:23	6:34	6:43	6:46
5:53	5:57	6:06	A 6:23	6:30	6:38	6:47	6:55	6:18	6:26	6:35	6:42	6:51	7:02	7:11	7:14
		_	6:38	6:46	6:55	7:04	7:12	6:31	6:39	6:49	6:56	7:06	7:18	7:27	7:31
6:20	6:25	6:35	A 6:53	7:01	7:10	7:19	7:27	6:44	6:53	7:03	7:11	7:21	7:33	7:42	7:46
6:35	6:40	6:50	A 7:08	7:16	7:25	7:34	7:42	6:59	7:08	7:18	7:26	7:36	7:48	7:57	8:01
6:53	6:58	7:08	7:23	7:31	7:40	7:49	7:57	7:14	7:23	7:33	7:41	7:51	8:03	8:12	8:16
7:08	7:13	7:23	7:38	7:46	7:55	8:04	8:12	7:29	7:38	7:48	7:56	8:06	8:18	8:27	8:31
7:23	7:28	7:38	7:53	8:01	8:10	8:19	8:27	7:44	7:53	8:03	8:11	8:21	8:33	8:42	8:46
7:38	7:43	7:53	8:08	8:16	8:25	8:34	8:42	7:59	8:08	8:18	8:26	8:36	8:48	8:57	9:01
7:53	7:58	8:08	8:23	8:31	8:40	8:49	8:57	8:15	8:24	8:34	8:42	8:51	9:03	9:11	9:15
8:08	8:13	8:23	8:38	8:46	8:55	9:04	9:12	8:31	8:41	8:50	8:57	9:06	9:18	9:26	9:30
8:24	8:29	8:39	8:53	9:01	9:09	9:18	9:27	8:46	8:56	9:05	9:12	9:21	9:33	9:41	9:45
8:40	8:45	8:54	9:08	9:16	9:24	9:33	9:42				15 MINUTES AT:		A 15 MINUTOS A		
8:55	9:00	9:09	9:23	9:31	9:39	9:48	9:57	:01	:11	:20	:27	:36	:48	:57	:00
		D THEN EVERY		/ Y LUEGO CADA				:16	:26	:35	:42	:51	:03	:12	:15
:10	:15	:24	:38	:46	:54	:03	:12	:31	:41	:50	:57	:06	:18	:27	:30
:25	:30	:39	:53	:01	:09	:18	:27	:46	:56	:05	:12	:21	:33	:42	:45
:40	:45	:54	:08	:16	:24	:33	:42					/ HASTA:			
:55	:00	:09		:31 / hasta:	:39	:48	:57	12:01p 12:15	12:11p 12:25	12:20p 12:35	12:27p 12:42	12:36p 12:51	12:48p 1:04	12:56p 1:12	1:01p 1:16
12:25p	12:30p	12:39p	12:53p	1:01p	1:09p	1:18p	1:27p	12:30	12:40	12:50	12:57	1:06	1:19	1:27	1:31
12:40	12:45	12:54	1:08	1:16	1:24	1:33	1:42	12:43	12:53	1:03	1:10	1:19	1:32	1:40	1:44
12:55	1:00	1:09	1:23	1:31	1:39	1:48	1:57	12:58	1:08	1:18	1:25	1:34	1:47	1:55	1:59
1:10	1:15	1:24	1:38	1:46	1:54	2:03	2:12	1:13	1:23	1:33	1:40	1:49	2:02	2:10	2:14
1:26	1:31	1:40	1:54	2:02	2:10	2:19	2:28	1:28	1:38	1:48	1:55	2:04	2:17	2:25	2:29
1:41	1:46	1:55	2:09	2:17	2:25	2:34	2:43	1:43	1:53	2:03	2:10	2:19	2:32	2:40	2:44
1:55	2:00	2:09	2:24	2:32	2:40	2:49	2:59	1:56	2:06	2:17	2:24	2:34	2:47	2:56	3:00
2:09	2:14	2:24	2:39	2:47	2:55	3:04	3:14				15 MINUTES AT:		A 15 MINUTOS A		
2:24	2:29	2:39	2:54	3:02	3:10	3:19	3:29	:10	:20	:31	:39	:49	:02	:11	:15
2:39	2:44	2:54	3:09	3:17	3:25	3:34	3:44	:25	:35	:46	:54	:04	:17	:26	:30
2:54	2:59	3:09	3:24	3:32	3:40	3:49	3:59	:40	:50	:01	:09	:19	:32	:41	:45
3:09	3:14	3:24	3:39	3:47	3:55	4:04	4:14	:55	:05	:16	:24	:34	:47	:56	:00
3:24	3:29	3:39	3:54	4:02	4:10	4:19	4:29					/ HASTA:			
3:39	3:44	3:54	4:09	4:17	4:25	4:34	4:44	4:11	4:21	4:32	4:40	4:50	5:03	5:12	5:16
3:54	3:59	4:09	4:24	4:32	4:40	4:49	4:59	4:26	4:36	4:47	4:55	5:05	5:18	5:27	5:31
4:09	4:14	4:24	4:39	4:47	4:55	5:04	5:14	4:41	4:51	5:02	5:10	5:20	5:33	5:42	5:46
4:24	4:29	4:39	4:54	5:02	5:10	5:19	5:29	4:56	5:06	5:17	5:25	5:35	5:48	5:57	6:01
4:39	4:44	4:54	5:09	5:17	5:25	5:34	5:44	5:11	5:21	5:32	5:40	5:50	6:03	6:12	6:16
4:54	4:59	5:09	5:24	5:32	5:40	5:49	5:59	5:27	5:37	5:48	5:56	6:06	6:19	6:27	6:31
5:09	5:14	5:24	5:39	5:47	5:55	6:04	6:14	5:43	5:53	6:04	6:12	6:21	6:34	6:42	6:46
5:25	5:30	5:40	5:54	6:01	6:09	6:18	6:28	5:59	6:09 6:24	6:19	6:27 6:42	6:36	7.03		7.45
5:40	5:45 6:00	5:55	6:09	6:16	6:24 6:39	6:33	6:42	6:14 6:32		6:34		6:51 7:06	7:03	7:11	7:15
5:55		6:10 6:25	6:24 6:39	6:31		6:48 7:03	6:57 7:12		6:41	6:51 7:08	6:58		7:35	7:42	7:46
6:10 6:25	6:15 6:30	6:25	6:39	6:46 7:01	6:54 7:09	7:03	7:12	6:49 7:19	6:58 7:28	7:08	7:15 7:45	7:23 7:53	7:35 8:05	7:42 8:12	7:46 8:16
6:25	6:30 7:00	6:40 7:10	6:54 7:23	7:01	7:09	7:18	7:27	7:19	7:28	7:38 8:01	7:45 8:08	7:53 8:17	8:05	8:12	8:10
0:50 7:26	7:00	7:10	7:23	8:00	7:37 8:07	7:45 8:15	7:54 8:24	8:15	8:22	8:01	8:08	8:17	8:28	8:35 9:05	8:39 9:09
7:20	7:30 8:01	7:40 8:10	8:23	8:00	8:07	8:15	8:24 8:51	8:15	8:22 8:52	8:31 9:01	9:08	8:47 9:16	0:30	7:05	7:09
8:27	8:01	8:10	8:23	8:29	8:30 9:06	8:43 9:13	9:21	9:15	9:22	9:30	9:36	9:10	·····		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
8:57	9:01	8:40 9:10	9:23	9:29	9:06	9:13	9:21	9:45	9:52	10:00	10:06	10:14	·····		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
3:37	7:01	7:10	9:23	9:29 9:59	9:36	9:43	10:19	10:15	9:52	10:00	10:06	10:14			
_							10.17		10:22	11:00				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		_	10:23	10:29	10:36	10:43		10:45			11:06	11:14			

Alternative formats are available upon request. Please call: /	Formato alternativo disponible al preguntar. Favor de llamar: (619) 231-1466
--	--

Vationa	l City ➡ Ci	itv Heiaht	ts 🔿 Gran	tville				Grantvill	e 🗯 City I	Heiahts =	• Nationa	Citv			
A 24th St. Trolley Sta. DEPART	B 18th St. & National City Blvd.	C Euclid Ave. & Plaza Blvd.	D Euclid Ave. Trolley Station	E Fairmount Ave. & Home Ave.	Fairmount Ave. & University	G Grantville Trolley Station	H Kaiser Hospital ARRIVE	H Kaiser Hospital DEPART	G Grantville Trolley Station	F Fairmount Ave. & University	E Fairmount Ave. & Home Ave.	D Euclid Ave. Trolley Station	C Euclid Ave. & Plaza Blvd.	B 18th St. & National City Blvd.	A 24th St. Trolley Sta ARRIVE
5:25a	5:29a	5:38a	5:51a	5:57a	6:04a	6:12a	6:19a					5:21a	5:31a	5:40a	5:43a
5:55	5:59	6:08	6:21	6:27	6:34	6:42	6:49	5:51a	5:58a	6:06a	6:13a	6:21	6:31	6:40	6:43
6:25	6:29	6:38	6:51	6:57	7:04	7:12	7:19	6:21	6:28	6:36	6:43	6:51	7:01	7:10	7:13
6:55	6:59	7:08	7:21	7:27	7:34	7:42	7:49	6:51	6:58	7:06	7:13	7:21	7:31	7:40	7:43
7:24	7:28	7:38	7:51	7:58	8:06	8:14	8:21	7:19	7:27	7:36	7:43	7:51	8:02	8:12	8:15
7:54	7:58	8:08	8:21	8:28	8:36	8:44	8:51	7:49	7:57	8:06	8:13	8:21	8:32	8:42	8:45
8:24	8:28	8:38	8:51	8:58	9:06	9:14	9:21	8:19	8:27	8:36	8:43	8:51	9:02	9:12	9:15
8:54	8:58	9:08	9:21	9:28	9:36	9:44	9:51	8:49	8:57	9:06	9:13	9:21	9:32	9:42	9:45
9:24	9:28	9:38	9:51	9:59	10:07	10:16	10:24	9:19	9:27	9:36	9:43	9:51	10:02	10:12	10:15
9:54	9:58	10:08	10:21	10:29	10:37	10:46	10:54	9:47	9:56	10:06	10:13	10:21	10:33	10:43	10:46
10:24	10:28	10:38	10:51	10:59	11:07	11:16	11:24	10:17	10:26	10:36	10:43	10:51	11:03	11:13	11:16
10:52	10:57	11:07	11:21	11:29	11:37	11:46	11:54	10:47	10:56	11:06	11:13	11:21	11:33	11:43	11:46
	AN	D THEN EVERY	BO MINUTES AT:	Y LUEGO CADA	30 MINUTOS A	LA:			AN	D THEN EVERY	30 MINUTES AT:	Y LUEGO CAD	A 30 MINUTOS A	LA:	
:22	:27	:37	:51	:59	:07	:16	:24	:15	:24	:34	:42	:51	:03	:13	:16
:52	:57	:07	:21	:29	:37	:46	:54	:45	:54	:04	:12	:21	:33	:43	:46
			UNTIL: /	HASTA:							UNTIL:	/ HASTA:			
5:54p	5:58p	6:08p	6:21p	6:28p	6:36p	6:44p	6:51p	6:15p	6:23p	6:32p	6:39p	6:47p	6:58p	7:08p	7:11p
6:24	6:28	6:38	6:51	6:58	7:06	7:14	7:21	6:45	6:53	7:02	7:09	7:17	7:28	7:38	7:41
6:56	7:00	7:10	7:23	7:30	7:38	7:46	7:53	7:15	7:22	7:31	7:38	7:47	7:58	8:07	8:10
7:27	7:31	7:40	7:53	8:00	8:07	8:14	8:21	7:45	7:52	8:01	8:08	8:17	8:28	8:37	8:40
7:57	8:01	8:10	8:23	8:30	8:37	8:44	8:51	8:15	8:22	8:31	8:38	8:46		_	—
8:27	8:31	8:40	8:53	9:00	9:07	9:14	9:21	8:45	8:52	9:01	9:08	9:16	_	_	-
_	_	_	9:23	9:29	9:36	9:43	9:49	9:15	9:22	9:30	9:36	9:44	_	_	—
_	_	_	9:53	9:59	10:06	10:13	10:19	9:45	9:52	10:00	10:06	10:14	_	_	_
_	_	_	10:23	10:29	10:36	10:43	10:49	10:15	10:22	10:30	10:36	10:44	_	_	_
								11:15	11:22	11:30	11:36	11:44	_	_	_

Route	13							Sunday* /	domingo*								
Nationa	al City 🔿	City Heig	ghts 🔿 (Grantvill	е				Grantvi	ille ➡ Cit	y Height	s 🗯 Natio	onal City	/			
A	В	C	(E	F	G	H	H	G	F	E	(C	в	A
24th St. Trolley Sta. DEPART	18th St. & National City Blvd.	Euclid Ave. & Plaza Blvd.		d Ave. Station DEPART	Fairmount Ave. & Home Ave.	Fairmount Ave. & University	Grantville Trolley Station	Kaiser Hospital ARRIVE	Kaiser Hospital DEPART	Grantville Trolley Station	Fairmount Ave. & University	Fairmount Ave. & Home Ave.		d Ave. Station DEPART	Euclid Ave. & Plaza Blvd.	18th St. & National City Blvd.	24th St. Trolley Sta. ARRIVE
_		_	_	6:24a	6:29a	6:36a	G 6:54a	7:00a		_	_	_	_	5:54a	6:04a	6:11a	6:14a
6:44a	6:48a	6:57a	7:10a	7:24	7:29	7:36	G 7:54	8:00	—	_	—	—	—	6:54	7:04	7:11	7:14
7:43	7:47	7:57	8:10	8:24	8:30	8:37	G 8:54	9:00	7:08a	F 7:24a	7:33a	7:40a	7:48a	7:54	8:05	8:13	8:17
8:43	8:47	8:57	9:10	9:24	9:30	9:37	G 9:54	10:00	8:08	F 8:24	8:33	8:40	8:48	8:54	9:05	9:13	9:17
9:43	9:47	9:57	10:10	10:23	10:30	10:38	G 10:54	11:00	9:08	F 9:24	9:33	9:40	9:48	9:54	10:05	10:13	10:17
10:13	10:17	10:27	10:40	10:53	11:00	11:08	G 11:24	11:30	9:38	F 9:54	10:04	10:11	10:19	10:24	10:36	10:44	10:48
10:41	10:46	10:56	11:10	11:23	11:30	11:38	G 11:54	12:00p			AND THEN EN	ERY 30 MINUTE	ES AT: / Y LUE	GO CADA 30	MINUTOS A LA		
		AND THEN EVE	RY 30 MINUT	ES AT: / Y LU	EGO CADA 30 N	INUTOS A LA	l:		:08	F :24	:34	:41	:49	:54	:06	:14	:18
:11	:16	:26	:40	:53	:00	:08	G :24	:30	:38	F :54	:04	:11	:19	:24	:36	:44	:48
:41	:46	:56	:10	:23	:30	:38	G :54	:00				U	INTIL: / HASTA	A:			
				UNTIL: / HAS	TA:				3:38p	F 3:54p	4:04p	4:12p	4:21p	4:24p	4:36p	4:44p	4:48p
5:11p	5:16p	5:26p	5:40p	5:53p	6:00p	6:08p	G 6:24p	6:30	4:08	F 4:24	4:34	4:42	4:51	4:54	5:06	5:14	5:18
5:41	5:46	5:56	6:10	6:23	6:30	6:38	G 6:54	7:00	5:08	F 5:24	5:34	5:42	5:51	5:54	6:06	6:14	6:18
6:43	6:47	6:57	7:10	7:24	7:30	7:37	7:47		6:08	F 6:24	6:33	6:40	6:48	6:54	7:05	7:12	7:16
7:44	7:48	7:57	8:10	-	-	-	_	-	7:08	F 7:24	7:32	7:38	7:46	7:54	8:04	8:11	8:14

A * Arrives 3 minutes earlier than time shown / Lega a 3 minutos antes de tiempo que se muestra
 F - Arrives approximate/o finitutes earlier than time shown / Lega aproximadamente 5 minutos antes de tiempo que se muestra
 G - Arrives approximate/o finitutes earlier than time shown / Lega aproximadamente 6 minutos antes de tiempo que se muestra
 A Structuraly or Sunday chedula will be operated on most holidays and observed holidays, including New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thankspiring and Christmas. For holiday service details, visit www.sdmts.com or call \$11.
 Ya operation con horario de sibando o domingo durante la mayoria da los dais fetivos y los dias de asueto a guardar. Los dias festivos incluyen Año Nuevo, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Daia de la Independencia (E.E.U.U.), Labor Day, Dia de Acción de Gracias y Navidad.
 Para detailes sobre el servicio en días festivos, visite www.sdmts.com o lame al \$11.

CASH FARES / Tarifas en efectivo Exact fare, please / Favor de pagar la cantidad exacta	
Day Pass (Regional) / Pase diario (Regional)	\$5.00
One-Way Fare / Tarifa de una direccíon	\$2.25
Senior (60+)/Disabled/Medicare Mayores de 60 años/Discapacitados/Medicare	\$1.10*
Children 5 & under / Niños de 5 años o menores	FREE / GRATIS*
MONTHLY PASSES / Pases mensual	
Adult / Adulto	\$72.00
Senior (60+)/Disabled/Medicare Mayores de 60 años/Discapacitados/Medicare	\$18.00*

DAY PASS (REGIONAL) / Pase diario (Regional)

Jóvenes (18 años o menores)

Youths (18 and under)

\$36.00*

Valid for unlimited travel for one person on Trolley, most MTS buses. fares; not valid on Premium Express, Rural, or special service buses, NCTD Breeze and SPRINTER. Valid for a discount on COASTER or ADA paratransit.

los Válidos para viajes ilimitados de una sola persona para: el Trolley, la mayoría de los autobuses de MTS, y los servicios del NCTD de servicios especiales ni los servicios para discapacitadas de ADA. BREEZE y SPRINTER. Válidos para acceder a descuentos en el COASTER, pero no para las rutas Premium Express ni rurales, l

* I.D. required for discount fare or pass. * Se requiere identificación para tarifas o pases de descuento.

T 1 *

DIRECTORY / Directorio	
Regional Transit Information Información de transporte público regional	511 ^{or/6} (619) 233-3004
TTY/TDD (teletype for hearing impaired) Teletipo para sordos	(619) 234-5005 or/ó (888) 722-4889
InfoExpress (24-hour info via Touch-Tone phone) Información las 24 horas (via teléfono de teclas)	(619) 685-4900
Customer Service / Suggestions Servicio al cliente / Sugerencias	(619) 557-4555
SafeWatch	(619) 557-4500
Lost & Found (619) 427-6438 Objetos extraviados ^{or/ó} (800) 722-4889	Weekend (877) 841-3278
The Transit Store	1st & Broadway Downtown San Diego M-F 9am-5pm
For MTS online trip planning w	www.sd mts .com

Guide on a bus or at the Transit Store, or visit www.sd**mts**.com. MTS, recoga un 'Rider's Guide' en un autobús o en 'The Transit For more information on riding MTS services, pick up a Rider's Para obtener más información sobre el uso de los servicios de Store,' o visita a www.sd**mts**.com.

Planificación de viajes por Internet

Gracias por viajar con MTS! Thank you for riding MTS!

16/91

Effective FEBRUARY 28, 2010

Euclid Trolley – College Grove via Streamview Dr. / Massachusetts Ave.

DESTINATIONS

 College Grove Shopping Ctr. Encanto Community Park

MTS

- Lemon Grove Plaza
 - Malcolm X Library
- Metropolitan Center







Formato alternativo disponible al preguntar. Favor de llamar: Alternative formats are available upon request. Please call:

(619) 231-1466







Visit **www.sdmts.com** for a complete list of locations. 56 Vons grocery stores locations in San Diego County Monthly transit passes are now available at all

The schedules and other information shown in this timetable are subject to change. MTS does not assume responsibility for errors in timetables nor for any inconvenience caused by delayed buses. Los horarios y información que se indican en este itinerario están sujetos a cambios. MTS no asume responsabilidad por errores en los itinerarios, ni por ningún perjuício que se origine por los autobuses demorados.



(B) Bayview Hts. 54th St. & Dr. & Streamview Grape St. Dr. B. 	College Grove Contege Grove Center ARRIVE DEPART	(;;;;;5			うりつう	555	Eacha holleg - Einerara mis - College Orove - Eacha holleg	2	
Bayview Hts. 54th St. & Dr. & Streamview Grape St. =	College Grove Center ARRIVE DEPART		Ē	∢	∢	Ē	Ð	U		ΰ	8	∢
Link Link <thlink< th=""> Link Link <thl< th=""><th></th><th></th><th>Encanto/62nd St. Trolley</th><th>Euclid Ave. Trolley</th><th>Euclid Ave. Trolley</th><th>Encanto/62nd St. Trolley</th><th>Mass. Ave. & Mt. Vernon St.</th><th>College Cen</th><th>e Grove Iter DEDA DT</th><th>54th St. & Streamview</th><th>Bayview Hts. Dr. &</th><th>Euclid Ave. Trolley</th></thl<></thlink<>			Encanto/62nd St. Trolley	Euclid Ave. Trolley	Euclid Ave. Trolley	Encanto/62nd St. Trolley	Mass. Ave. & Mt. Vernon St.	College Cen	e Grove Iter DEDA DT	54th St. & Streamview	Bayview Hts. Dr. &	Euclid Ave. Trolley
 6:31a 6:35a 7:02 7:07 7:32 8:07 8:07 8:07 8:07 8:07 8:07 8:07 8:07 8:07 9:07 10:07 10:07<td> </td><td></td><td>5:32a</td><td>5:42a</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>5:21a</td><td>5:29a</td><td>5:34a</td><td>5:40a</td>			5:32a	5:42a					5:21a	5:29a	5:34a	5:40a
 6:31a 6:35a 7:02 7:02 7:37 7:32 7:37 7:37 7:37 8:37 <	I	6:25	6:32	6:42	I	1	1	1	6:21	6:29	6:34	6:40
7:02 7:07 7:32 7:37 8:02 8:07 8:02 8:07 9:02 9:07 10:02 10:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 11:0	6:41a —								6:51	6:59	7:05	7:12
7.32 7.37 8:02 8:07 8:02 8:07 9:02 9:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 12:07 2:02 2:07 2:03 3:09 3:33 3:09 3:33 3:39 4:03 4:09		7:24	7:32	7:42	6:55a	7:05a	7:13a	7:22a	7:24	7:32	7:38	7:45
8:02 8:07 8:32 8:37 9:02 9:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 2:02 12:07 2:03 2:39 3:33 3:39 3:33 3:39 4:03 4:09 4:33 4:39		I	I	I	I	Ι	I	Ι	7:54	8:02	8:08	8:15
8:37 8:37 9:02 10:02 11:02 11:02 11:07 12:02 12:07 2:33 2:39 3:33 3:33 3:39 3:33 3:39 3:33 3:39 3:33 3:39 3:33 3:39 3:39 3:33 3:39 3 3:39 3:39 3:39 3:39 3:39 3:39 3:39 3:39 3 3:39 3 3:39 3 3:39 3 3:39 3 3:39 3 3 3 3		8:24	8:32	8:42	7:55	8:05	8:13	8:22	8:24	8:32	8:38	8:45
 y.02 y.07 11:02 11:07 11:02 11:07 12:02p 12:07p 2:02 2:07 2:03 3:33 3:33 3:33 3:33 4:09 4:33 		2	20	3	8:55	9:05	9:13	9:22	9:24	9:32	9:38	9:45
11:002 11:07 11:02 11:07 12:02 12:07 2:33 2:39 2:33 2:39 3:33 3:39 3:33 3:39 4:03 4:39 4:39		9:24 10:24	9:32 10:22	7:42 10.42	40.5	c0:01	10:13	22:01	10:24	10:32	10:38	10:40
1:02 1:02 1:02 2:02 2:33 3:03 3:03 3:09 4:03 4:09 4:39 4:39		11.24	11.22	11.42	11.54	12:06	40.44	-12.24		10.24	12.40-	12:47
p 1:025 1:07 2:02 1:07 2:33 2:39 3:03 3:09 3:33 3:09 3:33 3:39 4:09 4:33 4:09		11.24 43.35-		101.01	11.30	4.04	12:14p	12:24p	12:20P	12:34p	12:400	12:479
2:02 2:33 2:39 3:03 3:33 3:39 4:03 4:03 4:33 4:39		1.25	1.33	1.43	1-56	90 20		2.24	2.26	2.24	0-4-0 2-40	14:- 2.47
2:33 2:39 3:03 3:09 3:33 3:39 4:03 4:09 4:33 4:39	:	2.25	2.33	2.43) 			2.56	3.05	3.11 3.11	
3.03 3.09 3.33 3.39 4.03 4.09 4.33 4.39) 	2 1	2	2.56	3:06	3:15	3.25	3:27	3:36	3:42	3.49
3:33 3:39 4:03 4:09 4:33 4:39		3:29	3:37	3:48			2) 	3.57	4:06	4.12	4.19
4:03 4:09 4:33 4:39			jI		3:56	4:06	4:15	4:25	4:27	4:36	4:42	4:49
4:33 4:39	•	4:29	4:37	4:48	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	·	4:57	5:06	5:12	5:19
		1	I	I	4:56	5:06	5:15	5:25	5:27	5:36	5:42	5:49
5:03 5:09		5:29	5:37	5:48					5:57	90:9	6:12	6:19
5:33 5:39	5:47 —	I	I	I	5:56	90:9	6:15	6:25	6:27	6:36	6:42	6:49
6:03 6:09		6:29	6:37	6:48	6:57	7:07	7:16	7:26	7:28	7:37	7:43	7:50
6:33 6:39		1	I	1	7:58	8:07	8:15	8:24	8:26	8:34	8:39	8:45
7:04 7:10		7:30	7:38	7:49	8:58	9:07	9:14	9:22	9:25	9:32	9:36	9:42
8:04 8:09 9:03 9:07		8:26 9:24	8:34 9:31	8:44 9:41	9:58	10:07	10:14	10:22	10:25	10:32	10:36	10:42
oute 916	Saturday* / .	sábado*			Route	917		Sa	aturday* /	sábado*		
lid Trollev ➡ Oak Park ➡ College	e Grove 🖶 Euc	id Trollev			Euclid Tro	illev ➡ Em∉	∋rald Hills ■	 College 	Grove =	• Euclid Trol	ev	
	C	Œ	Œ			(u	Œ		6	C		
Barvious H+c			Encanto/62nd	Enclid Ava	Euclid Ave	Encanto/62nd	Mace Ave &		Crow	EAth Ct &	Banview Htc	Endid Av
Dr. & Streamview Grape St. Dr.	Center Center RRIVE DEPART		St. Trolley Station	ARRIVE	Trolley DEPART	Station	Mt. Vernon St.	ARRIVE	DEPART	Streamview	Dr. & Grape St.	Trolley ARRIVE
			6:32a	6:42a					6:23a	6:31a	6:36a	6:42a
7:01a 7:05a		7:25	7:33	7:43	6:56a	7:05a	7:13a	7:23a	7:26	7:34	7:39	7:45
8:01 8:05		8:25	8:33	8:43	7:56	8:05	8:13	8:23	8:26	8:34	8:39	8:45
9:01 9:05		9:25	9:33	9:43	8:56	9:05	9:13	9:23	9:26	9:34	9:39	9:45
10:01 10:05		10:25	10:33	10:43	9:56	10:06	10:14	10:24	10:27	10:35	10:41	10:47
 11:01 11:05		11:24	11:33	11:44	10:56	11:06	11:15	11:25	11:27	11:36	11:42	11:48
12:01p 12:05p		12:24p	12:33p	12:44p	11:56	12:06p	12:15p	12:25p	12:27p	12:36p	12:42p	12:48p
1:01 1:05		1:24	1:33	1:44	12:56p	1:06	1:15	1:25	1:27	1:36	1:42	1:48
2:01 2:05		2:24	2:33	2:44	1:56	2:06	2:15	2:25	2:27	2:36	2:42	2:48
3:01 3:05		3:24	3:33	3:44	2:56	3:06	3:15	3:25	3:27	3:36	3:42	3:48
4:01 4:05		4:24	4:33	4:44	3:56	4:06	4:15	4:25	4:27	4:36	4:42	4:48
60:6 70.2	:	5:24 2.24	5:33	0:44	4:00	5:00	0:10 7.7.7	0.20	2:2/	5:30	5:42	5:48
0:00 L0:0		0:24	0:33	0:44	000	0.0 0	0.10 17 0	0:25	0:2/	0:30	0 4 7 7 7 7	0 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
50:7 1.0:7		0.24	0.23	0.45 0.45	0::0	0.05	0.15 0.15	c2:/	1:27	0:20	0.20	0.44
9:02 9:06			4 <u>.</u> -	4 5	ŝ I	<u></u>]	<u>;</u>	1 1 2	9:16	9:24	9:29	9:35
pute 916	Sunday* / de	omingo*			Route	917		Su	unday* / o	omingo*		
916 does not operate on Sunday. Alternative Sun	idav service mav incluc	Je Routes 4, 936, 9	355. or the Orand	tine Trolley	Route 917 does	not operate on	Sunday, Alternati	ve Sundav sen	vice mav inclu	de Routes 4, 936	955 or the Ora	nae Line Tro
1916 no opera los domingos. Servicio alternativo	de domingo puede in	cluir las rutas 4, 93	6, 955 o Orange	Line Trolley.	Ruta 917 no c	pera los doming	tos. Servicio alter	nativo de dom	ingo puede ii	cluir las rutas 4, 5	736, 955 o Orang	ge Line Trol
CASH FARES / Tarifas en efectivo

Exact fare, please / Favor de pagar la cantidad exacta	
Day Pass (Regional) / Pase diario (Regional)	\$5.00
One-Way Fare / Tarifa de una direccíon	\$2.25
Senior (60+)/Disabled/Medicare Mayores de 60 años/Discapacitados/Medicare	\$1.10*
Children 5 & under / Niños de 5 años o menores	FREE / GRATIS*
MONTHLY PASSES / Pases mensual	
MONTHLY PASSES / Pases mensual Adult / Adulto	\$72.00
	\$72.00 \$18.00*

DAY PASS (REGIONAL) / Pase diario (Regional) Valid for unlimited travel for one person on Trolley, most MTS buses, NCTD Breeze and SPRINTER. Valid for a discount on COASTER fares; not valid on Premium Express, Rural, or special service buses, or ADA paratransit.

or ADA paratranstr. Válidos para viajes ilimitados de una sola persona para: el Trolley, la mayoría de los autobuses de MTS, y los servicios del NCTD de BREEZE y SPRINTER. Válidos para acceder a descuentos en el COASTER, por no para las rutas Premium Express ni rurales, los servicios especiales ni los servicios para discapacitadas de ADA.

* I.D. required for discount fare or pass. * Se requiere identificación para tarifas o pases de descuento.

DIRECTORY / Directorio	
Regional Transit Information Información de transporte público regional	511 ^{or/ó} (619) 233-3004
TTY/TDD (teletype for hearing impaired) Teletipo para sordos	(619) 234-5005 or/ó (888) 722-4889
InfoExpress (24-hour info via Touch-Tone phone) Información las 24 horas (via teléfono de teclas)	(619) 685-4900
Customer Service / Suggestions Servicio al cliente / Sugerencias	(619) 557-4555
SafeWatch	(619) 557-4500
Lost & Found Objetos extraviados	ő (619) 427-6438 (800) 409-3310
The Transit Store	1st & Broadway Downtown San Diego M–F 9am–5pm
For MTS online trip planning	ww.sdmts.com

www.sd**mts**.com Planificación de viajes por Internet

For more information on riding MTS services, pick up a Rider's Guide on a bus or at the Transit Store, or visit www.sdmts.com. Para obtener más información sobre el uso de los servicios de MTS, recoga un 'Rider's Guide' en un autobús o en 'The Transit Store,' o visita a www.sdmts.com.

Thank you for riding MTS! ¡Gracias por viajar con MTS!



Effective FEBRUARY 28, 2010



GENESSEAP	Serra	ZION AV	STL (Lake
	Mesa			
	185 ED 00 MI	San Di	SDSU Transit C	
E.	Ale an Orter of	Univer		LAKEMO
RIC ST	Owener and D	L RIO 5 2 11		
(163)	O and a star O and CAMINO DE	OUNT A MON		
Duran and	Normal	≷ ENOO	E UNBL	
HOTEL CIR ST	Heights	COLUMORA	1,15 m ELCANON BL	TOTHSI
	ADAMS AV	15 G EL CAJON BLVD	E Z	P UNIVERSITY AN LA
RAKK	HO ROS	City Heights	Crawford H.S.	MESA
	North Park	UNIVERSITY AV	7,10	
	JNIVERSITY AV	4/ST ST dr12/na	916, 917	and the second se
15T A 5TH AV KICHMOND			E STREAMNEW DR	
		EUCLIO	COLLEGE GROVE OF	MSH
Zoo	5	Chollas ∕≩ ' Creek	Oak Park	WASHINGTON
Balboa	30TH ST	[208]	GRAPE CO	Ž ST
- (163)		916, 9 <u>17</u>	(94)	
	(15	FEDERAL	10	
5-00-0	<i>Euc</i> (94)	Iid Trolley Station Orange Line, 3, 4, 5,	BROADWAY	
0.	94]	13, 916, 917, 960 AMA	RKET ST	
	200		PIAL	
	-Q	IMPERIAL AV	3 4 13 Park	
	OCEAN VIEW BLVD	<u> </u>	NERA AV	
	15 NATIO		coln H.S.	
Sm Diego (75)		S Incz	lta Vista	er state sta
Sm Diego Coronado Bridos	South	crest Volvis		SHEETWINT ER
Coro.	Naval Base 967, 9	68 9 <u>68</u> 41H 51 1929	NATIONAL	JOD MAR D
Naval Base	San Diego (32nd Street)		CHTY	N ST
Coronado (NAB)		CENTER OK CAT	Teles 0 0 R	
A.	8th St. 7 Trolley Station	CENTER DR LL CETT	2	(54) CENTRAL
STREET B	llue Line, 932, 962, 963			
2		ATH DE		Ň
		(54)	Fh	www.sd mts .com
			(A) = Timepoint and/o	
		HHH		, • • • • • • • •

Route	955						Sunday*	/ domingo*							
lational	l City ➡ O	ak Park Ħ	SDSU					SDSU =	Oak Park	🛪 🖚 Nation	al City				
A	B	C	(1	D	E	(F)	G	G	(F)	E	(D	C	B	A
8th St. Trolley Station DEPART	Highland Ave. & 8th St.	47th St. & Logan Ave.	Eucli Tro	d Ave. olley ition DEPART	54th St. & Streamview Dr.	54th St. & El Cajon Blvd.	SDSU Transit Center ARRIVE	SDSU Transit Center DEPART	54th St. & El Cajon Blvd.	54th St. & Streamview Dr.	Eucli	d Ave. olley ition DEPART	47th St. & Logan Ave.	Highland Ave. & 8th St.	8th St. Trolley Station ARRIVE
_	_	_	_	5:53a	6:00a	6:04a	6:13a		_	_	_	5:54a	6:01a	6:10a	6:15a
6:25a	6:33a	6:42a	6:51a	6:53	7:00	7:04	7:13	6:25a	6:32a	6:36a	6:45a	6:54	7:01	7:10	7:15
7:25	7:33	7:42	7:51	7:53	8:00	8:04	8:13	7:25	7:32	7:36	7:45	7:54	8:01	8:10	8:15
8:25	8:33	8:42	8:51	8:53	9:00	9:04	9:13	8:25	8:33	8:37	8:47	8:54	9:01	9:10	9:15
9:23	9:31	9:41	9:51	9:53	10:00	10:04	10:13	9:27	9:36	9:41	9:50	9:54	10:02	10:11	10:17
10:12	10:20	10:30	10:41	10:48	10:56	11:02	11:13	9:57	10:06	10:11	10:20	10:24	10:32	10:41	10:47
10:40	10:49	11:00	11:11	11:18	11:26	11:32	11:43	10:27	10:36	10:41	10:50	10:54	11:02	11:11	11:17
11:10	11:19	11:30	11:41	11:48	11:56	12:02p	12:13p	10:55	11:04	11:09	11:20	11:24	11:33	11:42	11:48
11:40	11:49	12:00p	12:11p	12:18p	12:26p	12:32	12:43	11:25	11:34	11:39	11:50	11:54	12:03p	12:12p	12:18p
12:10p	12:19p	12:30	12:41	12:48	12:56	1:02	1:13	11:55	12:04p	12:09p	12:20p	12:24p	12:33	12:42	12:48
12:40	12:49	1:00	1:11	1:18	1:26	1:32	1:43	12:25p	12:34	12:39	12:50	12:54	1:03	1:12	1:18
1:10	1:19	1:30	1:41	1:48	1:56	2:02	2:13	12:55	1:04	1:09	1:20	1:24	1:33	1:42	1:48
1:40	1:49	2:00	2:11	2:18	2:26	2:32	2:43	1:25	1:34	1:39	1:50	1:54	2:03	2:12	2:18
2:10	2:19	2:30	2:41	2:48	2:56	3:02	3:13	1:55	2:04	2:09	2:20	2:24	2:33	2:42	2:48
2:40	2:49	3:00	3:11	3:18	3:26	3:32	3:43	2:25	2:34	2:39	2:50	2:54	3:03	3:12	3:18
3:10	3:19	3:30	3:41	3:48	3:56	4:02	4:13	2:55	3:04	3:09	3:20	3:24	3:33	3:42	3:48
3:40	3:49	4:00	4:11	4:18	4:26	4:32	4:43	3:25	3:34	3:39	3:50	3:54	4:03	4:12	4:18
4:10	4:19	4:30	4:41	4:48	4:56	5:02	5:13	3:55	4:04	4:09	4:20	4:24	4:33	4:42	4:48
4:40	4:49	5:00	5:11	5:18	5:26	5:32	5:43	4:25	4:34	4:39	4:50	4:54	5:03	5:12	5:18
5:10	5:19	5:30	5:41	5:48	5:56	6:02	6:13	4:55	5:04	5:09	5:20	5:24	5:33	5:42	5:48
6:11	6:20	6:30	6:40	6:48	6:56	7:02	7:13	5:25	5:34	5:39	5:50	5:54	6:03	6:12	6:18
7:11	7:20	7:30	7:40	7:53	8:00	8:04	8:13	6:25	6:34	6:39	6:50	6:54	7:03	7:12	7:18
8:24	8:32	8:41	8:51	8:53	9:00	9:04	9:13	7:26	7:35	7:40	7:50	7:53	8:00	8:09	8:14
								8:26	8:35	8:40	8:50	8:53	9:00	9:09	9:14

*A Saturday or Sunday schedule will be operated on most holidays and observed holidays, including New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. For holiday service details, visit www.sdmts.com or call 511. *Se operará con horario de sábado o domingo durante la mayoria de los dias festivos y los dias de asueto a guardar. Los dias festivos incluyen Año Nuevo, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Día de la Independencia (E.E.U.U.), Labor Day, Día de Acción de Gracias y Navidad Para detailes sobre el servicio en dias festivos, visite www.sdmts.com o llame al 511.

oute			CDCU			wonda	y anough Fr	iday / lunes a							
~	-)ak Park ➡							-	A → Nation					
(A)	в	C		D	E	F	G	G	F	E		D	C	B	A
th St.	Highland Ave.	47th St.	Eucli	d Ave. blley	54th St.	54th St.	SDSU Transit	SDSU Transit	54th St.	54th St.	Eucl	id Ave. olley	47th St.	Highland Ave.	8th 9
frolley tation	&	Logan	Sta	ation	Streamview	El Cajon	Center	Center	El Cajon	Streamview	St	ation	Logan	&	Trolle Statie
EPART 4:49a	8th St. 4:58a	Ave. 5:07a	ARRIVE 5:15a	5:18a	Dr.	Blvd. 5:30a	5:38a	5:01a	Blvd. 5:08a	Dr. 5:12a	ARRIVE 5:21a	5:24a	Ave. 5:31a	8th St. 5:40a	ARRI 5:4
4:49a 5:04	4:56a 5:13	5:07a 5:22	5:15a 5:30	5:10a	5:26a 5:41	5:30a 5:45	5:50a 5:53	5:01a	5:06a	5:12a	5:21a 5:51	5:24a 5:54	5:51a 6:01	5:40a 6:10	5:4 6:1
5:19	5:28	5:37	5:45	5:48	5:56	6:00	6:08	5:45	5:52	5:57	6:06	6:09	6:16	6:25	6:3
5:33	5:42	5:52	6:00	6:03	6:11	6:15	6:23	5:59	6:06	6:11	6:21	6:24	6:32	6:41	6:4
5:47	5:56	6:06	6:15	6:18	6:27	6:31	6:39	6:13	6:21	6:26	6:36	6:39	6:47	6:57	7:0
6:02	6:11	6:21	6:30	6:33	6:42	6:46	6:55	6:27	6:36	6:41	6:51	6:54	7:02	7:12	7:1
6:16	6:25	6:35	6:45	6:48	6:57	7:01	7:11	6:41	6:50	6:55	7:06	7:09	7:18	7:28	7:3
6:29	6:39	6:49	7:00	7:03	7:13	7:17	7:27	6:56	7:05	7:10	7:21	7:24	7:33	7:43	7:5
6:44	6:54	7:04	7:15	7:18	7:28	7:33	7:43	7:11	7:20	7:25	7:36	7:39	7:48	7:58	8:0
6:59	7:09	7:19	7:30	7:33	7:43	7:48	7:59	7:26	7:35	7:40	7:51	7:54	8:03	8:13	8:2
7:14	7:24	7:34	7:45	7:48	7:58	8:03	8:14	7:41	7:50	7:55	8:06	8:09	8:18	8:28	8:3
7:29	7:39	7:49	8:00	8:03	8:13	8:18	8:29	7:56	8:05	8:10	8:21	8:24	8:33	8:43	8:5
7:44 8:00	7:54 8:10	8:04 8:20	8:15 8:30	8:18 8:33	8:28	8:33 8:47	8:43 8:57	8:11	8:20 8:35	8:25 8:40	8:36 8:51	8:39 8:54	8:48 9:03	8:58	9:0
8:00 8:16	8:10	8:20 8:36	8:30 8:45	8:33	8:42 8:57	8:47 9:02	8:57 9:12	8:26 8:41	8:35 8:50	8:40 8:55	8:51 9:06	8:54 9:09	9:03 9:18	9:13 9:28	9:2 9:3
B:32	8:42	8:51	6:45 9:00	9:03	9:12	9:02	9:12	8:56	9:05	8:55 9:10	9:08	9:09	9:10	9:20	9:5
8:47	8:57	9:06	9:15	9:18	9:27	9:32	9:42	9:12	9:21	9:26	9:36	9:39	9:47	9:57	10:0
9:02	9:12	9:21	9:30	9:33	9:42	9:47	9:57	9:27	9:36	9:41	9:51	9:54	10:02	10:12	10:1
9:17	9:27	9:36	9:45	9:48	9:57	10:02	10:12	9:42	9:51	9:56	10:06	10:09	10:17	10:27	10:3
9:32	9:42	9:51	10:00	10:03	10:12	10:17	10:27	9:57	10:06	10:11	10:21	10:24	10:32	10:42	10:4
9:47	9:57	10:06	10:15	10:18	10:27	10:32	10:42	10:12	10:21	10:26	10:36	10:39	10:47	10:57	11:0
0:02	10:12	10:21	10:30	10:33	10:42	10:47	10:57	10:27	10:36	10:41	10:51	10:54	11:02	11:12	11:1
0:16	10:26	10:36	10:45	10:48	10:57	11:02	11:12	10:42	10:51	10:56	11:06	11:09	11:17	11:27	11:3
0:29	10:39	10:50	11:00	11:03	11:12	11:18	11:28	10:57	11:06	11:11	11:21	11:24	11:32	11:42	11:4
0:44	10:54	11:05	11:15	11:18	11:27	11:33	11:43	11:12	11:21	11:26	11:36	11:39	11:47	11:57	12:0
1:00	11:10	11:21	11:31	11:34	11:43	11:49	11:59	11:27	11:36	11:41	11:51	11:54	12:02p	12:12p	12:1
1:15 1:30	11:25 11:40	11:36 11:51	11:46 12:01p	11:49 12:04p	11:58 12:13p	12:04p 12:19	12:14p 12:29	11:42 11:57	11:51 12:06p	11:56 12:11p	12:06p 12:21	12:09p 12:24	12:17 12:32	12:27 12:42	12:3 12:4
1:45	11:55	12:06p	12:010	12:04p	12:130	12:34	12:44	12:12p	12:20	12:26	12:36	12:24	12:32	12:57	1:0
2:00p	12:10p	12:21	12:31	12:34	12:43	12:49	12:59	12:27	12:36	12:41	12:51	12:54	1:02	1:12	1:0
2:15	12:25	12:36	12:46	12:49	12:58	1:04	1:14	12:42	12:51	12:56	1:06	1:09	1:17	1:27	1:3
2:30	12:40	12:51	1:01	1:04	1:13	1:19	1:29	12:57	1:06	1:11	1:21	1:24	1:32	1:42	1:4
2:45	12:55	1:06	1:16	1:19	1:28	1:34	1:44	1:12	1:21	1:26	1:36	1:39	1:47	1:57	2:0
1:00	1:10	1:21	1:31	1:34	1:43	1:49	1:59	1:27	1:36	1:41	1:51	1:54	2:02	2:12	2:1
1:15	1:25	1:36	1:46	1:49	1:58	2:04	2:14	1:42	1:51	1:56	2:06	2:09	2:17	2:27	2:3
1:30	1:40	1:51	2:01	2:04	2:13	2:19	2:29	1:56	2:06	2:11	2:21	2:24	2:32	2:42	2:4
1:45	1:55	2:06	2:16	2:19	2:28	2:34	2:44	2:10	2:20	2:25	2:36	2:39	2:47	2:58	3:0
2:00	2:10	2:21 2:36	2:31 2:46	2:34 2:49	2:43	2:49 3:04	2:59 3:16	2:25 2:40	2:35 2:50	2:40	2:51	2:54	3:03	3:14 3:29	3:2
2:15 2:30	2:25 2:40	2:36	2:46	2:49 3:04	2:59 3:15	3:04	3:16	2:40	2:50	2:55 3:10	3:06 3:21	3:09 3:24	3:18 3:33	3:29	3:3 3:5
2:30	2:40	3:06	3:01	3:04	3:15	3:20	3:32	3:10	3:05	3:25	3:21	3:24	3:48	3:59	4:0
2:59	3:09	3:20	3:30	3:33	3:44	3:49	4:01	3:25	3:35	3:40	3:51	3:54	4:03	4:14	4:0
3:14	3:24	3:35	3:45	3:48	3:59	4:04	4:16	3:40	3:50	3:55	4:06	4:09	4:18	4:29	4:3
3:29	3:39	3:50	4:00	4:03	4:14	4:19	4:31	3:55	4:05	4:10	4:21	4:24	4:33	4:44	4:5
3:44	3:54	4:05	4:15	4:18	4:29	4:34	4:46	4:10	4:20	4:25	4:36	4:39	4:48	4:59	5:0
3:59	4:09	4:20	4:30	4:33	4:44	4:49	5:01	4:25	4:35	4:40	4:51	4:54	5:03	5:14	5:2
4:14	4:24	4:35	4:45	4:48	4:59	5:04	5:16	4:40	4:50	4:55	5:06	5:09	5:18	5:29	5:3
4:29	4:39	4:50	5:00	5:03	5:14	5:19	5:31	4:55	5:05	5:10	5:21	5:24	5:33	5:44	5:5
4:44	4:54	5:05	5:15	5:18	5:29	5:34	5:46	5:10	5:20	5:25	5:36	5:39	5:48	5:59	6:0
1:59	5:09	5:20	5:30	5:33	5:44	5:49	6:01	5:25	5:35	5:40	5:51	5:54	6:03	6:14	6:2
5:14	5:24	5:35	5:45	5:48	5:59	6:04	6:16	5:41	5:51	5:56	6:06	6:09	6:17	6:28	6:3
5:29	5:39	5:50	6:00	6:03	6:14	6:19	6:31	5:57	6:06	6:11	6:21	6:24	6:32	6:42	6:4
5:52 5:22	6:02 6:32	6:12 6:42	6:21 6:51	6:24 6:54	6:34 7:04	6:38 7:08	6:49 7:19	6:12 6:27	6:21 6:36	6:26 6:41	6:36 6:51	6:39 6:54	6:47 7:02	6:57 7:12	7:0 7:1
5:22 5:54	6:32 7:03	6:42 7:13	6:51 7:21	6:54 7:24	7:04	7:08	7:19	6:42	6:36	6:56	6:51 7:06	6:54 7:09	7:02	7:12	7:1
5:54 7:24	7:03	7:43	7:21	7:54	7:34 8:04	8:08	8:18	7:02	7:11	7:16	7:06	7:29	7:36	7:45	7:5
7:55	8:04	8:14	8:21	8:24	8:33	8:37	8:46	7:27	7:36	7:41	7:51	7:54	8:01	8:10	8:1
3:25	8:34	8:44	8:51	8:54	9:03	9:07	9:16	7:57	8:06	8:11	8:21	8:24	8:31	8:40	8:4
B:55	9:04	9:14	9:21	9:24	9:33	9:37	9:46	8:27	8:36	8:41	8:51	8:54	9:01	9:10	9:1
9:25	9:34	9:44	9:51	9:54	10:03	10:07	10:16	8:57	9:06	9:11	9:21	9:24	9:31	9:40	9:4
9:55	10:04	10:14	10:21	10:24	10:33	10:37	10:46	9:29	9:38	9:42	9:51	9:54	10:01	10:10	10:1
								9:59	10:08	10:12	10:21	10:24	10:31	10:40	10:4
								10:29	10:38	10:42	10:51	10:54 11:24	11:01	11:10	11:1

Alternative formats are available upon request. Please call: /	Formato alternativo disponible al preguntar. Favor de llamar:	(619) 231-1466
--	---	----------------

Vationa	l City ➡ O	ak Park Ħ	SDSU					SDSU ➡	Oak Parl	🛪 🖚 Nationa	al City				
A 8th St. Trolley Station DEPART	B Highland Ave. & 8th St.	C 47th St. & Logan Ave.	Eucli Tro	D d Ave. blley ttion DEPART	E 54th St. & Streamview Dr.	F 54th St. & El Cajon Blvd.	G SDSU Transit Center ARRIVE	G SDSU Transit Center DEPART	54th St. & El Cajon Blvd.	E 54th St. & Streamview Dr.	Eucli	D d Ave. blley ttion DEPART	C 47th St. & Logan Ave.	B Highland Ave. & 8th St.	A 8th St. Trolley Station ARRIV
5:18a	5:26a	5:35a	5:44a	5:47a	5:54a	5:58a	6:07a	5:46a	5:53a	5:57a	6:06a	6:09a	6:16a	6:25a	6:30
				6:17	6:24	6:28	6:37	6:16	6:23	6:27	6:36	6:39	6:46	6:55	7:00
6:18	6:26	6:35	6:44	6:47	6:54	6:58	7:07	6:46	6:53	6:57	7:06	7:09	7:16	7:25	7:30
6:48	6:56	7:05	7:14	7:17	7:24	7:28	7:37	7:14	7:22	7:26	7:36	7:39	7:46	7:55	8:00
7:16	7:24	7:34	7:44	7:47	7:54	7:59	8:10	7:44	7:52	7:56	8:06	8:09	8:16	8:25	8:30
7:46	7:54	8:04	8:14	8:17	8:24	8:29	8:40	8:14	8:22	8:26	8:36	8:39	8:46	8:55	9:00
8:16	8:24	8:34	8:44	8:47	8:54	8:59	9:10	8:44	8:52	8:56	9:06	9:09	9:16	9:25	9:30
8:46	8:54	9:04	9:14	9:17	9:24	9:29	9:40	9:12	9:21	9:26	9:36	9:39	9:47	9:56	10:02
9:16	9:24	9:34	9:44	9:47	9:54	9:59	10:10	9:42	9:51	9:56	10:06	10:09	10:17	10:26	10:32
9:46	9:54	10:04	10:14	10:17	10:24	10:29	10:40	10:12	10:21	10:26	10:36	10:39	10:47	10:56	11:02
10:16	10:24	10:34	10:44	10:47	10:54	10:59	11:10	10:41	10:50	10:55	11:06	11:09	11:18	11:27	11:33
10:43	10:52	11:03	11:14	11:17	11:25	11:31	11:42	11:11	11:20	11:25	11:36	11:39	11:48	11:57	12:03
11:13	11:22	11:33	11:44	11:47	11:55	12:01p	12:12p	11:41	11:50	11:55	12:06p	12:09p	12:18p	12:27p	12:33
11:43	11:52	12:03p	12:14p	12:17p	12:25p	12:31	12:42	12:11p	12:20p	12:25p	12:36	12:39	12:48	12:57	1:03
12:13p	12:22p	12:33	12:44	12:47	12:55	1:01	1:12	12:41	12:50	12:55	1:06	1:09	1:18	1:27	1:33
12:43	12:52	1:03	1:14	1:17	1:25	1:31	1:42	1:11	1:20	1:25	1:36	1:39	1:48	1:57	2:03
1:13	1:22	1:33	1:44	1:47	1:55	2:01	2:12	1:41	1:50	1:55	2:06	2:09	2:18	2:27	2:33
1:43	1:52	2:03	2:14	2:17	2:25	2:31	2:42	2:11	2:20	2:25	2:36	2:39	2:48	2:57	3:03
2:13	2:22	2:33	2:44	2:47	2:55	3:01	3:12	2:41	2:50	2:55	3:06	3:09	3:18	3:27	3:33
2:43	2:52	3:03	3:14	3:17	3:25	3:31	3:42	3:11	3:20	3:25	3:36	3:39	3:48	3:57	4:03
3:13	3:22	3:33	3:44	3:47	3:55	4:01	4:12	3:41	3:50	3:55	4:06	4:09	4:18	4:27	4:33
3:43	3:52	4:03	4:14	4:17	4:25	4:31	4:42	4:11	4:20	4:25	4:36	4:39	4:48	4:57	5:03
4:13	4:22	4:33	4:44	4:47	4:55	5:01	5:12	4:41	4:50	4:55	5:06	5:09	5:18	5:27	5:33
4:43	4:52	5:03	5:14	5:17	5:25	5:31	5:42	5:11	5:20	5:25	5:36	5:39	5:48	5:57	6:03
5:16	5:25	5:36	5:47	5:50	5:58	6:04	6:15	5:44	5:53	5:58	6:09	6:12	6:21	6:30	6:36
5:50	5:59	6:10	6:21	6:24	6:32	6:38	6:49	6:18	6:27	6:32	6:43	6:46	6:55	7:04	7:10
6:22	6:31	6:41	6:51	6:54	7:01	7:07	7:17	6:52	7:01	7:06	7:16	7:19	7:26	7:35	7:40
6:52	7:01	7:11	7:21	7:24	7:31	7:37	7:47	7:27	7:36	7:41	7:51	7:54	8:01	8:10	8:15
7:22	7:31	7:41	7:51	7:54	8:01	8:07	8:17	7:57	8:06	8:11	8:21	8:24	8:31	8:40	8:45
7:52	8:01	8:11	8:21	8:24	8:31	8:37	8:47	8:27	8:36	8:41	8:51	8:54	9:01	9:10	9:15
8:24	8:32	8:42	8:51	8:54	9:01	9:06	9:15	8:57	9:06	9:11	9:21	9:24	9:31	9:40	9:45
8:54	9:02	9:12	9:21	9:24	9:31	9:36	9:45	9:30	9:38	9:42	9:51	9:54	10:01	10:10	10:15
9:54	10:02	10:12	10:21	10:24	10:31	10:36	10:45	10:00	10:08	10:12	10:21	10:24	10:31	10:40	10:45
								11:00	11:08	11:12	11:21	11:24	11:31	11:40	11:45

*A Saturday or Sunday schedule will be operated on most holidays and observed holidays, including New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. For holiday service details, viait www.sdmts.com or call 511. *Se operar's con horario de sábado o domingo durante la mayoria de los dias festivos y los dias de asueto a guardar. Los dias festivos incluyen Año Nuevo, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Día de la Independencia (E. E.U.U.), Labor Day, Dia de Acción de Gracias y Navidad. Para detailes obre el servicio a dias festivos, visite www.sdmts.com o Ilame al S11.

The schedules and other information shown in this timetable are subject to change. MTS does not assume responsibility for errors in timetables nor for any inconvenience caused by delayed buses. Los horarios y información que se indican en este itinerario están sujetos a cambios. MTS no asume responsabilidad por errores en los itinerarios, ni por ningún perjuicio que se origine por los autobuses demorados.

CASH FARES / Tarifas en efectivo

\$5.00
\$2.25
\$1.10*
FREE / GRATIS*
\$72.00
\$18.00*

DAY PASS (REGIONAL) / Pase diario (Regional) Valid for unlimited travel for one person on Trolley, most MTS buses, NCTD Breeze and SPRINTER. Valid for a discount on COASTER fares; not valid on Premium Express, Rural, or special service buses, or ADA paratransit.

Of ADA paratransn. Válidos para viajes ilimitados de una sola persona para: el Trolley, la mayoría de los autobuses de MTS, y los servicios del NCTD de BREEZE y SPRINTER. Válidos para acceder a descuentos en el COASTER, por no para las rutas Premium Express ni rurales, los servicios especiales ni los servicios para discapacitados de ADA.

* I.D. required for discount fare or pass. * Se requiere identificación para tarifas o pases de descuento.

DIRECTORY / Directorio	
Regional Transit Information Información de transporte público regional	511 ^{or/ó} (619) 233-3004
TTY/TDD (teletype for hearing impaired) Teletipo para sordos	(619) 234-5005 or/ó (888) 722-4889
InfoExpress (24-hour info via Touch-Tone phone) Información las 24 horas (via teléfono de teclas)	(619) 685-4900
Customer Service / Suggestions Servicio al cliente / Sugerencias	(619) 557-4555
SafeWatch	(619) 557-4500
Lost & Found Objetos extraviados	(619) 427-6438 ^{or/ó} (800) 409-3310
The Transit Store 1st & Broadway	(619) 234-1060 , Downtown San Diego M–F 9am–5pm
For MTS online trip planning Planificación de viajes por Internet	ww.sd mts .com

For more information on riding MTS services, pick up a Rider's Guide on a bus or at the Transit Store, or visit www.sd**mt**s.com. Para obtener más información sobre el uso de los servicios de MTS, recoga un 'Rider's Guide' en un autobús o en 'The Transit Store,' o visita a www.sdmts.com.

Thank you for riding MTS! ¡Gracias por viajar con MTS!





Apply at the MTS Human Resources Department: 1255 Imperial Ave., 9th Floor San Diego, CA 92101 -orvisit www.sdmts.com

GENERAL SETTA Mesa Busso Busso Busso Busso Busso Company Compa	San Diego State Tumersty 2 State Umiersty 2 State
The second secon	MONTEZUMA RD B 1.15 P B COMPL
	ELCAON BELL Crawford H.S. LA UNIVERSITY AV UNIVERSITY AV E 916, 917 STREAM ^{RGW} DR BROADWAY
	ollas e Galege George LEMON eek 916, 917 FEDERALVELVO
OCEAN VIEW BLVD	ALAY
Curumula prove Curumula prove Naval Base 967, 968	ANAL CE Lincoln H.S. 3 Alta Vista 967 967 967 967 967 967 967 967
Annual Base Corvinatio (AAB) Sith St. Trolley Station Blue Line, 932, 962, 963	CHTY CHTY
Lam.	Side N Www.sdmts.com (▲) = Timepoint and/or transfer point ♦ = Timepoint and/or transfer point

Route	955						Sunday*	/ domingo*							
lational	City ⇒ O	ak Park 🖛	SDSU					SDSU =	Oak Park	A ➡ Nation	al City				
A 8th St. Trolley Station DEPART	B Highland Ave. & 8th St.	C 47th St. & Logan Ave.	Eucli	D d Ave. olley tion DEPART	E 54th St. & University Ave.	F 54th St. & El Cajon Blvd.	G SDSU Transit Center ARRIVE	G SDSU Transit Center DEPART	F 54th St. & El Cajon Blvd.	E 54th St. & University Ave.	Tro	d Ave. Illey tion DEPART	C 47th St. & Logan Ave.	B Highland Ave. & 8th St.	A 8th St. Trolley Station ARRIVE
				5:53a	6:01a	6:04a	6:13a				_	5:54a	6:01a	6:10a	6:15a
6:25a	6:33a	6:42a	6:51a	6:53	7:01	7:04	7:13	6:25a	6:32a	6:34a	6:45a	6:54	7:01	7:10	7:15
7:25	7:33	7:42	7:51	7:53	8:01	8:04	8:13	7:25	7:32	7:34	7:45	7:54	8:01	8:10	8:15
8:25	8:33	8:42	8:51	8:53	9:01	9:04	9:13	8:25	8:33	8:35	8:47	8:54	9:01	9:10	9:15
9:23	9:31	9:41	9:51	9:53	10:01	10:04	10:13	9:27	9:36	9:39	9:50	9:54	10:02	10:11	10:17
10:12	10:20	10:30	10:41	10:48	10:57	11:02	11:13	9:57	10:06	10:09	10:20	10:24	10:32	10:41	10:47
10:40	10:49	11:00	11:11	11:18	11:27	11:32	11:43	10:27	10:36	10:39	10:50	10:54	11:02	11:11	11:17
11:10	11:19	11:30	11:41	11:48	11:57	12:02p	12:13p	10:55	11:04	11:07	11:20	11:24	11:33	11:42	11:48
11:40	11:49	12:00p	12:11p	12:18p	12:27p	12:32	12:43	11:25	11:34	11:37	11:50	11:54	12:03p	12:12p	12:18p
12:10p	12:19p	12:30	12:41	12:48	12:57	1:02	1:13	11:55	12:04p	12:07p	12:20p	12:24p	12:33	12:42	12:48
12:40	12:49	1:00	1:11	1:18	1:27	1:32	1:43	12:25p	12:34	12:37	12:50	12:54	1:03	1:12	1:18
1:10	1:19	1:30	1:41	1:48	1:57	2:02	2:13	12:55	1:04	1:07	1:20	1:24	1:33	1:42	1:48
1:40	1:49	2:00	2:11	2:18	2:27	2:32	2:43	1:25	1:34	1:37	1:50	1:54	2:03	2:12	2:18
2:10	2:19	2:30	2:41	2:48	2:57	3:02	3:13	1:55	2:04	2:07	2:20	2:24	2:33	2:42	2:48
2:40	2:49	3:00	3:11	3:18	3:27	3:32	3:43	2:25	2:34	2:37	2:50	2:54	3:03	3:12	3:18
3:10	3:19	3:30	3:41	3:48	3:57	4:02	4:13	2:55	3:04	3:07	3:20	3:24	3:33	3:42	3:48
3:40	3:49	4:00	4:11	4:18	4:27	4:32	4:43	3:25	3:34	3:37	3:50	3:54	4:03	4:12	4:18
4:10	4:19	4:30	4:41	4:48	4:57	5:02	5:13	3:55	4:04	4:07	4:20	4:24	4:33	4:42	4:48
4:40	4:49	5:00	5:11	5:18	5:27	5:32	5:43	4:25	4:34	4:37	4:50	4:54	5:03	5:12	5:18
5:10	5:19	5:30	5:41	5:48	5:57	6:02	6:13	4:55	5:04	5:07	5:20	5:24	5:33	5:42	5:48
6:11	6:20	6:30	6:40	6:48	6:57	7:02	7:13	5:25	5:34	5:37	5:50	5:54	6:03	6:12	6:18
7:11	7:20	7:30	7:40	7:53	8:01	8:04	8:13	6:25	6:34	6:37	6:50	6:54	7:03	7:12	7:18
8:24	8:32	8:41	8:51	8:53	9:01	9:04	9:13	7:26	7:35	7:38	7:50	7:53	8:00	8:09	8:14
								8:26	8:35	8:38	8:50	8:53	9:00	9:09	9:14

*A Saturday or Sunday schedule will be operated on most holidays and observed holidays, including New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. For holiday service details, visit www.sdmts.com or call 511. *Se operará con horario de sábado o domingo durante la mayoria de los días festivos y los feriados observados. Los días festivos incluyen Año Nuevo, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Día de la Independencia (E.E.U.U.), Labor Day, Día de Acción de Gracias y Navidad. Para detailes sobre el servicio en días festivos, visite www.sdmts.com o llame al 511.

ational	955 I City ➡ C)ak Park ➡	SDSU					iday / lunes a		A ➡ Nation	al City				
~				<u> </u>											-
(A)	B	C		D	E	F	G	G	F	E		P.	C	B	A
8th St. Trolley	Highland Ave.	47th St.	Tn	id Ave. olley	54th St.	54th St.	SDSU Transit	SDSU Transit	54th St.	54th St.	Tro	d Ave. blley	47th St.	Highland Ave.	8th St Trolle
EPART	&	Logan	St	ation DEPART	University	El Cajon	Center	Center DEPART	El Cajon	University	Sta	DEPART	Logan	&	Statio ARRIV
	8th St.	Ave.			Ave.	Blvd.	ARRIVE		Blvd.	Ave.			Ave.	8th St.	
4:49a 5:04	4:58a 5:13	5:07a 5:22	5:15a 5:30	5:18a 5:33	5:27a 5:42	5:30a 5:45	5:38a 5:53	5:01a 5:31	5:08a 5:38	5:10a 5:40	5:21a 5:51	5:24a 5:54	5:31a 6:01	5:40a 6:10	5:45 6:15
5:04 5:19	5:28	5:22	5:30	5:33	5:42	6:00	6:08	5:45	5:52	5:55	6:06	6:09	6:16	6:25	6:30
5:33	5:42	5:52	6:00	6:03	6:12	6:15	6:23	5:59	6:06	6:09	6:21	6:24	6:32	6:41	6:46
5:47	5:56	6:06	6:15	6:18	6:28	6:31	6:39	6:13	6:21	6:24	6:36	6:39	6:47	6:57	7:02
6:02	6:11	6:21	6:30	6:33	6:43	6:46	6:55	6:27	6:36	6:39	6:50	6:54	7:02	7:12	7:17
6:16	6:25	6:35	6:45	6:48	6:58	7:01	7:11	6:41	6:50	6:53	7:06	7:09	7:18	7:28	7:34
6:29	6:39	6:49	7:00	7:03	7:14	7:17	7:27	6:56	7:05	7:08	7:21	7:24	7:33	7:43	7:50
6:44	6:54	7:04	7:15	7:18	7:29	7:33	7:43	7:11	7:20	7:23	7:36	7:39	7:48	7:58	8:05
6:59	7:09	7:19	7:30	7:33	7:44	7:48	7:59	7:26	7:35	7:38	7:51	7:54	8:03	8:13	8:20
7:14	7:24	7:34	7:45	7:48	7:59	8:03	8:14	7:41	7:50	7:53	8:06	8:09	8:18	8:28	8:35
7:29	7:39	7:49	8:00	8:03	8:14	8:18	8:29	7:56	8:05	8:08	8:21	8:24	8:33	8:43	8:50
7:44	7:54	8:04	8:15	8:18	8:29	8:33	8:43	8:11	8:20	8:23	8:36	8:39	8:48	8:58	9:05
8:00	8:10	8:20	8:30	8:33	8:43	8:47	8:57	8:26	8:35	8:38	8:51	8:54	9:03	9:13	9:20
8:16	8:26	8:36	8:45	8:48	8:58	9:02	9:12	8:41	8:50	8:53	9:06	9:09	9:18	9:28	9:35
8:32	8:42	8:51	9:00	9:03	9:13	9:17	9:27	8:56	9:05	9:08	9:21	9:24	9:33	9:43	9:50
8:47	8:57	9:06	9:15	9:18	9:28	9:32	9:42	9:12	9:21	9:24	9:36	9:39	9:47	9:57	10:03
9:02	9:12	9:21	9:30	9:33	9:43	9:47	9:57	9:27	9:36	9:39	9:51	9:54	10:02	10:12	10:18
9:17	9:27	9:36	9:45	9:48	9:58	10:02	10:12	9:42	9:51	9:54	10:06	10:09	10:17	10:27	10:33
9:32	9:42	9:51	10:00	10:03	10:13	10:17	10:27	9:57	10:06	10:09	10:21	10:24	10:32	10:42	10:48
9:47	9:57	10:06	10:15	10:18	10:28	10:32	10:42	10:12	10:21	10:24	10:36	10:39	10:47	10:57	11:03
0:02	10:12	10:21	10:30	10:33	10:43	10:47	10:57	10:27	10:36	10:39	10:51	10:54	11:02	11:12	11:18
0:16	10:26	10:36	10:45	10:48	10:58	11:02	11:12	10:42	10:51	10:54	11:06	11:09	11:17	11:27	11:33
0:29	10:39	10:50	11:00	11:03	11:13	11:18	11:28	10:57	11:06	11:09	11:21	11:24	11:32	11:42	11:48
0:44 1:00	10:54 11:10	11:05 11:21	11:15 11:31	11:18 11:34	11:28 11:44	11:33 11:49	11:43 11:59	11:12 11:27	11:21 11:36	11:24 11:39	11:36 11:51	11:39 11:54	11:47	11:57	12:03
	11:10	11:21	11:31	11:34	11:44	12:04p	12:14p	11:27					12:02p 12:17	12:12p 12:27	12:18
1:15		11:36	11:46 12:01p		11:59 12:14p	12:04p 12:19	12:14p 12:29	11:42	11:51 12:06p	11:54	12:06p 12:21	12:09p 12:24			12:33 12:48
1:30 1:45	11:40 11:55	12:06p	12:010	12:04p 12:19	12:29	12:34	12:44	12:12p	12:000	12:09p 12:24	12:21	12:39	12:32 12:47	12:42	1:03
2:00p	12:10p	12:21	12:10	12:34	12:44	12:49	12:59	12:120	12:36	12:39	12:50	12:54	1:02	1:12	1:18
2:15	12:25	12:36	12:46	12:49	12:59	1:04	1:14	12:42	12:51	12:54	1:06	1:09	1:17	1:27	1:33
2:30	12:40	12:51	1:01	1:04	1:14	1:19	1:29	12:57	1:06	1:09	1:21	1:24	1:32	1:42	1:48
2:45	12:55	1:06	1:16	1:19	1:29	1:34	1:44	1:12	1:21	1:24	1:36	1:39	1:47	1:57	2:03
1:00	1:10	1:21	1:31	1:34	1:44	1:49	1:59	1:27	1:36	1:39	1:51	1:54	2:02	2:12	2:18
1:15	1:25	1:36	1:46	1:49	1:59	2:04	2:14	1:42	1:51	1:54	2:06	2:09	2:17	2:27	2:33
1:30	1:40	1:51	2:01	2:04	2:14	2:19	2:29	1:56	2:06	2:09	2:21	2:24	2:32	2:42	2:48
1:45	1:55	2:06	2:16	2:19	2:29	2:34	2:44	2:10	2:20	2:23	2:36	2:39	2:47	2:58	3:05
2:00	2:10	2:21	2:31	2:34	2:44	2:49	2:59	2:25	2:35	2:38	2:51	2:54	3:03	3:14	3:21
2:15	2:25	2:36	2:46	2:49	3:00	3:04	3:16	2:40	2:50	2:53	3:06	3:09	3:18	3:29	3:36
2:30	2:40	2:51	3:01	3:04	3:16	3:20	3:32	2:55	3:05	3:08	3:21	3:24	3:33	3:44	3:51
2:45	2:55	3:06	3:16	3:19	3:31	3:35	3:47	3:10	3:20	3:23	3:36	3:39	3:48	3:59	4:06
2:59	3:09	3:20	3:30	3:33	3:45	3:49	4:01	3:25	3:35	3:38	3:51	3:54	4:03	4:14	4:21
3:14 3:29	3:24 3:39	3:35 3:50	3:45 4:00	3:48 4:03	4:00 4:15	4:04 4:19	4:16 4:31	3:40 3:55	3:50 4:05	3:53 4:08	4:06 4:21	4:09 4:24	4:18 4:33	4:29 4:44	4:36
3:29 3:44	3:54	4:05	4:00	4:03	4:15	4:19	4:31	4:10	4:05	4:08	4:21	4:24	4:33	4:44	4:5
							4:46			4:23 4:38					
3:59 4:14	4:09 4:24	4:20 4:35	4:30 4:45	4:33 4:48	4:45 5:00	4:49 5:04	5:16	4:25 4:40	4:35 4:50	4:58	4:51 5:06	4:54 5:09	5:03 5:18	5:14 5:29	5:21 5:36
4:29	4:39	4:50	5:00	5:03	5:15	5:19	5:31	4:55	5:05	5:08	5:21	5:24	5:33	5:44	5:51
4:44	4:54	5:05	5:15	5:18	5:30	5:34	5:46	5:10	5:20	5:23	5:36	5:39	5:48	5:59	6:06
4:59	5:09	5:20	5:30	5:33	5:45	5:49	6:01	5:25	5:35	5:38	5:51	5:54	6:03	6:14	6:2
5:14	5:24	5:35	5:45	5:48	6:00	6:04	6:16	5:41	5:51	5:54	6:06	6:09	6:17	6:28	6:34
5:29	5:39	5:50	6:00	6:03	6:15	6:19	6:31	5:57	6:06	6:09	6:21	6:24	6:32	6:42	6:48
5:52	6:02	6:12	6:21	6:24	6:35	6:38	6:49	6:12	6:21	6:24	6:36	6:39	6:47	6:57	7:03
6:22	6:32	6:42	6:51	6:54	7:05	7:08	7:19	6:27	6:36	6:39	6:51	6:54	7:02	7:12	7:18
6:54	7:03	7:13	7:21	7:24	7:35	7:38	7:48	6:42	6:51	6:54	7:06	7:09	7:17	7:27	7:33
7:24	7:33	7:43	7:51	7:54	8:05	8:08	8:18	7:02	7:11	7:14	7:26	7:29	7:36	7:45	7:50
7:55	8:04	8:14	8:21	8:24	8:34	8:37	8:46	7:27	7:36	7:39	7:51	7:54	8:01	8:10	8:15
8:25	8:34	8:44	8:51	8:54	9:04	9:07	9:16	7:57	8:06	8:09	8:21	8:24	8:31	8:40	8:4
8:55	9:04	9:14	9:21	9:24	9:34	9:37	9:46	8:27	8:36	8:39	8:51	8:54	9:01	9:10	9:15
	9:34	9:44	9:51	9:54	10:04	10:07	10:16	8:57	9:06	9:09	9:21	9:24	9:31	9:40	9:45
7:25	10:04	10:14	10:21	10:24	10:34	10:37	10:46	9:29	9:38	9:40	9:51	9:54	10:01	10:10	10:15
	10.04														
9:25 9:55	10.04							9:59	10:08	10:10	10:21	10:24	10:31	10:40	10:45
	10.04							9:59 10:29	10:08 10:38	10:10 10:40	10:21 10:51	10:24 10:54	10:31 11:01	10:40 11:10	10:45

Route			CDCU				Saturday^	/ sábado*							
-		ak Park 🖛		-	-			-	-	A Nation		-			
A	в	C		D	E	F	G	G	F	E	(0	C	в	A
8th St.	Highland	47th St.		d Ave.	54th St.	54th St.	SDSU	SDSU	54th St.	54th St.	Eucli	d Ave.	47th St.	Highland	8th St.
Trolley Station	Ave.	& Logan	1rc Sta	olley ition	& University	& El Cajon	Transit Center	Transit Center	& El Cajon	& University	lrc Sta	lley tion	& Logan	Ave.	Trolley Station
DEPART	8th St.	Ave.	ARRIVE	DEPART	Ave.	Blvd.	ARRIVE	DEPART	Blvd.	Ave.	ARRIVE	DEPART	Ave.	8th St.	ARRIV
5:18a	5:26a	5:35a	5:44a	5:47a	5:55a	5:58a	6:07a	5:46a	5:53a	5:55a	6:06a	6:09a	6:16a	6:25a	6:30
—		—	—	6:17	6:25	6:28	6:37	6:16	6:23	6:25	6:36	6:39	6:46	6:55	7:00
6:18	6:26	6:35	6:44	6:47	6:55	6:58	7:07	6:46	6:53	6:55	7:06	7:09	7:16	7:25	7:30
6:48	6:56	7:05	7:14	7:17	7:25	7:28	7:37	7:14	7:22	7:24	7:36	7:39	7:46	7:55	8:00
7:16	7:24	7:34	7:44	7:47	7:55	7:59	8:10	7:44	7:52	7:54	8:06	8:09	8:16	8:25	8:30
7:46	7:54	8:04	8:14	8:17	8:25	8:29	8:40	8:14	8:22	8:24	8:36	8:39	8:46	8:55	9:00
8:16	8:24	8:34	8:44	8:47	8:55	8:59	9:10	8:44	8:52	8:54	9:06	9:09	9:16	9:25	9:30
8:46	8:54	9:04	9:14	9:17	9:25	9:29	9:40	9:12	9:21	9:24	9:36	9:39	9:47	9:56	10:02
9:16	9:24	9:34	9:44	9:47	9:55	9:59	10:10	9:42	9:51	9:54	10:06	10:09	10:17	10:26	10:32
9:46	9:54	10:04	10:14	10:17	10:25	10:29	10:40	10:12	10:21	10:24	10:36	10:39	10:47	10:56	11:02
10:16	10:24	10:34	10:44	10:47	10:55	10:59	11:10	10:41	10:50	10:53	11:06	11:09	11:18	11:27	11:33
10:43	10:52	11:03	11:14	11:17	11:26	11:31	11:42	11:11	11:20	11:23	11:36	11:39	11:48	11:57	12:03
11:13	11:22	11:33	11:44	11:47	11:56	12:01p	12:12p	11:41	11:50	11:53	12:06p	12:09p	12:18p	12:27p	12:33
11:43	11:52	12:03p	12:14p	12:17p	12:26p	12:31	12:42	12:11p	12:20p	12:23p	12:36	12:39	12:48	12:57	1:03
12:13p	12:22p	12:33	12:44	12:47	12:56	1:01	1:12	12:41	12:50	12:53	1:06	1:09	1:18	1:27	1:33
12:43	12:52	1:03	1:14	1:17	1:26	1:31	1:42	1:11	1:20	1:23	1:36	1:39	1:48	1:57	2:03
1:13	1:22	1:33	1:44	1:47	1:56	2:01	2:12	1:41	1:50	1:53	2:06	2:09	2:18	2:27	2:33
1:43	1:52	2:03	2:14	2:17	2:26	2:31	2:42	2:11	2:20	2:23	2:36	2:39	2:48	2:57	3:03
2:13	2:22	2:33	2:44	2:47	2:56	3:01	3:12	2:41	2:50	2:53	3:06	3:09	3:18	3:27	3:33
2:43	2:52	3:03	3:14	3:17	3:26	3:31	3:42	3:11	3:20	3:23	3:36	3:39	3:48	3:57	4:03
3:13	3:22	3:33	3:44	3:47	3:56	4:01	4:12	3:41	3:50	3:53	4:06	4:09	4:18	4:27	4:33
3:43	3:52	4:03	4:14	4:17	4:26	4:31	4:42	4:11	4:20	4:23	4:36	4:39	4:48	4:57	5:03
4:13	4:22	4:33	4:44	4:47	4:56	5:01	5:12	4:41	4:50	4:53	5:06	5:09	5:18	5:27	5:33
4:43	4:52	5:03	5:14	5:17	5:26	5:31	5:42	5:11	5:20	5:23	5:36	5:39	5:48	5:57	6:03
5:16	5:25	5:36	5:47	5:50	5:59	6:04	6:15	5:44	5:53	5:56	6:09	6:12	6:21	6:30	6:36
5:50	5:59	6:10	6:21	6:24	6:33	6:38	6:49	6:18	6:27	6:30	6:43	6:46	6:55	7:04	7:10
6:22	6:31	6:41	6:51	6:54	7:02	7:07	7:17	6:52	7:01	7:04	7:16	7:19	7:26	7:35	7:40
6:52	7:01	7:11	7:21	7:24	7:32	7:37	7:47	7:27	7:36	7:39	7:51	7:54	8:01	8:10	8:15
7:22	7:31	7:41	7:51	7:54	8:02	8:07	8:17	7:57	8:06	8:09	8:21	8:24	8:31	8:40	8:45
7:52	8:01	8:11	8:21	8:24	8:32	8:37	8:47	8:27	8:36	8:39	8:51	8:54	9:01	9:10	9:15
8:24	8:32	8:42	8:51	8:54	9:02	9:06	9:15	8:57	9:06	9:09	9:21	9:24	9:31	9:40	9:45
8:54	9:02	9:12	9:21	9:24	9:32	9:36	9:45	9:30	9:38	9:40	9:51	9:54	10:01	10:10	10:15
9:54	10:02	10:12	10:21	10:24	10:32	10:36	10:45	10:00	10:08	10:10	10:21	10:24	10:31	10:40	10:45
								11:00	11:08	11:10	11:21	11:24	11:31	11:40	11:45

*A Saturday or Sunday schedule will be operated on most holidays and observed holidays, including New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. For holiday service details, visit www.sdmts.com or call 511. *Se operaria con horario de siabado o domingo durante la mayoria de los dias festivos y los feriados observados. Los dias festivos incluyen Año Nuevo, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Dia de la Independencia (E.E.U.U.), Labor Day, Dia de Acción de Gracias y Navidad. Para detailes sobre el servicio en dias festivos, visite www.sdmts.com o llame al 511.

The schedules and other information shown in this timetable are subject to change. MTS does not assume responsibility for errors in timetables nor for any inconvenience caused by delayed buses. Los horarios e información que se indican en este itinerario están sujetos a cambios. MTS no asume responsabilidad por errores en los itinerarios, ni por ningún perjuicio que se origine por los autobuses demorados.

DAY PASS (REGIONAL) / Pase diario (Regional)

Valid for unlimited travel for one person on Trolley, most MTS buses, NCTD Breeze and SPRINTER. Valid for a discount on COASTER fares; not valid on Premium Express, Rural, or special service buses, or ADA paratransit.

la mayoría de los autobuses de MTS, y los servicios del NCTD de COASTER, pero no para las rutas Premium Express ni rurales, los servicios especiales ni los servicios para discapacitadas de ADA. Válidos para viajes ilimitados de una sola persona para: el Trolley, BREEZE y SPRINTER. Válidos para acceder a descuentos en el

* I.D. required for discount fare or pass. * Se requiere identificación para tarifas o pases de descuento.

DIRECTORY / Directorio	
Regional Transit Information Información de transporte público regional	511 or/ó (619) 233-3004
TTY/TDD (teletype for hearing impaired) Teletipo para sordos	(619) 234-5005 or/ó (888) 722-4889
InfoExpress (24-hour info via Touch-Tone phone) Información las 24 horas (via teléfono de teclas)	(619) 685-4900
Customer Service / Suggestions Servicio al cliente / Sugerencias	(619) 557-4555
SafeWatch	(619) 557-4500
Lost & Found Objetos extraviados	(619) 427-6438 ^{or/ó} (800) 409-3310
The Transit Store	(619) 234-1060 1st & Broadway, Downtown San Diego M-F 9am-5pm

www.sdmts.com Planificación de viajes por Internet For MTS online trip planning

For more information on riding MTS services, pick up a Rider's Guide on a bus or at the Transit Store, or visit www.sdmts.com. MTS, recoga un 'Rider's Guide' en un autobús o en 'The Transit Para obtener más información sobre el uso de los servicios de Store,' o visita a www.sdmts.com. Gracias por viajar con MTS! Thank you for riding MTS!

960

Effective FEBRUARY 28, 2010

Euclid Trolley – UTC

via I-15 Mid City / Kearny Mesa

DESTINATIONS

 The Boulevard Transit Plaza City Heights Transit Plaza

MTS

- Kearny Mesa Courthouse
- Kearny Mesa Transit Center
- Market Creek Plaza





Metropolitan Transit System

Alternative formats are available upon request. Please call: / Formato alternativo disponible al preguntar. Favor de llamar: (619) 231-1466

		∢	Euclid Ave. Trolley Station	ARRIVE 4:16p	4:46	5:20	5:50	6:20	6:47		
a viernes*	rolley		City Heights Transit		4:33	5:04	5:34	6:04	6:32		
ay* / lunes ¿	 Euclid T 	C	The Boulevard Transit	4:01p	4:31	5:02	5:32	6:02	6:30		
Monday through Friday* / lunes a viernes*	Jniversity City ➡ Kearny Mesa ➡ City Heights ➡ Euclid Trolley	٩	Balboa Ave. &	Ruffin Rd. 3:52p	4:22	4:53	5:23	5:53	6:22		
Monday t	sa ➡ City		Mesa Center X Dr.)	DEPART 3:45p	4:15	4:46	5:16	5:46	6:15		
uth	earny Me	E	Kearny Mesa Transit Center (Complex Dr.)	3:42p	4:12	4:46	5:16	5:46	6:12		
Route 960 – South	∕ City ➡ K	E	Ruffin Rd. & Chesapeake		4:05	4:38	5:08	5:38	6:05		
Route 9	University		UTC Transit Center		3:50	4:20	4:50	5:20	5:50		
		0	UTC Transit Center	RRIVE	6:06a	m					
*			- = 0	AR	9:0	6:33	Ι	7:03	7:27	7:45	Ι
s a viernes	ity City	Ŀ	Ruffin Rd. & T Chesapeake C		5:50a 6:(6:13 6:3:		6:43 7:03	7:03 7:27	7:23 7:45	
day* / Iunes a viernes	 University City 	E	Ruffin Rd. & .) Chesapeake						1.5		
hrough Friday* / Iunes a viernes	y Mesa 🕈 University City		y Mesa Ruffin Rd. Center & At Mesa Bl.) Chesapeake		5:50a	6:13		6:43	7:03	7:23	
Monday through Friday [*] / lunes a viernes	s ➡ Kearny Mesa ➡ University City	E	Kearny Mesa Ruffin Rd. Transit Center & (Clairemont Mesa Bl.) Chesapeake	DEPART Dr.	5:47a 5:50a	6:10 6:13		6:40 6:43	7:00 7:03	7:20 7:23	
	ty Heights 🕈 Kearny Mesa 🖛 University City	E	Kearny Mesa Ruffin Rd. Transit Center & (Clairemont Mesa Bl.) Chesapeake	S:24a 5:31a	5:45 5:47a 5:50a	6:07 6:10 6:13	6:22 — — —	6:37 6:40 6:43	6:57 7:00 7:03	7:17 7:20 7:23	7:37 — —
Route 960 – North Monday through Friday* / lunes a viernes	Euclid Trolley ➡ City Heights ➡ Kearny Mesa ➡ University City	E	Balboa Kearny Mesa Ruffin Rd. Aw. Tanati Center & & (Clairemont Mesa Bl.) Cheapeake	Plaza Ruffin Rd. ARRIVE DEPART Dr. 5:17a 5:24a 5:31a — — —	5:38 5:45 5:47a 5:50a	5:57 6:07 6:10 6:13	6:12 6:22 — —	6:27 6:37 6:40 6:43	6:47 6:57 7:00 7:03 7	7:07 7:17 7:20 7:23	7:27 7:37 — —

*Route 960 does not operate on weekends or on the observation of the following holidays: New Year's Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, & Christmas *La ruta 960 no ofrece servicio durante el fin de semana ó durante los siguientes días festivos: Año Nuevo, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Día de la Independencia (E.E.U.U.), Labor Day, Día de Acción de Gracias, y Navidad



The schedules and other information shown in this timetable are subject to change. MTS does not assume responsibility for errors in timetables nor for any inconvenience caused by delayed buses. / Los horarios y información que se indican en este itinerario están sujetos a cambios. MTS no asume responsabilidad por errores en los itinerarios, ni por ningún perjuicio que se origine por los autobuses demorados.



B. MARKET DATA

TECHNICAL APPENDIX

MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN

WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Appendix A Demographic Overview

	5.1	
	Table A-1	Overview of Demographic Conditions
	Table A-2	Distribution of Population by Age Group and Area, 2011 Estimate
	Table A-3	Racial/Ethnic Distribution by Area, 2011 Estimate
	Table A-4	Household Income Distribution by Area, 2011 Estimate
	Table A-5	Employment Profile by Industry and Area, 2010
Appendix B	Residential M	arket Overview
	Table B-1	Housing Inventory by Unit Type and Area, 2011 Estimate
	Table B-2	Distribution of Household Tenure by Area, 2011 Estimate
	Table B-3	Comparative Overview of Median Home Prices - Single-Family, April 2011
	Table B-4	Comparative Overview of Median Home Prices - Condominiums, April 2011
	Table B-5	Historical Median Home Prices, Encanto Neighborhood, 2005-2011
	Table B-6	Survey of Apartment Rental Rates
	Table B-7	Survey of Apartment Building Sales
Appendix C	Office Market	
	Table C-1	Office Profile by Submarket, 1st Quarter 2011
	Table C-2	Office Market Trends, Plan Area, 2006-2011
	Table C-3	Office Asking Lease Rates

Table C-4Survey of Office Building Sales

Appendix D Industrial Market Overview

- Table D-2 Industrial Market Trends, Plan Area, 2006-2011
- Table D-3 Industrial Asking Lease Rates
- Table D-4 Survey of Industrial Building Sales

TECHNICAL APPENDIX

MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN

WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Appendix E Retail Market Overview

Appendix F	Supportable	Demand by Land Use
	Table E-9	Retail Sales Import/Export Analysis, 2010
	Table E-8	Total Retail Sales, County of San Diego, 2010
	Table E-7	Total Retail Sales, City of San Diego, 2010
	Table E-6	Total Retail Sales, Southeastern San Diego and Encanto CPA, 2005-2010
	Table E-5	Retail Building Sales Trends, 2005-2011
	Table E-4	Survey of Retail Building Sales
	Table E-3	Retail Asking Lease Rates
	Table E-2	Retail Market Trends, Plan Area, 2006-2011
	Table E-1	Retail Profile by Submarket, 1st Quarter 2011

Арр upp Jy

Table F-1	Retail Sales Import/Export Analysis, 2010
Table F-2	Estimate of Retail/Restaurant Space Demand, 2011-2030
Table F-3	Estimate of Retail/Restaurant Space Demand from New Office Workers, 2011-2030
Table F-4	Summary of Retail/Restaurant Space Demand, 2011-2030
Table F-5	Estimate of Office Space Demand, 2011-2030
Table F-6	Summary of Office Space Demand, 2011-2030
Table F-7	Total Housing Unit Demand Analysis, 2011-2030
Table F-8	Total Space Demand, 2011-2030



OVERVIEW OF DEMOGRAPHIC CONDITIONS MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

		Radius (1)		City of San	County of San
I	1-Mile	2-Mile	3-Mile	Ďiego	Diego
Population					
2011 Estimate	29,053	108,332	279,288	1,320,817	3,103,053
2016 Forecast	30,450	114,282	292,912	1,389,384	3,283,639
<u>Average Annual Rate</u>					
Historical Population Growth, 2000-2011	0.28%	0.43%	0.29%	0.85%	1.09%
Forecasted Population Growth, 2011-2016	0.94%	1.08%	0.96%	1.02%	1.14%
Households					
2011 Estimate	7,822	29,103	76,762	487,221	1,089,831
2016 Forecast	8,166	30,548	80,289	516,711	1,158,934
Average Household Size	3.69	3.70	3.57	2.62	2.76
Median Age (years)	28.2	29.8	29.9	35.2	35.0
Per Capita Income (PCI)	\$12,503	\$13,726	\$14,388	\$29,814	\$28,675
Aggregate Personal Income	\$363.2 Million	\$1.5 Billion	\$4.0 Billion	\$39.4 Billion	\$89.0 Billion
Median Household Income	\$35,078	\$39,479	\$39,750	\$58,173	\$60,140

(1) From the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

Source: Claritas, Inc. Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011; ema

DISTRIBUTION OF POPULATION BY AGE AND AREA, 2011 ESTIMATE MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Geography	17 and Under	18-24	25-44	45-64	65 and Older	Total
1-Mile Radius (1)	34.1%	11.2%	27.8%	18.3%	8.6%	100.0%
2-Mile Radius (1)	31.6%	11.0%	28.5%	19.7%	9.2%	100.0%
3-Mile Radius (1)	30.8%	11.5%	29.5%	19.7%	8.4%	100.0%
City of San Diego	23.0%	10.4%	31.0%	24.4%	11.2%	100.0%
County of San Diego	24.5%	10.5%	28.6%	24.7%	11.7%	100.0%

(1) From the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

Source: Claritas, Inc. Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market;6/27/2011;ema

DISTRIBUTION OF POPULATION BY RACE AND ETHNICITY BY AREA, 2011 ESTIMATE MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

				Race	e				Ethnicity
Geography	Caucasian	African American	American Indian and Alaska Native	Asian	Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander	Persons of Other Race Alone	Persons of Two or More Races	Total	Hispanic
1-Mile Radius (1)	25.3%	26.2%	1.0%	8.0%	1.1%	32.1%	6.3%	100.0%	57.4%
2-Mile Radius (1)	28.4%	17.6%	%6.0	15.3%	0.9%	31.0%	5.9%	100.0%	56.3%
3-Mile Radius (1)	34.3%	12.6%	%6.0	16.4%	0.7%	29.0%	6.0%	100.0%	56.1%
City of San Diego	58.4%	6.3%	0.7%	14.8%	0.5%	13.8%	5.5%	100.0%	29.5%
County of San Diego	62.9%	4.9%	%6.0	10.2%	0.5%	15.2%	5.5%	100.0%	31.8%

(1) From the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

Source: Claritas, Inc. Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market;6/27/2011;ema

DISTRIBUTION OF HOUSEHOLD INCOME BY AREA, 2011 ESTIMATE MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Geography	Less than \$15,000	\$15,000 to \$25,000 \$24,999 \$34,999	\$25,000 to \$34,999	\$35,000 to \$49,999	\$50,000 to \$74,999	\$75,000 to \$99,999	\$100,000 to \$124,999	\$100,000 to \$125,000 to \$150,000 or \$124,999 \$149,000 More	\$150,000 or More	Total
1-Mile Radius (1)	19.8%	15.3%	14.8%	17.1%	17.6%	%2.7	3.6%	1.7%	2.4%	100.0%
2-Mile Radius (1)	16.0%	14.6%	14.3%	17.1%	19.3%	9.1%	4.6%	2.1%	3.0%	100.0%
3-Mile Radius (1)	15.9%	14.5%	14.2%	17.0%	18.9%	9.5%	5.0%	2.1%	2.9%	100.0%
City of San Diego	10.7%	9.3%	9.8%	14.1%	18.4%	12.9%	8.8%	5.2%	10.8%	100.0%
County of San Diego	9.3%	8.8%	9.8%	14.3%	19.3%	13.4%	9.2%	5.3%	10.6%	100.0%

(1) From the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

Source: Claritas, Inc. Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market,6/27/2011;ema

EMPLOYMENT PROFILE BY INDUSTRY AND AREA, 2010 (1) MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

	3-Mile Rad	dius (2)	Sar	n Diego Cou	unty
	<u>Total</u>	% of <u>Total</u>	<u>Total</u>	% of <u>Total</u>	Average Annual <u>2000-2010</u>
Transportation and Warehousing	2,341	5.5%	27,500	2.3%	-0.8%
Retail Trade	10,251	24.3%	130,000	10.7%	-0.3%
Wholesale Trade	1,429	3.4%	39,200	3.2%	0.0%
Professional and Business Services	7,086	16.8%	208,000	17.0%	0.5%
Manufacturing	1,892	4.5%	92,400	7.6%	-2.8%
Educational Services	6,862	16.2%	26,600	2.2%	3.9%
Healthcare and Social Services	6,040	14.3%	120,600	9.9%	2.2%
Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate	1,549	3.7%	92,300	7.6%	-1.5%
Government	1,609	3.8%	226,000	18.5%	0.9%
Construction	2,155	5.1%	55,500	4.5%	-2.3%
Other Services	505	1.2%	47,200	3.9%	1.1%
Leisure and Hospitality	530	1.3%	154,600	12.7%	1.8%
Natural Resources and Mining	2	0.0%	400	0.0%	2.9%
Total Employment	42,251	100.0%	1,220,300	100.0%	0.2%

(1) Reflects non-farm employment by place of work, as of December 2010.

(2) From the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

Source: Claritas, Inc. and California Employment Development Department Labor Market Information Division Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011;ema



HOUSING INVENTORY BY UNIT TYPE AND AREA, 2011 ESTIMATE MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

	Single-Family (detached)	Family :hed)	Multi-Family (attached)	amily ned)	Other (includes mobile homes)	icludes iomes)	Totals	als	Median
Ι	Total	Percent	Total	Percent	<u>Total</u>	Percent	<u>Total</u>	Percent	<u>Year Built</u>
1-Mile Radius (1)	4,157	51.4%	3,558	44.0%	372	4.6%	8,087	100.0%	1965
2-Mile Radius (1)	17,502	58.3%	11,475	38.2%	1,051	3.5%	30,028	100.0%	1967
3-Mile Radius (1)	43,311	54.5%	34,856	43.9%	1,277	1.6%	79,444	100.0%	1966
City of San Diego	236,972	46.3%	268,559	52.5%	6,299	1.2%	511,830	100.0%	1975
County of San Diego	596,080	51.8%	509,428	44.3%	45,073	3.9%	1,150,581	100.0%	1977

(1) From the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

Source: Claritas, Inc. Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011;ema

DISTRIBUTION OF HOUSEHOLD TENURE BY AREA, 2011 ESTIMATE MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

	Owner-Oc	ccupied	Renter-Occupied	ccupied	Total Occupied Units	pied Units	Total Vacant Units	ant Units
	<u>Total</u>	Percent	Total	Percent	Total	Percent	<u>Total</u>	Percent
1-Mile Radius (1)	3,466	44.3%	4,356	55.7%	7,822	100.0%	265	3.3%
2-Mile Radius (1)	14,703	50.5%	14,401	49.5%	29,104	100.0%	50,340	63.4%
3-Mile Radius (1)	33,964	44.2%	42,798	55.8%	76,762	100.0%	435,068	85.0%
City of San Diego	241,397	49.5%	245,824	50.5%	487,221	100.0%	24,609	4.8%
County of San Diego	610,979	56.1%	478,852	43.9%	1,089,831	100.0%	60,750	5.3%

(1) From the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

Source: Claritas, Inc. Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011;ema

COMPARATIVE OVERVIEW OF MEDIAN HOME PRICES - SINGLE-FAMILY RESALES APRIL 2011 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Community	Median Home Price <u>Single-Family</u>
La Jolla	\$1,425,000
Coronado	\$1,008,750
Ocean Beach	\$767,750
Scripps Ranch	\$726,250
Mission Beach/Pacific Beach	\$710,000
Sorrento Valley	\$700,000
Point Loma	\$690,000
University City	\$644,500
Hillcrest/Mission Hills	\$638,500
Morena	\$525,000
Tierrasanta	\$490,000
North Park	\$460,000
Kensington/Normal Heights	\$421,500
Clairemont	\$417,000
San Carlos	\$402,500
Allied Gardens/Del Cerro	\$397,500
Mira Mesa	\$363,500
Linda Vista	\$358,750
Serra Mesa	\$355,000
Golden Hill	\$353,500
College	\$334,000
Paradise Hills	\$254,500
Encanto	\$230,000
City Heights	\$187,500
Logan Heights	\$149,500
Downtown	N/A
Mission Valley	N/A
Total, Central San Diego	\$385,000

COMPARATIVE OVERVIEW OF MEDIAN HOME PRICES - CONDOMINIUM RESALES, APRIL 2011 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Community	Median Home Price <u>Condominuim</u>
Coronado	\$875,000
La Jolla	\$480,000
Ocean Beach	\$403,000
Downtown	\$400,000
Mission Beach/Pacific Beach	\$365,000
Sorrento Valley	\$355,000
Scripps Ranch	\$300,000
Tierrasanta	\$298,000
Hillcrest/Mission Hills	\$288,500
Point Loma	\$274,000
Serra Mesa	\$241,295
Linda Vista	\$240,000
University City	\$238,500
Mission Valley	\$205,000
Clairemont	\$199,000
Mira Mesa	\$186,500
Morena	\$177,500
Allied Gardens/Del Cerro	\$175,000
Kensington/Normal Heights	\$165,000
North Park	\$165,000
Encanto	\$162,500
San Carlos	\$144,000
Paradise Hills	\$128,000
College	\$114,000
City Heights	\$105,000
Golden Hill	\$94,500
Logan Heights	\$81,500
Total, Central San Diego	\$250,000

HISTORICAL MEDIAN HOME PRICES, ENCANTO NEIGHBORHOOD MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

	2005	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011 (1)	Change, 2005 to 2011 Absolute Percent	05 to 2011 <u>Percent</u>
Single-Family Homes									
Encanto	\$430,000	\$405,000	\$325,000	\$205,000	\$200,000	\$232,250	\$230,000	(\$200,000)	-46.5%
Central San Diego	\$540,000	\$527,500	\$488,000	\$345,000	\$355,000	\$390,000	\$385,000	(\$155,000)	-28.7%
Condominiums									
Encanto	\$280,000	N/A	N/A	\$111,000	\$64,000	\$169,500	\$105,000	(\$175,000)	-62.5%
Central San Diego	\$420,500	\$399,500	\$350,000	\$228,250	\$250,000	\$258,000	\$250,000	(\$170,500)	-40.5%

(1) As of 1st quarter 2011.

Source: DataQuick via DQ News.com Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011;ema

SURVEY OF RENTAL APARTMENT DEVELOPMENTS, SOUTHEASTERN SAN DIEGO(1) MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

	Weigh	ted Av	erages		Ranges		_	Vacancy	
Apartment Development	Rent	SF	\$/SF	Rent	SF	\$/SF	Units	Rate	Community
Creekside Villas	\$1,250	903	\$1.38	\$1,109	750	\$1.26	144	2.8%	Chollas View
				\$1,569	1,250	\$1.48			
Arbor Village	\$956	860	\$1.11	\$750	750	\$1.00	112	3.6%	Lincoln Park
				\$1,250	1,000	\$1.25			
Kingston Estates/49th Imperial Gardens	\$975	750	\$1.30	\$975	750	\$1.30	41	4.9%	Lincoln Park
				\$975	750	\$1.30			
Villa Hermosa I	\$850	850	\$1.00	\$850	850	\$1.00	27	11.1%	Lincoln Park
				\$850	850	\$1.00			
Villa Hermosa II	\$850	850	\$1.00	\$850	850	\$1.00	31	6.5%	Lincoln Park
				\$850	850	\$1.00			
Hillside Apartments	\$825	700	\$1.18	\$825	700	\$1.18	41	9.8%	Mount Hope
				\$825	700	\$1.18			
Doriana Street Apartments	\$890	715	\$1.24	\$825	650	\$1.21	272	2.9%	Paradise Hills
				\$1,025	850	\$1.27			
Mariner's Village	\$1,329	877	\$1.51	\$1,175	700	\$1.44	172	15.1%	Paradise Hills
				\$1,599	998	\$1.68			
Woodman Village Apartments	\$1,157	903	\$1.28	\$995	700	\$1.26	148	2.7%	Paradise Hills
				\$1,195	950	\$1.42			
Woodside Apartments	\$1,157	903	\$1.28	\$995	1,006	\$0.99	148	2.7%	Paradise Hills
				\$1,195	1,146	\$1.04			
Mayberry Townhomes	\$1,025	996	\$1.03	\$950	936	\$1.01	70	8.6%	Southcrest
				\$1,100	1,056	\$1.04			
Town and Country Village	\$1,208	945	\$1.28	\$1,141	819	\$1.13	145	4.8%	Southcrest
				\$1,354	1,200	\$1.39			
Garden View - 2	\$950	779	\$1.22	\$850	700	\$1.17	28	10.7%	Southeastern San Diego
				\$1,050	900	\$1.27			
Garden View - 3	\$1,006	809	\$1.24	\$775	700	\$1.11	28	7.1%	Southeastern San Diego
				\$1,150	900	\$1.35			
Harbor View Villas	\$998	982	\$1.02	\$943	765	\$0.81	60	3.3%	Southeastern San Diego
				\$1,034	1,280	\$1.23			
Southeastern San Diego	\$1,080	857	\$1.26	\$750	\$650	\$0.81	1,467	5.5%	
				\$1,599		\$1.68			
SAN DIEGO COUNTY TOTALS	\$1,335	869	\$1.54	\$500	318	\$0.77	118,009	5.1%	
				\$4,995	2,858	\$3.48			

(1) As of March 2011.

APARTMENT BUILDING SALES, JANUARY 2009 TO PRESEN1(1) MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Sale Date	Address	Zip Code	Sale Price	Acres	Saleable SF	Building <u>\$/SF</u>	Resider	ntial Units <u>\$/Unit</u>	Cap <u>Rate</u>	Year <u>Built</u>
					4.500	<u> </u>		0 7500		4050
11/16/10	617-621 N. 61st St.	92114	\$525,000	0.36	4,560	\$115	6	\$87,500	N/A	1950
10/25/10	5411-5425 Santa Margarita St.	92114	\$6,615,000	3.10	63,376	\$104	49	\$135,000	N/A	1987
06/24/10	3326 Logan Ave.	92113	\$950,000	0.50	5,625	\$169	5	\$190,000	N/A	N/A
06/09/10	2120 W. Island Ave.	92102	\$525,000	0.08	2,742	\$191	6	\$87,500	N/A	N/A
05/07/10	2171-2175 Logan Ave.	92113	\$652,000	0.16	12,084	\$54	16	\$40,750	N/A	1915
02/17/10	730-732 S. 47th St.	92113	\$250,000	0.29	2,574	\$97	5	\$50,000	N/A	1958
01/20/10	811-831 S. 47th St.	92113	\$1,812,500	0.67	21,366	\$85	23	\$78,804	N/A	1984
01/14/10	2475 G St.	92102	\$560,000	0.16	2,375	\$236	4	\$140,000	N/A	1908
01/04/10	1702-1710 National Ave.	92113	\$4,340,000	0.32	20,960	\$207	14	\$310,000	N/A	2008
05/05/09	740-746 S. 36th St.	92113	\$7,000,000	1.98	57,403	\$122	N/A	N/A	N/A	1981
01/12/09	349-355 Euclid Ave.	92114	\$1,250,000	0.46	11,356	\$110	24	\$52,083	N/A	1950
02/27/09	4150 National Ave.	92113	\$1,640,000	0.67	12,150	\$135	37	\$44,324	10.0%	1968
07/12/10	3525-3260 Greeley Ave.	92113	\$800,000	0.28	6,240	\$128	8	\$100,000	9.9%	N/A
08/23/10	4396 Delta St.	92113	\$1,340,560	0.86	12,672	\$106	18	\$74,476	9.5%	1960
05/28/10	534-550 Sicard St.	92113	\$513,500	0.10	4,792	\$107	8	\$64,188	8.8%	1915
09/23/09	2404-2408 J St.	92102	\$1,100,000	0.29	9,396	\$117	11	\$100,000	8.7%	1989
04/20/10	8170-8176 Dodie St.	92114	\$657,500	0.40	5,750	\$114	7	\$93,929	8.5%	1980
01/29/09	2787 G St.	92102	\$715,000	0.25	4,446	\$161	6	\$119,167	8.5%	1981
04/21/10	3080 Martin Ave.	92113	\$500,000	0.16	5,802	\$86	7	\$71,429	8.2%	1980
10/18/10	510 Dodson St.	92102	\$432,000	0.11	3,693	\$117	6	\$72,000	7.8%	1920
02/09/11	1875 Julian Ave.	92113	\$650,000	0.16	4,023	\$162	8	\$81,250	7.5%	1958
04/06/10	1013-1023 28th St.	92102	\$1,050,000	0.29	14,032	\$75	12	\$87,500	7.5%	1952
08/20/10	4388-4394 Delta St.	92113	\$2,409,090	0.78	25,705	\$94	31	\$77,713	7.4%	1988
10/07/09	1702 Una St.	92113	\$450,000	0.10	2,656	\$169	8	\$56,250	7.1%	1940
03/11/10	2470 C St.	92102	\$2,500,000	0.32	20,740	\$121	27	\$92,593	7.0%	1968
10/05/10	2038-2042 F St.	92102	\$880,000	0.22	5,670	\$155	8	\$110,000	6.9%	1910
02/06/09	470 20th St.	92102	\$2,625,000	0.11	10,630	\$247	28	\$93,750	6.9%	1908
01/31/11	2619-2621 C St.	92102	\$749,000	0.16	4,063	\$184	7	\$107,000	6.6%	1990
01/15/10	2231-2233 Broadway	92102	\$895,000	0.11	5,373	\$167	10	\$89,500	6.6%	1921
11/09/10	1129-1133 26th St.	92102	\$550,000	0.09	2,401	\$229	5	\$110,000	6.4%	1916
03/17/10	225-235 Willie James Jones Ave.	92102	\$1,200,000	0.39	8,500	\$141	12	\$100,000	6.2%	1988
12/09/09	2528 C St.	92102	\$938,000	0.16	5,640	\$166	11	\$85,273	6.1%	1935
08/13/10	926-928 S. 45th St.	92113	\$1,312,500	N/A	12,000	\$109	24	\$54,688	5.7%	1982
11/17/09	1213-1247 21st St.	92102	\$1,342,500	0.35	6,720	\$200	16	\$83,906	4.9%	1951
04/19/10	3137 Boston Ave.	92113	\$550,000	0.15	4,550	\$121	7	\$78,571	4.4%	N/A
04/13/11	4850-4856 Market St.	92102	\$725,000	0.13	4,500	\$161	7	\$103,571	4.3%	1952
				0.17						
		Minimum	\$250,000	0.08	2,375	\$54	4	\$40,750	4.3%	1908
		Maximum	\$7,000,000	3.10	63,376	\$247	49	\$310,000	10.0%	2008
		Median	\$887,500	0.28	5,776	\$125	8	\$87,500	7.1%	1958
		Average	\$1,416,782	0.42	11,293	\$141	14	\$94,935	7.3%	1956

(1) Survey represents the following zip codes: 92102, 92113, and 92114.
 Source: CoStar Comps, Inc.
 Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc.
 Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011; ema



OFFICE MARKET PROFILE, 1ST QUARTER 2011 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

<u>Submarket</u>	Total SF	Overall Vacancy <u>Rate</u>	SF Under Construction	Average Asking <u>Lease Rate</u> (1)
Torrey Pines	1,053,863	21.7%	0	\$3.75
Sabre Springs	471,180	2.9%	0	\$3.35
Del Mar Heights	4,420,985	19.5%	0	\$3.12
La Jolla	1,201,603	13.7%	0	\$2.78
Solana Beach	553,486	14.3%	0	\$2.77
Point Loma/Ocean Beach	458,090	11.4%	0	\$2.75
Encinitas	805,378	12.5%	0	\$2.48
Del Mar	319,029	15.3%	0	\$2.47
UTC	4,336,750	23.6%	0	\$2.46
San Marcos	910,340	18.1%	0	\$2.41
Otay Mesa	125,367	31.8%	0	\$2.31
Chula Vista	1,548,487	32.7%	0	\$2.24
Scripps Ranch	2,136,872	38.5%	0	\$2.23
Carlsbad	5,165,830	23.8%	0	\$2.22
Downtown	11,111,733	19.1%	0	\$2.17
Mission Valley	7,048,793	15.5%	0	\$2.10
Carmel Mountain Ranch	259,374	35.8%	0	\$2.08
Escondido	1,161,334	18.0%	0	\$2.08
Uptown	1,151,248	8.0%	0	\$2.07
Governor Park	625,804	16.8%	0	\$2.05
Spring Valley	124,506	24.9%	0	\$2.05
Rancho Bernardo	3,666,275	9.6%	83,000	\$2.02
Coronado	122,347	2.8%	0	\$2.00
Sorrento Mesa	6,462,904	9.2%	0	\$1.99
Old Town	525,864	7.3%	0	\$1.93
Poway	580,048	12.4%	0	\$1.85
National City	382,927	55.9%	0	\$1.80
Oceanside	840,632	18.7%	0	\$1.77
Sorrento Valley	375,558	14.4%	0	\$1.72
Bonita	100,264	9.2%	0	\$1.70
Kearny Mesa	8,831,271	10.8%	0	\$1.70
Sports Arena/Airport	592,723	3.9%	0	\$1.70
Morena	384,192	2.7%	0	\$1.68
Vista	620,829	16.2%	0	\$1.64
Miramar	1,417,000	13.4%	0	\$1.62
La Mesa	764,161	11.3%	0	\$1.50
Rose Canyon	320,018	18.1%	0	\$1.44
El Cajon	638,934	6.6%	0	\$1.42
Santee	188,863	37.2%	0	\$1.32
Lemon Grove	45,292	16.6%	0	\$1.28
Mission Gorge	293,747	16.4%	0	\$1.24
Highway 56 Corridor	466,236	0.0%	0	-
Total, San Diego County	72,610,137	16.8%	83,000	\$2.17

OFFICE MARKET TRENDS, PLAN AREA, 2006 TO 2011 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

2011	Percent	92.1%	N/A	23.7%
Change, 2006 to 2011	<u>Absolute</u> <u>Pe</u>	75,000	1.1%	\$0.39
-	2011 (1)	156,437	2.7%	\$2.02
	<u>2010</u>	156,437	5.6%	\$1.94
	2009	156,437	4.3%	\$1.80
	2008	156,437	1.6%	\$1.70
	2007	81,437	1.6%	\$1.68
	2006	81,437	1.6%	\$1.63
		Total Inventory	Vacancy Rate	Average Asking Lease Rate (FSG)

(1) As of 1st quarter 2011.

Source: CoStar, Inc. Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011; ema

OFFICE ASKING LEASE RATES, SOUTHEASTERN SAN DIEGO (1) MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

e N	2nd-story office space Medical office space in 6-story building	4,880		Lease Rate	Lease Type	Vacant	Built	Class
·			3,000	\$0.85	NNN	61%	N/A	O
		72,000	50,000	\$1.50	Modified Gross	%69	1973	N/A
	Creative Office	20,238	10,633 4,550 5,055	\$1.25 \$1.40 \$1.75	Modified Gross	100%	1966	ш
2436 Market St. N/A		4,456	4,456	\$1.25	Modified Gross	100%	1923	N/A
995 Gateway Center Way Gateway Medical Center	dical Center	39,878	3,720 4,510	\$1.85 \$2.15	Modified Gross	21%	1989	В
Minimum Maximum Median Average		4,456 72,000 20,238 28,290 141,452	3,000 50,000 4,530 10,741 85,924	\$0.85 \$2.15 \$1.45 \$1.50		21% 100% 69% 70%	1923 1989 1970 1963	

(1) As of May 31, 2011. Survey represents the following zip codes: 92102, 92113, and 92114.

OFFICE BUILDING SALES, JANUARY 2010 TO PRESENT (1) MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

						ted in 2005)				
	Property Description	Class C office building	Class B R&D building	Class C office building	Class C office building	Class C office building (renovated in 2005)				
	Year <u>Built</u>	N/A	\$120 1987	\$123 1974	N/A	\$76 1985	\$76 1974	1987	\$123 1985	1982
	\$/SF Building	\$127	\$120	\$123	\$163	\$76	\$76	\$163 1987	\$123	\$122 1982
Saleable	Building <u>SF</u>	1,575	131,720	5,300	2,332	8,712	1,575	131,720	5,300	29,928
	\$/SF Land	\$30	\$55	N/A	\$83	\$76	\$30	\$83	\$66	\$61
	Acres	0.15	6.53	N/A	0.10	0.20	0.10	6.53	0.18	1.75
	Sale Price	\$200,000	\$15,785,500	\$650,000	\$380,000	\$665,000	\$200,000	\$15,785,500	\$650,000	\$3,536,100
	Zip Code	92114	92102	91950	92102	91950	Minimum	Maximum	Median	Average
	City	San Diego	San Diego	National City	San Diego	National City				
	Address	1005 Euclid Ave.	3636 Gteway Center Ave.	1615 E. Plaza Blvd.	2780 Imperial Ave.	135 Civic Center Dr.				
	Sale Date	11/30/10	06/09/10	04/30/10	03/03/10	02/23/10				

(1) Survey represents sales of office buildings within the following zip codes: 91950, 92102, 92113, and 92114.



INDUSTRIAL MARKET PROFILE, 1ST QUARTER 2011 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

	Indu	ustrial Inventory (S	Overall	Average				
		Manufacturing /		Vacancy	SF Under	Asking <u>Lease</u>		
<u>Submarket</u>	<u>R&D</u>	Warehouse	<u>Total</u>	Rate	Construction	<u>Rate</u> (1)		
Torrey Pines	4,981,851	0	4,981,851	9.0%	0	\$2.97		
Downtown	806,055	2,315,641	3,121,696	11.5%	0	\$2.71		
Santee	56,738	2,669,911	2,726,649	6.5%	0	\$1.68		
Eastgate/Campus Point	3,892,975	0	3,892,975	20.4%	0	\$1.63		
UTC	1,164,283	0	1,164,283	23.2%	0	\$1.50		
Sorrento Valley	2,684,651	883,621	3,568,272	9.0%	0	\$1.47		
Mission Valley	278,673	169,673	448,346	5.8%	0	\$1.35		
Carmel Mountain Ranch	1,537,494	528,464	2,065,958	19.2%	0	\$1.20		
Sorrento Mesa	9,509,065	3,146,561	12,655,626	13.3%	0	\$1.12		
Lemon Grove	0	511,338	511,338	10.1%	0	\$1.04		
Scripps Ranch	1,290,283	748,152	2,038,435	18.9%	0	\$1.00		
Rancho Bernardo	3,861,449	3,451,093	7,312,542	19.2%	0	\$0.98		
Carlsbad	6,625,387	7,456,404	14,081,791	14.6%	176,000	\$0.95		
Sabre Springs	455,713	0	455,713	23.7%	0	\$0.95		
Kearny Mesa	5,621,931	10,198,449	15,820,380	6.2%	0	\$0.91		
Rose Canyon	0	1,171,693	1,171,693	5.6%	0	\$0.91		
Mission Gorge	310,670	1,558,500	1,869,170	12.7%	0	\$0.86		
Sports Arena/Airport	118,359	1,158,803	1,277,162	8.2%	0	\$0.84		
Miramar	4,667,824	12,295,237	16,963,061	13.7%	0	\$0.80		
Escondido	268,237	7,214,725	7,482,962	6.5%	26,340	\$0.78		
La Mesa	25,000	375,154	400,154	13.8%	0	\$0.78		
Lakeside	0	709,535	709,535	7.0%	0	\$0.74		
El Cajon	330,034	8,284,224	8,614,258	7.6%	0	\$0.69		
Vista	626,226	12,638,041	13,264,267	9.9%	0	\$0.67		
East City	179,745	2,466,079	2,645,824	5.8%	0	\$0.65		
Poway	2,910,104	5,706,995	8,617,099	3.5%	0	\$0.65		
South City	265,375	3,777,862	4,043,237	5.2%	0	\$0.64		
National City	143,873	3,698,198	3,842,071	6.0%	0	\$0.62		
Oceanside	927,991	7,196,327	8,124,318	17.3%	0	\$0.62		
Chula Vista	922,709	9,750,992	10,673,701	6.3%	0	\$0.55		
Spring Valley	0	959,630	959,630	10.3%	0	\$0.54		
San Marcos	282,488	8,676,257	8,958,745	7.7%	0	\$0.53		
San Ysidro	0	1,618,840	1,618,840	10.9%	0	\$0.53		
Otay Mesa	148,767	14,869,075	15,017,842	22.3%	0	\$0.49		
Governor Park	293,763	0	293,763	15.7%	0	N/A		
Morena	0	1,118,276	1,118,276	5.9%	0	N/A		
North Park	0	119,310	119,310	0.0%	0	N/A		
Solana Beach	40,624	0	40,624	3.6%	0	N/A		
Total, San Diego County	55,228,337	137,443,060	192,671,397	11.5%	202,340	\$0.84		

INDUSTRIAL MARKET TRENDS, PLAN AREA, 2006 TO 2011 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

						-	Change, 2006 to 2011	6 to 2011
	2006	2007	2008	2009	<u>2010</u>	2011 (1)	<u>Absolute</u>	Percent
Total Inventory	215,416	245,416	245,416	245,416	245,416	245,416	30,000	13.9%
Vacancy Rate	0.6%	3.6%	2.7%	3.6%	2.7%	2.7%	2.1%	N/A
Average Asking Lease Rate (NNN)	\$0.60	\$1.10	\$1.00	\$0.84	\$0.88	\$0.88	\$0.29	47.8%

(1) As of 1st quarter 2011.

Source: CoStar, Inc. Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011; ema

INDUSTRIAL ASKING LEASE RATES, SOUTHEASTERN SAN DIEGO (1) MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Address	Property Type	Total <u>Building SF</u>	Available Leasable SF	Average Asking <u>Lease Rate</u>	Lease Type	Percent <u>Vacant</u>
1709 Main St.	Refrigerated/cold storage (sublease)	50,275	50,275	\$0.69	Industrial Gross	100%
3440 Main St.	Warehouse space	22,000	13,500	\$0.55	NNN	61%
3460 Main St.	Warehouse space	26,000	11,000	\$0.65	NNN	42%
3004 Commercial St.	Warehouse space	21,000	21,000	\$0.45	FSG	100%
2870 Main St.	Manufacturing space	20,000	5,000	\$0.90	Industrial Gross	25%
2675 Boston Ave.	Warehouse space	11,500	5,000	\$0.72	Modified Gross	43%
1961 Main St.	Manufacturing space	5,000	5,000	\$0.85	Industrial Gross	100%
789 Gateway Center Way	Warehouse space	27,460	4,720	\$0.65	NNN	17%
3959 Lockridge St.	Distribution warehouse	50,000	28,000	\$0.74	NNN	56%
2001 Commercial St.	Urban office/showroom/warehouse space	29,478	17,478 6,000	\$0.80 \$1.00	Industrial Gross	80%
885 Gateway Center Way	Distribution warehouse	40,000	40,000	\$0.69	NNN	100%
3937 Lockridge St.	Warehouse space	50,000	28,000	\$0.75	NNN	56%
2191 Main St.	Distribution warehouse	52,500	28,600	\$0.50	Industrial Gross	54%
675 Gateway Center Dr.	Warehouse space	58,258	58,258	\$0.59	NNN	100%
3140 Market St.	Warehouse space	4,300	3,000	\$1.15	N/A	20%
	Minimum	4,300	3,000	\$0.45		17%
	Maximum	58,258	58,258	\$1.15		100%
	Median	27,460	15,489	\$0.71		61%
	Average	31,185	20,302	\$0.73		67%
	Total	467,771	324,831			69%

(1) As of May 31, 2011. Survey represents the following zip codes: 92102, 92113, and 92114.

INDUSTRIAL BUILDING SALES, 2009 TO PRESENT (1) MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

	Property Description	Class C warehouse building	Class C food processing building	Class C warehouse building	Class C industrial building	Class C manufacturing building	Class B warehouse building	Class C warehouse building	Class C auto service building	Class C industrial building	Class C manufacturing building	Class C service building	Class C warehouse building	Class C warehouse building	Class C manufacturing building	Class C warehouse building	Class C warehouse building	Class C auto service building	Class C manufacturing building	Class C manufacturing building	Class C warehouse building	Class C manufacturing building	Class C manufacturing building				
	Built	1990	1971	1970	N/A	1978	1973	1971	N/A	2004	1980	N/A	1987	1960	1969	1932	1988	1968	N/A	1961	1973	1981	1980	1932	2004	1973	13/4
L CI &	Building	\$88	\$83	\$90	\$209	\$135	\$207	\$110	\$119	\$103	\$313	\$191	\$79	\$88	\$107	\$104	\$117	\$114	\$144	\$169	\$133	\$122	\$222	62\$	\$313	\$118	0010
Saleable	<u>SF</u>	4,300	10,000	8,400	6,230	8,500	11,583	10,000	838	8,897	7,100	785	27,460	7,000	23,000	15,900	6,000	2,800	16,000	5,910	6,780	8,000	6,452	785	27,460	7,550	9,179
L C / #	avor Land	\$68	\$48	\$44	\$27	\$100	\$26	\$36	\$29	\$65	\$31	\$21	\$33	\$88	\$34	\$68	\$127	\$29	\$54	\$143	\$38	\$46	\$39	\$21	\$143	\$42 \$£1	40¢
	Acres	0.13	0.39	0.39	1.12	0.26	2.08	0.70	0.08	0.32	1.63	0.16	1.50	0.16	1.66	0.56	0.13	0.25	0.98	0.16	0.54	0.48	0.84	0.08	2.08	0.44	000
	Sale Price	\$380,000	\$825,000	\$754,000	\$1,300,000	\$1,147,500	\$2,400,000	\$1,100,000	\$100,000	\$912,500	\$2,225,000	\$150,000	\$2,169,340	\$615,000	\$2,450,000	\$1,650,000	\$700,000	\$320,000	\$2,300,000	\$1,000,000	\$900,000	\$975,000	\$1,430,000	\$100,000	\$2,450,000	\$987,500 #1 177 070	ф1,112,019
	Zip Code	91950	92105	91950	92113	91950	92114	92102	91950	92113	91950	92102	92102	92113	91950	92113	91950	92102	91950	92113	91950	92113	92102	Minimum	Maximum	Median	Average
	City	National City	San Diego	National City	San Diego	National City	San Diego	San Diego	National City	San Diego	National City	San Diego	San Diego	San Diego	National City	San Diego	National City	San Diego	National City	San Diego	National City	San Diego	San Diego				
	Address	1925 Wilson Ave.	3960 Home Ave.	221 W. 33rd St.	1211 S. 32nd St.	1636 Wilson Ave.	6144 Federal Blvd.	24 21st St.	905 Hoover Ave.	2627-2635 Boston Ave.	415 W. 30th St.	3056 Imperial Ave.	789 Gateway Center Way	3626 Main St.	2000 McKinley Ave.	3376 Main St.	1900 Wilson Ave.	1645 47th St.	500 West 16th St.	1805 Newton Ave.	3101 Hoover Ave.	1221-1251 S. 26th St.	864 34th St.				
	Sale Date	03/15/11	02/18/11	02/15/11	01/25/11	12/09/10	11/23/10	10/29/10	10/28/10	07/30/10	05/28/10	04/29/10	01/29/10	12/30/09	12/22/09	10/19/09	10/16/09	07/25/09	07/17/09	04/02/09	03/29/09	03/10/09	02/25/09				

(1) Survey represents the following zip codes: 91950, 92102, 92113, and 92114.



TABLE E-1

RETAIL MARKET PROFILE, 1ST QUARTER 2011 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Submarket	Rentable SF	Overall Vacancy	Average Asking
Submarket	<u>5</u>	<u>Rate</u>	Lease Rate (1)
Carmel Mountain Ranch	1,580,439	6.8%	\$3.42
Del Mar/Solana Beach/Rancho Santa Fe	1,756,784	3.3%	
Cardiff/Encinitas/Luecadia	2,328,191	3.8%	\$2.70
Carlsbad/La Costa	1,881,688	7.2%	\$2.68
Santee/Lakeside	1,971,569	4.6%	\$2.59
Rancho Bernardo	637,424	7.9%	\$2.54
Mira Mesa/Scripps Ranch	2,213,428	2.9%	\$2.25
Downtown/Hillcrest/Old Town	640,655	1.8%	\$2.24
Sports Arena/Point Loma	1,952,772	5.1%	\$2.10
Pacific Beach/Morena	577,075	2.4%	\$2.09
Golden Triangle	1,087,948	2.9%	\$2.07
Chula Vista/Bonita	3,591,578	3.2%	\$2.01
Mission Gorge/Del Cerro/Allied Gardens	586,919	2.2%	\$2.00
Murrieta	4,259,333	11.1%	\$1.95
Clairemont/Kearny Mesa/Tierrasanta	3,790,108	7.7%	\$1.93
Fallbrook	525,886	3.8%	\$1.87
Escondido	3,658,689	9.8%	\$1.87
San Marcos	3,151,712	7.4%	\$1.87
Mission Valley	1,439,744	3.0%	\$1.76
Temecula	4,766,915	13.5%	\$1.72
Oceanside	4,960,240	11.3%	\$1.71
Rancho Penasquitos/Poway	1,963,129	4.4%	\$1.70
Mid City/El Cajon Boulevard	2,504,675	5.4%	\$1.69
National City/Paradise Hills	1,530,607	7.3%	\$1.65
Vista	2,641,794	10.5%	\$1.55
La Mesa/San Carlos	2,659,552	7.1%	\$1.53
East Chula Vista	2,195,824	5.7%	\$1.45
Miramar	880,614	14.0%	\$1.42
El Cajon	2,936,088	6.0%	\$1.37
Imperial Beach/South San Diego	2,227,493	3.5%	\$1.37
Lemon Grove/Spring Valley/Rancho San Diego	1,286,647	5.1%	\$1.16
Ramona	362,425	8.7%	\$1.16
La Jolla	125,829	0.0%	-
Total, San Diego County (2)	68,673,774	7.1%	\$1.96
(Less) Cities of Murrieta and Temecula	<u>9,026,248</u>		
Adjusted, San Diego County	77,700,022		

(1) All leases are triple-net.

(2) CB Richard Ellis includes the Cities of Murrieta and Temecula.
RETAIL MARKET TRENDS, PLAN AREA, 2006 TO 2011 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

						_	Change, 2006 to 2011	06 to 2011
	2006	2007	2008	2009	<u>2010</u>	2011 (1)	<u>Absolute</u>	<u>Percent</u>
Total Inventory	167,342	167,342	167,342	167,342	167,342	167,342	0	%0.0
Vacancy Rate	9.7%	5.0%	8.1%	5.1%	8.6%	9.1%	-0.6%	N/A
Average Asking Lease Rate (NNN)	\$1.50	\$1.30	\$1.40	\$1.61	\$1.53	\$1.52	2.4%	1.6%

(1) As of 1st quarter 2011.

Source: CoStar, Inc. Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011; ema

RETAIL ASKING LEASE RATES, SOUTHEASTERN SAN DIEGC(1) MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Address	Center Name/Description	Total Center/ Building SF	Available Leasable SF	Average Asking <u>Lease Rate</u> (2)	Percent <u>Vacant</u>	Year Built
3140 Market St.	Commercial building	2,800	2,800	\$1.25	100%	N/A
212-220 Euclid Ave.	Euclid Plaza neighborhood center	23,368	6,372	\$1.00	27%	1991
4284 Market St.	Free standing retail building	3,300	3,300	\$1.49	100%	1952
5825 Imperial Ave.	St. Stephen's Cathedral retail space	8,591	8,591	N/A	100%	1960
3582 National Ave.	Fornaca Center Phase I strip center	26,830	1,286	N/A	5%	2006
3280 Main St.	Retail strip center	9,500	1,725	N/A	18%	1989
2100 Imperial Ave.	Farmer's Market	15,000	15,000	N/A	100%	N/A
2850 National Ave.	Fornaca Center Phase II strip center	3,610	1,025	N/A	28%	2008
2973 Market St.	Market Plaza street level retail	6,248	1,300	\$1.75	21%	N/A
6821 Imperial Ave.	Street level retail	750	750	\$1.59	100%	1921
3500-3600 National Ave.	Otto Plaza neighborhood center	19,300	3,000 1,300	\$1.45 \$2.00	22%	N/A
2184 Logan Ave.	Former Porkyland retail/restaurant building	8,000	3,000	\$1.18	38%	1930
	Minimum	750	750	\$1.00	5%	1921
	Maximum	26,830	15,000	\$2.00	100%	2008
	Median	8,296	2,800	\$1.47	33%	1975
	Average	10,608	3,804	\$1.46	55%	1970
	Total	127,297	49,449		39%	

As of May 31, 2011. Survey represents the following zip codes: 92102, 92113, and 92114.
 All leases are triple-net (NNN).

Source: LoopNet.com Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename:WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011; ema

RETAIL BUILDING SALES, JANUARY 2009 TO PRESENT (1) MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Property Description	Auto repair building General freestanding retail building	General freestanding retail building Retail storefront building	Retail storerronvorrice building General freestanding retail building	Fast food restaurant Auto dealership building	Plaza Towne shopping center Retail storefront building	General freestanding retail building	General freestanding retail building	Auto repair building	Retail storefront/parking garage	Community center	General freestanding retail building	Two general freestanding retail buildings	Restaurant building	Service station	Retail storefront building	Loma Vista shopping center			
Year <u>Built</u>	N/A 1925	N/A 1955	N/A 1965	1984 N/A	1981 1924	N/A	1964	N/A	N/A	1983	N/A	1958	1975	1960	1957	1991	1924	1991 1061	1963
\$/SF Building	\$311 \$280	\$409 \$209	\$149 \$272	\$499 \$142	\$242 \$180	\$212	\$179	\$296	\$174	\$85	\$276	\$170	\$109	\$307	\$147	\$189	\$85	\$499	\$230 \$230
Saleable Building <u>SF</u>	707 3,000	1,320 3,393	1,950 1,102	2,873 16,955	3,096 3.080	1,463	7,952	2,922	11,500	37,650	2,576	7,625	7,350	1,125	3,675	25,635	202	37,650	3,000 6,998
\$/SF Land	\$22 \$60	\$53 \$78	\$48 \$28	\$73 \$35	\$38 \$88	\$44 \$44	\$25	\$142	\$68	\$16	\$51	\$14	\$46	\$28	\$138	\$35	\$14	\$142 \$16	\$54 \$54
Acres	0.23 0.32	0.23	0.14 0.25	0.45 1.57	0.46	0.16	1.30	0.14	0.68	4.50	0.32	2.07	0.40	0.28	0.09	3.13	0.09	4.50	0.81
Sale Price	\$220,000 \$840,000	\$540,000 \$707,500	\$300,000 \$300,000	\$1,435,000 \$2,400,000	\$750,000 \$555,000	\$309,500	\$1,420,000	\$865,000	\$2,000,000	\$3,200,000	\$710,000	\$1,300,000	\$800,000	\$345,000	\$540,000	\$4,840,000	\$220,000	\$4,840,000 \$750,000	\$1,160,333
Zip Code	92102 92113	91950 92113 01050	91950 91950	92113 91950	91950 92113	92113	92114	91950	91950	91950	92113	92113	91950	92102	91950	92102	Minimum	Maximum	Average
City	San Diego San Diego	San Diego	National City National City	San Diego National City	National City	San Diego	San Diego	National City	National City	National City	San Diego	San Diego	National City	San Diego	National City	San Diego			
Address	4196 Market St. 1701-1705 National Ave.	2415 W. 18th St. 1845 Logan Ave.	2440 Higniand Ave. 1338 Roosevelt Ave.	2804 Main St. 2940 National City Blvd.	1111 E. Plaza Blvd. 2161-2163 Loran ∆ve	2134-2136 National Ave.	8450 Jamacha Rd.	25 W. 11th St.	701 National City Blvd.	1220 E. Plaza Blvd.	1827-1835 Logan Ave.	1802-1816 Logan Ave.	214 National City Blvd.	4689 Market St.	539-541 Highland Ave.	4676-4696 Market St.			
Sale Date	04/22/11 11/04/10	09/10/10 08/31/10	05/19/10 05/10/10	04/27/10 04/05/10	01/19/10 11/04/09	60/06/60	07/02/09	07/01/09	06/22/09	06/15/09	06/12/09	05/13/09	04/27/09	03/24/09	03/02/09	02/05/09			

(1) Survey represents sales of retail buildings in the following zip codes: 91950, 92102, 92113, and 92114. Excludes service stations.

OVERVIEW OF KMA RETAIL GROUPINGS MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

KMA Retail Category	Definition
General Merchandise	Variety stores, department stores, and general merchandise
Other Comparison Goods	Apparel stores, home furnishings and appliances, and specialty goods
Convenience Goods	Food stores, grocery stores with or without alcohol, drug stores, and packaged liquor stores
Eating and Drinking	Restaurants with or without liquor
Home Improvement	Lumber/building materials, hardware stores, plumbing/electrical supplies, and farm construction equipment
Automotive Outlets	New and used auto dealers, service stations, and auto supplies
Other Retail Stores	Second-hand stores, garden supplies, watercraft dealers, airplane dealers, fuel, and ice dealers

TOTAL RETAIL SALES, SOUTHEASTERN SAN DIEGO AND ENCANTO COMMUNITY PLANNING AREAS, 2005-2010 **EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN** MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

					2010	
Retail Categories (\$000s) (1)	2005	2010	Average Annual Rate	Sales Per Capita (2)	Sales As % of Per Capita Income (3)	Sales As % of Citywide Sales
Aggregated Confidential (4)	\$247,746	\$192,676	-4.9%	\$1,753	13.1%	4.2%
Convenience Goods (5)	\$73,606	\$60,557	-3.8%	\$551	4.1%	1.9%
Eating and Drinking	\$26,672	\$25,922	-0.6%	\$236	1.8%	1.0%
Automotive Outlets	\$65,522	\$73,772	2.4%	\$671	5.0%	2.4%
Other Retail Stores	<u>\$10,469</u>	<u>\$8,280</u>	-4.6%	<u>\$75</u>	0.6%	0.4%
Total Retail Sales	\$424,016	\$361,208	-3.2%	\$3,286	24.6%	2.4%

(1) Excludes All Other Outlets.

Based on SANDAG's 2010 estimate of total population of 59,983 for the Southeastern San Diego and Encanto Community Planning Areas.

Based on Claritas, Inc.'s 2010 estimate of per capita income for the 1-mile radius surrounding the Plan Area of \$13,344. (5) (3) (5)

The State Board of Equalization minimum threshold requirements for release of sales tax information by retail category were not met in the following categories: Apparel Stores, Building Material and Farm Implements, Drug Stores, Home Furnishings and Appliances, General Merchandise, and Packaged Liquor. As such, these retail categories are deemed as confidential.

KMA estimate; assumes 30% of sales in Food Stores with Liquor are non-taxable. (2)

Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market/6/27/2011; ema Source: MuniServices and City of San Diego

EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN TOTAL RETAIL SALES, CITY OF SAN DIEGO, 2010 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Retail Categories (\$000s) (1)	2010	2010 Sales Per Capita (2)	Sales As % of Per Capita Income (3)
General Merchandise	\$1,769,730	\$1,286	5.4%
Other Comparison Goods			
Apparel Home Furnishings & Appliances Subtotal Commarison Goods	\$1,073,812 <u>\$806,876</u> \$1 880 688	\$780 <u>\$586</u> \$1 367	3.3% 2.5% 5.8%
	000,000,-0		
Convenience Goods (3)	\$3,167,870	\$2,302	9.8%
Eating and Drinking	\$2,505,842	\$1,821	7.7%
Home Improvement	\$910,267	\$661	2.8%
Automotive Outlets	\$3,042,317	\$2,211	9.4%
Other Retail Stores	\$2,026,465	\$1,473	<u>6.2%</u>
Total Retail Sales	\$15,303,180	\$11,120	47.1%

Excludes All Other Outlets.
 Based on SANDAG's 2010 estimate of total population of 1,376,173 for the City.
 Based on Claritas, Inc.'s 2010 estimate of Per Capita Income (PCI) of \$23,608 for the City.
 KMA estimate; assumes 30% of sales in Food Stores with Liquor and 70% of sales in Drug Stores are non-taxable.

Source: MuniServices and City of San Diego Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market/6/27/2011; ema

EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN TOTAL RETAIL SALES, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, 2010 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Retail Categories (\$000s) (1)	2010	2010 Sales Per Capita (2)	Sales As % of Per Capita Income (3)
General Merchandise	\$4,607,254	\$1,429	6.2%
Other Comparison Goods			
Apparel Home Furnishings & Appliances	\$2,069,423 \$1.451.131	\$642 \$450	2.8% 2.0%
Subtotal Comparison Goods	\$3,520,554	\$1,092	4.8%
Convenience Goods (3)	\$7,587,164	\$2,353	10.3%
Eating and Drinking	\$4,657,220	\$1,444	6.3%
Home Improvement	\$2,218,557	\$688	3.0%
Automotive Outlets	\$7,587,335	\$2,353	10.3%
Other Retail Stores	\$3,924,412	\$1,217	<u>5.3%</u>
Total Retail Sales	\$34,102,494	\$10,576	46.1%

Excludes All Other Outlets.
 Based on SANDAG's 2010 estimate of total population of 3,224,432 for the County.
 Based on Claritas, Inc.'s 2010 estimate of Per Capita Income (PCI) of \$22,926 for the County.
 KMA estimate; assumes 30% of sales in Food Stores with Liquor and 70% of sales in Drug Stores are non-taxable.

Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market/6/27/2011; ema Source: MuniServices and City of San Diego

RETAIL SALES IMPORT/EXPORT ANALYSIS, SOUTHEASTERN SAN DIEGO AND ENCANTO COMMUNITY PLANNING AREAS, 2010 **EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN** MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

<u>Retail Category</u>	Expenditure Potential <u>As % of PCI</u>	Total <u>Potential</u>	Total Potential (000's) (1)	Actual 2010 (000's)	% of Actual to Total <u>Potential</u>	Import/ (Export) (000's)
Aggregated Confidential (2)	15.0%	\$219,993,854	\$219,994	\$192,676	88%	(\$27,317)
Convenience Goods (3)	10.0%	\$146,662,570	\$146,663	\$60,557	41%	(\$86,105)
Eating and Drinking	3.0%	\$43,998,771	\$43,999	\$25,922	59%	(\$18,077)
Automotive Outlets	5.0%	\$73,331,285	\$73,331	\$73,772	101%	\$441
Other Retail Stores (4)	0.5%	\$7,333,128	\$7,333	\$8,280	113%	\$947
Total	33.5%	\$491,319,608	\$491,320	\$361,208	74%	(\$130,112)

(1) Based on the total Southeastern San Diego CPA population (59,983) and the per capita income of the 1-mile radius surrounding the Plan Area (\$13,344). Includes General Merchandise, Other Comparison Goods, and Home Improvement.
 Includes food and drug stores.

(4) Includes second-hand merchandise; farm implement dealers; farm and garden supply stores; fuel and ice dealers; mobile homes; trailers and campers; and boat, motorcycle, and plane dealers.

Source: MuniServices, City of San Diego, SANDAG, and Claritas, Inc. Prepared by: Keyser Marston Associates, Inc. Filename: WRT-Euclid and Market\6/27/2011; ema



SALES EXPORT RECAPTURE POTENTIAL, PLAN AREA MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

		Estimated Recapture Rate in CPAs	lated re Rate PAs	Assumed Sales Productivity	Estimated Recapture of Retail Space in CPA (SF)	scapture of in CPA (SF)	Estin Recaptu in Pla	Estimated Recapture Rate in Plan Area	Estimated Recapture of Retail Space in Plan Area (SF)	scapture of Plan Area (SF)
Retail Category	Export (000's)	Low	High	Per SF Per Year	Low	High	Low	High	Low	High
Aggregated Confidentia(1)	(\$27,317)	40% - 60%	%09	\$375	29,100	43,700	3.0% -	3.0% - 5.0%	006	2,200
Convenience Goods(2)	(\$86,105)	- %09	80%	\$400	129,000	172,000	1.5% -	- 2.5%	1,900	4,300
Eating and Drinking	(\$18,077)	- 20%	60%	\$400	22,600	27,100	2.0% - 5.0%	. 5.0%	500	1,400
Totals	(\$131,499)	54% - 73%	73%	\$396	180,700	242,800	1.8% -	1.8% - 3.3%	3,300	7,900

Includes General Merchandise, Other Comparison Goods, and Home Improvement.
 Includes food and drug stores.

ESTIMATE OF RETAIL/RESTAURANT SPACE DEMAND, 3-MILE RING, 2011-2030 (1) **EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN** MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

			Retail Space Demand (SF)	<u>High</u>		.F - 17,100 SF	.F - <u>5,000</u> SF	F - 22,100 SF
			Re De	Low		10,300 SF	<u>3,000</u> SF	13,300 SF
			Sales Productivity Per SF (5)			\$350	\$400	
			ed	<u>High</u>		\$5,979,000	\$1,993,000	
334,699 (2) 55,411	\$14,388	\$797,258,000	Estimated Spending	<u>Low</u>		\$3,588,000 -	\$1,196,000 -	
			ned : Rate 1 Area (4)	<u>High</u>		5.0%	2.5%	
			Assumed Capture Rate within Plan Area (4)	<u>Low</u>		3.0% -	1.5% -	
30 -2030	11	il Income, 2011-2030	Allocation of Per Capita Income to Spending (3)			15.0%	10.0%	
Projected Total Population, 2030 Total Population Growth, 2011-2030	Average Per Capita Income, 2011	Increase in Aggregate Personal Income, 2011-2030		Growth Generated Demand	A. Retail Space	General Merchandise and Comparison Goods	Convenience Goods	Subtotal Retail

<u> ---</u>:

B. Restaurant Space

\$478,000 - \$1,196,000 \$400 1,200 SF - 3,000
--

(1) From the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

(2) Based on Claritas, Inc.'s forecasted annual escalation from 2011 through 2016 for the 3-mile radius.

(3) Based on the percent of total taxable sales for Southeastern San Diego and Encanto CPAs.

(4) Based on the Southeastern San Diego and Encanto CPA's percent share of Citywide taxable retail sales for each category.
 (5) Industry standards and KMA assumption.

RETAIL/RESTAURANT SPACE DEMAND FROM OFFICE WORKERS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

_	Number of New Office Workers - 3-Mile Padius	Low	High
:			
	Number of New Office Workers through 2030 (1)	8,425	8,425
	Plan Area Capture @	5.0% (2)	10.0% (2)
	Subtotal - New Office Workers, Plan Area, through 2030	421	842
=	Annual Office Worker Spending - Plan Area		
	Estimate of Annual Office Worker Spending - Retail (3) Estimate of Annual Office Worker Spending - Restaurant (3)	\$6,633 \$2,037	\$6,633 \$2,037
	Spending by Plan Area Office Workers - Retail Spending by Plan Area Office Workers - Restaurant Estimated Capture in Plan Area	\$2,794,000 \$858,000 40% (4)	\$5,588,000 \$1,716,000 60% (4)
	Estimated Spending in Plan Area - Retail Estimated Spending in Plan Area - Restaurant Estimated Sales Productivity (Sales/SF)	\$1,118,000 \$343,000 \$400 (4)	\$3,353,000 \$1,030,000 \$400 (4)
≡́	III. Total Office Worker-Supported Retail Space Demand through 2030 Total Office Worker-Supported Restaurant Space Demand through 2030	2,800 SF 900 SF	8,400 SF 2,600 SF
(3) (3) (1)	See Table F-4. KMA assumption. Based on data provided by ICSC Office Worker Retail Spending report, 2003. Adjusted by KMA to reflect 2011 dollars as follows:	2011 dollars as follows:	

	2003	2011
Shopper Goods	\$3,115	\$3,946
Convenience Goods	\$2,121	\$2,687
Subtotal - Retail	\$5,236	\$6,633
Lunches	\$1,080	\$1,368
Dinner/Drinks	\$528	\$669
Subtotal - Restaurant	\$1,608	\$2,037
Escalation Factor @		3.0%

Estimate is adjusted to reflect employee share of vacation and holidays. Total work days estimated to equate to 240 days.

(4) KMA assumption.

SUMMARY OF RETAIL/RESTAURANT SPACE DEMAND, 2011-2030 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

Estimated Retail Space Demand	Low	High
Existing Residents (Export) (Table F-1)	2,800 SF	6,500 SF
New Residents (Table F-2)	13,300 SF	22,100 SF
New Office Workers (Table F-3)	<u>2,800</u> SF	<u>8,400</u> SF
Total Retail Space Demand through 2030	18,900 SF	37,000 SF
Estimated Restaurant Space Demand		
Existing Residents (Export) (Table F-1)	500 SF	1,400 SF
New Residents (Table F-2)	1,200 SF	3,000 SF
New Office Workers (Table F-3)	<u>900</u> SF	<u>2,600</u> SF
Total Restaurant Space Demand through 2030	2,600 SF	7,000 SF

=i

ESTIMATE OF ADDITIONAL OFFICE SPACE NEEDED THROUGH 2030, 3-MILE RING MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

	Number of Employees <u>2010</u> (1)	Average Annual Rate <u>2010-2030</u> (2)	Number of Employees <u>2030</u>	Number of Employees Added/(Lost)	Portion Using Office <u>Space</u> (3)	Number of New Office <u>Users</u>	# of SF Per Person @ <u>250</u> (4)
Transportation and Warehousing	2,341	0.0%	2,341	0	%0	0	0 SF
Retail Trade	10,251	1.0%	12,384	2,133	5%	107	27,000 SF
Wholesale Trade	1,429	0.0%	1,429	0	%0	0	0 SF
Professional and Business Services	7,086	0.5%	7,722	636	50%	318	80,000 SF
Manufacturing	1,892	0.0%	1,892	0	%0	0	0 SF
Educational Services	6,862	3.0%	12,033	5,171	75%	3,878	969,000 SF
Healthcare and Social Services	6,040	3.0%	10,591	4,551	75%	3,413	853,000 SF
Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate	1,549	2.0%	2,257	708	75%	531	133,000 SF
Government	1,609	1.0%	1,944	335	50%	167	42,000 SF
Construction	2,155	0.5%	2,369	214	5%	11	3,000 SF
Other Services	505	0.0%	505	0	%0	0	0 SF
Leisure and Hospitality	530	0.0%	530	0	%0	0	0 SF
Natural Resources and Mining	2	0.0%	2	0	%0	0	0 SF
Total	42,251	N/A	55,999	13,748	61%	8,425	2,107,000 SF

(1) Source: Claritas, Inc. Reflects employment by place of work within a 3-mile ring from the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

(2) KMA estimate for 3-mile ring based on review of annual growth rates in San Diego County for each employment category between 2000 and 2010. See Table A-5.
(3) KMA assumption.
(4) Reflects rentable SF of office space. KMA assumption.

SUMMARY OF OFFICE SPACE DEMAND, PLAN ARE A MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

High	2,107,000 SF	5.0% (2)	105,000 SF
* 	2,10		10
Low	2,107,000 SF	3.0% (2)	63,000 SF
Estimated Office Demand	Office Space Need through 2030 - 3-Mile Ring (1)	Plan Area Capture @	Total Office Space Demand through 2030 - Plan Area

_

From the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.
 KMA assumption.

TOTAL HOUSING UNIT DEMAND ANALYSIS, PLAN AREA, 2011-2030 MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

	То	tal Housing l	Jnits		Plan Area Capture of								
	Annual	Increase	Total	Pro	ojected Citywi		1 (2)						
Year	Percent	<u>Absolute</u>	Inventory (1)	<u>1.0%</u>	Low	<u>2.0%</u>	<u>High</u>						
2000			469,689	1									
2001	0.98%	4,607	474,296										
2002	0.98%	4,652	478,948										
2003	0.98%	4,698	483,646										
2004	0.98%	4,744	488,389										
2005	0.98%	4,790	493,180										
2006	0.98%	4,837	498,017										
2007	0.98%	4,885	502,902										
2008	0.98%	4,933	507,834										
2009	0.98%	4,981	512,815										
2010	0.98%	5,030	517,845										
2011	0.98%	5,079	522,924		8,087 (3)	102	8,087 (3)						
2012	0.98%	5,129	528,053	51	8,138	103	8,190						
2013	0.98%	5,179	533,232	52	8,190	104	8,293						
2014	0.98%	5,230	538,463	52	8,242	105	8,398						
2015	0.98%	5,281	543,744	53	8,295	106	8,503						
2016	0.98%	5,333	549,077	53	8,349	107	8,610						
2017	0.98%	5,386	554,463	54	8,402	108	8,718						
2018	0.98%	5,438	559,901	54	8,457	109	8,827						
2019	0.98%	5,492	565,393	55	8,512	110	8,936						
2020	0.98%	5,546	570,938	55	8,567	111	9,047						
2021	0.98%	5,600	576,538	56	8,623	112	9,159						
2022	0.98%	5,655	582,193	57	8,680	113	9,272						
2023	0.98%	5,710	587,903	57	8,737	114	9,387						
2024	0.98%	5,766	593,670	58	8,794	115	9,502						
2025	0.98%	5,823	599,493	58	8,853	116	9,618						
2026	0.98%	5,880	605,373	59	8,911	118	9,736						
2027	0.98%	5,938	611,310	59	8,971	119	9,855						
2028	0.98%	5,996	617,306	60	9,031	120	9,975						
2029	0.98%	6,055	623,361	61	9,091	121	10,096						
2030	0.98%	<u>6,114</u>	629,475	<u>61</u>	9,153	<u>122</u>	10,218						
Total		159,786		1,066		2,233							

City of San Diego Projected

(1) Based on actual number of housing units in 2000 and SANDAG's projection of total housing units in 2030.

(2) KMA estimation of low and high capture rates based on 1-mile radius' share of the City's total number of residential units.

(3) Total number of housing units within a 1-mile radius of the intersection of Euclid Avenue and Market Street.

TOTAL SPACE DEMAND, PLAN AREA, 2011-203(MARKET AND ECONOMIC ANALYSIS EUCLID AVENUE AND MARKET STREET VILLAGE MASTER PLAN WRT / CITY OF SAN DIEGO

		Low		High	
<u></u>	Demand by Commercial Use				
	A. Retail Space	18,900 SF	22.4%	37,000 SF	24.8%
	B. Restaurant Space	<u>2,600</u> SF	<u>3.1%</u>	7,000 SF	4.7%
	Subtotal - Retail/Restaurant	21,500 SF	25.4%	44,000 SF	29.5%
	C. Office Space	<u>63,000</u> SF	74.6%	<u>105,000</u> SF	70.5%
=	Total Commercial Space Demand, 2011-2030	84,500 SF	100.0%	149,000 SF	100.0%
Ξ	III. Total Housing Unit Demand, 2011-2030	1,066 Units		2,233 Units	



C. MITIGATION MEASURES

U
\simeq
Δ
Ľ
Ē
¥

			Level of
	Tunn of		Significance
Mitigation Measure #	Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	Mitigation
AIR QUALITY			
AQ-1 (Preparation of a	Short-	A project-specific air quality analysis shall be prepared for future redevelopment	Less than
Project-Specific Air	Term	activities to determine the emissions associated with construction activities and	Significant
Quality Analysis)		identify measures to reduce air emissions. In addition, future redevelopment projects	
		requirements designed to minimize short-term construction-related air quality	
		emissions. These measures typically include, but are not limited to, the following:	
		 Apply water or dust control agents to active grading areas, unpaved surfaces, and area of a surfaces. 	
		and and stockplies as necessary. Protect all soll to be stockplied over 30 days with a secure tarp or tackifiers to prevent windblown dust.	
		Properly maintain diesel-powered on-site mobile equipment and use gasoline-	
		powered on-site mobile equipment instead of diesel-powered mobile equipment to the maximum extent possible	
		 Wash-off trucks leaving construction sites. 	
		 Replace ground cover on construction sites if it is determined that the site will be 	
		undisturbed for lengthy periods.	
		Reduce speeds on unpaved roads to less than 15 mph.	
		Halt all grading and excavation operations when wind speeds exceed 25 miles	
		per hour	
		Sweep or vacuum dirt and debris spilled onto paved surfaces at the project site	
		and on the adjacent roadways and dispose of these materials at the end of each workday.	
		$\hfill\square$ Cover all trucks hauling dirt, sand, soil or other loose material to and from the	
		site and/or maintain a two-foot minimum freeboard.	
		 Use zero emission volatile organic compound (VOC) paints. 	

Recommended Mitigation Measures

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

SEPTEMBER 2011

Ч

Mitigation Measure #	Type of Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed
AQ-2 (Implement TOD	-gng-	· Village Center and Imperial Avenue Corridor Master Plan:
and TSM Design	Term	The Village Center and Imperial Avenue Corridor Master Plan projec
Measures)		implement elements of the Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) De Guidelines (Resolution No. R-280480).
		 Transportation System Management (TSM) program, including shut pooling, bicycle paths, and other methods to encourage the use of a
		means of transit.
		Provide pedestrian facilities and improvements.
		 Provide electric vehicle charging facilities, and/or alternative fuel fue stations.
		Provide preferential parking for carpools/vanpools.
		Provide neighborhood servicing shops and services within 1/12 mile
		residential areas.
		 Construct transit facilities such as bus turnouts/bus bulbs, benches,
AQ-3 (Implement	Long-	All projects:
Green Building/Energy	Term	Increase walls and attic insulation beyond Title 24 requirements.
Efficiency Building		 Orient buildings to maximize standard heating and cooling and inclu
(VIEdsures)		solar design, e.g., day-lighting.
		Plant shade trees in parking lots and within the public right-of-way t
		evaporative emissions from parked vehicles.
		 Plant shade trees adjacent to all bayed surfaces as possible, to reduit

APPENDIX C

				Level of Significance
-	Type of			with
Itigation Measure #	птраст		igation ivieasure Proposed	MITIGATION
לי2 (Implement TOD	Long-	Villa	Village Center and Imperial Avenue Corridor Master Plan:	Significant
and TSM Design Measures)	Term		The Village Center and Imperial Avenue Corridor Master Plan projects shall implement elements of the Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Design	and Unmitigable
			Guidelines (Resolution No. R-280480).	
			Transportation System Management (TSM) program, including shuttle buses, car pooling, bicycle paths, and other methods to encourage the use of alternative	
			Provide pedestrian facilities and improvements.	
			Provide electric vehicle charging facilities, and/or alternative fuel fueling	
			Provide preferential parking for carpools/vanpools.	
			Provide neighborhood servicing shops and services within 1/12 mile of residential areas.	
			Construct transit facilities such as bus turnouts/bus bulbs, benches, shelters, etc.	
AQ-3 (Implement	-guo-	All p	All projects:	Significant
een Building/Energy	Term		Increase walls and attic insulation beyond Title 24 requirements.	and
Efficiency Building Measures)			Orient buildings to maximize standard heating and cooling and include passive solar design. e.g dav-lighting.	Unmitigable
			Plant shade trees in parking lots and within the public right-of-way to reduce	
			evaporative emissions from parked venicles.	
			Plant shade trees adjacent to all paved surfaces as possible, to reduce the "Urban Heat Island Effect."	
			Use energy-efficient and automated controls for air conditioning.	
			Use lighting controls and energy-efficient interior lighting and built-in energy-	

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

SEPTEMBER 2011

with	Mitigation						.S.	lights.	undcovers rather than		1g.	e.g., utility carts.	fts, utility carts, etc.	Significant	and	Unmitigable	pt new or amended	to implement the goals	erns to reduce vehicular	ternative modes of	
	Mitigation Measure Proposed	efficient appliances.	Use double-paned windows.	Use solar or low-emission water heaters.	Use centralized water-heating systems.	Use energy star roofing products.	Use ozone-destruction catalyst on air condition systems.	Use energy-efficient low sodium parking lot and street lights.	 Landscape with drought-resistant species, and use groundcovers rather than pavement to reduce heat reflection. 	Provide electric maintenance equipment.	Use electric lawn and garden equipment for landscaping.	Use electrically or CNG-powered specialty equipment, e.g., utility carts.	Use propane-powered specialty equipment, e.g., forklifts, utility carts, etc.	All projects:	City of San Diego Draft General Plan	Conservation Element (CE)	CE-A.2 Reduce the City's carbon footprint. Develop and adopt new or amended	regulations, programs, and incentives as appropriate to implement the goals and policies set forth in the General Plan to:	 Create sustainable and efficient land use patterns to reduce vehicular trips and preserve open space; 	 Reduce fuel emission levels by encouraging alternative modes of transportation and increasing fuel efficiency; 	
Type of	Impact													Long-	Term						
	Mitigation Measure #													AQ-4	(Implement General	Plan Policies – TOD and	Sustainable Design)				

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

SEPTEMBER 2011

m

APPENDIX C

C	
\simeq	
Ξ	
Z	
Н	
Ē	
⊲	

Mitigation Measure Proposed Impact Mitigation Measure Proposed a Reduce the Urban Heat Island effect through sustainable design at building practices, as well as planting trees (consistent with habita water conservation policies) for their many environmental benefit including natural carbon sequestration; a Reduce waste by improving management and recycling programs; a Reduce waste by improving management and recycling programs; b Plan for water supply and emergency reserves. CE-A.5 Employ sustainable or "green" building techniques for the construction an operation of buildings. a Develop and implement sustainable building standards for new and significant remodels of residential and commercial buildings to maxim energy efficiency, and to a chieve overall net zero energy consumption 2020 for new residential buildings and 2030 for new commercial buildings on 2020 for new residential buildings and 2030 for new commercial building technology; c Designing mechanical and electrical systems that achieve greater energy vest through innovative site design and building technology; c Endpoiving selfgeneration of energy using renewable technology; c Endpoiving energy vest through innovative site design and building to the maxim revealing winds, landscape, and sunscreens; c Endpoiving energy vest through innovative site design and building to the vest environment sustain of the construction site design and building to the technology; c Endpoiving selfgeneration of energy using renewable technology; e Employing genergy use th	Level of Significance with
5 Employ a. Devi sign 2020 b. Prov	Mitigation
5 Employ a. Dev signi 2020 b. Prov	Reduce the Urban Heat Island effect through sustainable design and building practices, as well as planting trees (consistent with habitat and water conservation policies) for their many environmental benefits, including natural carbon sequestration;
5 Employ a. Devi signi 2020 2020 b. Prov	mproving management and recycling programs; ply and emergency reserves.
Device Signification of the second se	Employ sustainable or "green" building techniques for the construction and operation of buildings.
	Develop and implement sustainable building standards for new and significant remodels of residential and commercial buildings to maximize energy efficiency, and to achieve overall net zero energy consumption by 2020 for new residential buildings and 2030 for new commercial buildings. This can be accomplished through factors including, but not limited to:
	Designing mechanical and electrical systems that achieve greater energy efficiency with currently available technology;
	Minimizing energy use through innovative site design and building orientation that addresses factors such as sun-shade patterns, prevailing winds, landscape, and sunscreens;
	Employing self generation of energy using renewable technologies;
 Reducing levels of non-essential lighting, Using energy efficient appliances and ligh Provide technical services for "green" buildin 	Combining energy efficient measures that have longer payback periods with measures that have shorter payback periods;
 Using energy enricent appliances and light b. Provide technical services for "green" buildin 	Reducing levels of non-essential lighting, heating and cooling; and
	During energy entitient appliances and ingriting. Provide technical services for "green" buildings in partnership with other
GE-A 7 Construct and onsate buildings using materials	agencies and organizations. Construct and operate buildings using materials methods and mechanical and

			Level of
	Tvpe of		Significance with
Mitigation Measure #	Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	Mitigation
		electrical systems that ensure a healthful indoor air quality. Avoid contamination by carcinogens, volatile organic compounds, fungi, molds, bacteria, and other known toxins.	
		 a. Eliminate the use of chlorofluorocarbon-based refrigerants in newly constructed facilities and major building renovations and retrofits for all heating, ventilation, air conditioning, and refrigerant-based building systems. 	
		b. Reduce the quantity of indoor air contaminants that are odorous or potentially irritating to protect installers and occupants' health and comfort. Where feasible, select low-emitting adhesives, paints, coatings, carpet systems, composite wood, agri-fiber products, and others.	
		CE-A.9 Reuse building materials, use materials that have recycled content, or use materials that are derived from sustainable or rapidly renewable sources to the extent possible, through factors including:	
		 Scheduling time for deconstruction and recycling activities to take place during project demolition and construction phases; 	
		 Using life cycle costing in decision-making for materials and construction techniques. Life cycle costing analyzes the costs and benefits over the life of a particular product, technology, or system; 	
		 Removing code obstacles to using recycled materials in buildings and for construction: and Implementing effective economic incentives to recycle construction and demolition debris (see also Public Facilities Element, Policy PF-1.2). 	
		CE-A.10 Include features in buildings to facilitate recycling of waste generated by building occupants and associated refuse storage areas.	
		 Provide permanent, adequate, and convenient space for individual building occupants to collect refuse and recyclable material. 	

APPENDIX C

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

SEPTEMBER 2011

ഹ

C
\simeq
Δ
z
Ж
Ē,
∢

	Type of		Level of Significance with
Mitigation Measure #	Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	Mitigation
		b. Provide a recyclables collection area that serves the entire building or project. The space should allow for the separation, collection and storage of paper, glass, plastic, metals, yard waste and other materials as needed.	
		CE-A.1 1 Implement sustainable landscape design and maintenance.	
		 Use integrated pest management techniques, where feasible, to delay, reduce, or Eliminate dependence on the use of pesticides, herbicides, and synthetic fertilizers. 	
		 Encourage composting efforts through education, incentives, and other activities. 	
		 c. Decrease the amount of impervious surfaces in developments, especially where Public places, plazas, and amenities are proposed to serve as recreation opportunities (see also Recreation Element, Policy Re-A.6 and A.7). 	
		 d. Strategically plant deciduous shade trees, evergreen trees, and drought tolerant native vegetation, as appropriate, to contribute to sustainable development goals. 	
		e. Reduce use of lawn types that require high levels of irrigation.	
		f. Strive to incorporate existing mature trees and native vegetation into site designs.	
		g. Minimize the use of landscape equipment powered by fossil fuels.	
		 Implement water conservation measures in site, building design, and landscaping. 	
		 Encourage the use of height efficiency irrigation technology, and recycled water to reduce the use of potable water for irrigation. Use recycled water to meet the needs of development projects to the maximum extent 	

ပ
\simeq
0
É
4
₹

 ation Measure Proposed feasible. (see Policy CE-A.12). Teasible. (see Policy CE-A.12). 12 Reduce the San Diego Urban Heat Island, through actions such as: Using cool roofing materials, such as reflective, low heat retention tiles, membranes and coatings, or vegetated eco-roofs to reduce heat buildup: Using cool roofing materials, such as reflective, low heat retention tiles, membranes and coatings, or vegetation, to provide shade and cool air temperatures. In particular, properly position trees to shade buildings, air conditioning units, and parking lots; and Reducing heat build up in parking lots; and Reducing heat build up in parking lots; and Reducing naterials as feasible (see also Urban Design Element, Policy UD-A.12). L Develop and adopt a fuel efficiency policy to reduce fossil fuel use by City departments, and support community outreach efforts to achieve similar goals in the community. Continue to upgrade energy conservation in City buildings and support community. Continue to upgrade energy source from inactive and closed landfills. Continue to use methane as an energy source from inactive and closed landfills. Preserve and plant trees, and vegetation that absorb carbon dioxide and pollutants. Design (UD) Design building methods in accordance with the sustainable development policies in the Conservation Element. 				Level of
Type of Impact Nitigation Measure Proposed Feasible. (see Policy CE-A.12). Feasible. (see Policy CE-A.12). CE-A.12 Reduce the San Diego Urban Heat Island, through actions such as: membranes and coatings, or vegetated eco-roofs to reduce heat build- up; a Planting trees and other vegetation, to provide shade and cool air temperatures. In particular, properly position trees to shade buildings, air conditioning units, and parking lots; and a Reducing heat build up in parking lots; and b Reducing materials as feasible (see also Urban Design Element, Policy UD-A.12). CE-F.1 Develop and adopt a fuel efficiency policy to reduce fossil fuel use by City departments, and support community outreach efforts to achieve similar goals in the community. CE-F.2 Continue to upgrade energy conservation in City buildings and support community. CE-F.3 Continue to upgrade energy conservation in City buildings and support dominity. CE-F.3 Continue to upgrade energy conservation in City buildings and support community. CE-F.3 Continue to use methane as an energy source from inactive and closed landfills. D-A Preserve and blant trees, and vegetation that are consistent with habitat and water conservation policies and that absorb carbon dioxide and pollutants. U-D-A Design UUD D-D-A Desutopment U-D-A <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Significance</th>				Significance
Impact Mitigation Measure Proposed Feasible. (see Policy CE-A.12). Feasible. (see Policy CE-A.12). CE-A.12 Reduce the San Diego Urban Heat Island, through actions such as: • Using cool roofing materials, such as reflective, low heat retention tiles, membranes and coatings, or vegetated eco-roofs to reduce heat build-up: • Using cool roofing materials, such as reflective, low heat retention tiles, membranes and coatings, or vegetation, to provide shade and cool air temperatures. In particular, properly position trees to shade buildings, air conditioning units, and parking lots, through increased shading or use of cool paving materials as feasible (see also Urban Design Element, Policy UD-A.12). CE-F.1 Develop and adopt a fuel efficiency policy to reduce fossil fuel use by City departments, and support community outreach efforts to achieve similar goals in the community. CE-F.1 Develop and adopt a fuel efficiency policy to reduce fossil fuel use by City departments, and support community outreach efforts to achieve similar goals in the community. CE-F.1 Develop and adopt a fuel efficiency policy to reduce form inactive and closed landfills. CE-F.1 Develop and adopt a fuel efficiency policy to reduce form indive suport community. CE-F.1 Develop and adopt a fuel efficiency policy to reduce form indive suport community. CE-F.2 Continue to upgrade energy conservation in City buildings and support community. CE-F.3 Continue to use methane as an energy source from inactive and closed landfills. CE-F.4 Preserve and plant trees, and vegetation	:	Type of		with
	Mitigation Measure #	Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	Mitigation
			feasible. (see Policy CE-A.12).	
			membranes and coatings, or vegetated eco-roofs to reduce heat build- up;	
			temperatures. In particular, properly position trees to shade buildings, air conditioning units, and parking lots; and	
D n c t c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c			-	
D na ⁴ D ^D				
D D D				
o ec de co				
сt е о			Urban Design (UD)	
4 9 0			Sustainable Development	
ല്ഗ			UD-A.4 Use sustainable building methods in accordance with the sustainable development policies in the Conservation Element.	
ഗ			Architecture	
,			UD-A.5 Design buildings that contribute to a positive neighborhood character and	

	Tvne of		Level of Significance with
Mitigation Measure #	Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	Mitigation
		relate to neighborhood and community context. a. Relate architecture to San Diego's unique climate and topography.	
		b. Encourage designs that are sensitive to the scale, form, rhythm, proportions, and materials in proximity to commercial areas and residential neighborhoods that have a well-established, distinctive character.	
		c. Encourage the use of materials and finishes that reinforce a sense of quality and permanence.	
		d. Provide architectural interest to discourage the appearance of blank walls for development. This would include not only building walls, but fencing bordering the pedestrian network, where some form of architectural variation should be provided to add interest to the streetscape and enhance the pedestrian experience. For example, walls could protrude, recess, or change in color, height or texture to provide visual interest.	
		e. Design building walls planes to have shadow relief, where pop-outs, offsetting planes, overhangs and recessed doorways are used to provide visual interest at the pedestrian level.	
		f. Design rear elevations of buildings to be as well-detailed and visually interesting as the front elevation, if they will be visible from a public right-of-way or accessible public place or street.	
		g. Acknowledge the positive aspects of nearby existing buildings by incorporating compatible features in new developments.	
		h. Maximize natural ventilation, sunlight, and views.	
		i. Provide convenient, safe, well-marked, and attractive pedestrian connections from the public street to building entrances.	
		j. Design roofs to be visually appealing when visible from public vantage	

∞

C	ر
>	<
2	ב
2	2
ō	Ľ
_ <	Ì

	Type of		Level of Significance with
Mitigation Measure #	Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	Mitigation
		points and public rights-of-way.	
		Mixed-Use Villages	
		UD-C.1 In villages and transit corridors identified in community plans, provide a mix of uses that create vibrant, active places in villages.	
		a. Encourage both vertical (stacked) and horizontal (side-by-side) mixed-use development.	
		 Achieve a mix of housing types, by pursuing innovative designs to meet the needs of a broad range of households. 	
		 c. Encourage placement of active uses, such as retailers, restaurants, cultural facilities and amenities, and other various services, on the ground floor of buildings in areas where the greatest levels of pedestrian activity are sought. 	
		UD-C.3 Develop and apply building design guidelines and regulations that create diversity rather than homogeneity, and improve the quality of infill development.	
		 Encourage distinctive architectural features to differentiate residential, commercial and mixed-use buildings and promote a sense of identity to village centers. 	
		Land Use Element (LU)	
		Village Types and Locations	
		LU-A. 1 The City shall be responsible for designating a hierarchy of village sites for citywide implementation.	
		 Affirm the position of Downtown San Diego as the regional hub by maintaining and enhancing its role as the major business center in the region and encouraging its continued development as a major urban 	
		residential center with the largest concentration of high-density multifamily	

Mitigation Measure #	Type of Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed
0		housing in the region.
		 b. Encourage further intensification of employment uses throughout Subregional Employment Districts. Where appropriate, consider collocating medium- to high- density residential uses with employment uses (see also Economic Prosperity Element).
		 C. Designate Neighborhood, Community, and Urban Village Centers, as appropriate, in community plans throughout the City, where consistent with public facilities adequacy and other goals of the General Plan.
		d. Revitalize transit corridors through the application of plan designations and zoning that permits a higher intensity of mixed-use development. Include some combination of: residential above commercial development, employment uses, commercial uses, and higher density-residential development.
		Village Land Use Mix and Design
		LU-A.7 Determine the appropriate mix and densities/intensities of village land uses at the community plan level, or at the project level when adequate direction is not provided in the community plan.
		 Consider the role of the village in the City and region; surrounding neighborhood uses; uses that are lacking in the community; community

b. Achieve transit-supportive density and design, where such density can be adequately served by public facilities and services (see also Mobility Element, Policy ME-8.9). Due to the distinctive nature of each of the community planning areas, population density and building intensity will differ by each community. This can be attributed to each community's development patterns, household size, and population. SANDAG prepares

character and preferences; and balanced community goals (see also Section

Ĥ.

10

APPENDIX C

Significance

with

Level of

Mitigation

ပ
\simeq
0
É
4
₹

	Type of		Level of Significance with
Mitigation Measure #	Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	Mitigation
		and maintains long term demographic forecasts for population, housing, and employment. Each community plan contains existing and forecasted demographic data.	
		LU-H.7 Provide a variety of different types of land uses within a community in order to offer opportunities for a diverse mix of uses and to help create a balance of land uses within a community (see also LU-A.7).	
		LU-1.10 Improve mobility options and accessibility for the non-driving elderly, disabled, low-income and other members of the population (see also Mobility Element, Section 8).	
		 Work with regional transit planners to implement small neighborhood shuttles and local connectors in addition to other services. 	
		 Increase the supply of housing units that are in close physical proximity to transit and to everyday goods and services, such as grocery stores, medical offices, post offices, and drug stores. 	
		LU-1.11 Implement the City of Villages concept for mixed-use, transit-oriented development as a way to minimize the need to drive by increasing opportunities for individuals to live near where they work, offering a convenient mix of local goods and services, and providing access to high quality transit services.	
		Mobility Element (ME) - Walkability	
		ME-A.7 Improve walkability through the pedestrian-oriented design of public and private projects in areas where higher levels of pedestrian activity are present or desired.	
		 Enhance streets and other public rights-of-way with amenities such as street trees, benches, plazas, public art or other measures including, but not limited to those described in the Pedestrian Improvement Toolbox, 	

DIXC	
APPENDIX C	

	Type of		Level of Significance with
Mitigation Measure #	Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	Mitigation
		Table ME-1 (see also Urban Design Element, Policy UD-A.10). b. Design site plans and structures with pedestrian-oriented features (see also Urban Design Element, Policies UD-A.6, UD-B.4, and UD-C.6).	
		c. Encourage the use of non-contiguous sidewalk design where appropriate to help separate pedestrians from auto traffic. In some areas, contiguous sidewalks with trees planted in grates adjacent to the street may be a preferable design.	
		d. Enhance alleys as secure pathways to provide additional pedestrian connections.	
		 Implement traffic calming measures to improve walkability in accordance with Policy ME-C.5. 	
		ME-E.6 Require new development to have site designs and on-site amenities that support alternative modes of transportation. Emphasize pedestrian and bicycle-friendly design, accessibility to transit, and provision of amenities that are supportive and conducive to implementing TDM strategies such as car sharing vehicles and parking spaces, bike lockers, preferred rideshare parking, showers and lockers, on-site food service, and child care, where appropriate.	
		ME-F.4 Provide safe, convenient, and adequate short-and long-term bicycle parking facilities and other bicycle amenities for employment, retail, multifamily housing, schools and colleges, and transit facility uses.	
		 Continue to require bicycle parking in commercial and multiple unity residential zones. 	
		 Provide bicycle facilities and amenities to help reduce the number of vehicle trips. 	
NOISE			

C
\simeq
Δ
Z
Ы
4
~

Mitigation Measure #	Type of Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	Level of Significance with Mitigation
N-1 (Preparation of a Site-Specific Acoustical Analysis)	Short- Term	An acoustical analysis shall be conducted after site plans have been finalized and prior to issuance of building permits by the City of San Diego for each of the proposed redevelopment activities. This will ensure that each of the proposed redevelopment activities has complied with City noise standards. The acoustical analysis shall identify specific site development requirements for each of the proposed redevelopment activities to reduce on- and off-site noise impacts. The only exception to this requirement is the Lincoln Park Paseo Phase II Residential redevelopment activity, which does not require an acoustical analysis. Typical requirements that shall be identified in the acoustical analysis include: Traffic Noise (Off -Site) Residential Land Uses Noise barriers (i.e., walls and/or earthen berms) shall be used to block noise from new stationary sources such as outdoor recreation areas and parking lots from new stationary sources und entry doors Installation of sound-rated windows and entry doors Office/Commercial Land Uses Noise barriers (i.e., walls and/or earthen berms) shall be used to block noise generated by traffic. Stationary Noise Sources Noise barriers (i.e., walls and/or earthen berms) shall be used to block noise generated by traffic. 	Less than Significant

ပ
\simeq
0
É
4
₹

	Type of		Level of Significance with
Wittigation Measure #	Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed noise-sensitive properties.'	INITUGATION
		 Enclosures for mechanical equipment shall be constructed at the proposed commercial retail and industrial sites. Where this is not nossible barriers shall 	
		be installed to shield the equipment from the adjacent properties. Depending on the size and type of equipment. silencers in the intake and exhaust ducts	
		may also be necessary to reduce noise at the adjacent properties to an acceptable level.	
		 Outdoor recreational facilities shall be located as far away as possible from existing and planned residential land uses. 	
		Exterior Noise Levels	
		 Noise barriers (i.e., walls and/or earthen berms) shall be used to shield outdoor residential living areas from noise generated by traffic, trolley operations, and/or commercial/ industrial sources. 	
		 Noise-sensitive properties, such as residences, shall be located as far as practicable from the adjacent streets and freeways, the trolley line, the 	
		intermodal center, and commercial/industrial properties. This shall be accomplished by using landscaping strips, parks and parking lots to separate the noise source from the property.	
		Groundborne Vibration	
		 Residential buildings shall not be located within about 60 feet of the trolley line. Commercial, retail, office and industrial buildings shall not be located within about 38 feet of the trolley line. 	
		Interior Noise Levels	
		New development within the Plan Area shall be subject to applicable City regulations at the time the development activity is proposed. Title 24 - Noise Insulation Standards, and implementation of site-specific building techniques include:	

Mitigation Measure #	Type of Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed
		Multi-family residential buildings or structures to be located within exterior CNEL contours of 60 dB or greater of an existing or adopted freeway, expressway, parkway, major street, thoroughfare, railroad, rapid transit line, industrial noise source shall prepare an acoustical analysis showing that the building has been designed to limit intruding noise to the level prescribed distribution of a deby
		Sound-rated windows and entry doors shall be installed at proposed resident units near the freeways, streets, trolley line, and intermodal center. Window shall be sealed and entry doors shall be located on the opposite side of a building from the noise source.
		 Mechanical ventilation shall be installed at proposed buildings near the freeways, streets, trolley line, and intermodal center since the interior noise standard is to be met with windows and doors closed.
		Noise-sensitive properties, such as residences, shall be located as far as practicable from the adjacent streets and freeways, the trolley line, the intermodal center, and commercial/ industrial properties. This shall be accomplished by using landscaping strips, parks and parking lots to separate the noise source from the property.
HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS		
HM-1	Short-	A Site Safety Plan shall be prepared and implemented prior to initiation of constructi
(Implementation of a	lerm	activities within the boundaries of the Plan Area to reduce the potential health and safety hazards to workers and the public.

Mitication Maadura #	Type of		Significance with	
		 Multi-family residential buildings or structures to be located within exterior CNEL contours of 60 dB or greater of an existing or adopted freeway, expressway, parkway, major street, thoroughfare, railroad, rapid transit line, or industrial noise source shall prepare an acoustical analysis showing that the building has been designed to limit intruding noise to the level prescribed (interior CNEL of 45 dB). Sound-rated windows and entry doors shall be installed at proposed residential units near the freeways, streets, trolley line, and intermodal center. Windows shall be sealed and entry doors shall be located on the opposite side of a building from the noise source. Mechanical ventilation shall be installed at proposed buildings near the freeways, streets, trolley line, and intermodal center. Windows shall be sealed and entry doors shall be located on the opposite side of a building from the noise source. Mechanical ventilation shall be installed at proposed buildings near the freeways, streets, trolley line, and intermodal center since the interior noise standard is to be met with windows and doors closed. Noise-sensitive properties, such as residences, shall be located as far as practicable from the adjacent streets and freeways, the trolley line, the intermodal center, and commercial/ industrial properties. This shall be accomplished by using landscaping strips, parks and parking lots to separate the noise source from the property. 		
AZARDS AND AZARDOUS AATERIALS				
HM-1 (Implementation of a Site Safety Plan)	Short- Term	A Site Safety Plan shall be prepared and implemented prior to initiation of construction activities within the boundaries of the Plan Area to reduce the potential health and safety hazards to workers and the public. Summary of Hazardous Materials Cases within Redevelopment Activity Sites 1, 3 - 10 Redevelopment Hazardous Materials Activity Present or Type of Waste Reduired?	n Less than Significant O	
			-	٦.

15

APPENDIX C

Level of

	ization Measure Proposed
ō	Anticipated Onsite?
	– Hilltop and Euclid Residential
	3 – Village Center at Euclid and Market
	44 – Lincoln Park Paseo – Phase I
	#5 – Lincoln Park Paseo – Phase II
	#6 – 54th and Imperial No Residential Valencia Villas
	#7 – Imperial Avenue Corridor Master Plan
	8 - Naranja and 53rd Street Residential
	9 - 45th and Ocean View Residential
	#10 - Jackie Robinson No YMCA Expansion
	Source: Ninyo & Moore, June 2005.
icant q ;; how -conta gation	¹ These sites have a low likelihood that significant quantities of hazardous materials and/or wastes would be encountered during redevelopment activities; however, due to the potential presence of buildings constructed prior to the 1980's, lead-based paint (LBPs), asbestos-containing materials (ACMs), and/or poly-chlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) may be present, and implementation of Mitigation Measure HM-1 is therefore recommended.
ו act	Prior to demolition or renovation activities, a hazardous building materials survey shall
nrve Urve	be performed at buildings within the Plan Area boundaries that were constructed prior to the early 1980s. This type of survey typically addresses lead-based baint, asbestos-

APPENDIX C

EUCLID + MARKET LAND USE & MOBILITY PLAN

SEPTEMBER 2011

			J -
			Level of Significance
	Type of		with
Mitigation Measure #	Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	Mitigation
		containing materials, PCBs in electrical equipment, mercury switches, and heating and cooling systems. Such a survey shall be conducted under the direct supervision of a State of California certified asbestos consultant and certified lead inspector/assessor. Prior to demolition or renovation work which would disturb identified lead-based paint, asbestos-containing materials, or other hazardous materials, a licensed abatement removal contractor shall remove and properly dispose of the hazardous material(s) in accordance with applicable local, State, and Federal regulations. A California certified consultant shall prepare a bid specification document, to perform abatement project planning, site and air monitoring, and oversight and reporting activities.	
HM-2 (Preparation of a Contingency Plan for USTs)	Short- Term	In the event that USTs or undocumented areas of contamination are encountered during future development activities, work shall be discontinued until appropriate health and safety procedures are implemented and appropriate notifications shall be made. A contingency plan shall be prepared to address contractor procedures for such an event, to minimize the potential for costly construction delays. In addition, either the DEH or the RWQCB, depending on the nature of the contamination, shall be notified regarding the contamination. Each agency and program within the respective agency has its own mechanism for initiating an investigation. The appropriate program (i.e., the DEH Local Oversight Program for tank release cases, the RWQCB for non-tank cases involving groundwater contamination) shall be selected based on the nature of the contamination identified. The contamination remediation and removal activities shall be conducted in accordance with pertinent local, State, and Federal regulatory guidelines, under the oversight of the appropriate regulatory agency. Appropriate references to the potential to encounter contaminated soil or groundwater shall be included in construction specifications for excavation activities.	Less than Significant
HM-3 (Excavation/Monitoring	Short- Term	Caution shall be taken during excavation activities near the facilities associated with LUST cases because of the potential for encountering documented and undocumented	Less than Significant
•			

17

APPENDIX C

C	
\simeq	
Δ	
E	
P	
4	

			Level of Significance
Mitigation Measure #	Type of Impact	Mitigation Measure Proposed	with Mitigation
for Known LUSTs)		releases of contaminants and hazardous materials or wastes that may have occurred within or adjacent to these sites. Excavation and/or soil monitoring shall be conducted by professionals trained in the identification and management of hazardous materials or wastes, such as contaminated soil or groundwater. The appropriate regulatory agency shall be contacted prior to initiation of construction or development activities on facilities with LUST cases. LUST cases are often issued case closure status based on the existing or proposed land usage of the property. Proposed development activities may be subject to approval by the DEH or other applicable agency, which may require corrective action requirements to be reviewed if land usage is expected to change. Any USTs that are removed during development activities shall be removed under permit by the DEH. The soil and groundwater within the vicinity of the USTs shall be adequately characterized and remedied, if necessary, to a standard that would be protective of water quality and human health, based on future site use.	
HM-4 (Treatment of Known Hydraulic Lifts)	Short- Term	Several facilities within the Plan Area boundaries are likely to contain hydraulic lifts or hydraulic elevators. The hydraulic fluid associated with these lifts and elevators may have contained PCBs at those facilities constructed prior to 1980. While the manufacture of PCB-containing equipment was discontinued in 1979, it is possible that residual PCB contamination may be present at facilities containing hydraulic equipment that was installed prior to 1980. As a result, caution shall be taken during demolition activities at such facilities.	Less than Significant

Additional Measures

AIR QUALITY

The following measures were not identified in the Fifth may be implemented to further ensure that potential air quality impacts are reduced within the Plan Area with future redevelopment efforts:

- Identify designated heavy truck routes and/or prohibit heavy truck travel in areas where residential uses are adjacent to buffer sensitive receptors from potential emissions.
- Require preparation of a project-specific CO hot spot analysis for properties near existing (or future) heavily congested intersections operating at poor LOS to evaluate conditions at the time development is proposed and to identify associated impacts on adjacent sensitive receptors.
- Actively support and/or encourage MTS to transition entire bus fleet to clean-fueled vehicles along existing or planned transit routes.
- Reduce the length of time buses are allowed to idle at each bus stop or staging area, or utilize hybrid or similar vehicles with start/stop technologies to eliminate idling.
- Ensure project consistency with goals and policies of the City of San Diego General Plan and implement mitigation measures given in the General Plan Final EIR, as applicable, to reduce potential cumulative effects of greenhouse gas emissions and climate change.
- Implement grade separation of the trolley and vehicular traffic.
- Encourage fully-integrated traffic and transit management to optimize function and minimize delays and congestion.

NOISE

The following measures were not identified in the *Final EIR for the Proposed Fifth Amendment to the Central Imperial Redevelopment Plan*, but may be implemented to further ensure that potential noise impacts are reduced within the Plan Area with future redevelopment efforts:

Traffic Noise

- Traffic calming traffic management techniques reduced vehicular speed.
- Low-noise road surfaces rubberized asphalt, asphalt skin coat over concrete, or porous surfaces (asphalt concrete pavers).

Commercial and Industrial Noise

- Sound insulation of buildings
- Screens and Enclosures
- Silencers, attenuators, or mufflers
- Limiting of noise-producing operations

Interrupted the Noise Path

- Landscaped berms
- Natural land forms
- Noise-compatible structures/buildings
- Landscaping/vegetation
- Walls

Separating the Noise Source

- Provide distance buffer between the noise source and the noise-sensitive use
- Locate noise-compatible uses such as vehicle parking, open spaces, commercial uses, between the noise source and the noise-sensitive areas

Insulate the Noise Receiver